
 

City of Port Colborne 
Regular Meeting of Council 32-20 

Monday, November 9, 2020 – 6:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 66 Charlotte Street 

 
Agenda 

 
Notice: Council will meet through electronic participation in accordance with Bill 137, the 
Municipal Emergency Act in order to keep the health and safety of our community as a 
priority. If you wish to provide public comments regarding an item on the agenda please 
submit to deputyclerk@portcolborne.ca by noon on Monday, November 9, 2020. 
 
Watch the Council Meeting streaming live on our YouTube Channel. 

 
 

1. Call to Order:  Mayor William C. Steele 
 

2. Introduction of Addendum Items: 
 

3. Confirmation of Agenda: 
 

4. Disclosures of Interest: 
 

5. Adoption of Minutes: 
(a) Regular meeting of Council 28-20, held on October 26, 2020. 

 
6. Determination of Items Requiring Separate Discussion: 

 
7. Approval of Items Not Requiring Separate Discussion: 

 
8. Delegations/Presentations: 

(a) Christine Clark Lafleur, Executive Director, Port Cares will be providing a 
presentation regarding Port Cares. (Page No. 8) 
 

9.    Councillors’ Items: 
(a) Staff Responses to Previous Councillors’ Enquiries 
(b) Councillors’ Issues/Enquiries 

 
10. Consideration of Items Requiring Separate Discussion: 

 
11. Proclamations: 

(a) January 2021 Crime Stoppers Awareness Month 
 

 
  

1

https://www.youtube.com/user/cityofportcolborne


Council Agenda  November 9, 2020 

12. Minutes of Boards, Commissions & Committees: 
(a) Minutes of the Environmental Advisory Committee Meeting of August 12, 2020. 

 
13. Consideration of By-laws: 

 
14. Adjournment: 

  

2



Council Agenda  November 9, 2020 

Council Items: 
 

Notes Item Description / Recommendation Page 
WCS 
 
RB 
 
AD 

MB 
 
GB 
 
DK 

EB 
 
FD 
 
HW 

1. Corporate Services Department, Report 2020-173, Subject: 
KPMG Service Delivery Review Final Report                                   
 
That Corporate Services Department Report 2020-173, Subject: 
KPMG Service Delivery Review Final Report, be received for 
information. 
 
 
 
Note:  Bruce Peever, Partner, Public Sector Advisory, KPMG 
Canada will be providing a presentation with regard to the above 
report. 
 

28 

WCS 
 
RB 
 
AD 

MB 
 
GB 
 
DK 

EB 
 
FD 
 
HW 

2. Corporate Services Department, Financial Services Division, 
Report 2020-158, Subject: Approval of the 2019 Consolidated 
Financial Statements                                                                         
 
That Council approve the Consolidated Financial Statements for the 
year ended December 31, 2019. 
 

85 

WCS 
 
RB 
 
AD 

MB 
 
GB 
 
DK 

EB 
 
FD 
 
HW 

3. Corporate Services Department, Financial Services Division, 
Report 2020-154, Subject: Cancellation, Reduction or Refund of 
Realty Tax                                                                                           
 
That the applications pursuant to Section 357/358 of the Municipal 
Act, 2001, as amended, numbered 2020-01, 2020-04, 2020-05 and 
2020-200 be approved to cancel or reduce taxes in the total amount 
of $6,631.21. 
 

174 

WCS 
 
RB 
 
AD 

MB 
 
GB 
 
DK 

EB 
 
FD 
 
HW 

4. Planning and Development Department, Report No. 2020-167, 
Subject: Development Charges By-law Amendment                      
 
That Council approve the amendment to clause 3.11(b) of the 
Development Charge By-law 6733/97/19 as attached as Appendix A 
to Planning and Development Department Report No. 2020-167, 
Subject: Development Charges By-law Amendment. 
 

177 

  

3



Council Agenda  November 9, 2020 

WCS 
 
RB 
 
AD 

MB 
 
GB 
 
DK 

EB 
 
FD 
 
HW 

5. Planning and Development Department, Report 2020-166, 
Subject: Recommendation Report for Zoning By-law 
Amendment, Nyon Oil Inc. File D14-05-20                                        
 
That Council approve the Zoning By-law Amendment, attached 
hereto as Appendix “B” to allow the technical refinement to the HI-
46-H zone; 
 
That the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to proceed with 
the giving of notice of passing of the By-laws, in accordance with the 
Planning Act; and 
 
That pursuant to the provisions of Section 34(17) of the Planning Act, 
no further notice of public meeting be required. 
 

180 

WCS 
 
RB 
 
AD 

MB 
 
GB 
 
DK 

EB 
 
FD 
 
HW 

6. Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, 
Report 2020-159, Subject: By-law Revision – Speed Limit 
Change on Killaly Street East                                                            
 
That Council direct staff to amend Traffic and parking By-law 89-2000 
Schedule “W” to revert the speed limit on Killaly Street East, between 
James Street and Snider Road, to 50 km/h, with the speed limit being 
reduced to 40 km/h when the lights on the “Flashing 40” signs are 
flashing. 
 

235 

WCS 
 
RB 
 
AD 

MB 
 
GB 
 
DK 

EB 
 
FD 
 
HW 

7. Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, 
Report 2020-136, Subject: Update and Recommendation to 
Complete Engineering and Construction Drawings for City Hall   
 
That Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division 
Report 2020-136 be received;  
 
That Council approve the sole source of the complete engineering 
and construction drawings package for City Hall; and 
 
That staff be directed to retain Lex Parker Consultants to complete 
the engineering and construction drawings for  the amount of $47,500 
excluding taxes. 
 

238 

  

4



Council Agenda  November 9, 2020 

Miscellaneous Correspondence 
WCS 
 
RB 
 
AD 

MB 
 
GB 
 
DK 

EB 
 
FD 
 
HW 

8. Memorandum from Nancy Giles, EA to CAO and Mayor and Staff 
Liaison to the Grant Policy Committee Re: Recommendations of 
Grant Policy Committee                                                                      
 
That the following donation/sponsorship request be approved for a 
total of $4,000 
 
Port Cares – $4000 - to assist in providing services at the Reach Out 
Centre. 
 

241 

WCS 
 
RB 
 
AD 

MB 
 
GB 
 
DK 

EB 
 
FD 
 
HW 

9. Crime Stoppers of Niagara Re: Request for Proclamation of 
January 2021 as Crime Stoppers Month                                           
 
That the month of January 2021 be proclaimed as “Crime Stoppers 
Awareness Month” in the City of Port Colborne in accordance with 
the request received from Barry Diamond, Chair, Crime Stoppers of 
Niagara. 
 

242 

Outside Resolutions – Requests for Endorsement 
WCS 
 
RB 
 
AD 

MB 
 
GB 
 
DK 

EB 
 
FD 
 
HW 

10. Township of Asphodel–Norwood, Township of Blandford-
Blenheim, Town of Lincoln, Norfolk County,  Northumberland 
County, Re: Cannabis Grow Operations                                           
 
That the resolutions received from various municipalities Re: 
Cannabis Production, be received for information. 
 

244 

WCS 
 
RB 
 
AD 

MB 
 
GB 
 
DK 

EB 
 
FD 
 
HW 

11. City of Clarence-Rockland Re: Cannabis Retail Stores                   
 
That the resolution received from the City of Clarence-Rockland Re: 
Cannabis Retail Stores, be received for information. 

258 

WCS 
 
RB 
 
AD 

MB 
 
GB 
 
DK 

EB 
 
FD 
 
HW 

12. County of Wellington, Northumberland County, Township of 
Wellington-North, Township of South-West Oxford, Re: Fair and 
Accurate Assessment of Aggregate Resource Properties             
 
That the resolutions received from various municipalities Re: Fair and 
Accurate Assessment of Aggregate Resource Properties, be 
received for information. 
 

263 

  

5



Council Agenda  November 9, 2020 

WCS 
 
RB 
 
AD 

MB 
 
GB 
 
DK 

EB 
 
FD 
 
HW 

13. Township of Lake of Bays Re: Reform to Municipal Insurance 
Policy                                                                                                  
 
That the resolution received from the Township of Lake of Bays, Re: 
Reform to Municipal Insurance Policy, be received for information. 
 

271 

 Responses to City of Port Colborne Resolutions 
WCS 
 
RB 
 
AD 

MB 
 
GB 
 
DK 

EB 
 
FD 
 
HW 

14. Niagara Health in response to City of Port Colborne’s resolution 
regarding Request for Rehabilitation of Helicopter Pad at the 
Urgent Care Centre                                                                              
 
That the correspondence received from Allison Campbell, Executive 
Coordinator to the President’s Office, Niagara Health, in response to 
the City of Port Colborne’s resolution regarding the rehabilitation of 
Helicopter pad at the Urgent Care Centre, be received for information. 
 

273 

  

6



Council Agenda  November 9, 2020 

Consideration of By-laws 
(Council Agenda Item 13) 

 
 

By-law No. Title 
6835/85/20 Being a By-law to Amend By-law 6733/97/19, Being a By-law to Impose 

Development Charges for the City of Port Colborne 
6836/86/20 Being a by-law to amend Zoning By-law 6575/30/18 respecting lands 

legally described as Part of Lots 16, 17, 18 and 19, part of the road 
allowance between Lots 16 and 17, part of the road allowance between 
Lots 18 and 19, in the City of Port Colborne, Regional Municipality of 
Niagara. The property is municipally known as the Nyon Oil lands 
generally south of the CN Rail lane, west of Highway 140 and east of 
Canal Road in the City of Port Colborne. 

6837/87/20 Being a By-Law to Amend By-Law No. 89-2000, Being a By-Law 
Regulating Traffic and Parking on Killaly Street East 

6838/88/20 Being a By-law to Adopt, Ratify and Confirm the Proceedings of the 
Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne at its Regular 
Meeting of November 9, 2020 

 
 
 
 

 
 

7



PROVIDING 
HELP, 
HOPE AND 
OPPORTUNITY 

• • 

Port Cares 
88



99



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

1010



Renata, Housing Client  since 2013
1111



•

•

•

•

•

1212



1313



1414



We p ovdeh We a e a I accountable o We treat everyone We work 
without· one another. w"th respect. collaborativ lry. 

1515



1616



•

•

•

•

•

•

1717



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

1818



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

1919



•

•

•

•

2020



•

•

•

•

•

About Reach Out Centre 
1,616 LOW INCOME verified 
registered users 
Food bank distributing 20,000 to 
24,000 pounds of food a month 
516 people registered to receive 
meals three nights a week 
ONE THIRD are children under the 
age of 14 

WE RELY ON DONATIONS, 
FUNDRAISING AND GRANTS - NO 
GOVERNMENT MONEY FOR THIS 

2121



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

2222



•

•

•

•

•

2323



•

•

•

•

•

2424



2525



Sports Opinion Entertainment Life Sunshine Girts Driving Healthing The< 

Crime I Canada 

Mystery surrounds Port 
Colborne pedophile cabal 
Brad Hunter 

LOCAL CANADA POLITICS 

WELLAND 

BUNE 
WORLD OPINION LIFE SPORTS ENTERTAINMENT 

Dec 16, 2018 • Last ated 1 year ago • 3 minute read Crime Counci l Cannabis And You Readers 1 Choice Awards Marketplace 

NIAGARA REGION 

Port Cares holding online 50 /50 raffle to raise 
much-needed funds 

• 

81J•m.sCulk P~rt Colbcrnelaact.J 
'lted., OCl. l l ,2020 Olmin. 1e1d 

~ - . 

,~::,"'P rnen arrested . . 
" case to stand . o~ chtJd sex char . 

iheN· tr1a/ in 201')0 ges in Aort C . 
iagara F // .£. O/b 

iuesdaY. A . a s Review Orne 
' Pri/ 23, 2019 

f w II 

At· rta/ for · 
I six men 
engthy i . arrested b . 

. nvest1gati . . Y N1aga~ R . 
untt1 next Yea on into child s . a eg1ona1 Por . 

r. ex allegation . tee in 201a fi 
The defend sin Port Co/b o//ow;ng a 

· ants orne w·11 . . , ranging in ' not be h 
age from 5 e/ 

Oto 78 , aonA::. ... _ • . 

Cr ime Council Cannabis And You Readers' Choice Awards 

1;1of!·t.1-11d'·B' 

Poo-uo tov store helos Port Cares 
-tOME LOCAL CANADA POLITICS WORLD OPINION LIFE SPORTS ENTERTAINMENT BUSINESS OBITUARIES 

By Port Colborne Leader 
.& TL•, Dec. 11, 2018 0 1 min. read 

<'J Article was upd.ied jun. 02, 2020 

NEWS BUY LOCAL PODCASTS CONTESTS EVENTS 

ANONYMOUS DONOR ISSUES CHALLENGE 
TO SUPPORT PORT CARES 

SHELBY KNOX 
Wednesday, Apr~ 8th 2020 - 7:04 am 

2626



If poverty is a disease that If poverty is a disease 
that infects the entire community in the form of 
unemployment and violence, failing schools and 
broken homes, then we can’t just treat those 
symptoms in isolation. We have to heal that 
entire community.

Barack Obama
44th President of the United States of America 

Humanitarian, Visionary

2727



Department: Corporate Services 
 

 
Report Number:  2020-173 Date: November 9, 2020 
 
Subject: KPMG Service Delivery Review Final Report 

1) PURPOSE: 
  
This report is being provided to Council to give a summary of events leading up to the 
presentation and publication of the 2020 Service Delivery Review conducted by the audit firm 
KPMG. 
 
2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES 
 
On February 24, 2020, the Province replied to the City of Port Colborne’s submission to the 
Modernization Program Intake 1, advising that the City was approved for funding of up to 
$86,496 to be used towards conducting a Service Delivery Review (SDR). 
 
One of the eligibility requirements for this provincial grant program was to undertake an 
independent third-party review. The scope of this review would include a detailed analysis of 
all programs and services, consultation with staff, management and Council, leading practice 
research, trend analysis of revenues and expenditures and a review of service levels and 
service standards.  
 
The result of the third-party review was the creation of a report to be published by the 
independent third-party reviewer that must provide specific and actionable recommendations 
for cost savings and improved efficiencies. 
 
Quotes for service on this project were gathered by four firms. Approval to move forward with 
KPMG as the vendor on this project was made by CAO Scott Luey on February 27, 2020 at 
the recommendation of staff. 
 
As part of the City of Port Colborne service delivery review, senior leadership and managers 
were interviewed to obtain an understanding of the services provided by the City, to identify 
challenges, to identify opportunities for financial and operational efficiencies, and to utilize key 
measurements for continuous improvement. 
 
The Office of the CAO and management of each of the City departments were interviewed in 
confidential one-on-one discussions. In addition, three focus groups of front-line municipal staff 
were held. 
 
Prior to the completion of the Service Delivery Review, Council was provided a status update 
of this project in the Customer Relationship Management Project Update presentation made to 
council August 10, 2020. 
 
This third-party review was 100% grant funded from the Municipal Modernization Program. 

 

2828



    

Corporate Services Department Report No.: 2020-173 Page 2 of 3 
 

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS 

An initial determination was made by staff to apply for the Municipal Modernization Program 
Intake 1 as a strategic opportunity. Staff identified that there are currently gaps in available 
data, established key performance indicators (KPIs) and other benchmarking metrics that 
could aid the City in modernizing its service delivery. 

The opportunity to conduct a review of this nature would formalize and document not only 
these opportunities to modernize service delivery but highlight other strategic opportunities as 
well. The information and feedback gathered from this Service Delivery Review can be tied 
into future budget plans and can be used to support the City’s strategic plan. 

This report will be utilized by staff in the upcoming year to help assess departmental goals 
and support work plans. The report will also be used to help identify projects, support budget 
requests, and set goals that ultimately aid in helping the City of Port Colborne run more 
efficient operations. 

This Service Delivery Review was a successful first step in assisting the collection of data 
and staff will continue to identify opportunities to establish KPIs and use metrics to 
benchmark future performance.  

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
No action is required at this time. 

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES 

Not Applicable. 

6)  ATTACHMENTS 
 
Appendix A – Presentation Slides 
Appendix B – Service Delivery Review Final Report 

7)  RECOMMENDATION 

That Corporate Services Department Report 2020-173 KPMG Service Delivery Review Final 
Report be received for information. 

 

 

 

 

 

2929



    

Corporate Services Department Report No.: 2020-173 Page 3 of 3 
 

8)  SIGNATURES 
 
Prepared on November 2, 2020 and 
respectfully submitted by: 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Bill Myers  Amber LaPointe 
Supervisor, Customer Service and 
Strategic Projects 

Manager, Legislative Services/City Clerk 

Reviewed and Respectfully Submitted: 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
C. Scott Luey 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

 

 

 

3030



1© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 1
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Presentation to City Council

The City of Port Colborne
Service Delivery Review

November 9, 2020

Report 2020-173
Appendix A

3131



2© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

City of Port Colborne Service Review Final Report

Disclaimer

This report is subject to the terms and conditions in our engagement letter March 5th, 2020. This report is intended solely to assist the City of Port 
Colborne (“the City”) with a service delivery review. The comments and observations in our report are not intended, nor should they be interpreted, to be 
legal advice or legal opinion. This report is based on information and documentation that was made available to KPMG at the date of this report. KPMG 
has not audited nor otherwise attempted to independently verify the information provided unless otherwise indicated.

We had access to information up to August 10th, 2020 in order to arrive at our observations but, should additional documentation or other information 
become available which impacts upon the observations reached in our report, we will reserve the right, if we consider it necessary, to amend our report 
accordingly. This report and the observations expressed herein are valid only in the context of the whole report. Selected observations should not be 
examined outside of the context of the report in its entirety. 

Our observations and full report are confidential and are intended for the use of the City. Our review was limited to the procedures conducted. The 
scope of our engagement was, by design, limited and therefore the observations should be considered in the context of the procedures performed. In 
this capacity, we are not acting as external auditors nor value for money auditors and, accordingly, our work does not constitute an audit, examination, 
value for money, attestation, or specified procedures engagement in the nature of that conducted by external auditors on financial statements or other 
information and does not result in the expression of an opinion.

Pursuant to the terms of our engagement, it is understood and agreed that all decisions in connection with the implementation of advice and 
recommendations as provided by KPMG during the course of this engagement shall be the responsibility of, and made by, the City. KPMG has not and 
will not perform management functions or make management decisions for the City.

KPMG has no present or contemplated interest in the City. Accordingly, we believe we are independent of the City and are acting objectively.

This report is not intended for general use, circulation or publication and any use of KPMG's report for any purpose other than circulation within the City 
without KPMG's prior written permission in each specific instance is prohibited. KPMG assumes no responsibility or liability for any costs, damages, 
losses, liability or expenses incurred by anyone as a result of the circulation, reproduction or use of or reliance upon KPMG's reports, contrary to this 
paragraph.

3232



3© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Project Objectives
KPMG was engaged by the City of Port Colborne to undertake a service review. The overall goal of the service review was to better understand the 
current suite of services, and identify opportunities for improvements, and efficiencies. Specific project objectives included:

• Inventory Municipal Services – Conduct a comprehensive review and detailed analysis of the relevance, efficiency and effectiveness of 
the City’s services including a review of leading municipal organizations. As part of this we considered all aspects of the City’s services 
including delivery methods, service expenditure and revenue streams.

• Identify Opportunities – Explore opportunities based on global leading practices (public, private, not-for-profit) and define  options for 
greater cost efficiency in service delivery and levels.

• Advise on Implementation – Evaluate and categorize opportunities to develop recommendations for short-term, mid-term, and long-term 
priorities. Provide strategic guidance to leadership on implementation and prioritization of new, innovative and/or leading service delivery 
models that improve upon organizational efficiency while balancing citizen expectations. In addition, highlight the risks  associated with each 
proposed change/option to inform management of the key factors and risks which should be considered during the decision making process.

Project Overview

Introduction and Context

3333



4© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Work Plan and Progress Report

This engagement commenced on April 3, 2020, and was completed on November 9, 2020 when KPMG delivered the final report to the City. The
diagram below depicts the key phases as outlined in the Project Charter.

Project Overview

Introduction and Context

Project Initiation
Meet with CAO and Project 
Team  to clarify  expectations,
refine  lines of inquiry, and  
develop a  subsequent work  
program for the  engagement

Apr May-Jun July Aug Oct

01 02 03 04
Service Profiling & 
Benchmarking
Collect relevant information on  
current methods of service 
delivery and conduct  
stakeholder engagement  
exercises and survey 5 
comparator municipalities to 
benchmark Municipality services

Opportunity / 
Prioritization 
Identification of
potential opportunities to 
achieve the most efficient and 
operationally effective 
approach to service delivery.

Final Report
Develop and present a final
report  with an implementation 
plan & recommendations

Project Initiation Service Profile & 
Benchmarking

Opportunity / 
Prioritization 

Final Report 

3434



5© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Strategic Opportunities
Opportunities & Prioritization

Ref 
No. Opportunity Observation Leading Practice Improve-

ment Type
Estimated 

Impact*

1 Establish Service 
Levels for Municipal 
Services

The City recognizes the need for defined 
service levels for each of it services and to 
date has been inconsistent in establishing and 
adhering to them. Staff identified the need for 
clear direction and less ambiguity or mixed 
messaging as a result of not having 
established service levels. 

Established service levels manage citizen 
expectations and provide clear direction to 
staff. They also allow for appropriate 
planning for resourcing (people and assets) 
and the appropriate budget allocations. 

Modernizing 
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
<$100k/year

2 Revise and Update 
Strategic Plan with 
Departmental 
Mandates and KPIs

The City recognizes the need to revise and 
update the Strategic Plan. The Strategic Plan 
needs to include departmental mandates and 
KPIs for each department. Staff identified the 
inconsistency and lack of understanding of 
these mandates and KPIs. 

Strategic Plans are for 3-5 years and viewed 
and updated on a regular basis. They also 
align the community with Council and City 
staff. Department Mandates and KPIs 
manage expectations, provide clear direction 
and allow for individual and City growth to 
meet or exceed said KPIs. 

Modernizing 
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
<$100k/year

3 Integrate Culture 
Strategic Plans

The City recognizes the opportunity to 
integrate various culture-related initiatives and 
strategic plans. Staff identified the opportunity 
to review resourcing (people, assets and 
funding) for planning and hosting various 
cultural events.    

The integration of strategic planning for 
culture-related initiatives will lead to cost 
effectiveness, innovation, and modernization 
of multiple cultural events. The City will be 
able to build on its foundation of initiatives 
such the Marine Museum, the Roselawn
Centre, and Canal Days etc. 

Modernizing 
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
<$100k/year

* Estimated impacts are preliminary assessments of the potential impact to the organization.  Further study and analysis is needed.

3535



6© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Top 10 Opportunities
Opportunities & Prioritization

Ref 
No. Opportunity Observation Leading Practice Improve-

ment Type
Estimated 

Impact*

1 Conduct Fleet 
Utilization Study and 
Re-Finance the Fleet 

The City operates and maintains a wide 
variety of fleet vehicles and equipment to 
deliver municipal services across the 
municipality. Maintenance has become 
increasingly complex with pressure of 
upcoming replacement needs. A fleet strategy 
and utilization study would assist the City in 
better understanding its current operations, 
improve asset management practices, and 
enhance planning for short-term and long-
term financing needs.

Municipalities are increasingly reviewing 
their fleet operations to understand the 
current utilization, develop standards for 
right-sizing the fleet and for future vehicle 
selection, and leverage possible efficiencies 
from “green” vehicles and shared economy 
business models.

Modernizing
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
<$100k/year

2 Develop a Facility 
Condition Assessment 
and Financial Plan

The City maintains multiple older facilities that 
are well taken care of. With older buildings 
there are opportunities for efficiencies and 
accessibility improvements. There is 
significant overtime and use of contract 
resources. The City may benefit from 
additional full-time trade resources to offset 
overtime and contracts. With the recent onset 
of COVID-19, the City is further challenged to 
implement additional enhancements.

Municipalities are leveraging Lifecycle 
Management approaches with energy-
efficient programs to enhance the long-term 
maintenance of their facilities.  

Modernizing
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
>$100k/year

3 Review Service 
Delivery of GIS 
Services

The demand for GIS services is required 
across multiple departments in the City. There 
is a need for current and updated data that is 
readily accessible by multiple staff. This 
would entail mapping all City-owned and 
managed assets. 

Municipalities can benefit from third-party 
delivery of GIS services across the City. 
Outsourcing allows the City to focus on the 
delivery of City services and benefit from the 
expertise of a third party provider. 

Modernizing
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
>$100k/year

* Estimated impacts are preliminary assessments of the potential impact to the organization.  Further study and analysis is needed.

3636



7© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Top 10 Opportunities
Opportunities & Prioritization

Ref 
No. Opportunity Observation Leading Practice Improve-

ment Type
Estimated 

Impact*

4 Conduct Lean Six 
Sigma Process 
Review and 
Modernize Business 
Processes

Many departments within the City identified 
the need to standardize and define processes 
to deliver City services. Many of the existing 
processes have not been reviewed in recent 
years and newer areas do not have well-
documented processes. 

Municipalities are looking to best practices 
such as Lean Six Sigma Process Reviews to 
modernize their business processes. These 
reviews lead to streamlined and enhanced 
service delivery.  

Modernizing
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
>$100k/year

5 Review Seasonal 
Staffing Model

There are multiple seasonal positions across 
the City. There is an opportunity to 
consolidate into full-time positions which will 
lead to retention of staff, cost savings and 
overall better delivery of services. 

Municipalities are conducting reviews to 
reduce the use of contract employees, 
improve retention, retain intellectual capital, 
and find potential cost-savings. 

Modernizing
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
<$100k/year

6 Continually review 
Job Classifications for 
Outside Workers and 
the CBA

Continually reviewing job descriptions will 
ensure efficient operations that are in line with 
the City’s objectives. This opportunity could 
also provide more flexibility for the City and 
opportunity for the individuals.

Municipalities are revising CBAs to build in 
the necessary flexibility across roles. 

Modernizing
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
>$100k/year

* Estimated impacts are preliminary assessments of the potential impact to the organization.  Further study and analysis is needed.

3737



8© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Top 10 Opportunities
Opportunities & Prioritization

Ref 
No. Opportunity Observation Leading Practice Improve-

ment Type
Estimated 

Impact*

7 Review Data 
Management and 
Identify Business 
Intelligence 
Opportunities

The City identified a lack of understanding of 
data available and accessibility for data to be 
shared across departments with a result of 
duplicate data being retained in various ways 
across the City.  

Having well-defined data management 
practices will allow for increased efficiency, 
more reliable and quality data, better 
business intelligence and analysis, and 
improved communications across the City. 

Modernizing
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
<$100k/year 

8 Undertake a Review 
of Overtime and 
Resource Utilization 
Including the Back-
Filling with Vacancies 
and Timelines

Many departments are experiencing the need 
for overtime suggesting it is time for a review 
to look at root cause to develop the 
appropriate recruitment and retention 
strategy. 

Reducing overtime with the potential for 
additional full-time resources improves 
delivery of services and overall staff morale. 

Modernizing
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
<$100k/year 

9 Transition to Single 
Plow Operator and 
review Grass Cutting 
and Snow Removal 
Service Delivery 
Model

The City identified a cost-savings opportunity 
to shift from tandem to single plow operator. 
In addition, the City identified an opportunity
for Operations and the Parks Departments to 
work in tandem on the consolidation of 
seasonal roles into full-time positions, 
providing job security and cost efficiency. 

Many municipalities have transitioned to 
single plow operators to realize cost savings.

Municipalities are continually striving to 
deliver the best service for the best cost
which may entail insourcing or outsourcing 
services or utilizing a combination of 
contract/full-time resources. 

Modernizing 
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
<$100k/year 

* Estimated impacts are preliminary assessments of the potential impact to the organization.  Further study and analysis is needed.

3838



9© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Top 10 Opportunities
Opportunities & Prioritization

Ref 
No. Opportunity Observation Leading Practice Improve-

ment Type
Estimated 

Impact*

10 Delivery of Health 
Services/ Physician 
Recruitment Program

The city has identified an opportunity to re-
evaluate mandate, role and function of Health 
Services/ Physician Recruitment Program.

Evaluate ongoing programs for physician 
recruitment. Consider redefining/ narrowing 
the scope of the program and outsourcing 
administration to the Niagara Physician 
Recruitment and Retention Program to 
eliminate duplication of services.

Modernizing 
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit
<$100k/year

* Estimated impacts are preliminary assessments of the potential impact to the organization.  Further study and analysis is needed.

3939



kpmg.cakpmg.ca

© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent  
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.  
The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.
The information contained herein is of a general nature and is not intended to address the circumstances of any particular  
individual or entity. Although we endeavour to provide accurate and timely information, there can be no guarantee that  
such information is accurate as of the date it is received or that it will continue to be accurate in the future. No one should  
act on such information without appropriate professional advice after a thorough examination of the particular situation.

4040

http://kpmg.com/socialmedia
http://kpmg.com/socialmedia


1© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 1
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Final Report

The City of Port Colborne
Service Delivery Review

September 8, 2020

Report 2020-173
Appendix B

4141



2© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

City of Port Colborne Service Review Final Report

Disclaimer

This report is subject to the terms and conditions in our engagement letter March 5th, 2020. This report is intended solely to assist the City of Port 
Colborne (“the City”) with a service delivery review. The comments and observations in our report are not intended, nor should they be interpreted, to be 
legal advice or legal opinion. This report is based on information and documentation that was made available to KPMG at the date of this report. KPMG 
has not audited nor otherwise attempted to independently verify the information provided unless otherwise indicated.

We had access to information up to August 10th, 2020 in order to arrive at our observations but, should additional documentation or other information 
become available which impacts upon the observations reached in our report, we will reserve the right, if we consider it necessary, to amend our report 
accordingly. This report and the observations expressed herein are valid only in the context of the whole report. Selected observations should not be 
examined outside of the context of the report in its entirety. 

Our observations and full report are confidential and are intended for the use of the City. Our review was limited to the procedures conducted. The 
scope of our engagement was, by design, limited and therefore the observations should be considered in the context of the procedures performed. In 
this capacity, we are not acting as external auditors nor value for money auditors and, accordingly, our work does not constitute an audit, examination, 
value for money, attestation, or specified procedures engagement in the nature of that conducted by external auditors on financial statements or other 
information and does not result in the expression of an opinion.

Pursuant to the terms of our engagement, it is understood and agreed that all decisions in connection with the implementation of advice and 
recommendations as provided by KPMG during the course of this engagement shall be the responsibility of, and made by, the City. KPMG has not and 
will not perform management functions or make management decisions for the City.

KPMG has no present or contemplated interest in the City. Accordingly, we believe we are independent of the City and are acting objectively.

This report is not intended for general use, circulation or publication and any use of KPMG's report for any purpose other than circulation within the City 
without KPMG's prior written permission in each specific instance is prohibited. KPMG assumes no responsibility or liability for any costs, damages, 
losses, liability or expenses incurred by anyone as a result of the circulation, reproduction or use of or reliance upon KPMG's reports, contrary to this 
paragraph.

4242



3© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

The contacts at KPMG 
in connection with this 
report are:

Bruce Peever
Advisory
Partner
Tel: 905-523-2224
bpeever@kpmg.ca

Carol Moffitt 
Advisory
Senior Manager
Tel: 905-523-6918
cmoffitt@kpmg.ca

Hassan Jan
Advisory
Manager
Tel: 906-972-7466
hassanjan@kpmg.ca

Chapter Page

Disclaimer 2

Project Overview 4

Opportunities and Prioritization 11

Conclusion  

Appendix A: Summary of Findings from Consultations

27

28

Appendix B: Benchmarking & Performance Perspectives 36

City of Port Colborne Service Review Final Report

Table of Contents

4343



Project Overview

City of Port Colborne
Service Review
Final Report

4444



5© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Introduction
The opportunities and prioritization was prepared to present a roadmap to improve the overall effectiveness and efficiency of the City’s current service 
delivery model.  The opportunities reflect the observations and findings from multiple stakeholder engagements with management and staff including a 
survey that was open to all staff for their input. In addition to the three strategic and top ten opportunities, many more were identified and have been 
categorized and ranked for future review and consideration.  

Setting the Stage
Port Colborne is a dynamic city of 19,000 people on the shores of Lake Erie. A part of the Niagara Region, this community offers the best of small and 
large city infrastructure and activities. While sharing similarities with other municipalities that have distinct urban and rural areas, Port Colborne’s history 
and vision for the future is unique and makes it special.

Port Colborne is situated on the north shore of Lake Erie, at the mouth of the Welland Canal. It shares its boundaries with the Township of Wainfleet to 
the west, the Town of Fort Erie to the east, and the Cities of Welland and Niagara Falls to the north.

The urban area of Port Colborne is located at the southern end of the municipality, centered on the Welland Canal, and consists of a variety of residential 
neighbourhoods, a downtown/historic core area, as well as various commercial and industrial areas. The urban area makes up less than one-quarter of 
the municipality’s geographic area. The Welland Canal has provided an impetus for industrial development along the waterfront. A number of major 
industries are located on or close to the waterfront, occupied by residential development (primarily cottages) that have deeded access to the beaches and 
in many cases, access rights that extend into Lake Erie.

The City government is comprised of the Mayor, 8 City Councillors representing four community wards and a Regional Councillor. The Mayor also 
represents the City on Regional Council. The City currently has 6 main departments:  Office of the CAO, Corporate Services, Planning and Development, 
Community and Economic Development, Engineering and Operations and Fire and Emergency Services plus the Library and Museum. The City 
oversees a gross operating budget of ~$25M and employs over 200 staff (full-time, part-time and casual).

As with all municipalities and other levels of government, the City is balancing community and stakeholder expectations and financial constraints.  With 
the growth it is experiencing, City Council has determined that it is necessary for Port Colborne to consider how municipal services will be delivered 
sustainably over the long term.  Accordingly, it has engaged KPMG to assist with a review of its current service delivery model and identify opportunities 
for greater efficiency and effectiveness and ensure value for money for its residents. 

Project Overview 

Introduction and Context

4545



6© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Mayor/Council

Chief 
Administration 

Officer

DIR Community 
& Economic 
Development

Parks & 
Recreation

Economic 
Development

Health 
Services

EAA to DIR 
Community & 

Economic 
Development

DIR  
Corporate 
Services

City Clerk

Revenue & 
Taxation

Human Resources

Information 
Technology

Special Projects 
and Customer 

Service

DIR 
Engineering & 

Operations 

Operations

Fleet 
Operations

Drainage 

Projects and 
Design

Environmental 
Compliance

DIR Fire & 
Emergency 

Services

Deputy Chief

Chaplain

EAA to Fire Chief

DIR Planning 
& 

Development

Chief Building 
Officer

By-Laws

Planning 

Library 
Board

DIR Library

Librarian

Assistant 
Librarians

Museum 
Board

DIR Museum 

Museum

Archives 

EAA to CAO / 
Mayor

Corporate 
Communications 

Information 
Technology 

Economic 
Development 

Officer

Special 
Projects and 

Design

City
Councilors

Regional 
Councilor

Project Overview 

City of Port Colborne 2020 Organizational Chart

4646



7© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Project Objectives
KPMG was engaged by the City of Port Colborne to undertake a service review. The overall goal of the service review was to better understand the 
current suite of services, and identify opportunities for improvements, and efficiencies. Specific project objectives included:

• Inventory Municipal Services – Conduct a comprehensive review and detailed analysis of the relevance, efficiency and effectiveness of 
the City’s services including a review of leading municipal organizations. As part of this we considered all aspects of the City’s services 
including delivery methods, service expenditure and revenue streams.

• Identify Opportunities – Explore opportunities based on global leading practices (public, private, not-for-profit) and define  options for 
greater cost efficiency in service delivery and levels.

• Advise on Implementation – Evaluate and categorize opportunities to develop recommendations for short-term, mid-term, and long-term 
priorities. Provide strategic guidance to leadership on implementation and prioritization of new, innovative and/or leading service delivery 
models that improve upon organizational efficiency while balancing citizen expectations. In addition, highlight the risks  associated with each 
proposed change/option to inform management of the key factors and risks which should be considered during the decision making process.

Project Principles
• The knowledge and expertise of City employees was fully engaged, building upon their knowledge and expertise to arrive at 

recommended actions through a transparent, participative and inclusive process facilitated by the consultant.

• The service review process was conducted in a way that engaged City employees.

• The aim was to, wherever possible, transfer knowledge and necessary “tools” to City staff to enable them to better develop their own 
solutions to operational and process issues and challenges over time.

• The framework and approach was based on leading practice from municipal or other levels of government experience and/or private 
sector.

• Lastly, this was not an audit nor a deeper-dive operational review. This was a review to build on successes and identify opportunities to 
improve the efficiency and effectiveness of how the City delivers services to the community and citizens of Port Colborne.

• *COVID-19: The intent was to assess the regular service delivery model while taking into account business continuity or COVID-19 specific 
responses where possible, or to distinguish between them.

Project Overview

Introduction and Context

4747



8© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Project Scope

• Phase One:  Project Initiation
• Kick Off Meeting with Project Team
• Project Charter
• Project Schedule

• Phase Two:  EnvironmentalScan
• Documentation review to provide insight into the City’s operations, financials, and services levels
• Interviews and Focus Groups (24 interviews & 3 focus groups)
• Current State Summary (interviews/focus groups’ findings)
• Benchmarking of Port Colborne against 5 comparator Municipalities.
• Online survey for employees

• Phase Three:  Review of Current Service Delivery Model
• Service Profiles for all of the City’s programs and services as per the Municipal Reference Model
• Individual meetings with the City Senior Management Team to confirm service profile data
• Presentation of Interim Report to Project Team & Council

• Phase Four:  Opportunity Identification
• Three half day working sessions with the Project Team to identify, rank and confirm opportunities
• Identification of potential opportunities to achieve the most efficient and operationally effective service delivery model
• Draft recommendations on changes to services, programs, resources, and responsibilities, including whether specific services should be expanded,  

reduced, discontinued or delivered in an alternative manner
• Draft recommendations on the prioritization of services

• Phase Five:  Final Report andPresentation
• Finalize service profiles inventorying current services and delivery approaches
• Specific recommendations with regards to changes in services, programs, resources, and responsibilities, including whether specific services should  

be expanded, reduced, discontinued or delivered in an alternate manner
• Quantification of financial implications of opportunities identified during theProject
• A Final Report (in PowerPoint format) consolidating the different phases of the Service Delivery Review
• Final Report and presentation to Council and Project Team

Project Overview

Introduction and Context

4848



10© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Work Plan and Progress Report

This engagement commenced on April 3, 2020, and was completed on xxx when KPMG delivered the final report to the City. The diagram below 
depicts the key phases as outlined in the Project Charter.

Project Overview

Introduction and Context

Project Initiation
Meet with CAO and Project 
Team  to clarify  expectations,
refine  lines of inquiry, and  
develop a  subsequent work  
program for the  engagement

Apr May-Jun July Aug Oct

01 02 03 04
Service Profiling & 
Benchmarking
Collect relevant information on  
current methods of service 
delivery and conduct  
stakeholder engagement  
exercises and survey 5 
comparator municipalities to 
benchmark Municipality services

Opportunity / 
Prioritization 
Identification of
potential opportunities to 
achieve the most efficient and 
operationally effective 
approach to service delivery.

Final Report
Develop and present a final
report  with an implementation 
plan & recommendations

Project Initiation Service Profile & 
Benchmarking

Opportunity / 
Prioritization 

Final Report 

4949



Opportunities and 
Prioritization

City of Port Colborne
Service Review
Final Report

5050



12© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

KPMG’s experience has shown that most jurisdictions are pursuing the 
transformation of their public services using traditional approaches such 
as rapid cost reduction or across the board cuts.  We believe that there 
is an opportunity for municipalities to look beyond doing a little bit less 
with slightly fewer staff.  Instead, municipalities should look at their need 
to reduce spending as an opportunity to capitalize on new technologies, 
governance models and financing mechanisms that can help re-shape 
government.  KPMG, in partnership with the University of Toronto, 
developed a framework (shown adjacent) that captures new public 
sector delivery models.  The framework was developed based on the 
key insights from leading practices reports and consultations with 
industry leaders throughout the globe.

The Service Review Project Team used this framework to analyze 
possible opportunities for change in the City of Port Colborne’s service 
delivery models.  Each of the opportunities were categorized according 
to the framework so that the Project Team could fully understand the 
changes being proposed for the City’s service delivery.

Few students of public administration believe that the footprint of 
government, how government is organized or its relationship with the 
public will look the same ten years from now as it does today. 
Governments are having change forced upon them by fiscal challenges 
on the one hand and technological and social evolutions on the other.  
These new public service delivery models will help local governments 
manage this change and ensure that they are not only effective and 
efficient, but also sustainable into the future.

Methodology
Opportunities & Prioritization

5151



13© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Methodology
The development of opportunities and their subsequent prioritization involved the following major work steps:

1. Service Profiles

The first major step in developing the list of opportunities was the development of an inventory of programs and services provided by the City 
of Port Colborne commonly called Service Profiles.  The basic elements of a service profile includes a description of the service and sub-
service, a comparative analysis, a service level justification and a financial overview.  The many different services of the City were categorized 
using KPMG’s Municipal Reference Model.  

For the past ten years, KPMG has been actively involved in the profiling of all citizen-facing and internal services using the Municipal 
Reference Model for Canadian municipalities.  The Municipal Reference Model describes the business of local government from the outside-
in, in terms of the programs and services that municipalities provide and how these contribute to achieving defined policy outcomes.  This can 
be contrasted with an inside-out view, which focuses on how local governments are organized and the activities that they undertake.  Focusing 
on outcomes, and how governments are achieving those outcomes through their programs and services, supports the fundamental question of 
whether they are delivering the right services, for the right reasons and in the right way.

A series of working sessions with the City’s project team covering all departments were conducted over the course of the project timeline.

These working sessions considered the nature of the department’s work, its position within the municipal reference model and the results of 
the benchmarking review.  Data necessary for the completion of the service profiles was discussed and collected.  This included the following:

 Budget information, including a breakdown of cost streams

 Capital – includes debt payments and current contributions to capital projects

 Definitive service descriptions

 Rationale on service level assessments and types

 Data on the number of staff delivering the service in “Full Time Equivalents” (FTEs)

Based upon this collected data, the different services of the City were analyzed by the following elements described on the next page:

Opportunities & Prioritization

5252



14© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

1. Service Profiles (Continued)

a. Service Level

Each service was analyzed to determine its service level.  Service was determined to be above standard, at standard, or below standard. 
Service level standards are defined through a variety of legislation, industry standards, business case analysis justifications, service levels in 
other municipalities or reasonable expectations.

b. Service Type

Service Reviews typically involve an assessment of a collection of services defined under the Municipal Reference Model to understand to 
what degree they are core.  KPMG, with validation by our municipal clients, has developed a customized continuum for assessing core versus 
discretionary services.  Along the continuum, there are four descriptive categories, which, when applied to a service formed the “Core 
Ranking” for that service. The “core continuum” categories are Mandatory, Essential, Traditional, and Discretionary. 

c. Service Level Source

Finally, to understand and justify the service level analysis, KPMG identified the origin of a service level standard and the role that the City of 
Port Colborne plays in delivering a service or sub-service.  In each service profile, KPMG reviewed the degree to which the standard was 
prescribed by legislation or set by the Council, management, or funding agreement.  KPMG also reviewed the appropriateness of the standard 
with respect to industry benchmarks or traditional practice, in cases where information was available.

Methodology
Opportunities & Prioritization

5353



15© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

2. Opportunity Identification 

The second step in the Service Review was the identification of potential opportunities to improve operations through the following:

a. Types of Opportunities

 Elimination or transfer services, or increased cost recovery  Alternative service delivery approaches
 Re-engineered services to increase efficiency and effectiveness  Changed service levels

Opportunities to 
Eliminate, or 

Transfer Services, 
or Increase Cost 

Recovery 

Opportunities to 
Change Service 

Levels

Re-engineering 
Opportunities to 

Increase Efficiency
and Effectiveness

Opportunities to 
Reduce Costs 

through Alternative 
Service Delivery 

Approaches

Methodology
Opportunities & Prioritization

5454



16© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

b. Opportunities Ranking 

In a series of working sessions, KPMG and the Project Team identified opportunities for improved efficiency and effectiveness in the delivery of City 
services. The opportunities were then assigned an improvement type. Five different improvement types were used and opportunities could be 
assigned multiple improvement types. The improvement types were:

 Modernizing bureaucratic processes

 Reassignment of roles between levels of government

 Digitization

 Devolution

 Alternative financing and procurement

Methodology
Opportunities & Prioritization

5555



17© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

b. Opportunities Ranking (Continued)

Opportunities were evaluated using the criteria below and then grouped into categories of Strategic Opportunities, Top 10 Opportunities and 
Opportunities Requiring Further Study. The following pages present the opportunities by group, our analysis summary, and the type of improvement 
based upon the New Public Sector Delivery Model.

Methodology
Opportunities & Prioritization

Assessment Criteria Description

Operating $ Impact Estimated impact on operating budget.

Capital $ Impact Estimated impact on capital requirements. 

Barriers To Implementation 

Barriers, issues or obstacles to implementing the opportunity: 
• Political
• Legal
• Labour and Contractual Obligations
• Capital Costs

Recent Reviews Recent reviews or studies conducted that provide insights on the opportunity.

Comparator Analysis An assessment of service performance against comparable competitors, industry standards or leading 
practices. 

Strategic Program 
Alignment The opportunity aligns with the objectives and values of the City, the service, the Official Plan and/or Council 

priorities. 

Client/Customer Impact The impact of the opportunity on the number of clients, customers and/or people and the extent of the impact. 

5656



18© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Strategic Opportunities
Opportunities & Prioritization

Ref 
No. Opportunity Observation Leading Practice Improve-

ment Type
Estimated 

Impact*

1 Establish Service 
Levels for Municipal 
Services

The City recognizes the need for defined 
service levels for each of it services and to 
date has been inconsistent in establishing and 
adhering to them. Staff identified the need for 
clear direction and less ambiguity or mixed 
messaging as a result of not having 
established service levels. 

Established service levels manage citizen 
expectations and provide clear direction to 
staff. They also allow for appropriate 
planning for resourcing (people and assets) 
and the appropriate budget allocations. 

Modernizing 
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
<$100k/year

2 Revise and Update 
Strategic Plan with 
Departmental 
Mandates and KPIs

The City recognizes the need to revise and 
update the Strategic Plan. The Strategic Plan 
needs to include departmental mandates and 
KPIs for each department. Staff identified the 
inconsistency and lack of understanding of 
these mandates and KPIs. 

Strategic Plans are for 3-5 years and viewed 
and updated on a regular basis. They also 
align the community with Council and City 
staff. Department Mandates and KPIs 
manage expectations, provide clear direction 
and allow for individual and City growth to 
meet or exceed said KPIs. 

Modernizing 
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
<$100k/year

3 Integrate Culture 
Strategic Plans

The City recognizes the opportunity to 
integrate various culture-related initiatives and 
strategic plans. Staff identified the opportunity 
to review resourcing (people, assets and 
funding) for planning and hosting various 
cultural events.    

The integration of strategic planning for 
culture-related initiatives will lead to cost 
effectiveness, innovation, and modernization 
of multiple cultural events. The City will be 
able to build on its foundation of initiatives 
such the Marine Museum, the Roselawn
Centre, and Canal Days etc. 

Modernizing 
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
<$100k/year

* Estimated impacts are preliminary assessments of the potential impact to the organization.  Further study and analysis is needed.

5757



19© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Top 10 Opportunities
Opportunities & Prioritization

Ref 
No. Opportunity Observation Leading Practice Improve-

ment Type
Estimated 

Impact*

1 Conduct Fleet 
Utilization Study and 
Re-Finance the Fleet 

The City operates and maintains a wide 
variety of fleet vehicles and equipment to 
deliver municipal services across the 
municipality. Maintenance has become 
increasingly complex with pressure of 
upcoming replacement needs. A fleet strategy 
and utilization study would assist the City in 
better understanding its current operations, 
improve asset management practices, and 
enhance planning for short-term and long-
term financing needs.

Municipalities are increasingly reviewing 
their fleet operations to understand the 
current utilization, develop standards for 
right-sizing the fleet and for future vehicle 
selection, and leverage possible efficiencies 
from “green” vehicles and shared economy 
business models.

Modernizing
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
<$100k/year

2 Develop a Facility 
Condition Assessment 
and Financial Plan

The City maintains multiple older facilities that 
are well taken care of. With older buildings 
there are opportunities for efficiencies and 
accessibility improvements. There is 
significant overtime and use of contract 
resources. The City may benefit from 
additional full-time trade resources to offset 
overtime and contracts. With the recent onset 
of COVID-19, the City is further challenged to 
implement additional enhancements.

Municipalities are leveraging Lifecycle 
Management approaches with energy-
efficient programs to enhance the long-term 
maintenance of their facilities.  

Modernizing
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
>$100k/year

3 Review Service 
Delivery of GIS 
Services

The demand for GIS services is required 
across multiple departments in the City. There 
is a need for current and updated data that is 
readily accessible by multiple staff. This 
would entail mapping all City-owned and 
managed assets. 

Municipalities can benefit from third-party 
delivery of GIS services across the City. 
Outsourcing allows the City to focus on the 
delivery of City services and benefit from the 
expertise of a third party provider. 

Modernizing
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
>$100k/year

* Estimated impacts are preliminary assessments of the potential impact to the organization.  Further study and analysis is needed.

5858



20© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Top 10 Opportunities
Opportunities & Prioritization

Ref 
No. Opportunity Observation Leading Practice Improve-

ment Type
Estimated 

Impact*

4 Conduct Lean Six 
Sigma Process 
Review and 
Modernize Business 
Processes

Many departments within the City identified 
the need to standardize and define processes 
to deliver City services. Many of the existing 
processes have not been reviewed in recent 
years and newer areas do not have well-
documented processes. 

Municipalities are looking to best practices 
such as Lean Six Sigma Process Reviews to 
modernize their business processes. These 
reviews lead to streamlined and enhanced 
service delivery.  

Modernizing
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
>$100k/year

5 Review Seasonal 
Staffing Model

There are multiple seasonal positions across 
the City. There is an opportunity to 
consolidate into full-time positions which will 
lead to retention of staff, cost savings and 
overall better delivery of services. 

Municipalities are conducting reviews to 
reduce the use of contract employees, 
improve retention, retain intellectual capital, 
and find potential cost-savings. 

Modernizing
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
<$100k/year

6 Continually review 
Job Classifications for 
Outside Workers and 
the CBA

Continually reviewing job descriptions will 
ensure efficient operations that are in line with 
the City’s objectives. This opportunity could 
also provide more flexibility for the City and 
opportunity for the individuals.

Municipalities are revising CBAs to build in 
the necessary flexibility across roles. 

Modernizing
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
>$100k/year

* Estimated impacts are preliminary assessments of the potential impact to the organization.  Further study and analysis is needed.

5959



21© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Top 10 Opportunities
Opportunities & Prioritization

Ref 
No. Opportunity Observation Leading Practice Improve-

ment Type
Estimated 

Impact*

7 Review Data 
Management and 
Identify Business 
Intelligence 
Opportunities

The City identified a lack of understanding of 
data available and accessibility for data to be 
shared across departments with a result of 
duplicate data being retained in various ways 
across the City.  

Having well-defined data management 
practices will allow for increased efficiency, 
more reliable and quality data, better 
business intelligence and analysis, and 
improved communications across the City. 

Modernizing
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
<$100k/year 

8 Undertake a Review 
of Overtime and 
Resource Utilization 
Including the Back-
Filling with Vacancies 
and Timelines

Many departments are experiencing the need 
for overtime suggesting it is time for a review 
to look at root cause to develop the 
appropriate recruitment and retention 
strategy. 

Reducing overtime with the potential for 
additional full-time resources improves 
delivery of services and overall staff morale. 

Modernizing
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
<$100k/year 

9 Transition to Single 
Plow Operator and 
review Grass Cutting 
and Snow Removal 
Service Delivery 
Model

The City identified a cost-savings opportunity 
to shift from tandem to single plow operator. 
In addition, the City identified an opportunity
for Operations and the Parks Departments to 
work in tandem on the consolidation of 
seasonal roles into full-time positions, 
providing job security and cost efficiency. 

Many municipalities have transitioned to 
single plow operators to realize cost savings.

Municipalities are continually striving to 
deliver the best service for the best cost
which may entail insourcing or outsourcing 
services or utilizing a combination of 
contract/full-time resources. 

Modernizing 
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit 
<$100k/year 

* Estimated impacts are preliminary assessments of the potential impact to the organization.  Further study and analysis is needed.

6060



22© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Top 10 Opportunities
Opportunities & Prioritization

Ref 
No. Opportunity Observation Leading Practice Improve-

ment Type
Estimated 

Impact*

10 Delivery of Health 
Services/ Physician 
Recruitment Program

The city has identified an opportunity to re-
evaluate mandate, role and function of Health 
Services/ Physician Recruitment Program.

Evaluate ongoing programs for physician 
recruitment. Consider redefining/ narrowing 
the scope of the program and outsourcing 
administration to the Niagara Physician 
Recruitment and Retention Program to 
eliminate duplication of services.

Modernizing 
Bureaucracy

Tax/rate 
benefit
<$100k/year

* Estimated impacts are preliminary assessments of the potential impact to the organization.  Further study and analysis is needed.

6161



23© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Opportunities Requiring Further Study
Opportunities & Prioritization

Opportunity Opportunity

Develop Long-Term Financial Plan with Lifecycle Costing Consistent Technology Training Program for Staff 

Develop a Financial Reporting Process for Council and 
Management

Conduct Review of Job Descriptions and Compensation

Review Resourcing for Roles That Require Ongoing 24/7 
Support Roles (E.G. IT, Comms, Emergency Management)

Conduct a Review of Municipal Standards and Operational 
Guidelines

Create a People Development, Retention and Succession Plan Review Revenue Agreements

Conduct a Corporate Security and Privacy Review Conduct User Fee Review

Implement Adopt-A-Road Program Review 3P for Infrastructure Financing

Create Backups for Critical Positions with Cross-Training Further Refine Organizational Structure

Review Economic Development Service Delivery Model Develop Risk Management Plan

Review Telecommunications Backbone to Ensure Consistent 
Service Delivery Across All City Facilities and Sites

Develop Policies and Procedures for Data Management and 
Retention

Establish User Group to Focus On Cost Recoveries Improve the Development Application Process

Implement Performance Management and Goal Setting Streamline the Procurement Process

Implement Open Data for the City Review and Update Technology Policies and Procedures 
including Remote etc.

Develop Infrastructure Needs Study for All Linear Assets Implement a Formal Project Management Process

Review Communication Policies (Social Media, 
Communications Etc.)

Implement Activity-Based Budgeting

Conduct Road Needs Study Identify and Promote Citizen Volunteer Opportunities

6262



24© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Opportunities Requiring Further Study (continued)
Opportunities & Prioritization

Opportunity

Review Opportunities for Potential Devolvement of Business Units Into Corporations

Invest in IT Software for Business Processes

Review Multiple Payment Sites

Review Municipal Services for Alternative Service Delivery

Reduce Parkettes and Reinvest In Community Parks

6363



25© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

City Building & Regional Opportunities
Opportunities & Prioritization

Opportunity

Evaluate CRM Partnership Opportunities with Neighbouring Municipalities

Partner with Niagara Libraries for Shared Service Delivery

Review Shared Service Delivery Models with Niagara Municipalities

Consolidate CEMC Services with Neighbouring Municipalities

Separate Storm Sewer and Sanitary Waste Treatment

Build a Permanent Farmer's Market

Establish City Land Management Framework Review City Land Ownings and 
Identify Surplus Land

Build a Discovery Centre for Culture and Recreation

6464



26© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Projects Underway
Opportunities & Prioritization

Opportunity

Marina Operations Alternative Service Delivery

Develop a Customer Service Intake Process

Conduct Employee Surveys On a Regular Basis

Review Business Continuity Planning to Include Longer-Term Events In Light 
of COVID-19

6565



27© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Summary
KPMG was engaged by the City of Port Colborne to undertake a service review. The overall goal of the service review was to better understand the 
current suite of services, and identify opportunities for improvements, and efficiencies. 

In a series of working sessions, KPMG with the Project Team identified opportunities for improved efficiency and effectiveness in the delivery of City 
services. The opportunities and prioritization provide a roadmap to improve the overall effectiveness and efficiency of the City’s current service 
delivery model.  The opportunities reflect the observations and findings from multiple stakeholder engagements with management and staff including 
a survey that was open to all staff for their input. In addition to the three strategic and top ten opportunities, many more were identified and have been 
categorized for future review and consideration.  

Next Steps
The Senior Leadership will determine the approach, timing and resources to implement the strategic and top ten opportunities.

Updating the City Strategic Plan and Service Levels can commence simultaneously and the Service Levels should align to the Strategic 
Plan.  The integration of the Culture Strategic Plans should commence following the update of the City Strategic Plan. 

The Top Ten Opportunities could be broken up into Quick Wins, Internal and External.  

• Quick wins as the name implies can easily and quickly be implemented such as #10 Transition to Single Snow Plow Operator. 

• Internal and External refer to the resourcing. 

• Internal opportunities may be completed entirely by City resources such as #9 Review Grass Cutting and Snow Removal 
Service Delivery Model.

• External opportunities may require the assistance of external expertise such as #4 Lean Six Sigma Process Review and 
Modernize Business Processes or to augment internal resources. . 

Conclusion 

Summary and Next Steps

Strategic 
Opportunities

Update City Strategic Plan with 
Department Mandates & KPIs

Establish Service Levels for 
Municipal Services Integrate Culture Strategic Plans

6666



Appendix A
Summary of Findings from 
Consultations

City of Port Colborne
Service Review
Final Report

6767



29© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

The Engagement Process
As part of the City of Port Colborne service review, senior leadership and managers were interviewed to obtain an understanding of the services 
provided by the City, to identify challenges, to identify opportunities for financial and operational efficiencies, and to utilize key measurements for 
continuous improvement. 

The Office of the CAO and management of each of the City’s five (5) Commissions were interviewed in confidential one-on-one discussions.  In 
addition, three focus groups of front-line municipal staff were held.

Summary of Findings

Interviews
Chief Administrative Officer
Director, Community and Economic Development
Director, Engineering and Operations
Director, Fire and Emergency Services
Director, Planning and Development
Manager, Revenue and Taxation 
Director, Library Services
Director/Curator, Museum 

Chief Building Official
Deputy Fire Chief 
City Clerk
Manager, Information Technology
Manager, Parks and Recreation
Manager, Facilities
Manager, Operations
Manager, By-Law Services
Supervisor, Roads
Supervisor, Design and Construction 
Supervisor, Development and Asset Inventory
Supervisor, Utilities
Superintendent, Drainage
Coordinator, Human Resources
Officer, Communications

6868



30© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

A Model for Analyzing Organizational Performance
O

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

lP
ro

bl
em

s

Strategy

Confusion

If strategy is
missing, unclear, or 

not agreed upon

• No common
direction; people 
pulling in different
directions

• No criteria for 
decision making

Structure

Friction

If the structure 
isn’t aligned to

the strategy

• Inability to mobilize
resources

• Ineffective 
execution; lost
opportunity for 
competitive
advantage

Processes

Gridlock

If the development
of  coordinating
mechanisms is
left to chance

• Lack of 
collaboration 
across boundaries

• Long decision and 
innovation cycle 
times

• Difficult to share
information and 
leverage best 
practices

People

Low
Performance

If people aren’t
enabled and 
empowered

• Effort without
results

• Low employee
satisfaction

Culture

If behaviours don’t
reflect the 

organization’s
values

Distrust

• No employee
engagement

• Bureaucratic churn

KPMG used the following model as a means of analyzing and understanding organizational performance and problems. 
Note: this is a model, and does not describe results for the City of Port Colborne.

Organizational 
State

Symptoms

Organizational 
Element

Summary of Findings

6969



31© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Summary of Findings

Summary of Top Themes from Consultations

Theme

Strategy

 We understand the City currently does not have an updated Strategic Plan. During our consultation, staff consistently 
identified an overall intention to be strategic and at the same time there was nothing substantial to support the intent. 
Staff shared they are starting to get excited about the possibilities. Senior leadership acknowledged an updated Strategic 
Plan needs to be completed and is a priority for the CAO. 

 Staff expressed some frustration at the lack of a Strategic Plan which results in conflicting priorities from Council and 
senior leadership.  Staff believe they are not functioning as efficiently as they could be and which reduces overall 
customer service. 

 Staff noted a desire for the clear communication of priorities.  Staff believe this will enable departments to develop and 
monitor key performance indicators (KPIs) and objectives. Staff view there is an opportunity for better alignment with 
existing metrics that are currently captured across the organization.  

 Without strategic direction, staff acknowledged customer service is more reactive and complaint-driven.  Staff did note 
that the organization is shifting to a more proactive approach.  

 Interviewed staff noted that there is limited succession planning within the organization. Staff across the City shared that 
the City is undergoing a significant transition with multiple retirements and more on the horizon. Staff identified a need for 
improved knowledge transfer, cross-training and leadership development to ensure the transfer of local knowledge. 

 Respondents noted that the combination of a workforce in transition, substantial new initiatives, and limitations in financial 
capabilities has resulted in significant overtime and a stretched workforce. In particular, a number of new initiatives 
underway (Marina, Cemetery, Roselawn etc.) are being layered on top of existing municipal service delivery.

 Staff observed that they do not have the time or tools to support and deliver current service levels as well as Council’s 
new initiatives.  We understand the organization also has limited capacity to understand the potential budget/taxation 
implications associated with the new initiatives.  

Key themes have emerged from the interviews and focus group discussions, which are summarized below. The information in this document is 
preliminary and should be treated accordingly. It may be refined in subsequent deliverables to reflect additional feedback and further analysis.

7070



32© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Summary of Findings

Summary of Top Themes from Consultations

Theme

Structure

 The City currently has 6 main departments:  Office of the CAO, Corporate Services, Planning & Development, Community 
& Economic Development, Engineering & Operations and Fire & Emergency Services plus the Library and Museum.  The 
City underwent a significant re-organization in 2017.  Staff noted that regardless of the implementation challenges, the re-
organization has been well received by staff.

 Respondents noted there is an opportunity to consolidate the number of departments with 1 or 2 individuals.  We 
understand there is minimal cross-training or a formal backup in-place, which leads to multiple single points of failure 
across the City.  This reduces the City’s overall service level standard to its citizens. 

 Staff noted Councillors and senior leadership are reaching down into day-to-day operations with individual requests 
creating both overlaps and gaps and resulting in confusion for staff.  We understand that staff believes this behaviour 
reflects an inability to delegate, the lack of horizontal integration across the organizational structure and poor 
communication. Staff noted it would be beneficial to the organization for senior leadership and Council to better 
understand their strategic roles and allow front-line staff to deliver. 

 We understand that staff are aware of the potential for shared services with other municipalities.   They expressed the 
need for these shared service opportunities to be clearly defined and understood with criteria to effectively determine what 
combination of services are in the best interest of the City. Staff shared examples of collaboration with other municipalities 
to enhance service delivery, improve efficiency and are contribute to cost reduction. 

 Staff also identified service areas where replacing contractors with City employees could be more efficient and effective.  
Staff noted that the bringing of grass cutting services in-house has achieved positive results.

Key themes have emerged from the interviews and focus group discussions, which are summarized below. The information in this document is 
preliminary and should be treated accordingly. It may be refined in subsequent deliverables to reflect additional feedback and further analysis.

7171



33© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Summary of Findings

Summary of Top Themes from Consultations

Theme

Processes 

 City staff expressed a common belief in the need for improved systems and processes to allow for more streamlined 
service delivery.  

 Respondents acknowledged that the City’s technology is outdated.  They noted that the City has started to modernize it, 
most notably with the introduction of Office 365 and Teams leveraged for the recent response to COVID-19.  Staff were 
unified in identifying the need for a centralized customer relationship management system to allow the sharing of 
information across the organization.  Other areas identified by staff included the City’s GIS system, the work order system 
and financial reporting. Staff also noted that telecommunications is not consistent across the City.  Staff shared examples 
of how this negatively impacts customer service and staff at the Sugarloaf Marina.

 Staff observed that the financial system replacement project has been underway for almost three years and has caused 
significant challenges for both the IT and Finance teams.  Staff across the City are seeking a better understanding of the 
budget and financial reporting processes and how they align with strategic initiatives such as customer service, Canal 
Days, and the recently approved Parks and Recreation Master Plan.

 Staff expressed a need for the development and review of work processes and their communication across the 
organization both internally and externally.  In particular, respondents indicated a need to educate staff, Council and 
citizens on the City’s work processes.  Staff understand there must be metrics associated with all processes and 
procedures.  They acknowledged there are different levels of maturity across the city in this area. Some less mature 
service areas include building inspection and financial reporting, specifically monthly variance reporting by department.  

 We understand there was a recent initiative to develop a new internal process to fund new projects or resources.  Key to 
the new process was ensuring that Council has the appropriate information to make informed decisions recognizing their 
decision ultimately impacts taxation and the overall budget.  

 Respondents commonly remarked on the importance of communications. Staff indicated they are not always aware of 
what is happening across the City and the potential direct or indirect impact to their service area.  Staff would like to see a 
process for sharing good results and wins with the public or communicating results from the past year. They also felt there 
is an opportunity to share future planned projects and their status with the public.

Key themes have emerged from the interviews and focus group discussions, which are summarized below. The information in this document is 
preliminary and should be treated accordingly. It may be refined in subsequent deliverables to reflect additional feedback and further analysis.

.

7272



34© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Summary of Findings

Summary of Top Themes from Consultations

Theme

People

• Staff across the City noted that they feel supported by their immediate and upper management.  Despite feeling 
overwhelmed at times and with increased overtime, respondents noted that the overall moral of the staff is good and they 
are fully engaged.  They love working for the City and take pride in serving the citizens of Port Colborne.

• We understand that performance reviews are not consistently conducted across the organization because of capacity 
issues and the recent re-organization.  

• All service areas identified a need for more timely recruitment for vacancies since each vacancy directly impacts customer 
service.   Respondents observed that tor retirements, there needs to be an overlap period to allow for knowledge transfer. 
For example, the Human Resource Manager left the City on April 24th with no identified replacement.

• Staff noted that compensation levels need to be reviewed to ensure the City can continue to attract and retain employees 
with the skills and knowledge necessary for moving the City forward.  Despite this, the City has recently attracted several 
highly skilled candidates who were seeking a work-life balance.

• We understand that there is minimal staff development, particularly in the area of leadership development for existing or 
up and coming managers. Where certification and licensing are required, we heard that the City needs to ensure staff 
receive the appropriate training to maintain their designations. 

• Respondents observed that for some areas, there is an immediate need to establish cross-training for backup purposes 
and for other areas to more efficiently utilize staff across multiple service areas and activities.  Staff noted that some 
managers are being innovative and are leveraging vendors to keep staff abreast of new products and available 
technologies. 

Key themes have emerged from the interviews and focus group discussions, which are summarized below. The information in this document is 
preliminary and should be treated accordingly. It may be refined in subsequent deliverables to reflect additional feedback and further analysis.

.

7373



35© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Summary of Findings

Summary of Top Themes from Consultations

Theme

Culture 

• Across the organization, there was genuine respect for the CAO and his vision for the City.  Although, both staff and the 
CAO observed that he can be a little too into the weeds on certain issues. 

• Staff expressed widespread enjoyment with their employment at the City.  Staff consistently shared their mindset of 
service, the importance of making a positive social impact for the City and wanting to do what’s right.  There was an 
overall sense of pride, responsibility and service in how staff spoke about the City and their roles. Overall, respondents 
expressed a belief that staff share a culture of hard work with minimal ego.

• One staff member noted that old timers are loving the new kids who have passion and innovative ideas.  The City is 
recruiting people who see the big picture, problem solvers, right attitude, visionaries – and old timers are coming along 
board because they see the efficiencies to be had etc.. New staff are bringing in a lot of energy and capabilities and old 
staff are open and yes, at times there is some conflict.

• Staff observed that the City’s culture is evolving to one of empowerment with leadership willing to hear from staff and 
implement their ideas.  

• One respondent noted the City is not a risk aware organization with little or no understanding of risk management. There 
is a realization by staff that they need to stretch dollars (fiscally aware) and be innovative/creative in service delivery.

Key themes have emerged from the interviews and focus group discussions, which are summarized below. The information in this document is 
preliminary and should be treated accordingly. It may be refined in subsequent deliverables to reflect additional feedback and further analysis.

7474



Appendix B
Benchmarking & 
Performance Perspectives

City of Port Colborne
Service Review
Final Report

7575



37© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Benchmarking & Performance Perspectives

Comparative Analysis – Why Compare to Other Communities?

For the purposes of the project, five comparator communities were selected as municipal comparators based on population growth, urban/ rural 
characteristics and geography:

The primary purpose of the comparative analysis was to understand the performance of comparator municipalities and to identify opportunities to 
change how the City’s organization is aligned to deliver municipal services.

 Communities with similar financial benchmarks/service levels – insight into operating efficiencies
 Communities with different financial benchmarks/service levels – opportunities to change existing organizational structure/processes 

to reflect common service levels
Comparing financial performance and taxation levels has both benefits and risks:

 Provides insight into affordability issues; what a peer municipality can achieve with the same resources
 Assumes that all variables are the same (assessment base, non-taxation revenues)
 Assumes that taxation and service levels in other communities are ‘right’

Note:  We obtained the information summarized in the following pages from financial information returns (FIRs) submitted to the Province of Ontario. We 
have not reviewed a draft of this data summary with the benchmarked comparators for the purpose of confirming the factual accuracy of the information 
presented.

Municipality Population1 Households1 Area Square KM 2

1. Port Colborne 18,300 10,303 122

2. Thorold 18,801 8,498 83

3. Collingwood 23,815 11,522 34

4. Wasaga Beach 20,675 13,225 59

5. Cobourg 19,440 8,958 22

6. Kincardine 11,390 6,187 538

Average 18,737 9,782 143

Draft for Discussion Purposes Only

1 Source - Financial Information Returns, Schedule 2
2 Source - Statistics Canada census profile, 2016 census data

7676



38© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

This financial indicator 
provides an assessment of 
the City’s ability to issue 
more debt by considering 
the existing debt load on a 
per household basis.  High 
debt levels per household 
may preclude the issuance 
of additional debt.

The City of Port Colborne 
has the second highest level 
of debt per household at 
$4,383. The average debt 
per household of the 
comparator group is $4,040, 
with Collingwood having the 
most debt per household at 
$6,753. 

A higher debt per household 
level indicates the City has 
reduced flexibility in the use 
of debt as a financing tool 
for future large capital 
projects.

Benchmarking & Performance Perspectives 

Municipal Debt per Household (2018)
Draft for Discussion Purposes Only

Source – KPMG analysis of annual Financial Information Returns, Schedule 2 & Schedule 70

7777



39© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

The City of Port Colborne 
holds the second lowest 
amount of discretionary 
reserves per household 
among the comparator group.  

It is below the comparator 
group average by $1,912 per 
household.

The discretionary reserve 
position illustrated in this 
graph does not include 
development charges, gas 
tax, and park land reserves.

In practical terms, a strong 
discretionary reserve position 
allows for greater flexibility in 
financing options for new 
infrastructure.

Benchmarking & Performance Perspectives

Discretionary Reserves per Household (2018) 
Draft for Discussion Purposes Only

Source – KPMG analysis of annual Financial Information Returns, Schedule 2 & Schedule 60

7878



40© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Benchmarking & Performance Perspectives

Historical Staffing Levels By Type 2014 – 2018

When viewed over the past 
five years, staffing levels for 
full-time, part-time and 
seasonal employees have 
seen little variation .

There is, however, modest 
growth in the number of full-
time employees in 2017 and 
2018. 

The last year in which 
additional part-time 
resources were added to 
the City was in 2015.

Source – KPMG analysis of annual Financial Information Returns, Schedule 80A

Draft for Discussion Purposes Only

Source – KPMG analysis of annual Financial Information Returns, Schedule 80A

7979



41© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Benchmarking & Performance Perspectives

2018 Full-Time and Part-Time Staffing by Comparator

When staffing levels are 
compared across the 
comparator group, Port 
Colborne is below the 
comparator average in real 
terms for full-time positions. 

The ratio of full-time to part-
time positions for Port 
Colborne is consistent with 
two of its comparators 
(Cobourg and Collingwood). 

Draft for Discussion Purposes Only

Source – KPMG analysis of annual Financial Information Returns, Schedule 80A

8080



42© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

 $-  $50,000  $100,000  $150,000  $200,000  $250,000  $300,000  $350,000

Port Colborne

Thorold

Kincardine

Cobourg

Collingwood

Wasaga Beach 2019

2018

2017

Residential median looks at 
the median price of 
residential property within 
the municipality, not the 
average.

Port Colborne holds the 
lowest median residential 
property value among its 
comparator group. 

Benchmarking & Performance Perspectives

Residential Median Current Value Assessment
Draft for Discussion Purposes Only

Source: KPMG analysis of OPTA data

8181



43© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

 $-  $500  $1,000  $1,500  $2,000  $2,500

Port Colborne

Thorold

Kincardine

Wasaga Beach

Collingwood

Cobourg 2019

2018

2017

Residential taxes per 
household looks at the 
average property tax per 
household paid by citizens 
for lower tier municipal 
services. 

Port Colborne has the 
lowest average residential 
taxes per household among 
the comparator group. 

Benchmarking & Performance Perspectives

Residential Taxes per Household (Average/Typical Property)
Draft for Discussion Purposes Only

Source: KPMG analysis of OPTA data

8282



44© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Benchmarking & Performance Perspectives

Summary of General Themes

General Themes
Municipal Debt
■ Port Colborne’s debt position when considered on a per household basis is above the average of the comparator group.  A high debt position 

denies flexibility to the City in managing the capital demands related to growth.   This reflects the City’s large capital commitments in the past 
several years.

Discretionary Reserve Balances

■ The City holds the lowest amount of discretionary reserves per household among the comparator group. Decreasing discretionary reserves over 
time is an indicator that the City’s flexibility for financing from reserves is becoming more restricted thereby increasing the reliance on debt.

Staffing Levels
■ There has been little change in the staffing level of the City’s full-time complement over the past five years.  The City’s full-time complement is 

lower than the average of the comparator group. The ratio of part-time employees to full-time employees is higher than most of the comparator 
group. 

Taxation Levels
■ Among the comparator municipalities, residential taxes per household is at the bottom of the comparator group.  Port Colborne has the lowest 

residential median current value assessment of the comparator group.

Overall
■ The benchmarking and financial analysis highlights that Port Colborne is experiencing some financial challenges that will need to be addressed to 

ensure financial sustainability over the long term.  Consideration will need to be given to the City’s service levels and wide range of delivered 
municipal services.

The benchmarking and financial analysis highlights that relative to the comparator group, Port Colborne delivers municipal services at a cost consistent 
with the average of its peers.   

8383



kpmg.cakpmg.ca

© 2020 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent  
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.  
The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.
The information contained herein is of a general nature and is not intended to address the circumstances of any particular  
individual or entity. Although we endeavour to provide accurate and timely information, there can be no guarantee that  
such information is accurate as of the date it is received or that it will continue to be accurate in the future. No one should  
act on such information without appropriate professional advice after a thorough examination of the particular situation.

8484

http://kpmg.com/socialmedia
http://kpmg.com/socialmedia


 
   
 Corporate Services Department  
 Financial Services Division 
 

Report Number: 2020-158                   Date: November 9, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of the 2019 Consolidated Financial Statements 

1) PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this report is to seek Council’s approval for the consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 for the Corporation of the City of Port 
Colborne.  
 
2) BACKGROUND: 
 
The Municipal Act, 2001, states that a municipality shall prepare financial statements for 
each fiscal year. Management in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting 
standards (PSAS) as recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) 
prepares the consolidated financial statements for the City. PSAB serves the public 
interest by establishing standards and other guidance for financial reporting by all 
Canadian entities in the public sector and by contributing to the development of 
internationally accepted public sector financial reporting standards.  
 
The consolidated statement of financial position; the consolidated statement of 
operations; the consolidated statement of changes in debt; the consolidated statement 
of cash flows; and notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising a 
summary of significant accounting policies, have been audited by the City’s auditor, 
Grant Thornton.  
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with PSAB, and for such internal control as 
management determines necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  
 
The Auditor’s responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements based on their audit fieldwork. Following completion of the audit fieldwork, 
Grant Thornton stated, in their opinion, that “the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Corporation of the City of Port Colborne as at December 31, 2018, and its results of 
operations, its changes in its net financial assets, and its cash flows for the year ended 
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards”.  

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS: 

A draft copy of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 
2019, is attached to this report as Appendix A – 2019 Consolidated Financial 
Statements.  

Financial Services, in preparing the financial statements, has historically and in the 
current year utilized Grant Thornton to balance reserve transaction accounting, record 

8585



Corporate Services Department, Financial Services Division, Report 2020-158 Page 2 of 3 
 

post-employment benefits and sick leave liability as well as consolidated certain boards 
and committees. The summation of these entries is recorded on page 7 of Appendix B – 
Audit Strategy and Results. Page 8 of the same appendix identifies an uncorrected 
misstatement for $111,000 for uncollectible taxes receivable. The auditors have 
identified the allowance for uncollectable taxes may be too high. While the City 
maintains all taxes are collectible if by no other means than through a tax sale of the 
property, there are situations where the amount outstanding on the tax roll could be less 
than the value of the property. The complexity with the Auditor’s assessment that the 
allowance may be overstated is the fact that quantifying the unknown is difficult at best. 
Recognizing the balance suggested by the auditors is not significant to the point it 
impacts the unqualified audit opinion management maintains, for the purpose of being 
conservative in a situation where future results are not known, that the allowance 
remains and has not been corrected.   

Financial Services extends its appreciation to Peter Senese, the City’s now retired 
Director, Corporate Services/Treasurer, for closing the books on the 2019 year and his 
leadership in preparing the required working papers for the Auditors.  

Staff highlight Appendix B – Audit Strategy and Results, also provides Council with: 

 the auditors’ approach to the audit and how they tackled certain risks; 

 the current engagement letter; 

 a draft independence letter; 

 the management representation letter that staff are required to sign upon 
approval of the consolidated financial statements; 

 a letter of internal control with managements plan to address them going into 
fiscal 2021; and  

 upcoming audit and accounting developments.  

The Financial Information Return (FIR) is being prepared at the time of writing this 
report. The FIR is the main data collection tool used by the Ministry of Municipal Affairs 
to collect financial and statistical information from municipalities. The FIR is a standard 
document comprised of a number of schedules that are updated each year to comply 
with current legislation and reporting requirements.  It is possible when completing the 
FIR that certain account groupings may change and, because the financial statements 
and FIR need to match, the account groupings of revenue and expense on the financial 
statements may change. There will be no change in the net financial results of the City 
should any adjustment be required.   

Looking forward, Financial Services will be making the following changes to the year-
end process: 

 The accounts for 2020 will be closed effective January 22, 2021.   

 Financial Services will prepare the consolidated financial statements by March 2, 
2021 subject to entities such as the Airport and Business Improvement Area 
(BIA) organizations doing the same.  Financial Services will support these 

8686



Corporate Services Department, Financial Services Division, Report 2020-158 Page 3 of 3 
 

organizations, if necessary, to achieve this timeline. 

 A year end surplus/deficit report will be prepared and provided to Council in 
March 2021. 

 The audit will follow thereafter depending on the schedule of the Auditors. The 
goal will be to have the 2021 consolidated financial statements to Council in May 
2021 with the FIR being filed at the same time.    

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  

a) Approve the Consolidated Financial Statements  

Council can approve the Consolidated Financial Statements report.  

b)  Not approve the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Council may choose not to approve the Consolidated Financial Statements and request 
that Grant Thornton review the financial results again. Council will need to provide clear 
expectations for the additional review of the City’s finances and internal controls.  

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES:  

An annual financial audit supports the City of Port Colborne in ensuring a transparent 
and accountable financial reporting environment.   

6) ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Appendix A – Consolidated Financial Statements 
Appendix B – Audit Strategy and Results 

7) RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council approve the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2019. 

8) SIGNATURES: 

 
Prepared on October 30, 2020 by: Reviewed and respectfully submitted by:  
  

 
 
 
 

Bryan Boles, MBA, CA, CPA 
Director of Corporate Services / 
Treasurer 

 

C. Scott Luey 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

8787



Financial Report 

City of Port Colborne 

December 31 , 2019 

Report 2020-158 
Appendix A 

8888



City of Port Colborne 

Contents 

City of Port Colborne 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 

Consolidated Statement of Operations 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net D 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial S 'atements 

Co"'olldatM Sohed"te o~aoolf apltal A""'' 
Consolidated Schedule of ~nt Disclosure 

Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure with Budget Information 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

Page 

1-2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7-27 

28-29 

30 

31-34 

35-36 

37 

38 

39 

40-41 

8989



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
As at December 31, 2019 

2019 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) $ 
Portfolio investments (Note 3) 
Taxes receivable 
User charges receivable 
Other receivables 

Liabilities 
Payables and accruals ~ 
Other liabilities ~ 
Deferred revenue (Note 5) f\... • 
Long term debt (Note 6) " ' 
Employee benefit obligations (Notes 7 and 16) 

46,537,306 

Net debt (25, 148,013) 

2018 

1,875,920 
10,862,711 

2,892,409 
2,051 ,944 
2.275, 109 

19,958,093 

5,663,370 
1,241 ,039 

868,226 
28,878,592 

8,514,300 

45,165,527 

(25,207,434} 

Non-financial assets 
Tangible capital assets (Not 138,865,725 138,935,792 
Prepaid expenses 

Accumulated surplu (Note 9) 

Contingencies (Notes 20 and 21) 
Commitments (Note 22) 
Impacts of COVID-19 and subsequent events (Note 25) 

Approved by 

Director of Corporate Services 

1.100,795 783 510 

139,966,520 139,719,302 

$ 114,818,507 $ 114,511 ,868 

Chief Administrative Officer 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements 

3 

9090



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Statement of Operations 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Budget Actual Actual 
2019 2019 2018 

(Note 24) 

Revenues other than revenues related 
to tangible capital assets 

Taxation (Note 11) $ 18,630,708 $ $ 17,736,188 
User charges (Note 13) 14,109,670 12,245,372 
Government transfers (Note 14) 3,140,405 3,389,742 
Other (Note 15) 959.980 2 434 486 

37,994,843 35,805)88 

Expenses 
General government 4,432 927 5,391,159 4,478,820 
Protection to persons and property 4,307,043 4,500,462 4,442,598 
Transportation services 6,716,316 7,528,261 6,849,152 
Environmental services 10,951,877 10,802,676 9,973,533 
Health services 159,877 187,866 196,944 
Social and family services 50,000 47,635 40,970 
Recreation and culture services 8,411,278 8,941,897 8,842,724 
Planning and development 2,055,921 2,007,789 1 997 418 

37,085,239 39,407,745 36,822.159 

Annual deficit before revenues 
related to tangible cap'ital ~ssets (244,476) ( 1 .412,902) (1,016,371) 

2,289,435 1,201,388 1,919,773 
302,900 402,359 252,571 

115,794 39 943 

2.592.335 1,719,541 2.212.287 

2,347,859 306,639 1,1 95,916 

Accumulated surplus (Note 9) 
Beginning of year 114511868 114.511.868 113,315,952 

End of year $ 116,859,727 $ 114,818,507 $ 114,511 ,868 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

4 

9191



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Debt 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Annual surplus 

Amortization of tangible capital assets 
Write-down of tangible capital assets 
Acquisition of tangible capital assets 
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets 
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets 

Acquisition of prepaid expenses 

Budget 
2019 

(Note 24) 

$ 2,347,859 

5,509,019 

(7' 146,232) 

Decrease in net debt 

Net debt 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

& 710,646 

::s:::> 0 125.207.434) 

0 $ (24,496,788) 

Actual 
2019 

376,706 

(317,285) 

59,421 

{25,207,434} 

$ (25,148,013) $ 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

Actual 
2018 

1,195,916 

5,380,357 
14,598 

(4,971 ,439) 
75,842 

(39,943} 

1,655,331 

(167,778} 

1,487,553 

(26,694,987} 

(25,207 ,434) 

5 

9292



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2019 

2019 2018 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Operating activities 
Annual surplus $ 
Non-cash items: 

Amortization of tangible capital assets 5,380,357 
Write-down of tangible capital assets 14,598 
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets (;f'15,794) (39,943) 

Increase in taxes receivable (621,099) (381,316) 
Decrease (increase) in user charges receivable 27,688 (194,782) 
(Increase) decrease in other receivables (1,293,333) 1, 110,757 
Increase (decrease) in payables and accruals 871,808 (3,426,277) 
Increase in other liabilities 251,767 199,463 
Increase in deferred revenue 1,130,619 444,307 
Increase in prepaid expenses (317,285) (167,778) 

5,751,997 4,135,302 

Capital activities 
Proceeds from disposal of tangible capital assets 272,350 75,842 
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (5,597,476) (4,971,439) 

(5,325, 126) (4,895,597) 

Financing activities 
Repayment of cqpstruction loan (5,245,000) 
Issue ofJo'hg term debt 6,145,000 
Repaym;si t o l9 ng term debt (1,503,637) (1,821,667) 
Issue of ca ital lease obligation 94,443 140,657 
Regi~t of capital lease obligation (84,221) (26,843) 
Inc ease in employee benefit obligation 611,000 249 600 

(882.415) (558,253) 

Investing activities 
(Purchase) disposal of portfolio investments , net (215,390) 1 370 010 

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (670,934) 51,462 

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) 
Beginning of year 1.875,920 1,824.458 

End of year $ 1,204,986 $ 1,875,920 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

6 

9393



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2019 

1. Significant accounting policies 

Management responsibility 

The consolidated financial statements of the City of Port Colborne ("Municipal ity") are the 
responsibility of and prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public sector 
accounting standards. The preparation of the consolidated financia l statements necessarily 
involves the use of estimates based on management's judgment, particularl~hen transactions 
affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty ui iff ture g, riods. 

The significant accounting policies used are as follows: ~ (a) 

(b) 

Reporting entity 

The consolidated financial statements reflect the Jj.riancial assets, liabilities, non-financial 
assets, revenues, expenses and changes in acc~ula ed surplus of the reporting entity. 
The reporting entity is comprised of all organizations ~d enterprises accountable for the 
administration of their affairs and resources to he Municipality and which are owned or 
controlled by the Municipality. In addition to genera government tax-supported operations, 
they include the following : 

Interdepartmental and organza ional transactions and balances are eliminated. 

The following joint loc~ is proportionally consolidated 

Niagara ~"31 Airport Commission (Joint Board) 

Related party tr::insactions are eliminated (Note 17). 

The stalem~ts exclude trust assets that are administered for the benefit of external parties 
(Note 18). 

ources of revenue and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The 
accrual basis of accounting records revenues in the period they are earned and measurable 
and expenses in the period the goods and services are acquired and a liability is incurred. 

(c) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and temporary investments include cash on hand, balances with banks and 
guaranteed investment certificates that mature within one year. 

(d) Portfolio investments 

Portfolio investments are valued at the lower of cost and market value. Interest income is 
reported as revenue in the period earned. 

7 

9494



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

1. 

(e) 

(f) 

Significant accounting policies (continued) 

Deferred revenue 

Resources restricted by agreement with an external party are recognized as revenue in the 
entity's financial statements in the period in which the resources are used for the purpose or 
purposes specified. An externally restricted inflow received before this;.-eriterion has been 
met is recorded as a liability until the resources are used for the purpose or purposes 
specified. n' 
Employee future benefits "' V 
The present value of the cost of providing employees with I~ benefit programs is 
expensed as employees earn these entitlements through servic 

(g) Contaminated sites liability 

Contaminated sites are a result of contaminatio berng introduced into air, soil, water or 
sediment of a chemical, organic or radioactive ma rial or live organism that exceeds an 
environmental standard. The liability is re ·Orded net of any expected recoveries. A liabi lity 
for remediation of contaminated sites is reGogr,iized when a site is not in productive use and .., 
all the following criteria are met: 

• 
• 
• 

• 
• 

an environmental stan~r\exists; 
contamination exc eds the environmental standard; 
the Municipality: 
0 is directlY. re\Ponsible; or 
0 ~cepts responsibility; 
it is expec ed th t future economic benefits wi ll be given up; and 
a reasonao e estimate of the amount can be made . 

The lj9q_ility is recognized as management's estimate of the cost of post-remediation 
includlng'O~ation, maintenance and monitoring that are an integral part of the remediation 
strategy forV contaminated site. 

angible capital assets are recorded at cost. Cost includes all directly attributable expenses 
in the acquisition, construction, development and/or betterment of the asset required to 
install the asset at the location and in the condition necessary for its intended use. 
Contributed tangible capital assets are capitalized at their estimated fai r value upon 
acquisition. The Municipality does not capitalize interest as part of the costs of its capital 
assets. 

Works of art for display in municipal property are not included as capital assets. The works 
of art are held for exhibition, educational and historical interest. Such assets are deemed 
worthy of preservation because of the social rather than financial benefits they provide to the 
community. The cost of art is not determinable or relevant to their significance. No 
valuation of the collection has been conducted or disclosed in the consolidated financial 
statements. 

8 

9595



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2019 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(h) Tangible capital assets (continued) 

(i) 

Leases are classified as capital or operating leases. Leases that transfer substantially all 
benefits incidental to ownership are accounted for as capital leases. All other leases are 
accounted for as operating leases and the related lease payments are err§~ to expenses 
as incurred. ~'-...) 

Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis to write-off the net cos of each asset over 
its estimated useful life for all classes except land. Land is consiaere~ to ave an infinite life 
without amortization. Residual values of assets are assume · :t l::l zer:o with any net gain or 
loss arising from the disposal of assets recognized in the consolidated statement of 
operations as "other revenue". Half-year amortization is charge,9ltn the year of acqu isition 
and disposal. Assets under construction are not amortized unfil the asset is available for 
productive use. ~ ~ 

Amortization is based on the following classifica io, ana useful lives: 

Classification ~ Useful Life 

0 10-100 years 
20-50 years 
20-50 years 
10-20 years 
5-10 years 
3-30 years 
10-100 years 

Subdivision stteets , lighting, sidewalks, drainage and other infrastructure are required to be 
providea by subdivision developers. Upon completion they are turned over to the 
MuniciP.al1ty nd recorded as tangible capital assets. The Municipality is not involved in the 
coi structi'gn. 

~even e recognition 

") Taxation 
Property tax billings are prepared by the Municipality based on assessment rolls issued by 
the Municipal Property Assessment Corporation ("MPAC"). Tax rates are established 
annually by Council, incorporating amounts to be raised for local services and amounts the 
Municipality is required to collect on behalf of the Province of Ontario in respect of education 
taxes. Realty taxes are billed based on the assessment rolls provided by MPAC. Taxation 
revenues are recorded at the time tax billings are issued. 

A normal part of the assessment process is the issue of supplementary assessment rolls 
which provide updated information with respect to changes in property assessment. 

9 

9696



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2019 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(j) Revenue recognition (continued) 

(k) 

(I) 

i) Taxation (continued) 
Once a supplementary roll is received, the Municipality determines the taxes applicable and 
renders supplementary tax billings. Assessments of the related propert~ ta!{_es are subject 
to appeal. Any supplementary billing adjustments made necessary by tne de ermination of 
such changes will be recognized in the fiscal year they are determinetl 1 a: he effect shared 
with the school boards, as appropriate. V 
ii) User charges ~ 
User charges are recognized when the services are perfor . ed or goods are delivered and 
there is reasonable assurance of collection. 

iii) Government transfers ~ 
Government transfers received are recognized ·n the ~cial statements as revenue when 
the transfers are authorized and all eligibility crife ia Have been met except when there is a 
stipulation that gives rise to an obligation that meets the definition of a liability. In that case, 
the transfer is recorded as a liability and ree1>gnized as revenue as the stipulations are met. 
Government transfers to individuals ang o~e~ entities are recognized as an expense when 
the transfers are authorized and all eligibility criteria have been met. 

iv) Other 
Other revenue is recorded whe~ earned and collection is reasonably assured. 

Reserves for future ex enses 

Local improv~ments 

The r\i'W~~lity records capital expenses funded by local improvement agreements as they 
are if:lcurr.f;!,d. Revenues are recognized in the year they become payable. 

The taxation , other revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities with respect to the operations 
of the school boards and the Region of Niagara are not reflected in the accumulated surplus 
of these consolidated financial statements. 

(n) Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian pub lic sector 
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Two 
areas in which management make estimates are with regards to an allowance for 
uncollectible taxes receivable and obligations for employee benefits. 

10 

9797



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2019 

2. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash on hand 
Bank balances 

3. Portfolio investments 

4. Bank indebtedness 

$ 3,950 $ 3,950 
1 .201 ,036 1 871 970 

$ 1,204,986 1,875,920 

" An operating line of credit of$ 4,000,000 has bew•established with the CIBC, of which$ Nil (2018 
- $ Nil) was used at December 31 , 2019. An executed borrowing by-law in form and content 
satisfactory to CIBC is in effect to a limit o~ ~ 000,000. Interest is calculated at prime minus 
0.50%. Overdrafts outstanding under tbe Ii e Q 'eredit are converted to a promissory note at the 
CIBC's request which has not been enae ed. 

5. Deferred revenue 2019 2018 

Development Charges ~ct $ 171 ,705 $ 214,962 
Parkland 259,104 159,078 
Federal gas tax 1,192,893 430,871 
Ontario Com~unity ·tttrastructure Fund 375.143 63 315 

$ 1,998,845 $ 868,226 

11 

9898



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

5. Deferred revenue (continued) 

The continuity of deferred revenue is made up of the following: 

2019 

Balance, beginning of year $ 

Contributions from 
Parkland 
Interest earned 
Government transfers received 

Federal 
Provincial 

"~ 
1,751 ,676 

Utilized for 
Tangible capital asset acquisitions (476,944) 
Operations {144,113} 

{621,057} 

Balance, end of year $ 1,998,845 

6. Long term debt 2019 

(a) The balance of n Ion term debt reported on the 
consolidated statement of financial position is 
made up of th~ollowing : 

The Munici€ality has assumed responsibility for the 
pa~en of principal and interest charges on 
cer}ai long term debt issued by the Region of 
Niagar . At the end of the year, the outstanding 
p incipal amount of this debt is $ 27,245,627 

Capital lease obligations 139,550 

Net long term debt $ 27,385,177 

2018 

423,919 

60,345 
8,650 

586,822 
61 600 

717 417 

(265,000) 
(8, 110) 

(273,110) 

$ 868,226 

2018 

$ 28,749,264 

129,328 

$ 28,878,592 

12 

9999



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2019 

6. Long term debt (continued) 

(b) The net long term debt is made up of the following: 

Debenture Interest Maturity 
Number Purpose Rates Dates 2019 2018 

67-2009 Vehicles and 
Equipment 1.15 to 4.80% 2019 $ 54,000 

73-2010 City Hall, Marina, 
Main St. CIP and 
Fire Vehicle 1.60 to 4.65% 2020 888,794 

46-2013 Health & 
Wellness Centre 2.67% 2023 1,448,760 

47-2013 Roads and Fire ~ 
Dept. 3.37% 20~~ 596,290 630,665 

48-2013 Skatepark, Fuel 
Tanks and Op. 
Centre Design 3.70% 2043 1,639,212 1,682,383 

75-2015 LED Street Lights 
and Water Meters 2025 1,711,000 1,977,000 

94-2015 Fire Tanker and 
Watermains 2035 1,794,876 1,877,645 

35-2016 Fire Truck 
Operations Centre 2021 120,651 179,730 

64-2017 East Side 
Employment L.aiid 2037 416,805 433,668 

65-2017 Operations Ce\itre 2047 13,233,254 13,511,275 
11-2018 Nickel t Star 

Sewer 3.56% 2048 5,341 ,178 5,447,991 
12-2018 Marina Lift 

and Water Meters 3.18% 2028 560,733 617,353 
~eased Vehicles 

Various 2020-2023 1391550 129 328 c:m,d Equipment 

qj. $ 27,385,177 $ 28,878,592 

l?rincipal repayments in each of the next five years are due as follows: 

2020 $ 2,049,292 
2021 1,353,380 
2022 1,323,744 
2023 1,166,372 
2024 1,028,794 

(d) The Municipality paid $ 961,298 (2018 - $ 919,299) interest on long term debt during the 
year. 

13 

100100



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2019 

7. Employee benefit obligations 

Workplace Safety and Insurance Board future benefits 
Vested sick leave benefits 
Retirement benefits 

Less: Sick leave funded by reserve 

(a) Workplace Safety and Insurance Board future benefits 

2019 

$ 2,272,200 $ 

$ 

306,200 
6,546,900 

2018 

1,899,500 
264,400 

6.350,400 

8,514,300 
(20.225) 

8,494,075 

The City of Port Colborne is a Workplace Safety and Insurance Board ("WSIB") Schedule 2 
employer. 

In 2019, an actuarial estimate of future liabilities has neen completed and forms the basis 
for the estimated liability reported in these financial statements. During the year $ 35,459 
(2018 - $ 35, 916) was paid by the City to th WSIB in relation to these benefits. 

The accrued benefit obligation at December @·1, 2019 of $ 2,272,200 (2018 - $ 1,899,500) 
was determined by an actuarial v:aluatio usihg a discount rate of 2.90% (2018 - 3.30%). 

The most recent actuarial valuati·on was prepared at December 31, 2019. 

The main actuarial assumP-~ns ) ployed above are as follows (where applicable): 

(i) Interest (discouq, aJe 

The obligations as at ecember 31 , 2019 of the present value of future liabil ities were 
determined using a aiscount rate of 2.90% (2018 - 3.30%). 

; 
(ii) Future benefit indexing rate 

The r~~ed for loss of earnings benefits and pension and survivors benefits are 
qs~umec;I o be 2.00% per annum. The rate for health benefits is assumed to be 4.00% per 
a~num! 

14 

101101



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

7. Employee benefit obligations (continued) 

(a) Workplace Safety and Insurance Board future benefits (continued) 

(b) 

Accrued benefit obligation 
Beginning of year 
Benefit payments 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Amortization of actuarial gain 

Funded status 
Deficit 
Unamortized actuarial (loss) gain 

The net benefit expense is as follows: 

Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Amortization of actuarial gClJJ1 

$ 1,874,000 
(88,900) 
87,500 
54 ,900 

(28,000) 

$ 1,899,500 

$ 2,363,900 $ 1,675, 100 
(91,700) 224400 

$ 2,272,200 $ 1,899,500 

$ 706,500 $ 87,500 
72,400 54,900 

(28,000) --~<2~8-,0~00~) 

$ 750,900 $ 114.400 -----

Under he sick leave benefit plan for employees of the Port Colborne Firefighters' 
Assocj~tio~ick leave can accumulate and employees may become entitled to a cash 
pa~: upon leaving the Municipality's employment. 

~ht~trued benefit obligation at December 31, 2019 of$ 306,200 (2018 - $ 264,400) was 
aetermined by an actuarial valuation using a discount rate of 2.90% (2018 - 3.40%). 

;fhe most recent actuarial valuation for the vested sick leave was prepared at 
December 31 , 2019. 

The main actuarial assumptions employed for the vested sick leave and retirement benefits 
valuations above are as follows (where applicable): 

(i) Interest (discount) rate 

The obligations as at December 31 , 2019 of the present value of future liabil ities were 
determined using a discount rate of 2.90% (2018 - 3.40%). 

(ii) Salary increase rate 

The rate used to increase salaries is assumed to be 3.00% per annum. This rate reflects 
management's best estimate of future salary increases. 

15 

102102



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

7. Employee benefit obligations (continued) 

(b) Vested sick leave benefits (continued) 

(c) 

Accrued benefit obligation 
Beginning of year 
Benefit payments 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Plan amendment 
Amortization of actuarial loss (gain) 

Funded status 
Deficit 
Unamortized actuarial (loss) gain 

$ 

$ 

$ 

253,500 
(22,700) 
26,400 

8,800 

(1 ,600} 

$ 264,400 

342,900 $ 255,300 
(36,700) ___ 9""-'-10=0=-

306,200 $ 264,400 -----
28,700 $ 26,400 
10,800 8,800 
18,300 

2,300 (1,600} 

60,100 $ 33,600 

During the year $ Nil (2018 - $ Nil) was paid to employees who left the Municipality's 
employment. ~e Municipality has set aside $ 20,439 (2018 - $ 20,225) in a reserve. 

The City of Port Colborne pays certain retirement benefits on behalf of its retired employees. 
{he Ci of Port Colborne recognizes these retirement costs in the period in which the 
employees rendered the services. The plan is substantially unfunded and requires no 
contributions from employees. 

The accrued benefit obligation at December 31, 2019 of $ 6,546,900 (2018 - $ 6,350,400) 
was determined by an actuarial valuation using a discount rate of 2.90% (2018 - 3.40%). 

The City's obligation under the retirement provision of employment agreements will be 
funded out of current revenue. During the year benefit payments of $ 362,000 (2018 -
$ 344,900) were paid to retirees . 

Actuarial valuations for accounting purposes are performed every three years using the 
projected benefit method, pro-rated on service. Under this method, the projected retirement 
benefits are deemed to be earned on a pro-rata basis over the employee's years of service. 

The most recent actuarial valuation for the retirement benefits was prepared at 
December 31 , 2019. 

16 

103103



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

7. Employee benefit obligations (continued) 

(c) Retirement benefits (continued) 

The main actuarial assumptions employed for retirement benefits valuation above are as 
follows (where applicable): 

(i) Interest (discount) rate 

(ii) Medical costs 

Drug costs were assumed to be 7.48% in 2019 and decrease'!,Q.175% per year until 2036 
when the rate will be 4.50% and continue thereafter. 

Vision costs were assumed to be 1. 75% in 20~ 9 antl~c~se 0.25% per year until 2026 
when the rate will be 0% and continue thereaftet.' 

Other health costs were assumed to be 4.50% in 2019 and continue thereafter. 

(iii) Dental costs 

Accrued benefit oi liga i 
Beginning of ye r $ 6,350,400 $ 6,137,200 
Benefit payments (362,000) (344,900) 
Current serv; e cost 329,1 00 319,600 
lnteres cos 216,800 217,800 
Amorflza~n of actuarial loss 12,600 20 700 

Qi. $ 6,546,900 $ 6,350,400 

Fuoded status 
Deficit $ 6,915,600 $ 6,450,800 
Unamortized actuarial loss (368,700) (100.400) 

$ 6,546,900 $ 6 ,350,400 

The net benefit expense is as follows: 

Current service cost $ 329,100 $ 319,600 
Interest cost 216,800 217,800 
Amortization of actuarial loss 12,600 20 700 

$ 558,500 $ 558, 100 

17 

104104



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2019 

8. Tangible capital assets 

Net book value 
Land 
Land improvements 
Buildings 
Leasehold improvements 
Vehicles 
Office equipment and furniture and fixtures 
Machinery and equipment 
Infrastructure 

Assets under construction 

9. Accumulated surplus 

Consists of: 

$ $ 5,628,931 
10,001,091 
44,815, 132 

297,708 
2,484, 188 
1, 158,646 
2,828,723 

58,850.553 

126,064,972 

12.870.820 

$ 138,935,792 

Surpluses (deficits) 
Operating $ (5,342,748) $ (4,248,793) 
Port Colborne Public Libr<!ti}( B~ 
Port Colborne Downto~f?Dev_elopment Board 
Port Colborne M~n s reet Business Improvement Area 
Niagara Central irpo Commission (Note 17) 

Reserves and reserves funds (Note 10) 

40,872 
44,708 
29,777 

(33,273) 

(5,260,664) 

138,865, 725 

(27,385,177) 
(9,125,300) 

(36,510,477) 

17,723,923 

$ 114,818,507 

35,440 
35,324 
23,927 

(59.786) 

(4,213.888) 

138.935,792 

(28,878,592) 
(8,514.300) 

(37,392.892) 

17, 182.856 

$ 114,511,868 

18 

105105



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2019 

10. Reserves and reserve funds 2019 2018 

Reserves set aside for specific purposes by Council 
Working capital $ $ 703,010 
Recreation programs and facilities 529,682 
Acquisition of capital assets 2,559,310 
Library 15,298 
Museum 25,220 
Transit 53,504 
Election expense 31,235 
Administration costs 1,431 ,747 
Airport 48,499 
Cemetery 16,978 
Wastewater operations 873,527 
Water operations 824 571 

Total reserves 7.112,581 

by Council or agreement 
Acquisition of fixed assets 7,920,321 7,665,122 
Accumulated sick leave and disability 20,439 20,225 
Administration costs 885,700 1, 147,059 
Grain elevator property 1,090,289 990,513 
Community centre 170,330 139,423 
Library 113,288 88,055 
Transit 20,088 19 878 

Total reserve funds 10.220.455 10,070,275 

$ 17,723,923 $ 17,182,856 

19 

106106



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

11. Taxation Budget Actual Actual 
2019 2019 2018 

Real property $ 37,582,759 $ 36,082,522 
From other governments 

Payments in lieu of taxes 539,556 

36,622.078 

Less: taxation collected on behalf of (Note 12): 
Region of Niagara 13,654,742 
School boards 5.231.148 

18,885,890 

Net taxes available for municipal purposes ~$ 18,668,245 $ 17,736,188 

Residential, multi-residential and farm $ 14,346}S39 $ 14,396,190 $ 13,631,446 
Commercial and industrial 4.284,169 4,272,055 4 104 742 

$ 18,668,245 $ 17,736,188 

2019 2018 

$ 14,107,998 $ 13,654,742 
5,253,977 5 231 148 

$ 19,361,975 $ 18,885,890 

Jhe ~unicipality is required to levy and collect taxes on behalf of the Region of Niagara and the 
school boards. The taxes levied over (under} the amounts requisitioned are recorded as accounts 
payable (receivable}. 

20 

107107



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

13. User charges Budget Actual Actual 
2019 2019 2018 

Operating 
Fees and service charges $ 3,593,957 $ 3,921 ,157 $ 3,068,685 
Direct water billings 5,028,220 4,636,417 4,625,607 
Wastewater surcharges 5,487,493 4,976,59, 4 551 080 

$ 14,109,670 $ 12,245,372 

14. Government transfers Budget Actual 
2019 2018 

Operating 
Government of Canada 148,101 $ 14,351 
Province of Ontario 3,921 ,71 2 3,375,391 
Municipal 5 000 

4,074,813 3,389,742 

Capital 
Government of Canada 714,595 951,671 265,000 
Province of Ontario 1,574,840 249,717 766,614 
Municipal 888 159 

2.289.435 1.201,388 1 919773 

$ 5,429,840 $ 5,276,201 $ 5,309,515 

21 

108108



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2019 

15. Other revenue Budget Actual Actual 
2019 2019 2018 

Operating 
Penalties and interest on taxes $ 410,000 $ $ 456,253 
Fines 18,000 17,870 
Interest income 26,000 36,598 
Licences and permits 267,570 296,227 
Rental income 64,910 61 ,054 
Investment income - reserves 

and reserve funds 215,757 
Contributions from developers 8,110 
Transfer from trust funds 3,928 
Donations 117,789 
Proceeds from sale of road allowances 564,023 
Other 267.921 656 877 

1,717.620 2.434.486 

Capital 
Donations 10,000 183,751 212,801 
Other 292.900 21 8,608 39 770 

302,900 402,359 252 571 

$ 1,262,880 $ 2,119,979 $ 2,687,057 

The Municipality m~es contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System 
("OMERS"), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of the members of its staff, The plan is a 
defined be~t ~ that specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the 
employees ased on the length of service and rates of pay, Employees and employers contribute 
jointl~ ?()Ian. 

Since\.Of¥1ERS is a multi-employer pension plan, the Municipality does not recognize any share of 
he pehsion plan surplus of$ 1,5 billion (2018 - $ 2.8 billion deficit) based on the fa ir market value 

of the plan's assets, as this is a joint responsibi lity of all Ontario municipal entities and their 
employees. Contributions were made in the 2019 calendar year at rates ranging from 9,0% to 
15,8% depending on the member's designated retirement age and level of earnings. Employer 
contributions for current and past service are included as an expense in the consolidated 
statement of operations. Employer contributions to OMERS for 2019 cu rrent and past service 
was $ 933,094 (2018 - $ 862,723) and were matched by employee contributions in a similar 
amount 

22 

109109



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

17. Niagara Central Airport Commission 

The Niagara Central Airport Commission operates a two runway airport offering a year round fixed 
base operation. The Commission is funded by the four nearby municipalities, City of Welland, 
City of Port Colborne, Town of Pelham and the Township of Wainfleet. The City of Port Colborne 
has a non-controlling interest in the airport of 19% (2018 - 19%) based on population. 

The following table provides condensed supplementary financial 
Central Airport Commission: 

Financial assets 

Niagara 

$ Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables 

Liabilities 

284,481 
46129 

"<::> '1 __ 2~7~1~,6~35_ --~33~0~6~1_0 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Loans payable 
Capital lease obligation 

Net debt 

Non-financial assets 
Prepaid expenses 
Fuel inventory 
Tangible capital assets 

Revenues 
Grants 
Fuel, rentals and other 
Interest 

Expenses 

Annual deficit 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

44,734 
365,423 

47 473 

457,630 

223,722 
399,790 

54 222 

677 734 

(185,995) -~(-34~7~. 1=24""""") 

1,354 1,354 
25,685 47,272 

1,492,862 1.636,642 

1 ,519,901 1,685,268 

1,333,906 $ 1,338, 144 

(175,120) $ (314,662) 
16,164 16, 164 

1,492,862 1,636,642 

1,333,906 $ 1,338, 144 

167,510 $ 115,761 
120,047 91,981 

571 1,138 

{292,366} (220,757} 

(4,238) $ (11,877) 

23 

110110



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2019 

17. Niagara Central Airport Commission (continued) 

The financial position information is as reported by the Niagara Central Airport Commission as at 
December 31 , 2019 and the results of operations are as reported for the year ended 
December 31 , 2019. The comparative financial position and results of operations figures are as 
reported by the Niagara Central Airport Commission at December 31, 2018. 

The Municipality has recorded in the financial statements its 19% (2018 - 9 Vo) share of the 
Niagara Central Airport Commissions' assets, liabilities, accumulated s rQlus, revenues, 
expenses, and annual surplus. 

The following summarizes the Municipality's related party transactions with he Niagara Central 
Airport Commission for the year. All transactions are in the normal c0~se~of operations, and are 
recorded at the exchange value based on normal commercial rat s or as agreed to by the 
parties. 

Government transfers 
Interest 

Loan, bearing interest of 3.5% per annum repaY,Pbje in 
annual instalments of$ 6,012, comrntn~r;i ® e 15, 2018 

Loan, bearing interest of 4.3% per annu"l\.:epayable in 
annual instalments of$ 4, 113, commeQciOg August 24, 2019 

18. Trust funds 

$ 

$ 

31,827 
3,014 

41,327 

30,170 

$ 

$ 

2018 

21,995 
1,750 

45,738 

32 870 

71,497 $ 78,608 ___ ..;.._ 

Trust funds administered by the Municipality amounting to$ 447,832 (2018 - $ 430,858) have not 
been include~m the consolidated statement of financial position nor have these operations been 
included in ttie consolidated statement of operations. 

(h 

TliE¥Municipality holds bank letters of credit as security to ensure the provision of subdivision 
services and the completion of contracts. 

Letters of credit, beginning of year 
Net deletions 

Letters of credit, end of year 

These letters of credit are not reflected in the accounts. 

$ 1,448,750 $ 1,637,354 
(290,654) -~( -'-'18'-"8~.6~04~) 

$ 1,158,096 $ 1,448,750 

24 

111111



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

20. Contingencies 

The Municipality is involved from time to time in litigation, which arises in the normal course of 
business. In respect of any outstanding claims, the Municipality believes that insurance coverage 
is adequate and that no material exposure exists on the eventual settlement of such litigation, 
therefore no provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements. 

21. Liabilities for contaminated sites 

The Municipality reports environmental liabilities related to the management and remediation of 
any contaminated sites where the Municipality is obligated or likelY'tbligatetl to incur such costs. 
The Municipality has identified one property where environmental assessments have indicated soil 
contamination exceeds environmental standards. A reasonable esti~te of any liability cannot be 
made as the Municipality has not determined how the property will be used, therefore, no liabil ity 
has been recognized. ~ 

The Municipality's ongoing efforts to assess contaminated sites may result in future environmental 
remediation liabilities related to newly identified sjtes, or changes in the assessments or intended 
use of existing sites. Any changes to the MunlClRality's liabilities for contaminated sites will be 
accrued in the year in which they are assessea as likely and reasonably estimable. 

The Municipality has commit en s for tax increment based grants with various expiry dates up to 
2024. There are curre tly f e signed agreements with a term spanning ten years each. At 
December 31 , 2019, the o al amount remaining to be paid from these agreements is $ 103,571 
with the total commitment for each of the next five years as follows: 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

23. Comparative figures 

$ 33,722 
33,722 
32,520 
2,405 
1,202 

Certain of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the consolidated 
financial statement presentation adopted for the current year. 

25 

112112



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

24. Budget 

The budget bylaw adopted by Council January 21 , 201 9 was not prepared on a basis consistent 
with that used to report actual results in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting 
standards. The budget was prepared on a modified accrual basis while Canadian public sector 
accounting standards require a full accrual basis. As a result, the budget figures presented in the 
consolidated statement of operations and consolidated statement of ch ges in net debt 
represent the budget adopted by Council with the following adjustments: 

Budgeted annual surplus 

Add : 
Acquisition of tangible capital assets 
Repayment of long term debt 

Less: 
Transfers (to) from reserves, net 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 

Budgeted surplus per consolidated statement of operations' 

7,515 ~'VI n' 7.146,232 .. v 1,422,546 

·1 (719.415) 
(5.509.019) 

$ 2,347,859 

25. Impacts of COVID-19 and subsequent events 

Since December 31, 2019, the spre~a of C@~ID-19 has severely impacted many local economies 
around the globe. In many countries~ inc uding Canada, businesses are being forced to cease or 
limit operations for long or ind.lffinite periods of time. Measures taken to contain the spread of the 
virus, including travel bans guara 'tines, social distancing, and closures of non-essential services 
have triggered signifi~ant dlsruptions to businesses worldwide, resulting in an economic 
slowdown. Global sto ·k m~tkets have also experienced great volatility and a significant 
weakening. Governmen s and central banks have responded with monetary and fiscal 
interventions to stabiW.e economic conditions. The Municipality's management is anticipating that 
the pande~·~will not have a significant impact on its operations. 

The Munici ality lias not identified any events related to the COVID-19 pandemic which were 
determiried © l:ie subsequent events, and therefore there has been no impact on the financial 
pos iti~ and esults of operations as of and for the year em:led December 31, 2019. 

Jhe d\~ion and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, as well as the effectiveness of government 
and central bank responses. remains unclear at this time. It is not possible to reliably estimate the 
duration and severity of these consequences, as well as their impact on the financial position and 
results of the Municipality for future periods. 

26 

113113



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2019 

26. Segmented reporting 

The Municipality is a diverse municipal government that provides a wide range of services to its 
citizens. Segmented information has been identified for the service lines that reflect the way in 
which the operations are managed and resource needs are identified and budgeted. Municipal 
activities are reported by function in the body of the financial statements. 

General 

The general provision of municipal services includes gene~a goV§Ylment, fire services, 
transportation services, storm sewer services, planning and devel0 ent, facilities, parks and 
cemeteries. 

Water ~'I 
The water operations install and maintain water capi al~rastructure to ensure the safe supply, 
metering and cost recovery for all treated water to servicea areas within all urban and settlement 
areas of the Municipality. 

Wastewater 

The wastewater operations install nd aintain wastewater capital infrastructure and recover 
costs of providing this service within all urbah and settlement areas of the Municipality. 

Port Colborne Public Libraryl Boi r:w 

The Port Colborne Public LiBM Board provides library services, materials and facilities. The 
Municipality controls thM boar and consolidates the financial activities. 

For each rei:ierted segment, revenues and expenses represent both amounts that are directly 
attributable to he segment and amounts that are allocated on a reasonable basis. 

The ~cco nting policies used in these segments are consistent with those followed in the 
prepa..r< tion of the consolidated financial statements as disclosed in Note 1. The consol idated 
schedwle of segment disclosure and the schedules of segment disclosure with budget information 
ollowthe notes. 

27 

114114



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Land Buildings and Construction 
Land lm12rovements Leaseholds Vehicles in Process 2019 

Cost 

Beginning of year $ 5,628,931 $ 18,282, 161 $ 59,644 ,4 55 $ 5, 115,983 8,687,275 $ 111 ,837,553 $ 12,870,820 $ 222,067, 178 

Additions 350,749 267,621 91.484 6~,810 15,860,967 1.249,103 18,474,734 

Disposals (11,433) (7,74Zl (9,465) (162,309) (228,975) (626,993) (12,877,258) {13,924, 180) 

End of year 5 617 498 18,625,163 59,902,611 9113110 127,071,527 1 242665 226,617, 732 

Accumulated amortization 

Beginning of year 8,281,070 2.631,795 4 ,699,906 52,987,000 83, 131,386 

Amortization 576,100 1,691 ,637 319,801 673,516 2,249,933 5,510,987 

Amortization 

on disposals {7,747) (162,310) (198 , 100) {512,813) {890,366! 

End of year 8 849 423 2,789,286 5, 175,322 54 724 120 87,752,007 

Net book value $ 5,617,498 $ 9 ,775,740 $ 43,688,755 $ 2,255,872 $ 3,937,788 $ 72,347,407 $ 1,242,665 $ 138,865, 725 

28 

115115



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Land Buildings and Construction 
Land lm12rovements Leaseholds Vehicles in Process 2018 

Cost 

Beginning of year $ 5,639,417 $ 17,906,419 $ 58,853,654 $ 4,992.958 $ 8, 105,080 $ 111 ,084,592 $ 11 ,240.742 $ 217,822,862 

Additions 375,742 796,279 290,648 ,055,823 822,869 1,880,168 5.221.529 

Disposals (10,486l (5,478l {167,623} {473,628l (69,908l (250,090l (977,213l 

End of year 5,628,931 18,282, 161 59 644 455 8,687,275 111 .837 553 12,870,820 222,067,178 

Accumulated amortization 

Beginning of year 7,724,020 2.480,601 4.505.703 50,902.950 78,427,655 

Amortization 557,050 1}21>,248 318.817 635.859 2, 147,383 5,380,357 

Amortization 

on disposals {167,623) {441 ,656} (63,333) (676,626) 

End of year 2 631 795 4 699 906 52,987,000 83 131 386 

Net book value $ 5,628,931 $ 10,001,091 $ 4 5,11 2,840 $ 2,484, 188 $ 3,987.369 $ 58,850.553 $ 12,870,820 $ 138,935,792 

29 

116116



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

General Water Eliminations 2019 

Revenues 

Taxation $ 18,668,245 $ $ $ $ 18,668,245 

User charges 3,870,308 2 1,650 13,534, 165 

Government transfers 5,206,095 836,538 (766,432) 5,276,201 

Other revenue 2,074,302 6,869 2,119,979 

Gain (loss) on disposal of 

tangible capital assets 136 465 (4,633} (593} 115 794 

29,955,415 4 977 315 864464 (766,432} 39,714,384 

Expenses 

Salaries and benefits 13,954,438 735,049 49,809 574,489 15,313,785 

Materials 7 ,081,75'7 354,940 89,549 111,996 7,638,242 

Contract services 2.246,944 2 ,472,044 4 ,616 ,384 32,674 9,368,046 

Rents and financial expenses 327,163 1, 179 102 11 5 328,559 

External transfers to others 86,488 86,488 

Long term debt interest 848,417 91 ,502 939,919 

Tax write-offs 221 ,774 221,774 

Amortization 4,446,672 620.272 367,171 76,817 5,510,932 

Inter-functional transfers 416 554 241 549 108,329 (766,432} 

29,630,207 4,516,535 5,231,344 796 091 (766,432} 39,407,745 

Annual surplus (deficit) $ 325,208 $ 167,087 $ (254 ,029) $ 68,373 $ $ 306,639 

30 

117117



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure 
with Budget Information 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2019 

General 

Revenue 
Taxation 
User charges 
Government transfers 
Other 

Actual 
2019 

18,668,245 
3,870,308 
5,206,095 
2,074,302 

Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets x,41 
Expenses ~ 

136,465 

28,820,902 29,955,415 

Salaries and wages 4 
Materials f> ~ 
Contracted services ~ 
Rents and financial expenses Vlillll\ 
External transfers to others '-~ 
Long term debt interest ~ 
Tax write-offs 
Amortization r ~ 
Inter-functional transfers-- ~ 

12,499,783 13,954,438 
6,472,774 7,081 ,757 
2, 112,233 2,246,944 

145,099 327,163 
103,574 86,488 
859,174 848,417 
253,500 221,774 

4,444,759 4,446,672 
286 186 __ 4 ...... 1 .... 6_._.5 __ 5 __ 4 

27, 177,082 29,630,207 

$ 1,643,820 $ 325,208 -------

31 

118118



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure 
with Budget Information 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2019 

Water 

Revenue 
User charges 
Other 
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 

Expenses 
Salaries and wages 
Materials 
Contracted services 
Rents and financial expenses 
Long term debt interest 
Amortization 
Inter-functional transfers 

Annual surplus 

5.058.820 

746,829 
294,746 

2,529,069 
6,486 

93,311 
620,272 
264.060 

4 554 773 

$ 504,047 $ 

Actual 
2019 

4,660,259 
38,808 

(15,445) 

4,683,622 

735,049 
354,940 

2,472,044 
1,179 

91,502 
620,272 
241,549 

4,516,535 

167,087 

32 

119119



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure 
with Budget Information 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2019 

Wastewater 

Revenue 
User charges 
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 

Expenses 
Salaries and wages 
Materials 
Contracted services 
Rents and financial expenses 
Amortization 
Inter-functional transfers 

Annual (deficit) surplus 

326,369 
152,022 

4,242,405 
2,1 09 

367,1 71 
216,658 

5,306,734 

$ 184,759 $ 

Actual 
2019 

4,981,948 
(4,633) 

4,977,315 

49,809 
89,549 

4,616,384 
102 

367,171 
108,329 

5,231,344 

(254,029) 

33 

120120



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure 
with Budget Information 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2019 

Library 

Revenue 
User charges 
Government transfers 
Other 
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 

Expenses 
Salaries and wages 
Materials 
Contracted services 
Rents and financial expenses 
Amortization 

Annual surplus 

828,315 

579,708 
135,061 
21,496 

76 817 

813 082 

$ 15,233 $ 

Actual 
2019 

21,650 
836,538 

6,869 
(593) 

864,464 

574,489 
111,996 

32,674 
115 

76 817 

796,091 

68,373 

34 

121121



City of Port Colborne 
Trust Funds 
Statement of Financial Position 
As at December 31 , 2019 

Local Julia Yager Fulton Sherkston Roselawn 
lm12rovements Trust Trust Trust Centre 2019 2018 

Assets 
Cash and cash 

equivalents $ 23,267 $ 7 ,399 $ 1,047 $ 5,91 0 $ 52,724 $ 90,347 $ 88,816 
Due from City of 

Port Colborne 3,849 3,849 6,996 
Investments 5,728 347,779 353,507 334,919 
Accrued interest 39 90 129 127 

Net assets $ 23,306 $ 7,399 $ $ 351 ,628 $ 52,814 $ 447,832 $ 430,858 

Impacts of COVID-19 and subsequent events (Note 3) 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
37 

122122



City of Port Colborne 
Trust Funds 
Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

~ 

Local Julia Yager Fulton Sherkston Rose lawn 
Improvements Trust Trust Trust Centre 2019 2018 

Revenues 
Interest $ 467 $ 3 $ $ ~j443 $ 1,059 $ 7,010 $ 6,873 
Perpetual trust 

contributions 15,407 15,407 9,342 
Donations 12 690 

467 3 20,850 1,059 22,417 28,905 

Expenses 
Transfers to 

revenue fund 5.443 5 443 3 928 

Excess of revenue 
over expenses 467 3 37 15,407 1,059 16,974 24,977 

Net assets 
Beginning of year 22 839 7 396 1 046 11 601 336.221 51 755 430,858 405 881 

End of year $ 23,306 $ 7,399, $ 1,047 $ 11,638 $ 351,628 $ 52,814 $ 447,832 $ 430,858 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
38 

123123



City of Port Colborne 
Trust Funds 
Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Operating activities 
Excess of revenues over expenses 
Decrease (increase) in due from City of Port Colborne 
Increase in accrued interest 

Investing activities 
(Increase) decrease in investments - net 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

$ 

$ 

24,977 
(6,996) 

(64) 

17 917 

( 18,588) ------'-7.J.::2=8""-5 

1,531 25,202 

88,816 63 614 

90,347 $ 88,816 -------

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 

39 

124124



City of Port Colborne 
Trust Funds 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

1. Summary of significant accounting policies 

Management responsibility 

The financial statements are the responsibility of and prepared by manageliTlent ih 
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations. 

The significant accounting policies used are as follows: 

(a) 

The 

(b) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are represe~l:>y cash on hand, cash on deposit in chartered 
banks and investments that mature ithin~ree months. 

(c) Portfolio investments 

(d) 

Portfolio investments are~lue.Cl at the lower of cost and market value. Interest income is 
reported as revenue in the per"od" earned. 

Initial measurement 
~ 

The Trtisj Funds financial instruments are measured at fair value when issued or acquired. 
For fina cial ·nstruments subsequently measured at cost or amortized cost, fair value is 
adjusted by, the amount of the related financing fees and transaction costs. Transaction costs 
and in~cing fees relating to financial instruments that are measured subsequently at fair 
v~lue are recognized in operations in the year in which they are incurred. 

At each reporting date, the Trust Funds measure their financial assets and liabilities at cost. 
The financial instruments measured at cost are cash investments, interest receivable and due 
from revenue fund. 

For financial assets measured at cost, the Trust Funds regularly assesses whether there are 
any indications of impairment. If there is an indication of impairment, and the Trust Funds 
determine that there is a significant adverse change in the expected timing or amount of 
future cash flows from the financial asset, it recognizes an impairment loss in the statement of 
operations. Any reversals of previously recognized impairment losses are recognized in 
operations in the year the reversal occurs. 

40 

125125



City of Port Colborne 
Trust Funds 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

2. Portfolio investments 

Portfolio investments consist of money market, bond and equity funds with a n I interest rates 
ranging from 1.60% to 3.40% and a guaranteed investment certificate with ao ij)_nUjl interest rate 
of 1.30% maturing December, 2020. Portfolio investments have an est!,inaje~~arket value of 
$ 409, 715 (2018 - $ 362,507). v 

3. Impacts of COVID-19 and subsequent events 

Since December 31 , 2019, the spread of COVID-19 has e e~ly ifpacted many local economies 
around the globe. In many countries, including Canada, businesses are being forced to cease or 
limit operations for long or indefinite periods of time. ·Me sures taken to contain the spread of the 
virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing, and closures of non-essential services 
have triggered significant disruptions to business s worldwide, resu lting in an economic slowdown. 
Global stock markets have also experien.ced ~eat volatility and a significant weakening. 
Governments and central banks have respon~e'CT ith monetary and fiscal interventions to stabil ize 
economic conditions. The Trust Funds anagement is anticipating that the pandemic will not have 
a significant impact on its operations. 

The Trust Funds have not identifieO events related to the COVID-19 pandemic wh ich were 
determined to be subsequent ven s.; and therefore there has been no impact on the financial 
position and results of operatil s a of and for the year ended December 31, 2019. 

The duration and impac~e COVID-19 pandemic, as well as the effectiveness of government 
and central bank responses, remains unclear at this time. It is not possible to rel iably estimate the 
duration and severitY. of these consequences , as well as their impact on the financial position and 
results of the Trust Funds for future periods. 

41 

126126



Grant Thornton 
An instinct for growth~ 

Report 2020-158 
Appendix B 

Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 
For the year ended December 31, 2019 

Report to the Members of Council 
Audit strategy and results 

November 9, 2020 

James D. Brennan, CPA, CA 
Principal 
T 905-834-6622 
E James.Brennan@ca.gt.com 

127127



Contents 

Executive summary 

Audit risks and results 

Adjustments and uncorrected misstatements 

Other reportable matters 

Technical updates - highlights 

2 

7 

9 

10 

Appendices 

Appendix A - OveNiew and approach 

Appendix B - Audit plan and risk assessment 

Appendix C - Engagement letter 

Appendix D - Draft independent auditor's report 

Appendix E - Draft management representation letter 

Appendix F - Internal control letter 

Appendix G - PSAS accounting developments 

Appendix H - Auditing developments 

Report to Members of Council and management - Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December31. 2019 

128128



Executive summary 

Purpose of report and scope 
The purpose of this report is to engage in an open dialogue with you regarding 
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of the City of 
Port Colborne (the "entity") for the year ended December 31, 2019. This 
communication will assist the Members of Council and management in 
understanding the results of audit procedures and includes comments on 
misstatements, significant accounting policies, sensitive estimates and other 
matters. 

The information in this document is intended solely for the information and use of 
the Corporate and Community Services Sub-Committee, Council and 
management. It is not intended to be distributed or used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 

We were engaged to provide the following deliverables: 

Deliverable Timing 

Report on the December 31, 2019 consolidated financial statements November 9, 2020 

Communication of audit results November 9, 2020 

Status of our audit 
We have substantially completed our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the entity and the results of that audit are included in this report. 

We will finalize our report upon resolution of the following items that were 
outstanding as at November 9, 2020: 

• Receipt of signed management representation letter (a draft has been 
attached in Appendix E) 

• Approval of the consolidated financial statements by Council 
• Procedures regarding subsequent events 
• Responses from legal inquiries 

We have successfully executed our audit strategy in accordance with the plan as 
presented in this report. 

Auditor's report 
A copy of our draft auditor's opinion is included in Appendix D. 

Approach 
Our audit approach requires that we establish an overall strategy that focuses on 
risk areas. We identify and assess risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. The greater the 
risk of material misstatement associated with an area of the consolidated 
financial statements, including disclosures, the greater the audit emphasis placed 
on it in terms of audit verification and analysis. Where the nature of a risk of 
material misstatement is such that it requires special audit consideration, it is 
classified as a significant risk. 

Our approach is discussed further in the Appendix A 

Report to Members of Council and management - Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port ColbOme I Forthe year ended December31, 2019 

129129



Audit risks and results 

We have executed our audit in accordance with our approach summarized in Appendices A and B. We highlight our significant findings in respect of transactions, 
risks, accounting practices and other areas of focus. 

COVI D-19 impact on audit risks and responses 
Area of focus 

Subsequent events and COVID-19 

Matter 

The COVID-19 virus became widespread in January, 2020 
and the magnitude of its impact increased thereafter. 
Management determined there were no significant impacts 
resulting from COVID-19 and identified no significant related 
subsequent events. This has been disclosed in Note 25 to the 
financial statements. 

Our response and fi ndings 

• Reviewed the financial statement disclosure provided by 
management 

We have no finding to note in connection with the subsequent 
events disclosure 

Report to Members of Council and management - Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31, 2019 

130130



Areas of focus 
The following is a summary of areas of focus, and the related matters and findings we would like to communicate to the Members of Council and management. 

Area of focus 

Fraud risk from revenue recognition 

Fraud risk from management override I segregation of 
duties 

Taxation revenue and receivables 

Matter 

There is a presumed risk of fraud in revenue. 

The risk primarily relates to revenue recognized under 
water and sewer and other revenue 

This is a presumed fraud risk. 

The risk primarily relates to limited segregation of duties, 
administrative access to accounting system and the senior 
finance management's ability to post journal entries 

The taxes receivable balances may be invalid and the 
allowance for uncollectible taxes understated 

Our response and findings 

• Recalculation of the net tax revenues based on verified 
assessment rolls and approved tax rates 

• Analytical assessment of revenues based on budgeted 
expectations 

• Subsequent receipts testing of receivables as at 
December 31, 2019 (statistical sample) 

Assessed the adequacy of allowances for doubtful 
accounts by testing subsequent receipts, reviewing 
management estimates and examining supporting 
documentation 

There were no significant findings as a result of these 
procedures. 

Tested the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in 
the general ledger and other adjustments made in the 
preparation of the financial statements 

Reviewed accounting estimates for biases 

Evaluated the business rationale for significant transactions 
that are or appear to be outside the normal course of 
business 

There were no significant findings as a result of these 
procedures. 

Recalculation of the net tax revenues based on verified 
assessment rolls and approved tax rates 

• Subsequent receipts testing of taxes receivable as at 
December 31 , 2019 (statistical sample) 

• Assessed the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful 
accounts by testing subsequent receipts, reviewing 
management estimates and examining support for the 
value of underlying property 

There were no significant findings as a result of these 
procedures. 

Report to Members of Council and management - Audit resulls 

Corporation of the City of Port Colberne I For the year ended December 31 , 2019 

131131



Area of focus 

Purchases and payables 

Provisions for employee benefits 

Provisions for contaminated sites liability 

Commitments and cont ingencies 

Matter 

Payables may be understated or not recorded in the correct 
period. 

Provision and related expense may be understated. 

Provision and related expense may be understated. 

There is uncertainty regarding contingent liabilities. 

Our response and findings 

Analytical assessment of expenses based on budgeted 
expectations 

• Reviewed supporting documentation and management 
estimates with respect to the completeness and accuracy 
of significant year end accruals 

Performed a search for unrecorded liabilities 

There were no significant findings as a result of these 
procedures. 

• Reviewed actuarial reports, method and assumptions used 

• Tested supporting calculations relating to the various 
amounts and disclosures 

There were no significant findings as a result of these 
procedures. 

• Reviewed assumptions used by management 

Tested supporting calculations relating to the various 
amounts and disclosures 

There were no significant findings as a result of these 
procedures. 

Verified the accuracy and reasonableness of amounts and 
disclosures, with reference to correspondence with 
lawyers, examination of supporting documentation, and 
discussions with management 

There were no significant findings as a result of these 
procedures. 

Report to Members of Council and management - Audi t resu lts 

COJpOra~on of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended Decamber31. 2019 

132132



Sensitive accounting estimates and disclosures 
Area of focus 

Sensitive accounting estimates and d isclosures 

Sensitive accounting estimates and disclosures 

Matter 

The provision for vested sick leave of approximately $ 306,000 
and retirement benefits of approximately$ 6,547,000. 

The provision for the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board 
future benefits of approximately$ 2,272,000. 

Our response and findings 

Management engaged an actuary to calculate the 
liabilities for vested sick leave and for employees who 
have taken early retirement based on the current annual 
benefits and the number of years until the employees 
turn 65. 

Liabilities have been recognized in the financial 
statements for vested sick leave and employee 
retirement benefits. The objective is to recognize a 
liability in the reporting period in which employees have 
provided the services that give rise to the benefits. 
Management's estimate is based on the actuary's 
valuation report and is reasonable in the context of the 
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The 
actuary's valuation was performed in accordance with 
the standards of the Canadian Institute of Actuaries. 

Management's estimate is reasonable in the context of the 
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. 

• The Municipality is a Workplace Safety and Insurance 
Board ("WSIB") Schedule II employer under the Workplace 
Safety & Insurance Act and follows a policy of self
insurance for all its employees. 

An actuarial estimate of future liabilities has been 
completed and forms the basis for the estimated liability 
reported in these financial statements. The Municipality 
remits payments to the WSIB as required to fund disability 
payments. 

Management's estimate is reasonable in the context of the 
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. 

Report to Members or Council and management -Audit results 

Corporalion or the City or Port Colbome I For the year ended December31. 2019 5 

133133



Area of focus 

Factors affecting disclosure values 

Factors affecting disclosure values 

Matter 

The provision for uncollectible taxes of approximately 
$ 241,000. 

Useful life estimates of tangible capital assets 

Our response and findings 

Management reviews previous year's rebates to determine 
the current years. Management also reviews accounts 
which are significantly in arrears and determines if ii is 
likely that they will be collected either through the land 
owner or through tax sale. 

For tax revenue amounts billed but may not be collected as 
of December 31, 2019. For uncollected accounts, 
management estimates the collectability of these 
receivables based on their age and their knowledge of the 
specific properties. As part of our audit, we review the age 
of the receivables and search for any subsequent receipts 
or relevant communications to assess whether 
management's allowance for uncollectable receivables is 
reasonable. 

Management's estimate is reasonable in the context of the 
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. 

The estimated useful lives assigned to tangible assets are as 
follows: 

Land improvements 
Buildings 
Leasehold improvement 
Vehicles 
Office equipment and furniture and fixtures 
Machinery and equipment 
Infrastructure 

10-100 years 
20-50 years 
20-50 years 
10-20 years 
5-10 years 
3-30 years 
10-100 years 

Report 10 Members or Council and management - Audit results 

CorporaUon or the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31, 2019 6 

134134



Adjustments and uncorrected 
misstatements 

Adjustments 
We have the following adjusted misstatements to report. 

Increase (Decrease) Statement of Financial Position 
Statement of 
Operations 
Effect 

Description 

To balance surplus and transfers 

To record changes to post employment benefits and sick leave 

liability 

To consolidate the Main Street BIA and the Downtown Development 

Board accounts into the City's consolidated financial statements 

To adjust existing account balances for the proportionate 

consolidation of the Niagara Central Airport 

Total other adjustments 

Assets 

$ 

15,081 

(42,601) 

$ (27,520) 

Liabilities 
Accumulated 
surplus 

Annual surplus 

$ (184,560) $ (356,227) $ 540,787 

611,000 

2,665 

(41,525) 

$ 387,580 

(611,000) 

12,416 

(1,076) 

$ (967,227) $ 552,127 

Report to Members or Council and management - Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31 . 2019 

135135



Uncorrected misstatements 
Non-trivial misstatements noted during the course of our audit but not adjusted in the consolidated financial statements were as follows: 

Increase (Decrease) Statement of Financial Position 
Statement of 
Operations 
Effect 

Description Assets Uabilities Accumulated surplus Annual surplus 

To reduce the allowance for uncollectible taxes receivable 
$ 111,000 $ 111 ,000 

Total adjustments $ 111,000 $ 111,000 

Other adjustments 
We have no other adjustments to report. 

Summary of disclosure matters 
Our audit did not identify any unadjusted non-trivial misstatements of disclosure matters. 

Report to Members of Council and management - Audit results 

Corporauon or the City or Port Colbome I Fonhe year ended December31, 2019 8 

136136



Other reportable matters 

Internal control 
The audit is designed to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. We obtain an understanding of internal control over financial 
reporting to the extent necessary to plan the audit and to determine the nature, 
timing and extent of our work. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control. 

If we become aware of a deficiency in your internal control over financial 
reporting, the auditing standards require us to communicate to the Members of 
Council and management those deficiencies we consider significant. However, a 
financial statement audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control. 

Please ·refer to Appendix F for a detailed explanation of the internal control 
observations noted during our audit. 

Fees 
The following is a schedule of our current year fees and prior year fees. 

Service Current year fees Prior year fees 

Annual audit $ 40.400 $ 39,600 

Additional audit work 8,500 

Total" $ 40.400 $ 48.100 

"before applicable taxes 

Independence 
We have a rigorous process where we continually monitor and maintain our 
independence. The process of maintaining our independence includes, but is not 
limited to: 

• Identification of threats to our independence and putting into place 
safeguards to mitigate those threats. For example, we evaluate the 
independence threat of any non-audit services provided to the entity 

• Confirming the independence of our engagement team members 

No matters to communicate - We have identified no information regarding our 
independence that in our judgment should be brought to your attention. 

Report to Members of Council and management - Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Co/borne I For the year ended December 31 , 2019 

137137



Technical updates - highlights 

Accounting 
Accounting standards issued by the Accounting Standards Board that may affect 
the entity in future years are included in Appendix G. If you have any questions 
about these changes we will be pleased to address your concerns. 

Assurance 
Auditing standards issued by the AASB that may change the nature, timing and 
extent of our audit procedures on the entity and our communication with the 
Members of Counci l and management, are included in Appendix H. If you have 
any questions about these changes we will be pleased to address your concerns. 

Report to Members or Council and management - Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31 , 2019 10 

138138



Appendix A - Overview and approach 

Our audit is planned with the objective of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
so that we are able to express an opinion on whether the consolidated financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with Public Sector Accounting 
Standards. The following outlines key concepts that are applicable to the audit, including [tailor as appropriate - the responsibilities of parties involved, our general audit 
approach and other considerations]. 

Roles and responsibi lities 
Role of Council 

Role of management 

Role of Grant Thornton LLP 

Help set the tone for the organization by emphasizing honesty, ethical behaviour and fraud prevention 

• Oversee management, including ensuring that management establishes and maintains internal controls to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
reliability of financial reporting 

Recommend the nomination and compensation of external auditors to the board 

Oversees the work of the external auditors including reviewing and discussing the audit plan 

Prepare financial statements in accordance with Public Sector Accounting Standards 

• Design, implement and maintain effective internal controls over financial reporting processes, including controls to prevent and detect fraud 

Exercise sound judgment in selecting and applying accounting policies 

Prevent, detect and correct errors, including those caused by fraud 

Provide representations to external auditors 

Assess quantitative and qualitative impact of misstatements discovered during the audit on fair presentation of the financial statements 

• Provide an audit opinion that the financial statements are in accordance with Public Sector Accounting Standards 

Conduct our audit in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS) 

Maintain independence and objectivity 

Be a resource to management and to those charged with governance 

Communicate matters of interest to those charged with governance 

Establish an effective two-way communication with those charges with governance, to report matters of interest to them and obtain their comments on 
audit risk matters 

139139



Audit approach 
Our understanding of the entity and its operations drives our audit approach, which is risk based and specifically tailored to Corporation of the City of Port Colborne. 

The five key phases of our audit approach 

Planning 

Phase 

1. Planning 

2. Assessing risk 

3. Evaluating int ernal controls 

4. Testing accounts and 
transactions 

5. Concluding and reporting 

Assessing 
risk 

Our approach 

Evaluating 
internal 
controls transactions 

We obtain our understanding of your operations, internal controls and information systems 

We plan the audit timetable together 

We use our knowledge gained from the planning phase to assess financial reporting risks 

We customize our audit approach to focus our efforts on key areas 

We evaluate the design of controls you have implemented over financial reporting risks 

Concluding 
and reporting 

We identify areas where our audit could be more effective or efficient by taking an approach that includes testing the controls 

We provide you with information about the areas where you could potentially improve your controls 

We perform tests of balances and transactions 

We use technology and tools, including data interrogation tools, to perform this process in a way that enhances effectiveness and efficiency 

We conclude on the sufficiency and appropriateness of our testing 

We finalize our report and provide you with our observations and recommendations 

140140



Our tailored audit approach results in procedures designed to respond to an identified risk. The greater the risk of material misstatement associated with the account, class of 
transactions or balance, the greater the audit emphasis placed on it in terms of audit verification and analysis. 

Throughout the execution of our audit approach, we maintained our professional skepticism, recognizing the possibility that a material misstatement due to fraud could exist 
notwithstanding our past experiences with the entity and our beliefs about management's honesty and integrity. 

Materiality 
The purpose of our audit is to provide an opinion as to whether the consolidated financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with Public Sector 
Accounting Standards as at December 31, 2019. Therefore, materiality is a critical auditing concept and as such we apply it in all stages of our engagement. 

The concept of materiality recognizes that an auditor cannot verify every balance, transaction or judgment made in the financial reporting process. During audit planning, we 
made a preliminary assessment of materiality for the purpose of developing our audit strategy, including the determination of the extent of our audit procedures. During the 
completion stage, we consider not only the quantitative assessment of materiality, but also qualitative factors, in assessing the impact on the consolidated financial statements, 
our audit opinion and whether the matters should be brought to your attention. 

Fraud risk factor considerations 
We are responsible for planning and performing the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement 
caused by error or by fraud. Our responsibility includes: 

The identification and assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements due to fraud through procedures including discussions amongst 
the audit team and specific inquiries of management 

Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence to respond to the fraud risks noted 
Responding appropriately to any fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit 
Due to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected and this is particularly true in relation to fraud. 
The primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with those charged with governance and management. 

We are required to communicate with you on fraud-related matters, including: 

Obtaining an understanding of how you exercise oversight of management's processes for identifying and responding to the risks of fraud in the entity and the internal control that 
management has established to mitigate these risks 

Inquiring as to whether you have knowledge of any actual. suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity 
The following provides a summary of some of the fraud related procedures that are performed during the audit: 

Testing the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements 
Reviewing accounting estimates for biases 
Evaluating the business rationale (or the lack thereof) for significant transactions that are or appear to be outside the normal course of operations 

141141



Quality control 
We have a robust quality control program that forms a core part of our client service. We combine internationally developed audit methodology, advanced audit technology, 
rigorous review procedures, mandatory professional development requirements, and the use of specialists to deliver high quality audit services to our clients. In addition to our 
internal processes, we are subject to inspection and oversight by standard setting and regulatory bodies. We are proud of our firm 's approach to quality control and would be 
pleased to discuss any aspect with you at your convenience. 

IDEA Data Analysis Software 
We apply our audit methodology using advanced software tools. IDEA Data Analysis Software is a powerful analysis tool that allows audit teams to read, display, analyze, 
manipulate, sample and extract data from almost any electronic source. The tool has the advantages of enabling the audit team to perform data analytics on very large data 
sets in a very short space of time, while providing the checks, balances and audit trail necessary to ensure that the data is not corrupted and that the work can be easily 
reviewed. SmartAnalyzer, an add-on to IDEA, further improves the efficiency and effectiveness of the audit by providing automated routines for certain common analytical tasks, 
such as identifying unusual and potentially fraudulent journal entries. Grant Thornton continues to invest in developing industry-leading audit data analytical tools. 

142142



Appendix B - Audit plan and risk 
assessment 

Considerations 
The following is a summary of matters that relate to changes to the entity and its business environment that were considered in preparing our audit plan. 

Matter 

Laws and regulat ions 

Fraud 

Accounting and audit ing standards 

Discussio n and impact 

During the course of the audit, we will perform specified audit procedures to help identify instances of non-compliance with laws 
and regulations that may have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements. An audit of financial statements is not 
designed to detect all instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations and does not represent an audit of the entity's 
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

We are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. However, owing to the inherent limitations of an audit. there is an 
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected and this is particularly true in relation to fraud. The 
primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with those charged with governance and management. 

During our audit planning, we enquired of management as to their views on the risks of fraud and their processes for identifying 
and assessing fraud risks. 

In addition to the information in the Technical Highlights section, we have highlighted certain new standards and interpretations 
that are likely to have an impact on the financial reporting for the Corporation of the City of Port Col borne in the current year. An 
overview of these particular standards and interpretations is included in the appendices. 

143143



Significant risks 
We identified the following significant risks on which we plan to focus our attention: 

Area of risk 

Fraud risk from revenue recognition 

Fraud risk from management override I segregation of 
duties 

Why there is a risk 

There is a presumed risk of fraud in revenue. 

The risk primarily relates to revenue recognized under 
water and sewer, grants and other revenue 

This is a presumed fraud risk. 

The risk primarily relates to limited segregation of duties, 
administrative access to accounting system and the senior 
finance management's ability to post journal entries 

Planned audit response 

Analytical assessment of revenues based on budgeted 
expectations 

Subsequent receipts testing of receivables as at 
December 31 , 2019 (statistical sample) 

Assessing the adequacy of allowances for doubtful 
accounts by testing subsequent receipts, reviewing 
management estimates and examining supporting 
documentation 

Test the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the 
general ledger and other adjustments made in the 
preparation of the financial statements 

Review acc-0unting estimates for biases 

Evaluate the business rationale for significant transactions 
that are or appear to be outside the normal course of 
business 

144144



Other audit risks 
Other areas we have identified where we plan to focus our attention are as follows: 

Area of risk 

Taxation revenue and receivables 

Purchases and payables 

Provisions for employee benefits 

Provisions for contaminated sites liability 

Commitments and contingencies 

Why there is a risk 

The taxes receivable balances may be invalid and the 
allowance for uncollectible taxes understated. 

Payables may be understated or not recorded in the correct 

period. 

Provision and related expense may be understated. 

Provision and related expense may be understated. 

There is uncertainty regarding contingent liabilities. 

Planned audit response 

Recalculation of the net tax revenues based on verified 
assessment rolls and approved tax rates 

Subsequent receipts testing of taxes receivable as at 
December 31, 2019 (statistical sample) 

Assessing the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful 
accounts by testing subsequent receipts, reviewing 
management estimates and examining support for the 
value of underlying property 

Analytical assessment of expenses based on budgeted 
expectations 

Reviewing supporting documentation and management 
estimates with respect to the completeness and accuracy 
of significant year end accruals 

Perform a search for unrecorded liabilities 

Reviewing actuarial reports, method and assumptions used 

Testing supporting calculations relating to the various 
amounts and disclosures 

Reviewing assumptions used by management 

Testing supporting calculations relating to the various 
amounts and disclosures 

Verifying the accuracy and reasonableness of amounts and 
disclosures, with reference to correspondence with 
lawyers, examination of supporting documentation, and 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~---'d~i~sc~u~s~s~io~n~s~w"""'ith"--"m~a~n=ag,~e~m~e~n~t~~~~~~~~~~~ 

145145



Appendix C - Engagement 
letter 

October 19, 2016 

City of Port Colbome 
66 Charlo tte Street 
Port Colbome, ON 
L3K 3C8 

Attention: Mr. Peter Senese, Treasurer 

D ear 1'Ir. Senese: 

Thank you for reappointing Grant Thornton LLP ("Grant Thornton", "we", "us" "our") as auditors of t11e City of 

Port Colbome ("the Municipality", "you" or "your") for tlle years ending December 31, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 

2020 (t11e "Setvices"). The pmpose of this letter and t11e attached Schedule A (the "Engagement") is to outline t11e 

mutual tuiderstanding of the terms of the Engagement. 

Objective, scope and limitations 

You have requested that we audit the consolidated financial statemen ts of the City of Por t Colbome, which comprise 

the consolidated sta tement of financial position as at D ecember 31, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020, and the 

consolidated statements of operations, changes i.n net financial assets and cash flows for the years t11en ended, and a 

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatoiy information. We are pleased to confirm our 

acceptance and our tmderstanding of dus E ngagement by means of dus letter agreement. Our audit will be conducted 

\•.rith the objective of our expressing an opituon on the consolidated financial statements. 

"I11e audit will not be planned or conducted in contemplation of reliance by any third party or with respect to any 

specific transaction. Therefore, items of possible interest to a third party will not be specifically addressed and matte rs 

may exist that would be assessed differently by a t11ird party, possibly in connection with a specific transaction. 

Our responsibilities 

\Ve will conduct our audit in accordance with Canadian generall}' accepted auditing stru1dards. Those standards 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whet11er t11e con solidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

.-\.n audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including t11e 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whetller due to fraud or 

enor. ,-\11 audit also i.nclndes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accoLmting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating t11e overall presentation of t11e consolidated financial 

statements. 

146146



Because of the inherent limitations of aa audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, there is an 

unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned 
and performed in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. 

In making our risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the i\Iunicipality's preparation of the 

consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 

not for the purpose of e:\.-press.ing an op.inion on the effectiveness of the Municipality's internal control. However, we 

will communicate to you in writing concerning any significant deficiencies in internal control relevant to the audit of 
the consolidated financial statements that we have identified during the audit. 

Management's responsibilities and identification of applicable financial reporting framework 
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that the Municipality's management and, where appropriate, those charged 

with governan ce acknowledge and w1derstand that they have responsibility: 

a) for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Can adian 

Public Sector Accollllting Standards; 

b) for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated 

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and 

c) to provide us with: 

i. Access to all information of which the Municipality's management is aware, that is relevan t to the 

preparation of the consolidated financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters; 

11. Additional in formation th at we may request from the i\Iwiicipality's management for the pmpose of the 

audit; and 

111. Unrestricted access to persons within the Municipality from whom we determine it necessary to obtain 

audit evidence. 

As part of our audit process, we \vill request from the IVIun.icipality's management and, where appropriate, those 
charged with governance, wrirten confirmation concerning representations made to us in connection with the audit. 

Those representations may include: 

Consolidated financial statements 

a communicating that all responsibilities, as set out in the terms of this Engagement, for the preparation of the 

consolidated fmancial statements i.n accordance \vith Canadian Public Sector Accotu1ting Standards, in particular, 
the consolidated financial statements are fairly presented; 

b communicating irs belief that significant assumptions used i.n making accotu1ting estimates, including those 
measured at fair value are reasonable; 

c acknowledging that all events subsequent to the date of the consolidated financial statements and for which 

Canadian Public Sector ;-\ccollllting Standards require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed; 

Completeness of information 

d providing us with and making available complete financial records and related data, and copies of all minutes of 

meerings of i\lembers of Council and committees; 

e acknowledging that all transact.ions have been recorded and are reflected in the consolidated financial statements; 

f pro.,;cling us with information relating to any known or p robable instances of non-compliance with legislative or 

regulatory requirements, including financial reporting requirements; 

g providing us with .information relating to any illegal or possibly illegal acts, and all fac ts related thereto; 

147147



h acknowledging that all related party relationships and related party transactions have been appropriately 

accow1ted for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of Canadian Public Sector Accounting 
Standards; 

Fraud and error 
the design and implementation of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud and error; 

an assessment of the cisk that the consolidated financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of 

fraud; 

k providing us with information relating to fraud or suspected fraud affecting the l\Iunicipality involving: 

1. management; 

u. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

iii. others, where the fraud could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements; 

providing us with information relating to any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Municipality's 

consolidated financial statements communicated by employees, founer employees, analysts, regulators, or others; 

m communicating its belief that the effects of any uncorrected consolidated financial statement misstatements 

aggregated during the audit are inunaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the consolidated financial 

statements taken as a whole. A list of the uncorrected misstatements will be attached to the representation letter; 

Recognition, measurement and disclosure 

n providing us with its assessment of the reasonableness of significant assumptions underlying fair value 
measurements and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements; 

o providing us with any plans or intentions that may affect the cauying value or classification of assets or liabilities; 

p providing us with an assessment of all areas of measurement uncertainty known to management that are reqnired 
to be clisclosed in accordance with i\IEASUREl\tffiNT UNCERTAINTY, PSA HAN DBOOK -

ACCOUNTING Section 2130; 

q acknowledging that no subsequent events occurred that reqnire adjustment to tl1e accOlmting estimates and 

disclosures included in the consolidated financial statements. 

r providing us with information relating to claims and possible clainis, whether or not they have been discussed 

with the Municipality's legal counsel; 

providing us with information relating to other liabilities and contingent gains or losses, including those 

associated \vith guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the Municipality is contingently liable; 

providing us witl1 information 011 whether or not the l\Iun.icipality has satisfactory title to assets, liens or 
encumbrances 011 assets, and assets pledged as collateral; 

u providing us with information relating to compliance with aspects of contractual agreements tlrnt may affect tl1e 
consolidated financial statements; 

v providing us with information concerning subseguent events; and 

Written confirmation of significant representations 

w providing us with written confirmation of significant representations provided to us during the Engagement on 

matters that are: 

directly rela ted to iten1s tlrnt are material, eitl1er individuallr or in tl1e aggregate, to tl1e consolidated 

financial statements; and 

u not directly related to items that are material to the consolidated financial statements but are significant, 

either individually or in the aggregate, to tl1e Engagement. 

148148



111e l\Iunicipality's management agrees to make available draft consolidated financial statements, including 

appropriate note disclosrn:es and any accompanying other information in time to allow for the audit to be completed 

within the proposed timeframe. In addition, the l\'funicipality's management agrees to inform us of any factors or 

circumstances that come to their attention during the period from the date of the auditor's report to the da te 

consolidated financial srntements are issued that may impact the consolidated furnncial statements; including their 

disclosures. 

It is agreed that for any electronic distribution of your consolidated financial statements and our report thereon, 

management is solely responsible for the accurate and complete reproduction of the consolidated fu1ancial statements 
and our report thereon. 

While the report may be sent to tl1e l\Iunicipality electronically by us for your convenience, only the signed 

(electronically or manually) report constitutes tl1e Municipality's record copy. 

If the management intends to publish or otherwise reproduce our report (or otherwise make reference to Grant 

Thornton LLP) in a document(s) that contains other information (including in a document(s) that will be used in 
connection with a public offering of securities), the i\.lLmicipality's management agrees to (a) provide Grant Thornton 

witl1 a draft of such document(s) to read, and QJ) obt;tin our approval for inclusion of our report in such doctunent(s), 
before tl1e document(s) are finalized and distributed. The Municipality's management also agrees that if our name is to 

be used in connection witl1 tl1e consolidated financial statements, it will attach our auditors' report when dist.ributi.ng 

the consolidated financial statements to any third parties. The Municipality's management agrees to provide us with 

adequate notice of the preparation of such docurnent(s). 

We look forward to full cooperation from )'Our staff during our audit. 

Non-audit services directly related to the audit 

We will assist the Municipality's management in preparation of th e consolidated financial statements. However, the 
Municipality's management remains at all times responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of tl1e 
i\Iwucipality's consolidated financial statements in accordance witl1 Canadian Public Sector Accow1t:ing Standards. 

Reporting 

Unless unanticipated difficulties are encountered, our report will be substantially in the following form: 

INDEPENDENT r\UDITOR'S REPORT 

To the 1-Iembers of Council, Inhabitants and Ta,~-payers of the 
Corporation of the City of Port Colbome 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated fu1ancial statements of the Corporation of the City of Po1t Colbome, 

wluch comprise the consolidated statement of fu1ancial position as at December 31, 2016, and the consolidated 

statements of operations, changes in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summaiy of 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's responsibility for the financial statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 

accordance w;tb Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management 

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial sta tements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated furnncial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that 

149149



we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perfotm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

consolidated financial statements. 111e procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and 

fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 

control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accow.1ting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accowlt:i.ng estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial 

statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

oplillon. 

Opinion 

I.n our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial 

position of the Co1poration of the City of Port Colborne as at December 31, 2016, and the results of its operations, 

changes in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector 

accow1ting standards. 

[Auditor's s ignature] 
[Date of the auditor's report] 
(Auditor's address] 

The form and content of our report may need to be amended in the light of our audit findings. 

Fees 

Fees are based on the time required by the individuals assigned to perform the Services defined herein. Individual 

hourly rates vary according to the degree of responsibility involved and experience and skill required. 

Any fee estimates by Grant Thornton take into account i) the agreed-upon level of preparation and assistance from 

your personnel; and ii) the hourly rates for our professionals that will be providing the Senrices. Grant Thornton 

undertakes to advise the Mu.nicipality's management on a tin1ely basis should this preparation and assistance not be 

provided or should any other circumstances arise which cause actual time to exceed that estimate. We will provide the 

services outlined in this letter for fees not to exceed the following: 

Audit of the City of Port Colborne 
consolidated financial statements 
including the preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements 

Other services 

$ 38,000 $ 38,800 $ 39,60( $ 40,40( $ 41,20( 

Any additional services that the i\Iu.nicipalit:y may request and we agree to provide \vill be covered by a separate 

written engagement letter. 

150150



Municipality consent to production 

The Municipality hereby aclrnowledges that we may from time to time receive requests or orders from professionaJ 
(provincial institutes) or other regulatory or governmental authorities (including the Canada Revenue Agency) to 

provide them with information and copies of documents in onr files including working papers and other work

product relating to the Municipality's affairs. The Municipality consents to us providing or producing, as applicable, 

these documents and information \vithout further reference to, or authority from, you. 

When a regulato1y authority requests access to our working papers and other work-product relating to the 

l\Iwucipality's affairs, we will, on a reasonable efforts basis, refuse access to any document over which the 

Municipality has expressly informed us at the time of delive1y that the Municipality asserts privilege, except where 

disclosure of documents is required by law or requested by a provincial Institute/ Order of Canadian Cha1tered 

Professional .Accountants pursuant to its statutory authority. 111e Municipality must mark any document over which it 

asserts privilege as privileged and inform us of the grounds for the Municipality's assertion of privilege (such as 

whether it claims solicitor-client privilege or litigation privilege). 

We may aJso be required to provide infonnation relating to the fees that we collect from the Mwucipality for the 
provision of audit services, other accotlllting services and non-audit services, and the l\.funicipality consents to the 

disclosure of that information as may be required by the regulato1y authority. 

111e Mwucipality agrees to reimbnrse us, upon request, at our standard billing rates for OLtr professional time and 

expenses, including reasonable legal fees, incurred in dealing with the matters described above. 

Release and indemnification 

You agree to release, indem1ufy and hold harmless Grant Thomron, its affiliates and their respective directors, 

officers, partners, principals, employees, consult<Ults and contractors from any and aJ1 claims, liabilities, costs and 

expenses (includi11g any ru1d all legal expenses incurred by Grant Thornton) arising out of or based upon: (a) any 

misstatement or omission in any materia~ information or representation supplied or approved by you; or (b) any other 
matter related to or arising out of this Engagement, except to the extent finally determined to have resulted from the 

negligence, wilful misconduct or fraudulent behaviour of Grant 1110mton. 

Limitation of liability 

In any action, clain1, loss or damage arising out of the Engagement, you agree that Grant Thom ton's liability will be 

several, and not joint and several, and you may only claim payment from Grant Thornton of its proportionate share 

of the total liability based on degree of fault as finally determined. r\ny action against us must be commenced on or 

before the date which is the earlier of i) eighteen mond1s from the completion of the Services; and ii) the date by 
wluch an action must be commenced tmder any applicable legislation other than limitation legislation. 

151151



The total liability assumed by Grant Thomton for any claim, loss or damage arising out of or in connection with the 

Engagement, regardless of the form of action, claim, loss or damage be it tort, contract or otherwise, shall in no event 

exceed the aggregate of the professional fees paid to G rant Thornton for that portion of the Services that has given 

rise to the claim. In addition, Gran t Thornton shall not under anir circumstances be liable for any special, indirect or 

consequential damages, including without limitation, lost profit or revenue, or similar damages. 

Standard terms and conditions 

This letter and our standard terms and conditions attached as Schedule A, shall fotTil the basis o f tJ1e Engagement. 

Survival of terms 

This engagement letter will continue in force for subsequent audits unless terminated by either party by ·written notice 

prior to the commencement of the subsequent audit. 

Acceptance of engagement letter 

Please confirm your acceptance of this Engagement by signing below and returning this letter to us. 

\':lie are proud to serve you and we appreciate your confidence in our work. 

Yours sincerely, 

Grant Thornton LLP 

J ames D. Bxennan, CPA, CA 
Principal 

JDB/jf 

The services and terms as set forth in this letter are agreed to. 

City of Port Colbome 

By: 

"Signed" "Peter Senese" 

"Director of Corporate Services/Treasurer" 

(ritle) 

"October 24 2016" 

(Date) 

152152



Schedule A 

Terms and conditions 

Except as otherwise specifically stated in che Eng:tgcmcnr, lhe following general terms and condicions npp1y to and shall form pact of the EngJgcmcnt. 

Responsibilities - GmnL Tho rnton ~hnll use all rensonable efforts to complete the Sen-ices wirhln the timc-frnm.e, if any, stipulare<l in t:be Eag::igcmcnt. Grnnt 
Thncmun shall no 1 be linblc for failures or dcla)'S in pcrfonn:mcc nf the Scn·iccs that arise from causes beyond its control, including the untimely perfo rmance b}' 
the Municip:iliry o f the ~lunicipality's oblig.icions nnd responsibilities as set out in the E 11t,r:tb,1Cl11Cnt. 

Information and announcements - The Mun.icipaliry shall cause robe pcovidcd o r pcoYide Grant Thornmn with nU m:Ht:cial informatio n in ihi possession or 
cont·wl o r to which ir bas acccs!' and such othc-r i.11form:11..ion as Grant Tho rnto n deem.-: rclcvnnt for the purposes or completing the Sc-n·ices con tern placed by the 
Engagement. The ~lunicip~t)' shall ah;o pro,·ide where applicable, ncccss to its dirccmrs, officers or profossion11 :idviscn; a.11 rc(.1uircd b)' Grant Thom con in o r<ler 
for it to complete the Scn·ices. The i\.lunicip:ili1y unclcrrnkcs Lhn1 if anything occurs afrer the supply o f any such information o r documents which would render 
same inaccur:11e, untrue, unfair o r misleading it \viU pro mptly no tify Gr::1nr Tho rnton :tnd shall cake all such steps ns Grnnt Thorncon m:iy require LO correct ~uch 
in fnnuation or documenrs. 

Unless othcnvisc conrcmpl:ucd o r permitted br the Engagcmenr, any ad,·ice, repo rt's (including the ;1.u<lit report) 1 co mpiled or re,·ic\vc:d financial smtements, 
information or npiojons, whether written or oral, rendered o r pro,·ided by Grant Tho mron co the l\lunicipalil)' (:md/or its -nfliliaccs) CDeli\·er:ibles'')J o r nn}1 

communications between Grnnt Thornto n :lnd the Municipality (and/or its a ffiljates) in connection wirh the Engagement may not be disclo sed to any rhird p:uty 
witho ut che prio r written consent o f Granr '111o rnron with the exception or, any "pplic:iblc taxing authorities and the f\lunicipaliLJ's rin:mci::d ins titution. Any 
Drlil-erablc> shall be solely for die benefit o f die Municipality and no t for the benefit of any th ird parry and may be relied upo n o nly for the purpose for which the 
Delin:rnble is intended as cuntempbtcd and/or defined within the Eng:lgt:mcnt. Grant 111o rnmn recognizes no responsibility whatsoever, o ther chan thar owed 
to the 1\-lunicip:llit)" ;1.s at the d:ttc o n \vhich the Deliverable is gi,·en to the Municip:tliry by Grant Tho rnton. for any unaurhotiicd use t.)f or reliance o n ::ior 
Ddi,-crnbles. 

Independent contractor -Grant ~111ornmn sh:tll pr(.)\·ide all services as an indcpcndcnlcuntr:Jctor and no thing in this Engagement ::;hall be con.11tcucd m; to 
create a p:1r1ncrship, jn inr \"l~1rure or orhcr similar rclar.ion::;hip wirh 1-hc Municipality or a11}r other party. Neither the !v£uni.cipaliry nor Grant Tho rnton shall h:wc 
the righ t, power or autho rity to o blignte or bind the o ther in any m:inncr. 

Subcontracting - The Municipality ~1grees thaL Grnnl Thornton mny :1utho rize, allow or require its affiliates and contractors tO assist in the pe[formancc of the 
Scn·ices nnd to share in G rnnr Thornton'~ right:; under the H11W'gcmcn1, i11cluding any protectio ns antilable hereundt:r, prO\·idcd thnt such pany(tcs) shall commi1 
(as app~cable) to be b o und b)' tbe oblig:icio n; set forth in rhe Eni,"1gcment. 

Grant Thornton Inte rnational Ltd - Gr::mr 'l'ho rnco n is a (:1.nadi:m member o f Grnnl Thornton International Ltd., n global organization or member firm:; in 
o\·ec I 00 counLrics. Member firms are n o t members of o ne i.ntcrnatiooal partnership or otherwise legal p::trLnccs with each other. '!'here is no commo n 
ownership, co ntrol, go,·emance, C>r ngency rdacionship between member firm~. 

Assisting fi rms -Unless o the rwise slipul:i1ccl within the l•'.ngagcmcnt., this E11g11gemcm is with Grant ll1ornton. In the course of pro,,iding the Service$, we may 
at o ur so le discretion. draw upon the resource:;; of o r subcontrac t =i portion or the Services lO ;rno lher entity (including:\ p:utncrship) which may carry o n busioc~:-; 

under the name wh.ich may include within its name ~'Gr:int Tho rma n" or be another member finn o f the world\\i<lc network of Gram Thomron Jnrcm:uion:ll 
Ltd. member firms (hcrcinnftcr ccGT AffiJj::ircs"). 

Unless a GT A ffili::ite is conrrnctcd by you to pro,·idc :my o f the Sen-ices which arc subject to this Eng:igcmcnr, the provi!'io n of tho:;c Scn·ices rem ain the 
respo nsibility of Grnnr Tho rnton :lnd the Municip:1 liry agrees thr1t iL will no t bring :my cl.Um, whcthc.r U1 co ntract, tort (including negligence) o r otherwise ag:tinst 
any GT J\ffi]jate iu respect o f this Eng:1.gcmcnt or the Scn ·iccs defined herein. In these circumsmaccs, any GT Affiliate that dcah with you foe tbe purpose of 
complct.ing the Ser»iccs doc> so on behalf of Grant Tho rnton. The prn»isions of this clause ha1·e been stipubred for the bene fit o f GT Afftliaccs. GT Affiliates 
will ha\'e the rigln to rely on this clause as if they were parties to the Ent,.rngement am.I will ha\·e the right (sub ject m the discretion of the courrs) to a striy in 
proceedings if ynu bring any cl:tim a~nst any GT Affili:ircs in breach o f this cl:lusc. 

Non-solic itat io n - In addition ro :'H1)' further non-solicitation eights as may be defined wid1in the l•:nh,r:tgcmcn~ the ~[unicipaliry :lgrccs tha t i1 shall no t :;ulicit for 
employment or hi.re any of the pa.rmccs, prlacip::tls, emplo yees or C(lnsu1tants nf Grant Tlmrnton or GT Affi.li:itC}> who arc i_o,·ol\'cd i.n the perform:rnce of Lhe 
Scfficcs <luting the term o f the Enf:,l":lgemcn1 :ind for a period o f rwclve (1 2) months thereafter, witho ut our expre!'is written consent. 

Confidentiality - Subject to any further rights of disclosure so d c fi11cd within the Engagemenc, all infonnatio a which G r:mt Tho rnton cccein!s from chc 
Municipality or 1·hc Municipnlicy's di.rectors, o fficers, agencs, advisors nr counsel in co nnection with the pcrfo rm:i.ncc o fche Sc(\·iccs and which is for the rime 
b'ing co n!iden1.i:1I ("Confidcntial lnfomrntion"), will be held in strict co nfidence, provided tha1 G ram Tho mlnn shall be free co, wirhouc the requirement to seek 
any further consent or muhorization from chc Municipali.ry. m;ikc disclosures (a) il:i :t resu1t of any :lpplicable law, court or o ther o rder binding upoa it, under 1he 
l:iws of, nr pursu:'lnt LO nny go, ·crnmcntal action (including requests and orders), regulato ry rel1uircmenl, or professional standanl oblibr:itio ns (mcluding disclo:;urc 
ro a provincial inl"1irurc of Canadian charrercd pro fe.ssio nal :iccounrams); (b) m:ikc di:;clo suret-: or ~uch informatio n t0 any professional ad,·iscr:_;, consultants 
nntl / nr co ntr:ictors, in.eluding GT Affiliates il mar consult in connection with the En,b~gement am.I the performance o f the Seffices; (c) to other G' f' Affili:Hcs for 
the sole and e xpress purpose o f adhering ro G ra111 Thornron lnrcrn!ltional 1.td !lnou:1I compti::incc rc,,.icw :ind (cJ) m~ke disclosures with lhc Municipalitr's 
consent. 

No 1withs1:inding :inything to the contrarr cnnr:iincd within the E ag:igemcn1, Grant ' J'hnrnwn sh~lll no t be oblig.ucd to tcc:lt as confidential, or o therwise be 
subject fO ;1ny rcstricrions on use. disclosure o r tre!Jtmen t :B contained within rhc En&7:1!:,7Cmcnt, n f ~rny in formation disclosed by the J\lunicipalitr which. (i) is 
rightfully kno wn br Gr:inr Thornm n o o n no n-co ofidcncial basis pcio r to its disclo sure by the i\lunicipaliry; (ti) is U1dcpendcndy dc,·dopcd b)r Grant Thornto n 
witho ut rc:ferencc to o r use of the i\lunicipa1ity's ConfidcnLi:il Information; (tii) is o r btcr becomes publicly :n-ailablc without ,·iolntion of rhc Engagemenr; or (t '·) 
is lawfully obtained b)r G rant Tho rnton f.ro 111 ano ther party. 

\~orking papers/rep orts- ·n\c ;1.d,·ice or opinio ns o f Grant Thornton, including all m:ucri:ils, repo rts, information, cl:1tn, and work crc:ncd, dc\·eloped or 
performed by Gram Tho rnmn during the co urse uf the E ng:lgtmt'Ot ("the Grant Tho rn con i\latcri:ils") shall belong 1(1 G rant Thornron, wich the cxcepti<Jn o f 
final ta.x rcrurns (i f :ipplicablc), o riginal contr:lcts, o ther documcnra o f title hdd to the 1\lunicip::1lity1s o rder a11d any documCf1t.;; the return of which the 
.Municipality has :stipulnre<l. on o r pcior to their release m Granl Thorma n (the " i\lunicipaliry i\l:ucriaJs"). Norwid1sr::m<ling the foregoing, Granr'llwrncon mn)' 
recnin a copy of :my u r aU o f the Municip:tl.ilf J\btcci:ils (including Confidential In formatio n) ::is rc::(.1uired by Grant Thornton, in irs sole discretion, m meet tm)' 
o bligatio ns impo sed br profc:-sional :m1ndarcls. 

Connict of interest - Gr:tnt Tho rnro n, its :i:;:mciared entities nnd GT AffiJjmcs :'Ire im·oh·cd in :l wide range n f !in:mci:1I nch·isory nctivirics o uL of which 
connic1ing intc rcs1s or dutie:-; m::iy arise. \VidUn Grnnt Thornro n, ics ::issncimcd cn riticl' and GT t\ffiliates. pr.lcticcs :'Incl procedures arc maiumincd to restrict the 
now of in fn rm:ltion ;111cl thereby m::in;1.ge o r assist in m;1.naging such cc inflicts in a prn per manner. Nothing wid1in this l•'.ngngcmcn r- ,viU be interpreted to preclude 
Grant ' l'hommn, irs nssoci:irc<l entities o r GT Affiliates from eagabring ITT :my tG1.ns::icrion or rcprc:;c•ncing anr orhcr pany ar any time or in a.B}' capacity. pro,·ide<l 
that G rant Timrnmn shall not, kno wingly provide sen-ices to another party under circumsranccs which wo uld pince Grant Tho rn co n in :1 direc t ca nnier of interest 
during the term o f the Hnb7flgcmcnt wirhout rhc ~1lu11icipality's prio r written consent. In the t: \·ent Gt:anr Thorn Lon beco mes c<mflicced, :ls determined in its 
discretio n, Gntnl Thnrnn:1n sh:ill be pc.nnirtcd, bul nm nblig.ncd m~ rcrminarc thii; Engagcmen1 witho ut any additional ij :lbility to the Municip:tlity, upon fnurrccn 

153153



(14) days prior written notice. 

lndep e ndcncc - In the e\'cnt the r.lunicipali ty is (i) "' cntit)' th:it is registered with cl1e United St:1tcs Securities :md Exchonge Commission; o r (u) an affiliate of a 
rcgistr:mr. and tt pro,·isioa(s) cont:llncd within rhe Engagement would be probibi.rcd by, or impair the independence o f. any member firm of G ranr T hornton 
Inte rnational Ltd C'G ran t Tho rma n Internatio nal") under any law or rcgul:ltio n applying to the CLient, such prm·isinn(s) shall not opply to the Engagement to the 
extent th::u i~ necessary to a\·oid the prohibition against or impaicmcn1 o f the referenced independence o f the rcspe:cci,·c G ran1 'J'hornton lntccnntionnl member 
firm. 

Access to and disclosure o f information - Grant 111o rn ton is committed to the protection of personal inform:i.tion. During the couCie of planning, performing 
and ccporting the rcsuh o f the Services or :lS o therwise permitted under this Engagement, Geml Thornto n, its emplo)'ecs, panners, conLrncmrs~ co nsuhams, and 
GT Affiliates may need to obtain, use nnd disclose Municipality info rmatio n (including Confidential In fo rmation and personal in formatio n) in the possession o f, 
o r under Lhc control of the Municipality. The t\lunicipalit}' ncknowlcclges this putentinl use :md/or disclosure nnd agrees that it is rcspon:;ible foe o bmining, where 
required under applicable law o r regulation, a court o rde r or eo11'cnt from :my parry (including third parties) in order to permit Grant T hornton, its employees, 
partners, contrricturs, consultants, and/or G T Afftlj:itt s, to access, obtain, use and/or disclose ~Iunicipality information (including Confidential lnform:ition and 
perso nal information) accessed by us or p ro,.ided to us br the i\lunicipoLity o r a party autho rized by the Municipality for the purposes or completing the Services, 
o thcc disclosure so d e fined within the Engagement o c foe rhosc :idditio nal purposes as more fu11r cxpb.ined within Grant T hornton's pri\·acy poJjcy, as ir m:iy be 
amended from rime to time and twaibble m www.granttbn rnron.ca. 

E lec tro nic communica tion - Grant Thorncon and the ~funicipaliL}' may need l'O electronically Lrnnsmit confidential information to each ocher and co other 
entities engaged by either parry during the Enhl"'Jb~ment. Electronic mcrlmds include, but nrc no t limited to tclcphcmcs, cdlubt telephones cxrcrnal harJ tlrh-cs, 
electronic mail nnd facsimiles. These rcchno logics provicle for il foH ~nd con,·enient way to communicate. 1-lowc,·cr, nll forms of communications have inherent 
security weaknesses :ind the cisks of compromised confidenr.iality cannot be etiJninatcd. Norwid1standing the inherent risks, the ~lunicipality agrees to the use of 
such clccrronic me tho ds co transmit and rccci,·c information (tncluding conlidetttial information), between G r:inr Thornton and the i'l'lunicipality and between 
Grnnt Tho rnto n and outside specialists, contrnc to cs o r o ther entities cngngcd by either Grnnt Tho rnton or the Municip:tli ty. The ~ lunicip1fa)' further ::igrccs that 
Grnnr Tho rn ma shall no r be liable for 3.J1}' k'>~s. damngc, expense~ inconvenience o r hnrm resulting fro m Lhc los~, dcfoy-, lnrerccption, corrupt.ion or altet:ition o f 
nuy electronic communicatio n due to any re::a:;o n wh:ttso e,·er. 

The Municipalicy also agrees that Gran t Thornton p rofess1onnls sh:ill be nuthui:i~ccJ to connect their computers to the "lunicip11lity's IT network, subjecL co ~mr 
specific restrictions rhe Municipality pro,·icles m GrantThornrnn. <:onneccing ro the Municipaliry's IT netwo rk or the internet ,·i:i th is network, while at the 
Municipnlit)''s premises, will be prinrnrilr for the purpose o f conducting normal busi.ac:;s acti,·itics, nod those rdnting LO the completion of the Sen-ices. 

Expe nses - If npp1icablc, tJ1e Municip:ility will rcimbun;c G rant 'f110rnLOn for :ill rc:tso nnble our--of-pockct expenses i11curred by G r;1nt 'l 'horn toa in entering into 
and performing the Sen:ices1 whether oc nor iris complcrcd. including bur no t limircd to, tr~wcl1 tclccommunic:it.ions costs. fees and disbursements of o ther 
professio n;.,( :tdvisccs, and other d isbursem ents customary in enbr.lbrcmt:nts o f this nature. Ali o ther o ut-o f-pocket expenses will be chnrged ::J.t co st as incurred by 
Grant Thorn Lo n. 

T axes - All fees ::ir1:d other charges payable to G rant Tho rnton do no t include an y applicable fedt~l, pro,·i.ncinl~ or o ther goods and serYices rnx or sale:; tax, o r 
anr o ther taxes or d uties whether presently in force or imposed in the future. All sums parable to Grant Thornto n hereunder shall be paid in full wirhout 
withholding or deductio n. 

Billing -AU icn-oiccs issued hr Gran t Tho rnton bcceunder are due within .~O days of the m,-o icc dare. Lntercst will be charged on all o\·crclue accounrs :u n rate of 
!.5°o per m onth (18°0 per annum) until paid. fees paid or payable to Grant -Tho rnton under this Eng:1gement are nnn-refund:tble and shall not be subject lo sct
o ff. Unless Olhcrwisc d irc--ctcd by Grant Tho rnton, all fees, expen>cs •ml Olhcr sums will be billed an<l payable in Canadian Dollar.<. 

T erminatio n -Either the ~1unicipality o r Grant Tho rn ton mar terminate the En~gemcnt upon fourteen (14) d:tp p[ior wcitten notice to the o ther p~urr. la 
additio n to the foregoing, Gr:lllt 'I'ho mro n may !llso tcrmin::ire the H11gagcm cnt in the C\·cnt o f a breach nf :iny n:rm of the Eng:igcmenr by the Municipality which 
is nor cured by the j\f unicip:tli cy within ten (10) d:iys o f rcccipl of wrin<:n notice :is to 1hc b reach. Upon termination for nny reason, the p:irt ics s hall return c:ich 
other's confo.lea ti ~tl in form:ttioo, except that Grnnt Tho rnto n may rtt:iin o ne copy for its wo rking pnpcrs nnd one copy c, f tbe Municipality Materials c ,·cn if same 
may co atnln coaiiden Li:il inforn1;ition o f the ~[unicipality. In 11ddir.ion lo its righ ts of tctmimu.ion prt;wicled he rein and norwithsr:111ding anything co the contrary in 
the En!,>ngcment, Gr:mtTho rnmn >hall also h>1·e the right upon fi,·c (5) day> prinr wrincn notice ro the r.lunicipalig· to (i) >uspend o r terminate its Serriees in the 
C\'Cnt the Municipality fails to pay Gc:mt Th o rnton any amo unt clue to it under rhc rcrm!' of the Eng.igcmcn t; or (u) tcrmin~He irs Scr\·iccs i.n the e\'Cnt Gran t 
Thornto n c.liscovers any infoun::ition which Grn.n t Tho rnton d etermines, m its sole discn!tiOn , m:ty a ffect its reputation, intcbrrlcy, o r independence. l'n the C\'Ctll o f 
termin:i tion, chc 1\lunicipallLy 3.!;,TCCCS ro cnmpcns:ur Gr::inr 'J'ho rntan for nil time expended and costs incurred up to and including rhe d:uc of Lcrmin:itio a. 

In the c\·cn1 nci rhcr rhc ~lunicipaliry or Grant 'J'horntnn exercise any o f rhcir rc.specti,·c righl:- ccgarding tcrminarjon of the Engagement, chc Engagem ent will 
continue in fuU force and effect for the year ending no ted within the En,bl':lgemenr a11d until such time ns the Engagement is supecscJ ed or replaced by another 
Eng.1gement. 

Severabiliry- Each pruvit;ion of this Eng:tgen:u:ot is sen :;rnble aod if any pro,·ision (in who le or in pnrt) is o r becomes invalid or unenforceable or contravenes 

an r appLicable re!,'1.•la cions or laws, the mn:iining prm-isions and the remainder o f the affected provision (if :iny) will not· be affccled. 

Assig nme nt - Nn a:-:signmcnr ~hall be made br either party of rbeir rc:-opccti,·c oblig.ition;; under this En~gcmenr withnut the prior \\·rin cn consent <l f tltt o ther 
parry. 

Public ation - Unless o therwise pcrmirrcd by rhc engagement., under no c ircumstances wirho ur rhc e xpress p rior wrirrcn cn n::;C11r of Granr '1110mton, sh~1 rhe 
Mwlicipal.ity Uiscloset rele:ise, u~e, make reference to, o r yuo te Gr:.tnr Tbomton's name:, logo o c any Dc.:li,·crnble (whether wcitten o r n:rbal) within any press 
release, press confe rence, website upd:ite, media rcle:.1se o r ~rnr other form o f pl1blic disclosure ("Disclosure Document") o Lher than for lici!,"3tinn purposes, but 
o nly to the exrcn 1 :md in rhc manner that such use is contcrnpbrcd by the Eng:tgcm<:nl. In the e\·cnL thc J\lunicip:ility wishes LO seek Gr:int Thorncno's conscnr as 
required by the En!:,r.tgemcnr, d1C: .Municipality sh~ll prl1,·ide to Grn.nr Thomtn n a c opy of such Disclosure Document for prior apprc.wal, which appro,·nl m ay be 
unretsonably withheltl. 

tvlunicipa lity re presentat io ns, warranries and covenants · The Municipality represents, \Va.rem rs and con::n:mts to Grnnt ·1110rnmn th:it: 

n. tlu: execution, dcliYCC}' and performance o f the Eng.1gcmenL h:is been dulr aurhorizecJ :rn<..I does nnt conflict \Virl1 o r ,-iolme nny conr:ractu11, sr:iru roi:y, 
co mmon law, lcg ll , rcgularory or o ther obLisr:itinn bJ which the Municip:tlity is bound~ nnd 

b. cl"· En!,>:igemcnt is cl1c leg.ii, rnli<l :md binlling o l.>lig:1tinn or the Municipality, en forceable in accordance with its terms. 

Granr T h ornron re presenra1ion s1 warra ncies and covenants - Gra n1 TI1o rnron represents , warrant and co,·caams to the Municip::ilit) that Granr'l110rnron 
will pm ,·ide the ScrYicc:; described within the Eng~gcmcnt in a pro fcssion:il and co mpe tent manner. Gr:in t T hornton makes no other repcescntn.[ion or 
\Varranlics and e xplicitly disclaims nil other w:irr:inrics and rcpt'.ese nrarjnn~ whcchcr expressed nr implied by law, us:igc of trade, course of dealing o r otherwise . 

154154



Su rviving pro visions - The Munjcip:lljty's obligntio m; in rc:o;pcct o f conlidcnti:'1lil}'i parment o f fees and expenses, Municipnlity conscni to pro ductio n, release 
and indcl"n11ification, and limitacion of liability ns outlined within the Engngement shall surYi,-c terminatio n nf the:: Engagem r:nt. 

Governing law and fo rum - The Engagement, including these terms and conditions shall be gm·erncd b)' and consrrued in acco rdance with cl1c bws o f rhc 
Pro,·ince in which the Enbingemcnt \\"':l s signed br Grnnt Thornmn. 

Other matters - ' J11c failure o f ci rhcr party to insist o n ~tcict performance o f the Engagemen t, or r() cxcrc.i!\c any optio 11 herein, ~h!i.ll not net ns a wn.i,·c.r o f any 
cighr, promise or option, bu1 tbe s:irnc shill be in rull force :ind effect. N o woi,·cr or any teem o r prm·i:iinn o r or :my breach oc default sh:ill be volid unless in 
writing an<l signed by the party giving such waiver, and no such wai,·cr shall be deemed :i wai,·cr o f :ln )r other term or pro\'ision or any subsequent breach o r 
default o r the same or simibr nature. 

Complete agreem e nt - This Enl,Y.tgement, including these terms and conditio ns and any schedules, sets forth the entire understanUing o f the p::irtie~ rel:tting ro 
the subject m~Htt'r hereof nnd supersedes and cnnccls any prio r co mmunicaLio ns, undcrsrnndings, a.nd agree ments between the pMtics. This Engagement mar nol 
be amended nr mo dified except in writing between the part.ic.•s nncl shnlJ inure lO the benefit of and be bii1diug upnn the parties and their rcspccth-c succc~sors. 

155155



Appendix D - Draft 
independent auditor's 
report 

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Taxpayers of the 
Corporation of the City of Port Col borne 

Opin ion 

We have audited the consolidated financial state4its oft . e Corporation of the City of Port Colborne ("the 
Municipality"), which comprise the consolidated s\~~~nt of.Ji'lancial position as at December 31 , 2019, 
and the consolidated statements of operations, ch~nges in net,\fet>t and cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolid~ted fi~~oial, s~ements present fairly in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Corporation1J the City'of Ror~Colborne as at December 31 , 2019, and its 
results of operations, its changes in Jts ~t deb ~t l eash flows for the year then ended in accordance 

with Canadian public sectoraceou§ ing standards. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audi iq,_accordance · ith Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 
responsibilities under thos~s a~-'d are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Consolidated Financial Statem/ nts section of our report. We are independent of the Municipality in 
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control 
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Municipality's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to a going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Municipality or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance ar~ responsible for overseeing the Municipality's financial reporting 
process. 

156156



Audito r's Respons ibilit ies for t he Audit of the Consolidated Fi nanc ial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financia l statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion . The risk of not detecting a materia l 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• 

• 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Municipality 's internal control. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of managemerits'tse~o !tie going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a\ 1.1S,qt8):1al uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Municipality~bility t~~r.t,\j.r:iue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are req; ed to dr~attentiorvin our auditor's report to the related 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statejTlents 0.(. if s~h.. disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the ~idit e~ioe7it€e otlfained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or condition~1'r· cause t~e A~pality to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, st~~a e and cent of the consolidated financial statements, including 
the disclosures, an~2etl:iefili<e -~soTic:fated financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a ma,~at achie~ fair pr~ntation. 
Obtain sufficient approp~te audit evid~ce regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Municip~ty and t]1; organizations it controls to express an opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements. We are rejpop sible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. 
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

Port Colborne, Canada Chartered Professional Accountants 
Licensed Publ ic Accountants 

157157



Appendix E - Draft 
management 
representation letter 

November 9, 2020 

Grant Thornton LLP 
Chartered Professional Accountants 
PO Box 336 
Port Colborne, ON 
L3KSW1 

Dear Sirs: (t ~ 
We are providing this letter in c01111ection wi~~..audit Qfl):Je consolidated finanoal statements 
of the Corporation of the City of Port Co~~l o:{e as of'December 31, 2019, and for the year then 
ended, for the pmpose of e~'Pressing a/,, pini?, a~ to"\;J~e ther the consolidated financial statements 
present fairly: in ail mate~al respects~the ~ci~~ition, re~ults of o~erations_, and cash flows o f 
the Corporation of the City of Poro Colbo~~.9cordance with Canadian public sector account111g 
standards. ~ 

We acknowledge ~t we have ft ed ol:lt responsibilities for the preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements !fl. accordance ;with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for the 
design and implementaE~ of int rnal controls to prevent and detect fraud and error. We have 
assessed the risk that the m.us6~clfued financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of 
fraud, and have detennined suc:'h tisk to be low. Further, we acknowledge that yom examination 
was planned and conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards 
(Gi\.,-\S) so as to enable you to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We 
understand that while your work includes an examination of the accounting system, internal 
controls and related data to the extent you considered necessa1y in the circumstances, it is not 
designed to identify, nor can it necessarily be expected to disclose, fraud, shortages, errors and other 
irregularities, should any exist. 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. An 
item is considered material, regardless of its monetary valu~ if it is probable that its omission from 
or misstatement in the consolidated financial statements would influence the decision of ;i 
reasonable person relying on the consolidated financial statements. 

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of November 9, 2020, the following 
representations made to you during your audit. 

158158



Financial statements 

The consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the municipality as at December 31, 2019 and the results of its operations and 
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting 
standards, as agreed to in the terms of the audit engagement. 

C omp leteness of informa tion 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

We have made available to you all financial records and related data and all minutes of the meetings 
of Cotmcil and committees of Council, as agreed in the terms of the audit engagement. Summaries 
of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared have been provided to 
you. ,-\ll significant Council and comm.ittee actions are included in the summaries. 

We have provided you with unrestricted access to persons within the municipality from whom you 
determined it necessa1y to obtain audit evidence. 

There are no material transactions that have not been properly recorded in the acco=ting records 
w1derlying the consolidated financial statements. TI1e adjusting journal entries which have been 
proposed by you are approved by us and will be reco rded on the books of the municipality. 

\Y/e are unaware of any known or probable instances of non-compliance with the requirements of 
regulatoiy or govemmental authorities, u1clu((~financial reporting requirements. 

We are wrnware of any violations or possible vio1ations~\laws or regulations the effects of which 
should be considered for disclosure in the consO'li ated fin)n al sta temen ts o r as the basis of 
recordll1g a contingent loss. 

e design or operation of internal control over 

You provided a non-attest setVi.Ge by assisting us with drafting the consolidated financial statements 
and related notes. In conneJt'o'n "vith this non-attest service, we confirm that we h ave made all 
management decisions and performed all management functions, have the knowledge to evaluate 
the accuracy and completeness of the consolidated financial statements, and accept responsibility 
for such consolidated financial statements. 

Fraud and error 

10 We have no knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the municipality mvolving 
management; employees who have significant roles in internal control; or others, where the fraud 
could have a non-trivial effect on the consolidated financial statements. 

11 We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the 1mmicipality's 
financial statements co=unicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others. 

12 We acknowledge our responsibili ty for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal 
control to prevent and detect fraud. 

13 We believe that the effects of the uncorrected financial statement misstatements summarized in the 
accompanying schedule are immaterial both individually and in the aggregate, to the consolidated 
financial statements taken as a whole. 

159159



Recognition, m easurement and disclosure 

14 We believe that the significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including 
those used in an:iving at the fair values of financial instmments as measured and disclosed in the 
consolidated financial statements, are reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances. 

15 We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of 
assets and liabilities, both financial and non-financial, reflected in the consolidated financial 
statements. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

All related party transactions have been appropriately measured and disclosed in the consolidated 
financial statements. 

The nature of all material measurement uncertainties has been appropriately disclosed in the 
consolidated financial statements, including all estimates where it is reasonably possible that the 
estimate will change in the near term and the effect of the change could be material to the 
consolidated financial statements. 

All outstanding and possible claims, whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel, 
have been disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected in the consolidated financial statements. 

All liabilities and contingencies, including tho~ aS'soci~red with guarantees, whether written or oral, 
have been disclosed to you and are appropria'fol'y reflected in the consolidated financial statements. 

W ith respect to environmental matters: 

a) 

b) 

c) 
statements. 

21 The municipality has sa ·s actory tle to (or lease interest in) all assets, and there are no liens or 
encwnbrances on the m~ 1pality's assets nor has any been pledged as collateral. 

22 We have disclosed to )'OU, and the municipality has complied with, all aspects of contractual 
agreements that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements in t11e event of 
non-compliance, including all covenants, conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt. 

23 The Harmonized Sales Tax (HST) transactions recorded by the mwucipality are in accordance with 
the federal and provincial regulations. The HST liability/ receivable amounts recorded by the 
municipality are considered complete. 

24 Employee future benefit costs, assets, and obligations have been determined, accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of Section 3250 RetirelJlent Ben~fits and Section 3255 
Post-E111plqymenl Benefits, Compe11sated Absences a11d Tertlli11atio11s Benefits of the Canadian Instihlte of 
Chartered _,\ccountants (CIC.\) Public Sector - ,-\ccount.ing. 

25 Events subsequent to the statement of financial position date up to ilie date hereof have been 
recognized or disclosed in the f111ancial statements. Further, there have been no events subsequent 
to the date of tlie comparative financial statements tliat would require adjustment of those financial 
statements and related notes. 

160160



26 We have provided sufficient and appropriate disclosure of the impact of COVID-19 on the 
municipality in Note 25 to the financial statements. The representations made therein accurately 
reflect the impact to the municipality and its continued operations. 

Other 

27 We have considered whethe1· or not events have occurred or conditions exist which may cast 
significant doubt on the municipality's ability to continue as a going concern and have concluded 
that no such even ts or conditions are evident. 

Yours ve1y truly, 

Chief Administrative Officer 

Director of Corporate Services/ Treasurer 

161161



Uncorrected misstatements 
Non-trivial misstatements noted during the course of our audit but not adjusted in the consolidated financial 
statements were as follows: 

Increase (Decrease) Statement of Financial Position 

Description 

To reduce the allowance for 

uncollectible taxes receivable 

Total adjustments 

Assets Liabilities 

$ 111 ,000 

$ 111,000 

Accumulated surplus 

Statement of 
Operations Effect 

Annual surplus 

$ 111,000 

$ 111,000 

162162



Appendix F - Internal 
control letter 

November 9, 2020 

Corporation of the City of Port Col borne 
66 Charlotte Street 
Port Colborne, ON 
L3K 3C8 

Attention: Members of Management: 

Dear Members of Management: 

In connection with our audit of the City of Port Colborne consolidated financial statements as of 

December 31 , 2019 and for the year then ended, the Canadian Auditing Standards require that we advise 

management and Council (hereinafter referred to as "those charged with governance") of the following 

internal control matters identified during our audit. 

Our responsibilities 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by the Canadian Auditing Standards, is to plan and perform our audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, 

whether caused by error or fraud. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting 

(hereinafter referred to as "internal control") as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 

the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 

purpose of identifying deficiencies in internal control or expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

City's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion on internal control effectiveness. 

Identified deficiencies in internal control 

We identified the following internal control matters as of the date of this letter that are of sufficient 

importance to merit your attention. 

Significant deficiencies 

Our consideration of internal control would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that, 

individually or in combination, may be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control ("control deficiency") exists when the design or operation of a control does 

not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 

prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of 

deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 

material misstatement of the City's annual or interim financial statements wi ll not be prevented or detected 

on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 

over financial reporting that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention 

163163



by those responsible for oversight of the City's financial reporting (also referred to as those charged with 

governance). 

We consider the following identified control deficiencies to be sign ificant deficiencies. 

Information Technology 

Segregation of duties and assignment of administrator rights 

The following weaknesses have been identified in the information technology system. specifically relating to 

the assignment of responsibilities and network administrator rights : 

The Director of Corporate Services and the Manager of Accounting and Revenue have been assigned 

administrator rights in the financial reporting application. This allows them unrestricted access to all 

modules of the system, and results in a lack of segregation of duties as they are responsible for the City's 

financial reporting . Although our audit procedures did not identify any unauthorized or unusual transactions 

recorded in the financial application by these individuals, the potential exists for unauthorized transactions to 

be recorded by the administrators and go undetected. 

Management response 

The Director of Corporate Services and the Manager of Revenue and Taxation 's network administrator 

rights have been removed effective October 15, 2019. The Information Technology Manager will assign 

responsibilities in the financial reporting application effective October 15, 2019. Only the Information 

Technology Manager sets up new employees and assigns roles and accesses. 

Review of user access rights 

There is currently no formal process in place for management to regularly review and approve user access 

rights on the network and financial reporting applications. Given the segregation of duties issues that have 

been identified in the assignment of administrator rights, the regular review by department supervisors or 

other management of user access rights will ensure that only appropriate and currently employed staff have 

user !O's on the network and in the applications. As well, this review will ensure that the users have access 

appropriate for their roles and responsibilities within the organization. 

Management response 

The Director of Corporate Services, the Manager of Revenue and Taxation, and the Information Technology 

Manager will review and approve user access on the network and financial reporting applications quarterly 

beginning October 15, 2019. With the new Director, we will resume this practice in 2020. 

Financial Reporting 

J ournal entry controls 

The Director of Corporate Services and the Manager of Accounting and Revenue have the ability to post 

journal entries into the financial reporting application. Duties of senior financial reporting personnel should 

not include the ability to make journal entries as it is important to have an appropriate level of review and 

authorization over journal entries. Staff members who have responsibili ty for authorization and approval of 

journal entries should not have the ability to post entries into the system. 

164164



Management response 

The journal entry controls suggested will require three different individuals to prepare, approve and then 

post a journal entry into the financial reporting application. This control is excessive. Senior financial 

personnel at the City are working managers and at times are required to prepare journal entries. Currently, 

Corporate Services staff prepare journal entries. Once prepared, either the Manager of Revenue and 

Taxation or the Director of Corporate Services preform a thorough review, approve and then post the journal 

entry to the financial reporting application. 

Financial Activities 

Segregation of duties 

During the course of our planning procedures it came to our attention that segregation of duties remains an 

issue in the accounting cycles of your operations. When duties are not segregated in the control 

environment, the City is more susceptible to fraud and errors that may not be identified during our audit 

procedures. 

When one person performs most duties in an accounting cycle, such as revenue, collusion is not requ ired to 

commit fraudulent activities, since there is less likelihood that such an activity will be detected. For 

example, a staff member responsible for billing and accounts receivable posting should not be handling 

cash receipts. The potential is there for a misappropriated payment to be not posted to a receivable 

account and the receivable reconciliation to the general ledger to be altered so that the fraud is not exposed. 

If the cash receipts duty is given to another staff member, such a potential fraudulent activity could be 

prevented, the two employees must work together to commit the fraudulent act. 

Management response 

Billing and accounts receivable posting will be segregated effective January 1, 2020. 

Currently, the CSR/accounts receivable clerk has the ability to enter and post cash receipts. Although this 

role is a back-up to the CSR/cashier, she does on occasion pe1form cashier duties. In 2021, there are plans 

to hire an additional part-time CSR/cashier. This will alleviate the need to use the CSR/accounts receivable 

clerk to perform cashier duties. The Manager of Revenue and Taxation needs to approve all credits (not 

including payments) issued against accounts receivable invoices. 

Management responses 

The Management's written responses to the internal control matters identified herein have not been 

subjected to our audit procedures and accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, those charged with 

governance, and others within the City and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 

than these specified parties. 

Yours sincerely, 
Grant Thornton LLP 

James D. Brennan, CPA, CA 
Principal 

JDB/jf 

165165



Appendix G - PSAS 
Accounting developments 

Public Sec tor Accounting Standards (updated June 30, 2020] 

Section PS 3400 Revenues 

New Section PS 3400 Revenue establishes standards on how to account for and report on revenue. It does not apply to 
revenues for which specific standards already exist, such as government transfers, tax revenue or restricted revenues. The 
Section distinguishes between revenue that arises from transactions that include performance obligations (i.e., exchange 
transactions) and transactions that do not have performance obligations (i.e., non-exchange transactions). The main 
features of the new Section are: 

Performance obligations are defined as enforceable promises to provide specific goods or services to a specific payer 
Revenue from transactions with performance obligations will be recognized when (or as) the performance obligation is 
satisfied by providing the promised goods or services to the payer 
Revenue from transactions with no performance obligations will be recognized when a public sector entity has the 
authority to claim or retain the revenue and identifies a past transaction or event that gives rise to an asset 

Section PS 3280 Asset retirement obligations 

New Section PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations establishes standards on how to account for and report a liability for 
asset retirement obligations. An asset retirement obligation is a legal obligation associated with the retirement of a tangible 
capital asset. 

Asset retirement costs associated with a tangible capital asset increase the carrying amount of the related tangible capital 
asset and are expensed in a rational and systematic manner, while asset retirement costs associated with an asset no 
longer in productive use are expensed. Measurement of the liability for an asset retirement obligation should result in the 
best estimate of the amount required to retire a tangible capital asset at the financial statement date. A present value 
technique is often the best method to estimate the liability. Subsequent measurement of the liability can result in either a 
change in the carrying amount of the related tangible capital asset, or an expense, depending on the nature of the 
remeasurement or whether the asset remains in productive use. 

As a result of the issuance of Section PS 3280, the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) approved the withdrawal of 
Section PS 3270 Solid waste landfill closure and post-closure liability as asset retirement obligations associated with 
landfills will be within the scope of PS 3280. PS 3280 does not address costs related to remediation of contaminated sites, 
which will continue to be addressed in Section PS 3260 Uability for contaminated sites. Some consequential amendments 
have been made to PS 3260 to conform with PS 3280 and further clarify the scope of each standard. 

Effective date 

Fiscal years beginning on or after 
April 1, 2023. 

Earlier adoption is permitted. 

The effective date was previously 
April 1, 2022, but as a result of 
the COVID-19 pandemic, the 
Public Sector Accounting Board 
(PSAB) has deferred the effective 
date by one year. 

·-NEW*** 

Fiscal years beginning on or after 
April 1 , 2022. 

Earlier adoption is permitted. 

The effective date was previously 
April 1, 2021, but as a result of 
the COVJD-19 pandemic. the 
PSAB has deferred the effective 
date by one year. 

166166



Section PS 3450 Financial instruments, Section PS 2601 Foreign currency translation, Section PS 1201 Financial 
statement presentation, and PS 3041 Portfolio investments 

PS 3450 Financial instruments is a new Section that establishes standards for recognizing and measuring financial assets. 
financial liabilities and non-financial derivatives. Some highlights of the requirements include: 

a public sector entity should recognize a financial asset or a financial liability on its statement of financial position when 
it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument 

financial instruments within the scope of the Section are assigned to one of two measurement categories: fair value, or 
cost I amortized cost 

almost all derivatives are measured at fair value 

fair value measurement is required for portfolio investments in equity instruments that are quoted in an active market 

other financial assets and financial liabilities are generally measured at cost or amortized cost 

until an item is derecognized, gains and losses arising due to fair value remeasurement are reported in the statement of 
remeasurement gains and losses when the public sector entity defines and implements a risk management or 
investment strategy to manage and evaluate the performance of a group of financial assets. financial liabilities or both 
on a fair value basis, the entity may elect to include these items in the fair value category 

additional disclosures with respect to financial instruments will be required, including the nature and extent of risks 
arising from a public sector entity's financial instruments 

PS 2601 Foreign currency translation revises and replaces Section PS 2600 Foreign currency translation. Some highlights 
of the requirements include: 

the deferral and amortization of foreign exchange gains and losses relating to long-term foreign currency denominated 
monetary items is discontinued 

until the period of settlement. foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in the statement of remeasurement 
gains and losses rather than the statement of operations 

PS 1201 Financial statement presentation revises and replaces Section PS 1200 Financial statement presentation. The 
main amendment to this Section is the addition of the statement of remeasurement gains and losses. 

PS 3041 Portfolio investments revises and replaces Section PS 3040 Portfolio investments. 

The issuance of these new sections also includes consequential amendments to: 

Introduction to accounting standards that apply only to government not-for-profit organizations 

PS 1 ooo Financial statement concepts 

PS 11 oo Financial statement objectives 

PS 2125 First-time adoption by government organizations 

PS 2500 Basic principles of consolidation 

PS 2510 Additional areas of consolidation 

PS 3050 Loans receivable 

PS 3060 Government partnerships 

PS 3070 Investments in government business enterprises 

PS 3230 Long-tenn debt 

PS 3310 Loan guarantees 

PS 4200 Financial statement presentation by not-for-profit organizations 

.... NEW .... 

The new requirements are all 
required lo be applied at the 
same time. 

For governments - Fiscal years 
beginning on or after April 1, 
2022. 

For government organizations 
that applied the CPA Canada 
Handbook - Accounting prior to 
their adoption of the CPA 
Canada Public Sector Accounting 
Handbook - Fiscal years 
beginning on or after April 1, 
2012. 

For all other government 
organizations - Fiscal years 
beginning on or aft.er April 1, 
2022. 

Earlier adoption is permitted. 

For public sector entities other 
than government organizations 
that applied the CPA Canada 
Handbook - Accounting prior to 
adopting the CPA Canada Public 
Sector Accounting Handbook. the 
effective date was previously 
April 1 , 2021 , but as a result of 
the COVID-19 pandemic, the 
PSAB has deferred the effective 
date by one year 

167167



PSG-6 Including results of organizations and partnerships applying fair value measurement was withdrawn as a result of 
the issuance of these sections. 

In April 2020, the PSAB issued amendments to clarify aspects of the Section's application and add new guidance to the 
transitional provisions of Section PS 3450. 

The amendments introduce changes to the accounting treatment for bond repurchase transactions. Specifically, the 
amendments no longer require bond repurchase transactions to be treated as extinguishments, unless they are discharged 
or legally released from the obligation or the transactions meet certain criteria to be considered an exchange of debt. 

The amendments also provide clarification on the application of certain areas of Section PS 3450, these include: 

Section PS 3450 does not apply unless a contractual right or a contractual obligation underlies a receivable or payable 

how a transfer of collateral pursuant to a credit risk management mechanism in a derivative contract is accounted for 
and 

derecognition of a financial asset does not occur if the transferor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of 
ownership 

Finally, the amendments have added new guidance to the transitional provisions as follows: 

controlling governments should use the carrying values of the financial assets and liabilities in the records of its 
government organizations when consolidating a government organization 

any unamortized discounts, premiums, or transaction costs associated with a financial asset or financial liability in the 
cost/amortized cost category should be included in the item's opening carrying value and 

in cases where derivatives were not recognized or were not measured at fair value prior to adopting PS 3450, any 
difference between the previous carrying value and fair value should be recognized in the opening balance of 
accumulated remeasurement gains and losses. 

Strategic plan for not-for-profit organizations in the public sector 
Since 2012, government not-for-profit organizations (GNPOs) have been required to adopt PSAS but were given the option of applying the 
specific GNPO accounting standards in PSAS. Some GNPOs have utilized those standards, while others have not. The PSAB recognized that 
a "one-size-fits-all" approach may not be appropriate for all stakeholders. As a result, the PSAB's 2017-2020 Strategic Plan included plans to 
assess the specific needs of public sector NPO stakeholders. PSAB's 2018-2019 Annual Plan includes the following specific objectives for 
implementing its strategy: 

• developing a GNPO strategy that meets the public interest; and 

• enhancing engagement with users of GNPO financial statements. 

In 2018, PSAB consulted with over 100 GNPO stakeholders to understand their fiscal and regulatory environment, their financial reporting 
needs, and their financial reporting perspectives. Diversity in the financial reporting framework, presentation of net debt and fund accounting, the 
impact of balanced budget requirements and endowments were some of the items stakeholders raised. 

168168



In May 2019, the PSAB issued a Consultation Paper, Government Not-for-Profit, which articulated the results of their consultations and sought 
stakeholder input in developing a strategy for GNPOs. The comment period for the Consultation Paper ended on September 30, 2019 and 
PSAB is currently deliberating the responses. As part of their strategic plan for 2020 to 2021 , the PSAB plans to issue a second consultation 
paper in the third quarter of 2020 proposing an accounting and reporting framework for GNPOs. They also expect to approve the final GNPO 
strategy, based on responses to the two consultation papers, outreach, and its international strategy decision. 

International strategy 

The PSAB has reviewed its current approach towards International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) with the intent of developing 
options for its International Strategy. In May 2019, it issued a second Consultation Paper Reviewing PSAB's Approach to International Public 
Sector Accounting Standards that considered 4 options. At its May 2020 meeting, following deliberation of stakeholder feedback to the 
Consultation Paper, PSAB decided on the option that will adapt IPSAS principles when developing future Canadian Public Sector Accounting 
Standards for the Public Sector Accounting Handbook. In tandem with that decision, PSAB issued a brief document summarizing its decision 
and what it means, entitled: In Brief- A plain and simple overview of PSAB's 2020 decision to adapt IPSAS principles when developing future 
standards. This decision will apply to all projects beginning on or after April 1, 2021 . 

Concepts underlying financial performance 
In response to feedback from stakeholders, the PSAB is proposing changes to its conceptual framework and its reporting model with a focus on 
measuring the financial performance of public sector entities. The changes will be made through the following actions: 

1. Issuing a revised conceptual framework to replace two Sections in the PSA Handbook: 
PS 1000 Financial statement concepts 
PS 1100 Financial statement objectives 

2. Issuing a revised financial statement presentation standard that would replace Section PS 1201 Financial statement presentation. 

169169



In May 2018, PSAB released two documents for comment related to this project: 

Statement of Concepts, A Revised Conceptual Framework for the Canadian Public Sector 
A conceptual framework is a clear set of related concepts that act as the foundation for the development of standards and the application of 
professional judgment. The Statement of Concepts presented and explained key concepts that the PSAB expects to include in a future exposure 
draft. The components of the PSAB's proposed conceptual framework were as follows: 

• characteristics of public sector entities 

• financial reporting objectives 

• role of financial statements 

• financial statement foundations 

• financial statement objectives 

• qualitative characteristics of information and related considerations 
• elements of financial statements 

• recognition and measurement 

• presentation concepts 

The Statement of Concepts also set the foundation for the revised reporting model in the PSAB's concurrently issued Statement of Principles below. 

Statement of Principles, A Revised Reporting Model for the Canadian Public Sector 
The PSAB is proposing a revised reporting model that builds on the existing reporting model in Section PS 1201 Financial statement presentation. 
The Statement of Principles presented and explained key principles that the PSAB expects to include in a future exposure draft. Some of the main 
features of the proposals in the Statement of Principles included: 

• In the statement of financial position: 

o The net debt indicator would be removed and instead a revised net debt calculation would be moved to its own statement: the statement of 
net debt or net financial assets 

o The accumulated surplus (deficit) indicator would be relabelled as net assets (net liabilities) 
o A new third component, accumulated other, would be added to net assets or net liabilities (existing Section PS 1201 includes two 

components of accumulated surplus: accumulated operating surplus or deficit and accumulated remeasurement gains and losses) 
o The structure would be amended to present financial assets, then non-financial assets, followed by liabilities, to arrive at the net assets or 

net liabilities position 

• The statement of operations would be renamed as the statement of surplus or deficit; 

• The statement of remeasurement gains and losses would be expanded to reconcile the balances of and changes in all the components of net 
assets or net liabilities and it would be renamed as the statement of changes in net assets or net liabilities; 

• Financing activities would be isolated in the statement of cash flows; 

• The statement of changes in net debt would be removed; and 

• The budget amounts on the financial statements would be presented using the same basis of accounting, following the same accounting 
principles. for the same scope of activities, and using the same classifications as the actual amounts. 

170170



In March 2019, the PSAB received a high-level summary of the comments received from stakeholders on the Statement of Concepts and the 
Statement of Principles. As it deliberates the feedback, PSAB is developing two exposure drafts (one for a revised conceptual framework and one 
for a revised reporting model), which it expects to issue in 2020. 

171171



Appendix H - Auditing developments 

Canadian Auditing Standards (CASs) and other Canadian Standards issued by the AASB 

Amendments to CAS 701 , Communicating Key Audit Matters in the Independent Auditor's Report 

New reporting standards were required to be applied for audits of entities with periods ending on or after December 15, 
2018. One of the updated standards, CAS 701 , dealt with the requirements when the auditor would be communicating 
matters judged to be most significant to the audit in the audit report, either because the auditor had chosen to do so or 
because law or regulation required key audit matters to be described in the auditor's report. 

In late 2019, the AASB finalized further amendments to the auditor reporting standards such that auditors would be 
required to communicate key audit matters in the auditor's report for complete sets of general purpose financial statements 
of entities listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (TSX) and other listed entities, excluding entities required to comply with 
National Instrument 81-106 Investment Fund Continuous Disclosure ("NI 81 -106"). 

CSAE 3530 - Special Considerations - Attestation Engagements to Report on Compliance and CSAE 3531 -
Special Considerations - Direct Engagements to Report on Compliance 

These standards set out specific requirements and application material applicable when applying CSAE 3000 or CSAE 
3001 (discussed above) , as appropriate, to engagements to report on compliance. 

CSAE 3530 and CSAE 3531 wil l replace the following sections: 

Section 5800 - Special Reports - Introduction 

Section 5815 - Auditor's Reports on Compliance with Agreements, Statutes and Regulations 

• Section 8600 - Reviews of Compliance with Agreements and Regulations 

Paragraphs PS 5300. 11-13 of Auditing for Compliance with Legislative and Related Authorities in the Public Sector 

The public interest considerations behind this project are to improve consistency in how practitioners perform these types 
of engagements and to require more transparency and clarity in reporting. 

Effective date 

The communication of key audit 
matters in the auditor's report is 
required for audits of entities 
listed on the TSX, other than 
entities required to comply with 
NI 81-106, for periods ending on 
or after December 15, 2020 and 
for other listed entities, other than 
entities required to comply with 
NI 81-106, for periods ending on 
or after December 15, 2022. 

CSAE 3530 and CSAE 3531 are 
effective for compliance reports 
dated on or after April 1, 2019, 
with early adoption permitted. 

172172



Canadian Auditing Standards {CASs) and other Canadian Standards approved by the AASB but not issued 

Revisions to CAS 315 Identifying and Assessing Risks of Material Misstatement 

In July 2018, the IAASB issued an Exposure Draft proposing changes to ISA 315 that could drive more consistent and 
effective identification and assessment of the risks of material misstatement by auditors. The AASB published an Exposure 
Draft of the equivalent Canadian standard, which included the same proposed revisions as the ISA with no Canada
specific amendments. The revised CAS 315 has been approved and is expected to be issued in the May 2020 CPA 
Canada handbook update. Key amendments to the standard include the following: 

Focusing on the applicable financial reporting framework in identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement 

Updating the understanding of the system of internal control, including clarifying the work effort for understanding each 
of the components of internal control and "controls relevant to the audit", as well as the relationship between this 
understanding and the assessment of control risk 

Updating aspects relating to IT, in particular to the IT environment, the applications relevant to the audit and general IT 
controls relevant to the audit 

Introducing the new concepts of Inherent risk factors, relevant assertions. significant classes of transactions, account 
balances and disclosures, and the spectrum of inherent risk 

Separating the inherent risk and control risk assessments for assertion level risks, enhancing the requirements relating 
to financial statement level risks, and updating the definition of "significant risks" 

Effective date 

Periods beginning on or after 
December 15, 2021 . 

Non-authoritative Guides, Practice Notes, Bulletins and Risk Alerts 
Non-authoritative Guidance issued during the year Issued 

None. 

173173



 
   
 Corporate Services Department 
 Financial Services Division 
 

Report Number:  2020-154 Date:  November 9, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Cancellation, Reduction or Refund of Realty Tax  
 
1) PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this report is to seek approval of Council in order to cancel, reduce or 
refund realty tax of the applicant in accordance with the recommendations of the 
Municipal Property Assessment Corporation (MPAC) Assessor. 
  
2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES 
 
Under section 357/358 of the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended, an application to 
Council may be made by the taxpayer for the cancellation, reduction or refund of tax 
levied in the current and previous year for specific purposes. In some cases, a review 
may increase the property assessment and increase a property’s tax levied. 
 
Once an application is received from a taxpayer under Section 357/358 and processed 
by staff, the application is forwarded to MPAC for a revised assessment 
recommendation. These applications are then returned to the municipality for staff to 
calculate the amount of cancellation or adjustment of taxes. 
 
Section 357 Application Numbers 2020-01, 2020-04, 2020-05 and 2020-200 were 
received and are in the Treasurer’s possession. 

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS 
 
The attached summary report encompasses the applications received to date for 
submission to Council for approval. 
 
Staff recommends Council approval of the recommendation of the MPAC assessor for 
the Section 357 applications. It is a rarity that the taxpayer challenges any 
recommendation, however, if such did occur, staff would request MPAC to attend the 
committee meeting to defend or amend the recommendation. Staff have received no 
objections from the taxpayers. 
 
4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  
 
Application numbers 2020-01, 2020-04, 2020-05 and 2020-200 under Section 357/358 
require Council’s approval. The total amount of reduction or cancellation of taxes is 
$6,631.21, of which $2,720.52 is the municipal portion. 

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES 
 
Not applicable.

174174



Corporate Services Department, Financial Services Division, Report No. 2020-154 Page 2 of 2 
 

6)  ATTACHMENTS 
 
Appendix A – Calculation of adjustments based on the Assessor’s reports and 
comments 
 
7) RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the applications pursuant to Section 357/358 of the Municipal Act, 2001, as 
amended, numbered 2020-01, 2020-04, 2020-05 and 2020-200 be approved to cancel 
or reduce taxes in the total amount of $6,631.21. 

8)  SIGNATURES 
 
Prepared on October 16, 2020  by: 

 
 

Reviewed by:  

  
Andrea Hawkins Stephen Corr 
Tax Clerk Manager of Revenue & Taxation 
  
Reviewed and respectfully submitted by: Reviewed by: 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. Scott Luey Bryan Boles 
Chief Administrative Officer Director of Corporate Services 
 

175175



CITY OF PORT COLBORNE

Report # 2020‐154

Section Application Effective Roll # Tax Assessment Waste School
Reason No. Date Address Class Change Total Adj Municipality Region Mgmt Board

357 2020-01 01-Jan-20 2711-030-032-13000-0000 RTEP (77,500.00)      (1,315.91)    (680.03)         (447.94)       (69.37) (118.57)         
692 Elm St.

357 2020-04 01-Jan-20 2711-030-032-13100-0000 CT (80,000.00)      (2,928.27)    (1,217.84)      (802.20)       (124.24) (784.00)         
700 Elm St

357 2020-05 24-Jan-20 2711-040-004-23701-0000 CT (12,000.00)      (412.77)       (171.67)         (113.08)       (17.51) (110.51)         
266 Chippawa Rd RTEP (5,000.00)        (79.79)         (41.23)           (27.16)         (4.21) (7.19)             

357 2020-200 01-Jan-20 2711-020-008-02800-0000 CT (100,000.00)    (3,660.34)    (1,522.30)      (1,002.75)    (155.29) (980.00)         
01-Jan-20 211 Welland St RT 104,000.00     1,765.87     912.55 601.10        93.09         159.12          

Total (6,631.21)    (2,720.52)      (1,792.03)    (277.53) (1,841.15)      

Report 2020-154
Appendix A

176176



  Department: Planning and Development 

Report Number:  2020-167 Agenda Date:  November 9, 2020 
      

SUBJECT: Development Charges By-law Amendment 

1) PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this report is to provide a requested consideration to amend the existing 
Development Charges By-law (“DCB”).  

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES: 

At the October 26, 2020 Council meeting, Councillor Bruno brought forward a request to 
amend the residential component of the DCB for single detached dwellings to align with 
the Niagara Region’s DCB indexing date. 

The Niagara Region’s DCB indexing date begins January 1 of each year and includes 
their annual increase under the by-law. The City’s DCB coincides with the date of its 
approval and dates when a percentage waiver decreases. 

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS: 

Clause 3.11(b) of the DCB provides the following dates on what percentage of charges 
are to be collected on Building Permits for single detached dwellings: 

 

Staff has proposed the following amendments to the DCB: 

 

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 

Council can choose to make other changes to the DCB. 

177177



 
Department of Planning & Development, Report No.: 2020-167 Page 2 of 2 

 

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITATIVES: 

Not applicable.  

6) ATTACHMENTS: 

Appendix A - Proposed Amendment to the Development Charge By-law 
 
7) RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council approve the amendment to clause 3.11(b) of the Development 
Charge By-law 6733/97/19 as attached as Appendix A to Planning and Development 
Department Report No. 2020-167, Subject: Development Charges By-law Amendment. 

 
8) SIGNATURES:  

Prepared on October 29, 2020 by: 

 

Reviewed and Respectfully Submitted: 

 
 
 
Scott Luey  
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

178178



Report 2020-167 
Appendix A 

The Corporation of the City of Port Col borne 

By-Law No. ___ _ 

Being a By-law to Amend By-law 6733/97/19, Being a By-law to Impose Development Charges 
for the City of Port Colborne 

Whereas the Council of the City of Port Colborne passed By-law 6733/97 /19 on 
November 12, 2019; and 

Whereas Counci l wishes to further amend By-law 6733/97/19; and 

Whereas the Development Charges Act, S.O. 1997, c.27, as amended, (the 
"Act") provides that the Council of a municipality may amend a by-law imposing development 
charges; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Col borne enacts 
as fol lows: 

1. That Section 3.11 (b ), is hereby amended by replacing the existing residential 
percentage charge periods for single detached dwellings with the following: 

All Year1 Year2 Year3 Year4 

Residential October 7, 2019 - January 1, 2021 - January 1, 2021 - January 1, 2022 -

Services December 31, December 31 , December 31, December 31 , 

2020 2021 2022 2023 

20% 40% 60% 80% 

Enacted and passed this 9th day of November, 2020. 

William C Steele 
Mayor 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

Year 5 

January 1, 2023 -

October 6, 2024 

100% 

179179



 
Department of Planning & Development, Planning Division, Report No.: 2020-164 Page 1 of 7 
 
 
 

 
   
 Department: Planning and Development 
  
 

Report Number: 2020-166             Date: November 9, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Recommendation Report for Zoning By-law Amendment, Nyon Oil 

Inc., File D14-05-20 

1) PURPOSE: 
 
The purpose of the report is to provide Council with a recommendation regarding a Zoning 
By-law Amendment application submitted by Nyon Oil Inc. (Nyon). 
 
2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES 
 
In 2013, the then Ontario Municipal Board (OMB), now known as the Local Planning 
Appeal Tribunal (LPAT), approved the development of a 56-tank petroleum facility 
together with dry industrial development on adjoining lands. The approval was subject to 
a site-specific zoning which has been carried forward through the passing of the City of 
Port Colborne Zoning By-law 6575/30/18 on April 23, 2018. 
 
On November 2, 2020, Council received Planning and Development Report 2020-164, a 
Public Meeting Report for a proposed amendment to Zoning By-law 6575/30/18 for lands 
owned by Nyon. Nyon’s application was submitted by Niagara Planning Group along with 
a planning justification report.   

Nyon’s application proposes to alter the provisions of the HI-46-H zone to remove wording 
that requires the applicant to enter into a Site Plan Agreement and obtain approval for 
private servicing prior to the removal of the Holding provision (H) on the property. The 
Zoning By-law Amendment is being sought to allow the development process to continue 
with the Site Plan Agreement and private servicing being required after the H has been 
removed from the property. 
 
Prior to approval of the current HI-46-H zoning, the property was site specifically zoned 
“HI-X-HSP” on July 11, 2013, following a decision made by the Ontario Municipal Board 
(OMB) after holding an appeal hearing. The site-specific HI-46-H zoning matches the HI-
X-HSP zoning when a new zoning by-law was approved by the City in 2018: 
 
“Notwithstanding the provisions of the Heavy Industrial (HI) Zone, the following shall 
apply: 
 

a)      The provisions in Section 23 (HI – Heavy Industrial) of the City of Port 
 Colborne former Zoning By-law 1150/97/81 will continue to apply to the 
 lands zoned HI-46-H (Heavy Industrial - Holding). The permitted uses will 
 be restricted to a 56-tank petrochemical storage facility. 

180180



Department of Planning & Development, Planning Division, Report No.: 2020-166 Page 2 of 7 
 
 
 

 
b) The uses permitted in this By-law shall not occur until the Holding Symbol  

(H) on the HI-46-H (Heavy Industrial – Holding) zone is removed through 
 an amending By-law enacted by the City of Port Colborne. The Holding 
 Provision will be administered to provide Council with the authority to 
 ensure a Phase 2 Archaeological Study, a Geotechnical Study, a Noise 
 Study, an Air Quality Study, Site Access and Traffic Study, a Vibration 
 Study, a Tree Preservation Plan, an Environmental Impact Statement, and 
 a Risk Assessment Report have been undertaken to the satisfaction of the 
 City and appropriate approval authorities. Removal of the Holding Symbol 
 (H) may only occur when: 

 
i) The Owner enters into and registers on title a Site Plan Agreement 
 with the City  of Port Colborne which will include recommendations  

made in the supporting technical studies conducted in association 
 with the development application; 
ii) The above-mentioned technical studies and their recommendations 

  are satisfactory to the City of Port Colborne, 
iii) Prior to the City entering to the Site Plan Agreement, approval shall 

  be obtained from the applicable approval authority which identifies  
  an appropriate location and design for a private sewage disposal  
  system and private water supply system to adequately and   
  appropriately service the proposed use; and, 

iv) Meet Species at Risk requirements to the satisfaction of Ministry of  
  Natural Resources.” 

 
At the November 2, 2020, public meeting, comments from the Region of Niagara and 
from Wendy Bover (no address provided) were presented as well as a virtual delegation 
from Bonnie Fokkens, 13 Crescent Drive, Welland. Minutes of the meeting are attached 
hereto as Appendix A and answers to the public questions are provided under Staff 
Comments and Discussions below. 
 
3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS 
 
The application for Zoning By-law Amendment, accompanied by a planning justification 
report, proposes to alter the provisions of the HI-46-H zone to remove wording that 
requires the applicant to enter into a Site Plan Agreement, and obtain approval for 
private servicing prior to the removal of the Holding provision (H) on the property. The 
Zoning By-law Amendment is being sought to allow the development process to 
continue with the Site Plan Agreement and private servicing being required after the H 
has been removed from the property. 
 
Nyon has worked with City staff since the OMB decision was released in 2013. Presently, 
Nyon is in the process of completing the required studies to satisfy the holding provision 
in place on their lands and are nearing completion to be peer reviewed by applicable 
agencies. Through the peer review process, it has become apparent that the only way 
the City/Applicant can implement the recommendations of the studies and peer reviewers 

181181



Department of Planning & Development, Planning Division, Report No.: 2020-166 Page 3 of 7 
 
 
 

is through the Site Plan Agreement. The servicing implementation is a process that is 
undertaken through the Site Plan Control application. 
 
Nyon’s application for a Zoning By-law Amendment proposes a technical refinement to 
change the HI-46-H zone by removing the following clauses: 
 

b) i) The Owner enters into and registers on title a Site Plan Agreement  with 
 the City of Port Colborne which will include recommendations  

made in the supporting technical studies conducted in association with the 
development application; 

and; 
iii) Prior to the City entering to the Site Plan Agreement, approval shall  
 be obtained from the applicable approval authority which identifies   
 an appropriate location and design for a private sewage disposal   
 system and private water supply system to adequately and    
 appropriately service the proposed use; 

 
Presently, Nyon is in the process of completing the technical studies to the City’s 
satisfaction in order to support development of the 56-tank petroleum facility. 
 
A Planning Justification Report on the application was previously submitted by the 
Niagara Planning Group and they appeared on behalf of Nyon at the public meeting. 
Niagara Planning Group provided a planning overview on the complexity of Nyon’s plans 
for development and approvals that are in place to be met before development can begin. 

The Official Plan designation of Rural Employment supports the eventual development of 
the 56-tank petroleum storage and the current HI-46-H zoning permits this use. There is 
no land use conflict in supporting the technical zoning amendment. 
 
Niagara Planning Group also provided a policy review of the Provincial Policy Statement, 
the Growth Plan, Niagara Region Official Plan and the City of Port Colborne Official Plan  
 
Niagara Planning Group also opined that the proposed application should be approved 
as it represents good land use planning, is in the public interest, and should be supported 
for approval for the following reasons: 

 The proposed development is consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement, and 
conforms with the Growth Plan, the Niagara Region Official Plan and the City of 
Port Colborne Official Plan; 

 The technical rezoning is appropriate as the City of Port Colborne has Site Plan 
Control authority and will implement the study recommendations and the peer 
review recommendations through the Site Plan Agreement; 

 The study recommendations and the peer review recommendations can only be 
implemented through the Site Plan and Site Plan Agreement. The specific 
provision in the “HI-46-Site-Specific Zoning” (Clause b)i)) is no longer appropriate 
or necessary as the Site Plan process is the instrument to achieve the intent of the 
Zoning for the subject lands. The “H” Holding removal tied to the Site Plan 
Agreement is no longer necessary given the policies of the Regional Official Plan, 

182182



Department of Planning & Development, Planning Division, Report No.: 2020-166 Page 4 of 7 
 
 
 

the City Official Plan, and the City’s Site Plan administration process. 
 The removal of clause b)iii) is appropriate at this time as the private servicing 

solutions can only be finalized within the Site Plan/Agreement and implemented 
through a permit under the Building Code, consistent with the Site 
Plan/Agreement. Clause b) iii) should be deleted as it is not appropriate to confirm 
the servicing outside of the Site Plan/Agreement process. As Niagara Region, in 
accordance with its Official Plan policies, is part of the Site Plan process, there are 
normal and customary decision-making processes that address clause 

 
Nyon’s Response to Public Comments and City staff comments to questions 6 and 7 from 
Bonnie Fokkens: 

 Bonnie Fokkens: 

1. When is the anticipated start date?  
Answer: 6-18 months 

2. What are the thoughts of the St Lawrence Seaway and Transport Canada?   
Answer:  Nyon has been dealing with the St. Lawrence Seaway Authority for more than 
a decade. They are aware of the project and have communicated that they are looking 
forward to the economic benefits that will arise due to the increased shipping traffic. 
They’ve also advised that the St. Lawrence Seaway service road can be used for 
emergency access and they are supportive of drawing water from the canal for 
emergency services. We would note that in 2017, 8,938,000 metric tons of petroleum 
products were moved through the Great Lakes, St. Lawrence Seaway system, having a 
cargo value of $4,605,000,000 according to the Economic Impact of Marine Shipping. 

3. What is the mode of transportation - rail – road – water – or any combination of 
both?  

Answer:  The project will be using rail, truck and ship. 

a. If it is water – what are the designs along the Welland Canal for safe 
transportation and will the Welland Canal be modified to suit the transport 
of goods.  
Answer: The Welland Canal is regulated by the St. Lawrence Seaway 
Management Authority and they are responsible for the regulation and 
safe transport of all shipping of goods through the Canal. 
 

4. Can you confirm the product(s) that will be transported?  
Answer: Refined petroleum products and crude oil. 

5. Is there a report on the Blast Radius around the development?  
Answer: There is not a Blast Radius Report at this time. At the present time, the project 
lifecycle is between Phase I – Conceptual Design and Phase II – Feasibility and 
Detailed Specification stages. Upon completion of those steps, the team will enter into 

183183



Department of Planning & Development, Planning Division, Report No.: 2020-166 Page 5 of 7 
 
 
 

Phase III, which is the preliminary design where additional risk review will be completed 
using ‘What If’ analysis ‘HAZOP’ and ‘LOPA’. Upon completion of the preliminary 
design, the team will enter into Phase IV – Detailed Design where all of the risk reviews 
will be reviewed, revalidated and augmented, or added to, including Quantitative Risk 
Analysis to assess high consequence scenarios and/or high risk scenarios with the 
generation of risk contours for specific areas of concern (i.e. blast overpressure, heat 
generation, and toxic impact, if applicable). Based on the current status of the project, 
there is not sufficient details to the team to do semi-quantitative or fully-quantitative 
analyses. 

Nyon has prepared a thorough ‘Risk Assessment Plan – Process Hazard Analysis – 
What-If Report’, which has been completed by a qualified industry expert. This report 
has been peer reviewed by Associated Engineering on behalf of the City and is the 
highest level of analysis with respect to risk that can be prepared at this juncture. Nyon 
will continue to comply with all laws and regulations imposed by authorities having 
jurisdiction and established industry best practices going forward.  

a. Has it been made public to the residents?  
Answer:  If a Blast Radius Report is required, it will be completed and 
made available to the public. 

b. Has it been made public to neighboring Municipalities?  
Answer: If a Blast Radius Report is required, it will be completed and 
made available to the public. 

6. Have you received any comments from neighboring Municipalities? – What were 
they?  

City to Answer City staff can advise that there no comments from neighbouring 
municipalities. 

7. Is this meeting legal?  The Planning Act requires 20 days’ notice to the public 
and affected municipalities.  

a. The City of Welland received the notice on Oct 20, 2020 (as per Welland 
Staff). That is in contravention of the Planning Act.  

b. Signs were posted Oct 19th regarding the public Meeting on the City of 
Port Colborne’s web site. 

c. To meet the Planning Act requirements – notice should have been given 
and posted by Oct 14, 2020. 
  

Answer:  NPG staff posted the sign on the property as required by the City on 
October 13, 2020.  Photographs of the sign posting were taken on the day of 
posting and sent to the City.  It is our understanding that the City sent the notice 
as required; the City’s notice is dated October 7, 2020.  It is further our 
understanding that the City provided notice in accordance with the Planning Act. 

184184



Department of Planning & Development, Planning Division, Report No.: 2020-166 Page 6 of 7 
 
 
 

City staff in consultation with the City solicitor advises that Notices to members of the 
public and the posting of signage was done 21 days prior to the public meeting. 
The notice to the City of Welland was provided on October 20, 2020.  While this notice 
arguably falls short of the 20-day requirement, Welland staff acknowledged receipt of 
the notice and a member of Council appeared at the public meeting and made 
submissions. Therefore, there is no prejudice as a result of late notice. 

Wendy Bover: 

I.                     To avoid possible future legal issues should I be asking that the terms 
of the site plan agreement and private servicing be locked in place before 
allowing the development to proceed?   
Answer:  The Planning Act in Ontario requires the Site Plan Agreement be 
executed by the City and Nyon prior to any construction taking place.  The 
Site Plan and Site Plan Agreement will also stipulate the servicing (where it 
goes).  A permit for the servicing to be constructed is required and that permit 
can only be issued if the servicing plans are the same as the Site Plan/Site 
Plan Agreement. 

II.                   If I vote yes to proceed with the development without locking the 
agreement and servicing in place until a later date will it leave the city liable 
for the cost of any development that was done and does not meet the original 
agreement and servicing if it is decided to keep it as is at that later date?   
Answer:  The development cannot proceed until the Site Plan Agreement is 
signed by the City and Nyon.  As part of a Site Plan Agreement, the City will 
hold financial securities so that if the work is not done, the City will pay others 
using these financial securities to complete the work. 

III.                 Should I be asking all of the companies using this property to define 
exactly what is going to be stored and transported to and from this location, 
their explosive qualities, and the risks of shipping these products throughout 
the Great Lakes and St Lawrence Seaway?   
Answer: Nyon will follow the Canadian Society for Chemical Engineering 
Process Safety Management Guidelines and Best Practices to confirm all of 
the different components that will be stored on site, and their inventory levels, 
including key process safety information parameters, such as explosive limits, 
as determined by shippers, compliance with safety data sheets, and 
workplace health and management information systems (WHMIS) that will 
then be inputted into a thorough risk review. Nyon will comply with all laws 
and regulations imposed by jurisdictions have authority with respect to any 
products stored at the facility. 

Planning staff is in a position after having reviewed all comments, the application, the 
planning justification report, planning policies and all by-laws (Site Plan Control & 
Zoning) to recommend approval of Nyon’s technical amendment. 
 
 

185185



Department of Planning & Development, Planning Division, Report No.: 2020-166 Page 7 of 7 
 
 
 

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  
 
a) Do nothing 
 
Doing nothing is not a suggested option when considering an application made under the 
Planning Act. 
 
b) Other Options 
 
Not applicable. 

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES 
 
Not applicable. 
 
6)  ATTACHMENTS 
 
Appendix A - Draft Minutes of the Special Council Meeting 29-20 – Public Hearing 
Appendix B - Draft Zoning By-law Amendment 
Appendix C - Nyon Planning Justification Report 
Appendix D - Niagara Region comments 

7)  RECOMMENDATION 
 
That Council approve the Zoning By-law Amendment, attached hereto as Appendix 
“B” to allow the technical refinement to the HI-46-H zone;  
 
That the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to proceed with the giving of notice 
of passing of the By-laws, in accordance with the Planning Act; and 
 
That pursuant to the provisions of Section 34(17) of the Planning Act, no further  
notice of public meeting be required. 

 

8) SIGNATURES: 
 
Prepared on November 3, 2020 by: 

 

Reviewed & submitted by:  
 
 
 
 
C. Scott Luey 
Chief Administrative Officer 

  

 

 

186186



City of Port Colborne 

Report 2020-166 
Appendix A 

Special Council Meeting 29-20 - Public Hearing 
Minutes 

Date: November 2, 2020 

Time: 6:30 p.m. 

Place: Council Chambers, Municipal Offices, 66 Charlotte Street, Port Colborne 

Members Present: M. Bagu, Councillor (via Zoom) 
E. Beauregard, Councillor (via Zoom) 
G. Bruno, Councillor (via Zoom) 
R. Bodner, Councillor 
F. Danch, Councillor (via Zoom) 
A. Desmarais, Councillor 
D. Kalailieff, Councillor 
W. Steele, Mayor (presiding officer) 
H. Wells, Councillor 

Staff Present: D. Aquilina, Director of Planning & Development (via Zoom) 
A. LaPointe, Manager of Legislative Services/City Clerk 
S. Luey, Chief Administrative Officer 
C. Madden, Deputy Clerk 
C. Roome, Planning Technician (via Zoom) 
D. Schulz, Planner 

Also in attendance was one member of WeeStreem. 

1. Call to Order: 

Mayor Steele called the meeting to order. 

2. Confirmation of Agenda: 

No. 229 Moved by Councillor R. Bodner 
Seconded by Councillor H. Wells 

That the agenda dated November 2, 2020 be confirmed , as 
circulated or as amended. 

CARRIED 

187187



Minutes - Special Council Meeting 29-20 - Public Hearing Page 2 of 5 

3. Disclosures of Interest: 

Councillor Beauregard declared an indirect pecuniary interest with regard to 
Planning and Development Department, Planning Division, Report No. 2020-164, 
Subject: Public Meeting Report for Zoning By-law Amendment D14-05-20, Nyon 
Oil Inc.as he is employed by Sullivan Mahoney and the firm has provided legal 
advice with respect to this item. Councillor Beauregard refrained from discussing 
or voting on this item. 

4. Public Hearing Under the Planning Act: 

Application for Zoning By-law Amendment Planning and Development Department, 
Planning Division, Report No. 2020-164, Subject: Public Meeting Report for Zoning By
law Amendment D14-05-20, Nyon Oil Inc. 

(i) Purpose of Meeting: 

David Schulz advised that the purpose of this meeting, pursuant to Section 34 of the 
Planning Act, is to consider an application submitted by the agent, Niagara Planning 
Group, on behalf of the owner Nyon Oil Inc for the lands legally know as part of lots 
16,17,18 and 19, part of the road allowance between lots 16 and 17, part of the road 
allowance between lots 18 and 19 in the City of Port Colborne, Regional Municipality of 
Niagara. The property is municipally known as the Nyon Oil Lands, south of the CN rail 
line, West of highway 140 and East of Canal Road in the City of Port Colborne. 

(ii) Method of Notice: 

Notice of the Public Meeting was administered in accordance with Section 34 of 
the Planning Act, as amended, and Section 5 of Ontario Regulation 545/06. 

The Notice of Public Hearing was mailed to property owners within 120m of the property 
on October 13th. A sign was also posted on the property on October 13th and was also 
posted on the City's website and social media accounts 

Notice was circulated to required agencies including the Regional Municipality of 
Niagara. The Region states that this proposal is technical in nature and requested to 
allow the development approvals process to continue in a manner that will allow 
implementation of the recommendations of the required technical studies. The Region 
supported the proposed technical amendment. 

(iii) Explanation of Procedure to be Followed: 

Mr. Schulz advised that the procedure to be followed this evening will be to present 
Department of Planning & Development Report No. 2020-164, to hear any comments 
from the applicant, to receive questions of clarification from Council to the applicant or 
Planning Staff, to open the meeting to the public for comments and questions, to 

188188



Minutes - Special Council Meeting 29-20 - Public Hearing Page 3 of 5 

announce the requirements under the Planning Act for written notice of passage of the 
proposed zoning by-law amendment, and to provide a brief explanation of future 
meetings regarding the application 

(iv) Presentation of Application for Zoning By-law Amendment: 

At this time, Mr. Schulz presented highlights from the Planning and Development Public 
Hearing Report No. 2020-164. 

Mr. Schulz advised that the subject property is located south of the CN rail line, West of 
Highway 140 east of the Welland Canal and North of Forks Road. The property is 
currently vacant. The surrounding lands are industrial in nature however most remain 
undeveloped. The Official Plan designates the lands Rural Employment and the Zoning 
By-law designates the property as H-146-H. 

Prior to the Holding Provision removal, a number of requirements are needed from the 
applicant including the completion of several studies. 

The application for Zoning By-law Amendment proposes to alter the provisions of the 
Hl-46-H zone to remove wording that requires the applicant to enter into a site plan 
agreement and obtain approval for private servicing prior to the removal of the holding 
provision on the property. The Zoning By-law Amendment is being sought to allow the 
development process to continue with the site plan agreement and private servicing 
being required after the H has been removed from the property. 

(v) Comments of Applicant: 

Mr. Schulz invited the applicant to comment. 

Mary Lou Tanner proceeded to state that Nyon is not proposing to make any changes 
to the Zoning By-law, only to remove some of the clauses around lifting the Holding 
provision on the property. The applicant cannot register the Site Plan agreement as long 
as the H is on the site. As a result the applicant is asking for removal of clauses one and 
three. 

(vi) Questions of Clarification to Applicant/Planning Staff: 

Councilor Bruno questioned whether there is role in th is process for our legal counsel. 

Mr. Schulz advised that legal staff has been engaged in the process since the beginning 
of the approval. 

Councillor Bruno then asked about the current status of the peer review process. 

Mr. Schulz responded that studies are being submitted as they are being completed. 

189189



Minutes - Special Council Meeting 29-20 - Public Hearing Page 4 of 5 

Councillor Kalailieff questioned if the legal team has had any concerns so far. 

Mr. Schulz responded that this time the legal staff had no concerns but will be more 
involved with the Holding provision removal. 

Before opening the meeting to the public Mr. Schulz read the following cautionary 
statements: 

"If a person or public body does not make oral submissions at a public meeting or 
make written submissions to the City of Port Colborne before a decision on the 
proposed Zoning By-law Amendment is passed by Council , the person or public 
body is not entitled to appeal the decision of the City of Port Colborne Council to 
Local Planning Appeal Tribunal." 

And; 

"If a person or public body does not make oral submissions at a public meeting, or 
make written submission to the City of Port Colborne before a decision on the 
proposed Zoning By-law Amendments is passed by Council, the person or public 
body may not be added as a party to the hearing of an appeal before the Local 
Planning Appeal Tribunal unless, in the opinion of the Tribunal, there is reasonable 
grounds to do so." 

Mr. Schulz also advised that for any interested members of the public there is a 
sign-in sheet to request future notices regarding this application. 

(vii) Oral Presentations and/or Questions from the Public: 

At this time, Mr. Schulz invited any members of the public who wish to speak to 
the application to do so. 

Bonnie Folkens addressed Council. 
Ms. Folkens asked if a blast radius report would be included and if it would be 
available to the public. Mr. Schulz responded he was unsure if it had been 
submitted at that time but that it will be addressed in the recommendation report. 

Ms. Folkens asked what the start date would be of the operations of the property. 
Mr. Schulz advised that there was no exact time, but the applicant looks to lift the 
Holding provision in the near future which will provide a timeline. 

Ms. Folkens asked about what the main method of transport will be for the facility 
and asked for Mr. Schulz's thoughts on the St. Lawrence Seaway. Mr. Schulz 
responded that the methods of transportation are believed to be rail, water and 
transport but that it will be confirmed in the recommendation report and that the St. 
Lawrence Seaway will become more involved in the process when the Holding 
provision is removed. 

190190



Minutes - Special Council Meeting 29-20 - Public Hearing Page 5 of 5 

Ms. Folken's inquired about whether the shore bank along the canal would be 
modified. Mr. Schulz stated that he did not have an answer at that time and that it 
will be addressed to the recommendation report. 

Ms. Fokkens questioned the Notice requirements of the appl ication . 
Mr. Schulz provided a response regarding the Notice and that it was circulated in 
accordance with the Planning Act and Ontario Regulation . 

(viii) Announcement Respecting Written Notice of Passage of Zoning By-law 
Amendment: 

Mr. Schulz advised that if anyone wishes "to be notified of the approval of the 
zoning by-law amendment they must make a written request to the clerk. Only 
those persons and public bodies that give the clerk a written request for the notice 
of the adoption and passing of a zoning by-law amendment will be given notice." 

(ix) Explanation of Future Meetings: 

Mr. Schulz advised that this concludes the Public Hearing Under The Planning Act. 
The proposed Zoning By-law Amendment will be placed on Council's agenda at a 
future date. 

No. 230 Moved by Councillor D. Kalailieff 
Seconded by Councillor A. Desmarais 

CARRIED 

(x) Adjournment: 

That Development Department, Planning Division, Report No. 
2020-164, Subject: Public Meeting Report for Zoning By-law 
Amendment D14-05-20, Nyon Oil Inc, be rece ived for 
information. 

Mayor Steele adjourned the meeting at approximately 7:00 p.m. 

William C. Steele 
Mayor 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

Minutes prepared by the Department of Planning and Development. 

191191



The Corporation of the City of Port Col borne 

By-law no. ___ _ 

Report 2020-166 
Appendix B 

Being a by-law to amend Zoning By-law 6575/30/18 respecting lands legally 
described as Part of Lots 16, 17, 18 and 19, part of the road allowance between 
Lots 16 and 17, part of the road allowance between Lots 18 and 19, in the City of 

Port Colborne, Regional Municipality of Niagara. The property is municipally 
known as the Nyon Oil lands generally south of the CN Rail lane, west of 

Highway 140 and east of Canal Road in the City of Port Colborne. 

Whereas By-law 6575/30/18 is a by-law of The Corporation of the City of 
Port Colborne restricting the use of land and the location and use of buildings and 
structures; and 

Whereas, the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 
desires to amend the said by-law. 

Now therefore, and pursuant to the provisions of Section 34 of the Planning 
Act, R.S.O. 1990, The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne enacts as follows: 

1. This amendment shall apply to those lands described on Schedule "A" 
attached to and forming part of this by-law. 

2. The Special Provision: Hl-46-H of Section 37.2 entitled Special Provisions 
of Zoning By-law 6575/30/18, as amended, is hereby further amended by 
removing provision b) i) and b) iii) which read : 

i) The Owner enters into and registers on title a Site Plan Agreement 
with the City of Port Colborne which will include recommendations 
made in the supporting technical studies conducted in association 
with the development application; 

ii) Prior to the City entering to the Site Plan Agreement, approval shall 
be obtained from the applicable approval authority which identifies 
an appropriate location and design for a private sewage disposal 
system and private water supply system to adequately and 
appropriately service the proposed use; 

3. That this by-law shall come into force and take effect on the day that it is 
passed by Council, subject to the provisions of the Planning Act. 

192192



4. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to proceed with the giving 
notice of the passing of this by-law, in accordance with the Planning Act. 

Enacted and passed this __ day of _______ _ 

William C. Steele 
Mayor 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

193193



ID-4 7-H 

ID-4 7-H 

ID-4 7-H 

RU 

FORKS ROAD 
~ 
<I: 
D 
Cl! 

Cl! 
w 

ID 
B 
z 
Vl 

THIS IS SCHEDULE "A" TD. BY-LA'v/ ND. 
PASSED THE 2nd DAY OF NOVEMBER 9~-2020~-----

MAYOR 

CLERK 

C\-ty of wellnnd 

ID-4 7-H 

Lyon creek D o.in 

ID-47-H 

RU A 

~ TECHNIC~6 REFINEMENT TD HI-46-~ 
Rer1oving provision b) i) o.nd b) iii) 

AR 

NOT TD SCALE FILE ND. D14-05-20 

NOVEMBER 9, 2020 

194194

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS IS SCHEDULE "A" TO BY-LAW NO.___________

AutoCAD SHX Text
PASSED THE 2nd DAY OF NOVEMBER 9, 2020.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAYOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLERK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOVEMBER 9, 2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
TECHNICAL REFINEMENT TO HI-46-H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Removing provision b) i) and b) iii)  

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NO. D14-05-20

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RU

AutoCAD SHX Text
RU

AutoCAD SHX Text
RU

AutoCAD SHX Text
RU

AutoCAD SHX Text
ID

AutoCAD SHX Text
RU

AutoCAD SHX Text
RU

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
RU

AutoCAD SHX Text
RU

AutoCAD SHX Text
HI-46-H

AutoCAD SHX Text
ID-47-H

AutoCAD SHX Text
ID-47-H

AutoCAD SHX Text
ID-47-H

AutoCAD SHX Text
ID-47-H

AutoCAD SHX Text
HI-46-H

AutoCAD SHX Text
HI-46-H

AutoCAD SHX Text
HI-46-H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORKS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SNIDER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
KLEINSMITH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHWAY 140

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY RAIL LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ID-47-H

AutoCAD SHX Text
HI-46-H

AutoCAD SHX Text
ID-47-H

AutoCAD SHX Text
ID-47-H

AutoCAD SHX Text
ID-47-H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lyons Creek Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text
City of Welland

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELLAND CANAL



Planning Justification Report 

Zoning By-law Amendment Application 

Lands generally south of the CN Rail Line, west of 
Highway 140, and east of the Welland Canal, City of Port 
Colborne 

For:  Nyon Oil Inc. 

By:  Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc. 
4999 Victoria Avenue 
Niagara Falls, ON 

 L2E 4C9 
 October 2020 

Report 2020-166
Appendix C

195195



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

 
Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc. 
October 2020 
 

 

Table of Contents 
 

1.  Introduction ......................................................................... 1 

2.  Description of the Subject Lands and Surrounding Area 2 

3.  Proposed Development and Zoning By-law Amendment 
Application ........................................................................... 5 

3.1   Proposed Development ...................................................................... 5 

3.2   Proposed Rezoning Application .......................................................... 8 

4.  Planning Policy Framework ............................................. 10 

4.1   Provincial Policy Statement (2020) ................................................... 10 

4.2   Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe (2019) .................... 12 

4.3   Niagara Region Official Plan (2014) ................................................. 14 

4.4   City of Port Colborne Official Plan (Office Consolidation 2017) ........ 16 

5.  Zoning ................................................................................ 18 

6.  Zoning By-law Amendment Application ......................... 19 

7.  Summary of Planning Analysis ....................................... 21 

8.  Conclusion ......................................................................... 23 

9.   Appendices ........................................................................ 24 

196196



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

 
Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc. 
October 2020 
 

Appendix A – Sketch of Proposed Development ....................................... 24 

Appendix B – Regional Official Plan Schedules ......................................... 25 

Appendix C – City of Port Colborne Official Plan Schedules ..................... 26 

Appendix D – City of Port Colborne Zoning By-law ................................... 27 

Appendix E – Status of Supporting Studies ............................................... 29 

Appendix F – Draft Zoning By-law ............................................................. 31 

 

197197



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  1 
October 2020 

1. Introduction  
 
Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc. are planning consultants to Nyon Oil Inc., owners of 
the Subject Lands which are approximately 76.8 hectares of land generally south of the 
CN Rail line, west of Highway 140 and east of Canal Road in the City of Port Colborne. 
The lands are legally described as Part of Lot 16, Part of Lot 17, Part of Lot 18, Part of 
Lot 19, part of the Road Allowance Between Lots 16 and 17 (closed by by-law 
3412/143/196; Inst. No. R0719834) Part of the Road Allowance Between Lots 18 & 19 
(closed by by-law 34 12/143/196: inst. No. R0719834), City of Port Colborne; Regional 
Municipality of Niagara.  

The Subject Lands are currently zoned “HI-46-H” in the City of Port Colborne’s 
Comprehensive Zoning By-law 6575-30-18 (the City’s Zoning By-law) which permits the 
development of a 56-tank petroleum storage facility. NPG has been retained to provide 
professional planning advice on this application.   

The application is a technical rezoning to remove two clauses from the existing zoning 
provisions.  This technical rezoning allows the required studies and the Site Plan 
Agreement to proceed independently and as contemplated in the Ontario Municipal Board 
decision approving this development. The technical rezoning further implements the 
private servicing through the normal and customary processes for the City of Port 
Colborne and Niagara Region. 

  

198198



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  2 
October 2020 

2. Description of the Subject Lands and Surrounding Area 
 
As shown in “Figure 1 - Aerial Context”, the Subject Lands are located on the east side 
of the Welland Canal south of the CN Railway Line. The Subject Lands have frontage of 
approximately 464 metres on Highway 140 and a total area of approximately 76.8 
hectares.  

Nyon Oil Inc. owns the Subject Lands which are currently zoned as “HI-46-H” and a 
related company owns the adjoining land which is zoned “ID-47-H” in the City’s Zoning 
by-law. Only the lands zoned “HI-46-H” are the subject of this rezoning application and 
are referred to as the “Subject Lands”.  

Figure 1 – Aerial Context & Surrounding Land Uses 

 

The subject lands are currently vacant. The surrounding uses are as follow: 

North:  Open Space and CN Railway Line 
South:  Vacant Rural Employment and Environmental Protection 
East:   Agriculture 
West:   Welland Canal 

 
  

199199



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  3 
October 2020 

Photo 1 – Subject Lands viewed from Highway 140 with the CN Rail line on the right.  

 

 

Photo 2 – Subject Lands viewed from further south of Highway 140. 

 

 

  

200200



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  4 
October 2020 

Photo 3 – Agricultural land east of the Subject Lands and across Highway 140. 

 

 

  

201201



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  5 
October 2020 

3. Proposed Development and Zoning By-law Amendment 
Application 

 

3.1  Proposed Development 
 
Nyon Oil Inc. has received Ontario Municipal Board approval to develop a 56-tank 
petroleum storage facility on approximately 76.8 hectares of the Subject Lands as shown 
in Figure 1. A portion of the Subject Lands, measuring approximately 19.8 hectares, falls 
within the Species At Risk habitat and is not proposed for development at this time. This 
area shown as Species At Risk will be identified and confirmed through the future Site 
Plan and Site Plan Agreement upon approval of the Environmental Impact Statement for 
the Subject Lands. There will be no development on lands identified as Species At Risk 
inside the developable lands until alternative habitat has been established and approved 
by the Ministry of Environment Conservation and Parks, in accordance with the Ministry’s 
requirements. Please see the enclosed Site Layout diagram regarding Species At Risk 
area within the Subject Lands. 
 
To implement the approved development, Nyon Oil Inc. is proposing a technical rezoning 
for the lands which are currently zoned “HI-46-H” in the City’s Zoning By-law. This 
technical rezoning will allow implementation of the development of the Subject Lands 
through the future Site Plan and Site Plan Agreement. It is important to note that there 
are no changes proposed to the permitted uses in the “HI-H-46” zoned lands.  The 
proposed 56-tank petroleum facility is a permitted land use and conforms to the Zoning 
By-law as approved by the Ontario Municipal Board decision of July 2013. 
 
The purpose of the technical rezoning application is two-fold: 
 

i. A technical amendment to remove Clause b)i) of the Site-Specific Zoning “HI-46-
H” to remove the requirement for the Site Plan Agreement to be finalized and 
registered on title prior to the “H” Holding provision being removed by the City; and, 

ii. A second technical amendment to remove Clause b)iii) which requires approval 
prior to the Site Plan Agreement for private servicing of the subject lands. 

 
This technical rezoning is being sought as the City of Port Colborne Zoning By-law 
currently has four conditions for removal of the “H” Holding provision.  The two conditions 
identified above are no longer necessary. The zoning for the Subject Lands will be 
implemented through a series of inter-related actions that are within the jurisdiction of the 
Site Plan and Site Plan Agreement:  
 

202202



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  6 
October 2020 

 The technical studies as required in the zoning for the Subject Lands are part of 
the Site Plan process.  The City is undertaking an independent peer review of the 
supporting studies to confirm the completeness of the work and any additional 
recommendations which may be required.   

 The applicable agencies have been identified either through their own Official Plan 
(Niagara Region) as being part of the Site Plan process and the jurisdiction of the 
NPCA and MNR (now MECP) regarding their areas of authority.  The text of 
paragraph b) of the Site-Specific Zoning for the Subject Lands clearly ties the 
studies to decisions by the approval authorities. 

 As a result of the above, the implementation of the approved Zoning for the 
Subject Lands will occur through the studies, the recommendations, the peer 
review results, and agency approval.  It is the process of the study approval that 
is the critical component of implementing the approved land use and development 
of the Subject Lands.  

 The recommendations from the studies and the peer review can only be 
implemented through the Site Plan and Site Plan Agreement.  Given the 
submission of the studies to the City for the peer review, the ongoing peer review, 
and the agency participation in the Site Plan process, requiring the Site Plan and 
Site Plan Agreement to be registered on title prior to removal of the “H” Holding 
provision is no longer necessary.  Development can only occur when the Site Plan 
is finalized as the entire City of Port Colborne is a Site Plan Control Area per the 
City’s Official Plan. 

 The private servicing of the subject lands can only be determined through the Site 
Plan process and finalization of the Site Plan Agreement. The location and 
servicing solution is an integrated decision as part of the review of the studies, the 
site design, and implementation of the recommendations from the studies. 
Approval of the servicing can only be finalized once the Site Plan Agreement is 
concluded yet the wording of the specific clause requires approval prior to the Site 
Plan Agreement being finalized.  It will not be possible to fulfill this requirement as 
currently worded. More importantly, there are existing processes and 
requirements that achieve the same outcome of the required servicing approval 
(Site Plan/Agreement and Building Code permit) and it is appropriate to use those 
existing processes. 
 
 

Thus, the technical rezoning is sought as the studies and their recommendations will be 
addressed within the Site Plan process and the normal and customary processes will be 
used for the servicing.  The intent of the Zoning By-law is still met as the City of Port 
Colborne and appropriate approval authorities retain the ability to ensure the required 

203203



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  7 
September 2020 

supporting studies and their recommendations have been satisfactorily undertaken and 
the Site Plan Agreement will achieve this.   
 
The Region of Niagara Official Plan designates the Subject Lands as Rural Area in 
Schedule A – Regional Structure and Rural Employment Lands in Schedule G2 – Niagara 
Economic Gateway Employment Lands (See “Appendix B – Regional Official Plan 
Schedules”). Section 3.B.2.6 of the Regional Official Plan specifically addresses how the 
Rural Employment Lands are to be developed with specific policies for the Rural 
Employment Lands in the City of Port Colborne. 
 
The City of Port Colborne Official Plan designates the Subject Lands as Rural 
Employment in the “Schedule A – City Wide General Land Use Plan” (“Appendix C – City 
of Port Colborne Official Plan Schedules”).  Section 3.12 of the City’s Official Plan includes 
policies that address the development of Rural Employment Lands. 
 
The City of Port Colborne Zoning By-law 6575/30/18 zones the Subject Lands as a “HI-
H-46”  Zone (See “Appendix D – City of Port Colborne Zoning By-law Map”). This Site-
Specific zone permits the 56-tank petroleum facility with requirements for several studies 
to be completed and a Site Plan approved by the City of Port Colborne. An “H” (Holding) 
provision is included in the Zoning By-law which includes conditions that must be fulfilled 
prior to the removal of it.  The By-law reads as follows: 
 
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Heavy Industrial (HI) Zone, the following shall apply:  
 
a)  The provisions in Section 23 (HI – Heavy Industrial) of the City of Port Colborne former 
Zoning By-law 1150/97/81 will continue to apply to the lands zoned HI-46-H (Heavy 
Industrial - Holding). The permitted uses will be restricted to a 56-tank petrochemical1 
storage facility.  
 
b)  The uses permitted in this By-law shall not occur until the Holding Symbol (H) on the 
HI-46-H (Heavy Industrial – Holding) zone is removed          
through an amending By-law enacted by the City of Port Colborne. The Holding Provision 
will be administered to provide Council with the authority to ensure a Phase 2 
Archaeological Study, a Geotechnical Study, a Noise Study, an Air Quality Study, Site 
Access and Traffic Study, a Vibration Study, a Tree Preservation Plan, an Environmental 
Impact Statement, and a Risk Assessment Report have been undertaken to the 
satisfaction of the City and appropriate approval authorities. Removal of the Holding 
Symbol (H) may only occur when:  

 
1 Petrochemical is commonly known as petroleum. 

204204



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  8 
September 2020 

 
i) The Owner enters into and registers on title a Site Plan Agreement with the City 
of Port Colborne which will include recommendations made in the supporting 
technical studies conducted in association with the development application;  

ii)  The above mentioned technical studies and their recommendations are 
satisfactory to the City of Port Colborne,  

iii)  Prior to the City entering to the Site Plan Agreement, approval shall be obtained 
from the applicable approval authority which identifies an appropriate location and 
design for a private sewage disposal system and private water supply system to 
adequately and appropriately service the proposed use; and,  

iv)  Meet Species at Risk requirements to the satisfaction of Ministry of Natural 
Resources.2  

 
In 2013 the proposal for the 56-tank petroleum facility together with Dry Industrial 
development on adjoining lands owned by Nyon Oil was the subject of an Ontario 
Municipal Board hearing. The Board approved the development subject to the Site-
Specific zoning which has been carried forward into the City’s Zoning By-law and is 
quoted above. 
 

3.2  Proposed Rezoning Application 
 
Nyon Oil Inc. has worked with the City of Port Colborne to implement the requirements of 
the Ontario Municipal Board decision and the Zoning By-law for the Heavy Industrial 
Zoned Lands (“HI-46-H”). The required studies have been underway since the Ontario 
Municipal Board decision and have been submitted to the City for the peer review 
process. Appendix E to this report provides a summary of the required supporting studies’ 
status. The studies have been submitted to the City of Port Colborne; the City has 
engaged Associated Engineering (AE) to peer review the studies on behalf of the City. 
Through the work of completing the various studies, it has become clear that the only 
mechanism to implement the study recommendations, together with any peer review 
recommendations, is through the Site Plan and the Site Plan Agreement. 
 
With the understanding now that the study recommendations will be implemented through 
the Site Plan and Site Plan Agreement, the component of the current zoning provisions 
for the Subject Lands is no longer required – tying removal of the “H” Holding symbol to 
the completion and registration of the Site Plan Agreement and servicing approval prior 

 
2 It is noted that the applicable Ministry of the Ontario government is now the Ministry of Environment, 
Conservation, and Parks. 

205205



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  9 
October 2020 

and the wording of the zoning for the Subject Lands support implementing the studies 
through the approval authorities and the City of Port Colborne.  There is no longer a need 
to require the Site Plan and Site Plan Agreement to be finalized prior to removing the “H” 
Holding provision as contemplated in clause b)i) above as other provisions of the Zoning 
for the Subject Lands will achieve the development and implementation of the 
recommendations of the studies and peer review. Further, as the Site Plan Agreement is 
the process to finalize and authorize the private servicing solution, approval of the 
servicing can only occur within the Site Plan and Site Plan Agreement.  A servicing permit 
from the Region of Niagara, on behalf of the City of Port Colborne, under the Building 
Code, is the appropriate sequencing of the approval process and is the normal and 
customary process for these approvals. 
 
This rezoning application is submitted with two components requested for approval in 
the order listed below: 
 

1. Removal of clause b)i) from the Site -Specific Zoning By-law for the Subject 
Lands; 

2. Removal of clause b)iii) from the Site-Specific Zoning By-law for the Subject 
Lands. 
 

  

206206



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  10 
October 2020 

4. Planning Policy Framework 
 
NOTE: This rezoning application is a technical rezoning only; as stated above 
there is no change in land use permissions for the subject lands.  However, as the 
Planning Act requires conformity for applications submitted under the Act, the following 
analysis addresses the Planning Policy Framework, the Rural Employment designations 
and how the technical rezoning  is consistent with and conform to the Planning Policy 
Framework. The Ontario Municipal Board decision for the subject lands was issued 
under the 2005 Provincial Policy Statement.  Thus, a review of the 2020 Provincial 
Policy Statement is required in accordance with the Planning Act. 
 

4.1  Provincial Policy Statement (2020) 
 
The Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) provides overall policy direction on matters of 
provincial interest related to land and development within the province of Ontario. It 
supports improved land use planning and management, contributing to a more efficient 
land use planning system, which seeks to ultimately protect resources of provincial 
interest, public health and safety, and to preserve and maintain the natural environment.  
 
Relevant Policies and Analysis 
 
1.1.4 Rural Areas in Municipalities  
 
Rural areas are important to the economic success of the Province and our quality of life. 
Rural areas are a system of lands that may include rural settlement areas, rural lands, 
prime agricultural areas, natural heritage features and areas, and other resource areas. 
Rural areas and urban areas are interdependent in terms of markets, resources and 
amenities. It is important to leverage rural assets and amenities and protect the 
environment as a foundation for a sustainable economy.  
 
1.1.4.1 Healthy, integrated and viable rural areas should be supported by:  

f)  promoting diversification of the economic base and employment opportunities through 
goods and services, including value-added products and the sustainable management or 
use of resources;  

h) conserving biodiversity and considering the ecological benefits provided by nature; 
 
The PPS identifies that a diversified economic base in Rural Areas is important for a 
sustainable economy.  The Subject Lands are designated Rural Employment in the 
Niagara Region Official Plan and the City of Port Colborne Official Plan. The Rural 

207207



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  11 
October 2020 

Employment designation and policies in both Official Plans supports rural economic 
development and the specific uses implemented through the City’s Zoning of the Subject 
Lands. 
 
Through an Environmental Impact Study which will be implemented through the Site Plan 
and Site Plan Agreement, the study has identified an area of land as Species At Risk 
habitat where the proposed development does not occur until alternative habitat has been 
established to the satisfaction of MECP. Therefore, the proposed development has taken 
steps to conserve the biodiversity and protected the ecological benefits provided by 
nature which will be implemented through the Site Plan and Site Plan Agreement. 
 
1.1.5 Rural Lands in Municipalities  
 
1.1.5.1   When directing development on rural lands, a planning authority shall apply the 
relevant policies of Section 1: Building Strong Healthy Communities, as well as the 
policies of Section 2: Wise Use and Management of Resources and Section 3: Protecting 
Public Health and Safety.  

1.1.5.6   Opportunities should be retained to locate new or expanding land uses that 
require separation from other uses.  

1.1.5.7  Opportunities to support a diversified rural economy should be promoted by 
protecting agricultural and other resource-related uses and directing non-related 
development to areas where it will minimize constraints on these uses. 
 
The proposed 56-tank petroleum use is a use of land that requires separation from other 
land uses.  The Subject Lands are located on the east side of the Welland Canal, 
separated from the City’s Settlement Area. This property provides a separation from other 
uses and is appropriate for the land use approved by the Ontario Municipal Board. The 
Subject Lands are currently vacant and the nearest agricultural land is across Highway 
140 east of the subject lands. As such, the proposal does not remove agricultural uses 
and does minimize potential constraints on nearby agricultural uses. 
 
In terms of Section 1 of the PPS, the following is confirmed: 
 

i. The lands implement Section 1.2.6 – Land Use Compatibility through providing 
separation from the City’s settlement area by locating the use in the Rural 
Employment Area, east of the Welland Canal;  

ii. Implementing the policies of Section 1.3 – Employment – through creating 
economic diversity in Port Colborne and Niagara Region; 

208208



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  12 
October 2020 

iii. The proposal also conforms with Section 1.6.8 – Transportation and Infrastructure 
Corridors as the proposed petroleum storage facility is highly compatible with and 
supportive of the long-term viability of the CN rail line to the north. The proposed 
development relies on the rail corridor for its supply-chain needs via a proposed 
spur line as well as rail off-loading infrastructure. 

iv. Conforming with Section 1.7 – Long Term Economic Prosperity through the lands 
being designated Rural Employment and being brought to development for 
economic prosperity. 

 
In terms of Section 2 of the PPS, the following is noted: 
 

i. For Natural Heritage, the Zoning for the Subject Lands, approved by the Ontario 
Municipal Board, requires an Environmental Impact Statement to be completed. 
The EIS has been completed and a 2020 update was also prepared. The EIS is 
the subject of one of the peer reviews by AE on behalf of the City of Port Colborne.  
Appropriate review will occur and the recommendations will be implemented 
through the Site Plan and Site Plan Agreement. 

ii. For Culture and Archaeology, Stage 1 and Stage 2 Archaeological Studies were 
completed. The Ministry of Heritage, Sport, Tourism and Culture Industries has 
confirmed in writing that the studies are sufficient for the subject lands. 

 
In terms of Section 3 of the PPS, the following is noted: there are no Natural Hazards or 
Man-Made Hazards on the subject lands.  This section of the PPS is not related to the 
development of the Subject Lands. The subject lands  
 
Based on the foregoing, the proposed development, as approved by the Ontario 
Municipal Board, is consistent with the general intent and policies of the PPS.  The 
technical rezoning supports implementation of the proposed development on the subject 
lands and is an administrative change.  As such, the rezoning application conforms to 
the PPS by supporting the approved development, which is in conformity to the PPS 
(2020). 
 
 

4.2  Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe (2019) 
 
The Growth Plan for the Greater Horseshoe, 2019 (The Growth Plan), builds on the 
policies set out in the Provincial Policy Statement, emphasizing well-designed 
development and supporting economic development and job growth. The intent of the 
Growth Plan is to promote economic growth, increase housing supply, create jobs and 

209209



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  13 
October 2020 

building communities that are healthy and affordable for people of all ages. The Growth 
Plan supports the achievement of complete communities that are “compact, transit-
supportive, and make efficient use of investments in infrastructure and public service 
facilities”. 
 
Relevant Policies and Analysis 
 
2.2.5 Employment 

1. Economic development and competitiveness in the GGH will be promoted by: 

a. making more efficient use of existing employment areas and vacant and 
underutilized employment lands and increasing employment densities; 

b. integrating and aligning land use planning and economic development goals 
and strategies to retain and attract investment and employment. 

2.2.9 Rural areas 
5. Subject to the policies in Section 4, development outside of settlement areas may be 

permitted on rural lands for: 

a. the management or use of resources; 

b. resource-based recreational uses; and 

c. other rural land uses that are not appropriate in settlement areas provided 
they: 

i. are compatible with the rural landscape and surrounding local land 
uses; 

ii. will be sustained by rural service levels; and 

iii. will not adversely affect the protection of agricultural uses and other 
resource-based uses such as mineral aggregate operations. 
 

The subject lands are designated Rural Employment in both the Niagara Region and the 
City Official Plans. The use of the lands for the 56-tank petroleum facility is consistent 
with the policies of A Place to Grow supporting development outside of the City’s 
settlement area as the uses are consistent with a resource focus, are compatible with the 
rural landscape, and will be sustained by rural service levels.  
      
Based on the foregoing, the development, as approved by the Ontario Municipal Board, 
is consistent with the general intent and policies of A Place to Grow.  The technical 
rezoning supports implementation of the proposed development on the subject lands 
and is an administrative change.  As such, the rezoning application conforms to A Place 
to Grow by supporting the approved development, which is in conformity to A Place to 
Grow. 

210210



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  14 
October 2020 

 
 

4.3  Niagara Region Official Plan (2014) 
 
The Niagara Region Official Plan (Regional Official Plan), designates the Subject Lands 
as Rural Employment Lands – Gateway Special Policy Area according to “Schedule G2 
– Niagara Economic Gateway Employment Lands” (refer to Appendix B).  
 
Relevant Policies and Analysis 
 
3.B.2.2  Rural employment lands shall be considered “dry industrial” and are to be 
serviced through sustainable private servicing only.  
 
3.B.2.3 Detailed land uses shall be identified in the Local Official Plan by way of 
amendment to the Local Official Plan. In all cases, uses shall be compatible with adjacent 
agricultural uses, planned agricultural uses and shall not negatively impact normal farm 
operations.  
 
3.B.2.6 The lands designated in the City of Port Colborne as “Rural Employment 
Lands - Gateway Special Policy Area” on Schedule G2 are subject to the following 
policies:  
 

a) The transportation infrastructure of Highway 140 is a unique characteristic of 
transportation service for these lands;  

b) Uses shall be only those which are considered to have minimal water and 
wastewater requirements. The lands may be eligible for future municipally provided 
water and wastewater services subject to the completion of the ongoing 
Environmental Assessment for the Welland Canal Green Manufacturing Zone 
area;  

c) Functional servicing reports and hydrogeological reports, at a minimum, shall be 
required to support these uses. Additional studies, as outlined in the Complete 
application policies of this Plan, shall also be required;  

d) The lands shall be subject to Site Plan Control and the Niagara Region will be 
circulated all Site Plan Control applications;  

e) The lands are in the vicinity of the Dain City area in the City of Welland and the 
applicable portions of Chapter 3.A regarding land use compatibility requirements 
shall apply;  

f) Lands that comprise the Babion Woodlot will be subject to an Environmental 
Impact Statement which will confirm the boundaries of the Woodlot and the 
Provincially Significant Wetland. Upon approval of the Environmental Impact 

211211



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  15 
October 2020 

Statement, the Woodlot and Wetland will be designated as “Environmental 
Protection Area” in this Plan without further amendment to this Plan. The balance 
of lands shall be designated “Rural Employment Lands – Gateway Special Policy 
Area” without further amendment to this Plan.  

g) Should the land budget completed as part of the Regional Comprehensive Review, 
at a future five year review of the Regional Official Plan, establish the need for 
additional urban employment land in the Gateway, priority will be given to the 
Gateway Special Policy area lands that are physically contiguous to urban 
employment lands in the Gateway to be included in the urban are and to be eligible 
for urban servicing.  

h) Should the lands immediately west of the Rural Employment Lands, in the vicinity 
of the Welland Canal, cease to be owned by the Government of Canada, the 
designation of “Rural Employment Lands” shall apply.  

 
Chapter 14 – Implementation of the Regional Official Plan, includes the following in 
the pre-amble: 
 
The Region, Local Municipalities, and the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority are 
committed to an integrated and seamless planning system which is characterized by: 
 
  5. Streamlined processes and elimination of duplication 
 
The 56-tank petroleum facility is a permitted use in the Official Plan in accordance with 
Policy 3.B.2.3 and is a dry industrial use.  The approved land use also implements the 
specific policies for the Rural Employment Lands – Gateway Special Policy Area. Based 
on the foregoing, the development, as approved by the Ontario Municipal Board and 
being implemented through the Site Plan and Site Plan Agreement, is consistent with the 
general intent and policies of the Niagara Region Official Plan, including the specific policy 
that requires Niagara Region to be part of the Site Plan process.  Servicing policies 
require private servicing and minimal water/wastewater requirements.  The Site Plan 
Agreement will finalize these details. 
 
The technical rezoning addresses implementation of the proposed development on the 
subject lands and is an administrative change only.  This is consistent with the Regional 
Official Plan provisions that support a streamlined development process to remove 
duplication.  As such, the rezoning application conforms to Niagara Region Official Plan 
by supporting the approved development, which is in conformity to Niagara Region 
Official Plan. 
 
 

212212



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  16 
October 2020 

4.4  City of Port Colborne Official Plan (Office Consolidation 2017) 
 

The Subject Lands are designated “Rural Employment” on Schedule A – City Wide Land 
Use Plan (Appendix C – “City of Port Colborne Official Plan Schedules”) of the City of 
Port Colborne Official Plan (Office Consolidation – September 2017) (City’s Official Plan). 
 
Relevant Policies and Analysis 
 
Section 3.12 – Rural Employment of the City’s Official Plan includes the following policies: 
 
The predominant uses of lands designated Rural Employment shall include, but not be 
limited to uses that are of a dry industrial nature, in that they are considered to have 
minimal water and wastewater requirements, and should be serviced through sustainable 
private servicing only. All new or expanding rural development shall demonstrate that the 
use cannot be located within the urban area due to land use compatibility issues and/or 
specific locational requirements, including proximity to key transportation infrastructure or 
the proposed use is related to the management or use of a resource and is required to 
be in close proximity to it.  
 
3.12.1 General Policies 
 
n)   Notwithstanding the policies of this Section, the uses and policies permitted on and 

applicable to the lands legally described as Part Lots 16,17,18 and 19, Concession 
5, and part of the Road Allowance between Lots 16 and 17 in Concession 5 and part 
of the Road Allowance between Lots 18 and 19 in Concession 5, formerly Township 
of Humberstone, now City of Port Colborne, Regional Municipality of Niagara, being 
Parts 1,2,3,4 and 5 of Reference Plan 59R-8816; Part of Lots 23,24 and 25, 
Concession 4, and Part of the Road Allowance between Lots 24 and 25, Concession 
4, (formerly Township of Humberstone), designated as Parts 1 and 2 on Reference 
Plan 59R-12468, Part lots 16,17,18 and 19, Concession 5, and Part of the Road 
Allowance between Lots 16 and 17 in Concession 5 and Part of the Road Allowance 
between Lots 18 and 19 in Concession 5, Formerly Township of Humberstone, 
County of Welland, Now City of Port Colborne, Regional Municipality of Niagara, 
being Parts 1,2, and 3 on Reference Plan 59R-12469 are as determined by the 
decision of Member J.V. Zuidema in Ontario Municipal Board (OMB) Case No. 
PL090828 as set forth in the Order of the OMB dated July 11, 2013 and attached as 
Appendix ‘A’ to this Plan.  

 
The proposed 56-tank petroleum facility is of a dry industrial nature and was approved in 
the order of the Ontario Municipal Board dated July 11, 2013.  The use complies with the 

213213



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  17 
October 2020 

policies and order of the OMB. The technical rezoning is an administrative matter that 
supports the implementation of the development that has been approved.   
 
Policy 11.3.2j) – Site Plan Control - of the City’s Official Plan states the following: 
 
“j)  Except where in conflict with the Policies contained herein, development proposals 
shall be consistent with the policies of the City’s Official Plan.” 
 
Policy 11.3.1 of the City’s Official Plan establishes the entire City of Port Colborne as a 
Site Plan Control Area. The proposed development will be subject to Site Plan Control.   
 
The City’s Official Plan requires development proposals to conform to the Official Plan 
and this is administered through Site Plan Control.  Site Plans must also conform to the 
Zoning By-law in accordance with the Planning Act. The technical rezoning implements 
what the City has designed in its policies, zoning, and administrative processes to 
regulate development proposals. Further, the technical rezoning means the approved 
development can proceed in accordance with the City’s policies, the zoning for the 
Subject Lands, and the City’s Site Plan process.  It is no longer necessary to link the Site 
Plan and Site Plan Agreement to removal of the “H” Holding provision as the Site Plan 
process will address all the requirements of the City and the approval authorities.  The 
technical rezoning conforms to and implements the City’s Official Plan.   
 

  

214214



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  18 
September 2020 

5. Zoning  
 
The City of Port Colborne By-Law 6575/30/18 zones the Subject Lands as “HI-46-H 
(Heavy Industrial – Holding)” with Special Provision 46.  The Zoning By-law states the 
following: 
 
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Heavy Industrial (HI) Zone, the following shall apply:  
 
a)   The provisions in Section 23 (HI – Heavy Industrial) of the City of Port Colborne 

former Zoning By-law 1150/97/81 will continue to apply to the lands zoned HI-46-H 
(Heavy Industrial - Holding). The permitted uses will be restricted to a 56 tank 
petrochemical3 storage facility.  

 
b)   The uses permitted in this By-law shall not occur until the Holding Symbol (H) on 

the HI-46-H (Heavy Industrial – Holding) zone is removed 
through an amending By-law enacted by the City of Port Colborne. The Holding 
Provision will be administered to provide Council with the authority to ensure a 
Phase 2 Archaeological Study, a Geotechnical Study, a Noise Study, an Air Quality 
Study, Site Access and Traffic Study, a Vibration Study, a Tree Preservation Plan, 
an Environmental Impact Statement, and a Risk Assessment Report have been 
undertaken to the satisfaction of the City and appropriate approval authorities. 
Removal of the Holding Symbol (H) may only occur when:  

i)  The Owner enters into and registers on title a Site Plan Agreement with the City 
of Port Colborne which will include recommendations made in the supporting 
technical studies conducted in association with the development application;  

ii)  The above mentioned technical studies and their recommendations are 
satisfactory to the City of Port Colborne,  

iii)   Prior to the City entering to the Site Plan Agreement, approval shall be obtained 
from the applicable approval authority which identifies an appropriate location 
and design for a private sewage disposal system and private water supply 
system to adequately and appropriately service the proposed use; and,  

iv)  Meet Species at Risk requirements to the satisfaction of Ministry of Natural 
Resources.4  

 

 

 
3 Petrochemical is commonly known as petroleum. 
4 It is noted that the applicable Ministry of the Ontario government is now the Ministry of Environment, 
Conservation, and Parks. 

215215



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  19 
September 2020 

6. Zoning By-law Amendment Application 
 
The Zoning By-law Amendment application is submitted with two specific requests as 
outlined below. A draft Zoning By-law is in Appendix F to this Report.  . 
 
The technical rezoning is to remove two components of the existing Zoning for the subject 
lands.  First is the requirement for the Site Plan Agreement to be completed and 
registered on title prior to removal of the “H” Holding Provision.  This rezoning is 
appropriate at this time as the studies required in the Zoning By-law for the Subject Lands 
have been submitted to the City for their peer review; the recommendations, including 
those of the City’s peer review consultant will be implemented through the Site Plan and 
the Site Plan Agreement.  It is only through the Site Plan process and Site Plan 
Agreement that the study recommendations can be implemented.  The applicable 
agencies – the City of Port Colborne, Niagara Region, Niagara Peninsula Conservation 
Authority – will be part of the Site Plan process including review of the studies, access to 
the City’s peer review, and providing comments on the studies, the Site Plan, and the Site 
Plan agreement.  For the Species at Risk, the Zoning Provisions to meet the requirements 
of the provincial Ministry5 continue and will be addressed through the Environmental 
Impact Statement and implemented through the Site Plan and Site Plan Agreement, as 
well as the requirements of the Ministry of Natural Resources6.  
 
The second component of the technical rezoning is the removal of clause b)iii) which 
requires approval of the private servicing plan prior to the Site Plan Agreement. This 
clause is appropriate to be removed as: 
 

 The servicing on the site will be a septic system and a cistern for potable water. 
 The location of the septic system and the cistern can only be established through 

the Site Plan process which includes implementing the recommendations/peer 
review recommendations of all studies, the design of the 56-tank petroleum facility 
and the servicing.  This is an integrated decision-making process.  The servicing 
approval should not proceed independently of the integrated decision-making 
process. 

 The Site Plan and Site Plan Agreement will be the means to finalize the servicing 
solution and location on the site. 

 The Site Plan and Site Plan Agreement will be the basis on which a servicing 
permit can be issued in accordance with the Building Code. 

 
5 As per footnote above. 
6 It is noted that the applicable Ministry of the Ontario government is now the Ministry of Environment, 
Conservation, and Parks. 

216216



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  20 
October 2020 

 Consequently, the wording of clause b)iii) is no longer appropriate to fulfill as 
approval prior to the Site Plan Agreement cannot generally occur.   

 The decision on servicing is implemented through the approved Site 
Plan/Agreement.  Permitting for the servicing is required and is implemented under 
the Building Code once the Site Plan Agreement is executed. A permit application 
would be required separately from the Site Plan Agreement. 
 

The provisions of the Zoning By-law established in 2013 were done at a time when the 
independent planning opinion confirmed that the development application was at the 
point, for the 56-tank petroleum facility, that the principle of this land use could be 
supported. It was noted in 2013 that further detailed studies would be necessary, and 
these further detailed studies would be implemented through the Site Plan process.  The 
development is now at the point with the more detailed studies having been completed 
and submitted to the City, and the only mechanism to move forward with the 
recommendations of the studies is the Site Plan and Site Plan Agreement. Consequently, 
clause b) i) is now an impediment to fulfilling the conditions in the Zoning By-law.  More 
specifically, the “H” Holding provision cannot be removed until the studies, the peer 
review, and the recommendations of the studies are to the City’s satisfaction (with related 
decisions by the approval authorities).  The lands are subject to Site Plan Control in 
accordance with the City’s Official Plan and Site Plan Control By-law. The Region’s 
Official Plan requires the Region to be engaged in the Site Plan process for the Subject 
Lands so approval authorities are appropriately engaged through the Site Plan process.  
 
The technical rezoning is to remove Clauses b)i) and b)iii) from the Site-Specific Zoning 
for this site. The study recommendations, together with the peer review 
recommendations, and the private servicing of the subject lands will be incorporated into 
the Site Plan and Site Plan Agreement.  This process will occur given the City’s Official 
Plan policies, the Site-Specific Zoning Provisions, the Regional Official Plan policies 
regarding the Region’s involvement in the Site Plan and the NPCA jurisdiction on 
elements of the proposal.  Consequently, the technical rezoning is appropriate as the 
public interest is protected through the remaining parts of the Site-Specific Zoning and 
the policies and administrative practices of the City of Port Colborne and the approval 
authorities. As the City of Port Colborne is the approval authority for the Site Plan and the 
Site Plan Agreement, it is no longer necessary to require the Site Plan Agreement be 
concluded and registered on title as a condition of removing the “H” Holding Provision. 
The City’s decision-making authority remains and the City’s administrative processes will 
lead to the appropriate Site Plan Agreement to implement the approved development, 
including the location and sizing of the private servicing. 
 

217217



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  21 
October 2020 

7. Summary of Planning Analysis  
 
The proposed development was approved by the Ontario Municipal Board in its decision 
of July, 2013.  The principle of use for the 56-tank petroleum facility has been approved 
on the Subject Lands. 
 
The zoning established at the time of the Ontario Municipal Board decision placed an “H” 
(Holding) provision on the Subject Lands to establish the preparation of more detailed 
studies on specific matters as identified in the Zoning By-law.  The studies have been 
completed, and a peer review is being undertaken by Associated Engineering who are 
representing the City of Port Colborne. 
 
The application is being submitted with two components to allow the orderly progression 
of development of the Subject Lands.  The recommendations within the specified studies, 
and the corresponding peer review, are to be implemented through the Site Plan and the 
Site Plan Agreement.  In order to facilitate the studies being implemented through the Site 
Plan Agreement, the technical rezoning is required to remove the provision for the studies 
and their recommendations to be in the Site Plan and Site Plan Agreement and pre-
approval of the servicing (Clauses b)i) and b)iii)) prior to removal of the “H” Holding 
provision.  
 
This is a technical rezoning that is appropriate as the recommendations from the studies, 
the peer review, and the development of the lands can only be implemented via Site Plan 
Control and the Site Plan Agreement.  However, to continue to require the Site Plan 
Agreement be finalized prior to removal of the “H” Holding provision is no longer 
necessary as the City of Port Colborne has decision making authority on the Site Plan, 
the Site Plan Agreement, and the inclusion of the recommendations from the studies in 
the Site Plan Agreement.  Further requirements, including provisions in the Regional 
Official Plan, stipulate the Region’s engagement on the Site Plan.  The NPCA is part of 
the Site Plan process because of its jurisdiction on issues that will be implemented 
through the Site Plan. 
 
The City’s Official Plan contemplates a process for Site Plan approval that includes 
outside agency engagement.  The development proposal and its administration has 
evolved to the point where the specific clause tying the Site Plan and Site Plan Agreement 
to removal of the “H” Holding provision is no longer appropriate nor necessary.  Indeed, 
it is only through the Site Plan and Site Plan Agreement that the specific requirements of 
the studies, the agencies, and the City can be implemented. Development cannot 
proceed in advance of the Site Plan being approved by the City.  
 

218218



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  22 
October 2020 

The second component of this technical rezoning is to remove clause b)iii) from the Site-
Specific Zoning.  This clause requires approval of private servicing prior to the Site Plan 
Agreement.  The clause is no longer necessary as the servicing decisions will be part of 
the Site Plan Agreement.  Further, the implementation of the servicing will be done 
through the normal and customary process of Site Plan and Site Plan Agreement and 
then a permit under the Building Code.  As the servicing decision can only be finalized 
within the Site Plan/Agreement and there is a further permitting process for the servicing, 
clause b)iii) is no longer necessary. 
 

 

  

219219



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  23 
October 2020 

8. Conclusion 
 
It is our opinion that the proposed application should be approved as it represents good 
land use planning, is in the public interest, and should be supported by the approval 
authority for the following reasons: 
 

 The proposed development is consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement, and 
conforms with the Growth Plan, the Niagara Region Official Plan and the City of 
Port Colborne Official Plan; 

 The technical rezoning is appropriate as the City of Port Colborne has Site Plan 
Control authority and will implement the study recommendations and the peer 
review recommendations through the Site Plan Agreement; 

 The study recommendations and the peer review recommendations can only be 
implemented through the Site Plan and Site Plan Agreement.  The specific 
provision in the “HI-46-“ Site-Specific Zoning (Clause b)i)) is no longer appropriate 
or necessary as the Site Plan process is the instrument to achieve the intent of the 
Zoning for the subject lands. The “H” Holding removal tied to the Site Plan 
Agreement is no longer necessary given the policies of the Regional Official Plan, 
the City Official Plan, and the City’s Site Plan administration process. 

 The removal of clause b)iii) is appropriate at this time as the private servicing 
solutions can only be finalized within the Site Plan/Agreement and implemented 
through a permit under the Building Code, consistent with the Site 
Plan/Agreement.  Clause b) iii) should be deleted as it is not appropriate to confirm 
the servicing outside of the Site Plan/Agreement process.  As Niagara Region, in 
accordance with its Official Plan policies, is part of the Site Plan process, there are 
normal and customary decision-making processes that address clause b)iii) in a 
manner that allows the servicing to be finalized and implemented. 

 

Report prepared by: 
 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Jeremy Tran, MPlan 
Planner 
Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc. 

Report Reviewed by: 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Mary Lou Tanner, FCIP, RPP 
Principal Planner 
Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc. 

220220



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  24 
October 2020 

9.  Appendices  

 
Appendix A – Sketch of Proposed Development  
 

  

221221



���
��

�

� � � 	 � 
 � � �

�  �  � � � � �

����������������������������������������������������������������

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�� � � � � � � � � � � � �

�
�

�

� �
��

�� 
!"�

�#
$%&

'() *
& +,

- .

/ 0 0 1 2 2 3 45

� �

/ 6 7 8 9 8 1: ; 6 < 3 ; =4 ; 0 > ? @

� �
�� �

��

0 A / B 7 13 =
: 3 C 0 >D ; / 4 9 B 7

E F G H I JK

L�M
N�

'OP&
P(Q .

M ��
�N

�
'O(&

R)Q .

: ; S B D 9 B 1: C B B 1 D 3 45

LT�
��

�

8 9 73 1 0 1 9 U 9 B 72 : B
V W V X Y Z [ \

8 C = 8
A ; C 2 1

< C : C 3 1 : / B >< / 3 =

] � � ^ _ _ ^ ^ � ^ ^ _

`
a

b
`

c
�

�
c

�
�

�
a

`
a

`
d

a
a

a e
f

e
f

g

h i @5 @ @ j k

< ; / = 6 <5 S58 C = 8 A ; C 2 1

l m n o

p q r q s t s u v w

xyz y{| {}~�

< C : C 3 1 3 ; / 4

< 1 B 0 1 D 9 B 1

!� �
��� � � � � �����

�����

����������� � � � �
� � � � � � � � �   � � �

Z ¡ ¢ V W V X £ ¤ ¥ ¦
§ 9 ;¨

© © © ª
©

«
«

«
«

«
«

«
«

¨

¬%
%���

�
�¬

 �
!

®¯°
¯± °

°² ³

´µ¶·¸ ¶¹º»

1 D 1 05 3 = 5

¼½¾¿

ÀÁÂÃ

LÄ�
�N

�

E Å HÆ

f
�

Ç
�

1 D 1 052 C §È2 : / : 9 ; B
Ç

Ç

�© © ©

�M�
NN

�
'É P

O& +
É- .

Ê ËÌ Ê Í Í

Î Ï Ð ÑÒ Ñ Ï Ó Ô

ÕÖ × Ø Ø

: 3 C 0 > 2 : / 7 9 B 7/ 3 1 / h < C : C 3 1 kÙ ÚÛ Ù Ù Üh ?Ý i 5 Þ ? j k
= / 9 B :52 A ; 8

; 8 1 3 / : 9 ; B 2§ D 4 7
0 B : ß D 3 =

1 D 1 05 3 =

C : 9 D 9 : à§ D 4 7

T�M
��

'( P&
PP- .

���]�]���]�������������_��������^^____^^^_�_^

���� ���

	
�� 	
´�·� ¸ ��º»

���
��

�
'É R

(&(
*- .

��� � �� ��� � �� � � �

7 / 2 ; D 9 B 1

8 C = 8 2 : B

2 1 1 4 1 : / 9 DÈ ?

4 9 1 2 1 D 6 � 1 :8 C = 8 2 : B

1 : A / B ; D8 C = 8 2 : B

/ 4 4 9 : 9 U 1 6 2 D ; 8 6 § 9 ;8 C = 82 : B

� � � �
� � 	 


� �  �� � �

� � � � �  � �  � � � � � � � ��

� � � � ��

��  ! 
 � � � ! � � � � 	 � ! � 
 � � � 	" # � $ � � � � � % � 	 & ! � �

� � � �  �

'� ( � � ! � )  � � ! ) � � � ! � � ! � * % !+ , -+ % *�

.� � � � � $ / 	 � 0 � 1 � � 	 � � 2 - " 3 . 3 % � 1 � � 	 � �

/ 	 � 0 � 1 � � 	 � �  � 4 � $ � / �  , , " ' 3 , % � 1 � � 	 � �

/ 	 � 0 � 1 � � 	 � � � � �  � 4 � $ � / �  � 5 " 3 . ' % � 1 � � 	 � �

 # � � � � � 	 1 � � � !  � 	 � � ! � � �

6 

$ � ) � �  �

6 � � 1 % 
 � 	 � / � 	 	 � � 1 % 7 % 8  � $ �  �  	 � & ! � )

� . � 9 . ,+ � � / �  � � �  9 3 � � 4� ' 9 � .

1 # � 1 	 � � � � � 1 � � 1 	 � � � 6 � � � � � % 8  	 �

� � & � 	�

/ 	 � / � 	 � 8�

/ � 	 � � � $ � � � � - " � 2 " � 3 " � 5 " 1 � � 1 � � � ! � � : " 1 ! � 8

� � / � 	 � 1 � $ 6 � 	 � � " 	 � ) ! � � � $ 
 # � ! 1 ! / � $ ! � 8

� � � ! � ) � 	 �

6 
 �; �6 
+ �
6 
+ '

6 
+ .
6 
+ ,

� $ � 4 � � ! � � � � 	 � % � � � �

� 2 2� 5 9 , 2 : 2 - - 9� � , ' - , , - . 2� 9 . '

� 2 2� 5 � , 2 : 2 - , � � : : . - , , - . 2� 9 . 9

� 2 3� � - , 2 : 2 - : ,� - , 3 - , , 5 � 9� . 9 5

� 2 3� � 3 , 2 : 2 - , :� 9 3 9 - , , 5 � 9� � 5 .

9

� 9 9 


< . ' 3� � 9 = >

' 9 9 


< - : -� ' 9 = >

. 9 9 


< 5 3 ,� . 9 = >

? ?

/ 	 � / � 	 � 8 $ ! � �

� � � 1 � $ ! � �

U / 8 ; C 33 1 0 ; U 1 3 àC B 9 :

@ A B C D E F D B C G D E @ H I @ A F C G F J B F C D @ E B C K A D L B @ D @ I H E F D C @ F E M N F D O H P Q D E KD M O L H L H Q B M K J H M I B E N F O B M R S R ST D M O B C G E H @ F J @ F O U M O F E @ A F F M O D M V F E F OC G F J B F C D J @ W F C DT R S S X YZ P B @ A H U @ D U @ A H E B [ D @ B H M U M O F E @ A F F C D H EJ H M I B E N D @ B H M L \ D P B Q O Q B I F F J H Q H V B C @ @ A D @ C G F J B F C D @ E B C K D E F M H Q H M V F EG E F C F M @ I H Q Q H P B M V D J J F G @ F O C U E ] F \ G E H @ H J H Q CT M H D J @ B ] B @ B F C @ A D @ J H U Q OK B Q QT A D E N H E A D E D C C C D E L B E O C H E O D N D V F M F C @ C H E A D L B @ D @ C A D Q Q H J J U E B M@ A B C D E F DT B M J Q U O B M V V E D O B M V H E J H M C @ E U J @ B H M O U E B M V D M \ @ B N F H I @ A F\ F D ET D M O M H O B C @ U E L D M J F W F ^ D N G Q F C B M J Q U O F N H P B M V T ] F V F @ D @ B H ME F N H ] D QT G Q H U V A B M V T O E B Q Q B M V T O E B ] B M V ] F A B J Q F C _ F ` U B G N F M @ Y O U E B M V @ A FL E F F O B M V L B E O C F D C H M W V F M F E D Q Q \ D G E B Q ab D U V U C @ c S YZ

L H U M O D E \ H I C G F J B F C D @ E B C K A D L B @ D @I H E F D C @ F E N F D O H P Q D E K D M O L H L Q B M KJ H M I B E N F O B M R S R SZ C F F P C G E F G H E @I H E O F @ D B Q CZ

�

d e f d g e h i j k l g

mn o mp nq rst u p

v w x v y w z { | } ~ y

� � � �� � �

� � � � �Û Ù � � �

� � � � � �
�� � � � � � �� �

���
��

�� ��
� �

�  ¡

¢ £ ¤Ì ¤ ¤

¥¦ § ¨© ¨ ª « ¬

 ® ¯ °  ±
² ³ ´ µ ¶ · ¶ ´¸ ¹

º »¼ ½ ½ ¾¿ À ÁÂ Ã Ä À Å

222222



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne
Planning Justification Report

25Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.
October 2020

Appendix B - Regional Official Plan Schedules
Schedule A: Regional Structure

Subject Lands

NORTH

223223



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne
Planning Justification Report

26Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.
October 2020

Appendix B - Regional Official Plan Schedules
Schedule G2: Niagara Economic Gateway Employment Lands

BA405

BA406

BA420

BA58A

BA58

BA140

NM20

NM3

NM84

NM50

NM98

NM28

NM4

NM63

NM69

NM70

NM122

NM27

NM116

NM24

NM529

NM29

NM81

NM669

NM90

NM101

NM34

NM57

NM77

NM67 NM102

NM1

NM23

NM47

NM89

NM36

NM124

NM72

NM18

NM81

NM3

NM69

NM27

BA3

BA3

BAQEW

BAQEW

BA406

BA405

BA406

BA420

BA58A

BA58

BA140

NM20

NM3

NM84

NM50

NM98

NM28

NM4

NM63

NM69

NM70

NM122

NM27

NM116

NM24

NM529

NM29

NM81

NM669

NM90

NM101

NM34

NM57

NM77

NM67 NM102

NM1

NM23

NM47

NM89

NM36

NM124

NM72

NM18

NM81

NM3

NM69

NM27

BA3

BA3

BAQEW

BAQEW

BA406

ú

ú

ú

ú!I

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

RURAL EMPLOYMENT LANDS

EMPLOYMENT LAND

WELLAND CANAL

ú INTERNATIONAL CROSSING

NIAGARA REGION

MUNICIPAL BOUNDARY                                  

URBAN AREA

PROVINCIAL ROAD

REGIONAL ROAD

Lake Erie

Niagara River

0 5 102.5

Kilometers

Rainbow Bridge

Whirlpool Bridge

Queenston-Lewiston Bridge

Peace Bridge

Refer to Niagara Falls Official Plan
Section 13.8 Special Policy Area 8

FORT ERIE

NIAGARA
FALLS

PORT
COLBORNE

WELLAND

THOROLD

ST.
CATHARINES

NIAGARA
on the
LAKE

LINCOLN
GRIMSBY

WEST LINCOLN

WAINFLEET

PELHAM

NIAGARA REGION OFFICIAL PLAN

© 2014 Niagara Region and its suppliers. Projection is UTM, NAD 83, Zone 17.
This map was compiled from various data sources and is current as of August 2015.

The Niagara Region makes no representations or warranties whatsoever,
either expressed or implied, as to the accuracy, completeness, reliability,

currency or otherwise of the information shown on this map.

Pu
bl

is
he

d
Au

gu
st

 2
01

5
Ni

ag
ar

a 
Ec

on
om

ic
 G

at
ew

ay
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t L

an
ds

SC
HE

DU
LE

 G
2

Subject Lands
BA405

BA406

BA420

BA58A

BA58

BA140

NM20

NM3

NM84

NM50

NM98

NM28

NM4

NM63

NM69

NM70

NM122

NM27

NM116

NM24

NM529

NM29

NM81

NM669

NM90

NM101

NM34

NM57

NM77

NM67 NM102

NM1

NM23

NM47

NM89

NM36

NM124

NM72

NM18

NM81

NM3

NM69

NM27

BA3

BA3

BAQEW

BAQEW

BA406

BA405

BA406

BA420

BA58A

BA58

BA140

NM20

NM3

NM84

NM50

NM98

NM28

NM4

NM63

NM69

NM70

NM122

NM27

NM116

NM24

NM529

NM29

NM81

NM669

NM90

NM101

NM34

NM57

NM77

NM67 NM102

NM1

NM23

NM47

NM89

NM36

NM124

NM72

NM18

NM81

NM3

NM69

NM27

BA3

BA3

BAQEW

BAQEW

BA406

ú

ú

ú

ú!I

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

RURAL EMPLOYMENT LANDS

EMPLOYMENT LAND

WELLAND CANAL

ú INTERNATIONAL CROSSING

NIAGARA REGION

MUNICIPAL BOUNDARY                                  

URBAN AREA

PROVINCIAL ROAD

REGIONAL ROAD

Lake Erie

Niagara River

0 5 102.5

Kilometers

Rainbow Bridge

Whirlpool Bridge

Queenston-Lewiston Bridge

Peace Bridge

Refer to Niagara Falls Official Plan
Section 13.8 Special Policy Area 8

FORT ERIE

NIAGARA
FALLS

PORT
COLBORNE

WELLAND

THOROLD

ST.
CATHARINES

NIAGARA
on the
LAKE

LINCOLN
GRIMSBY

WEST LINCOLN

WAINFLEET

PELHAM

NIAGARA REGION OFFICIAL PLAN

© 2014 Niagara Region and its suppliers. Projection is UTM, NAD 83, Zone 17.
This map was compiled from various data sources and is current as of August 2015.

The Niagara Region makes no representations or warranties whatsoever,
either expressed or implied, as to the accuracy, completeness, reliability,

currency or otherwise of the information shown on this map.

Pu
bl

is
he

d
Au

gu
st

 2
01

5
Ni

ag
ar

a 
Ec

on
om

ic
 G

at
ew

ay
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t L

an
ds

SC
HE

DU
LE

 G
2

NORTH

224224



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne
Planning Justification Report

27Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.
October 2020

Appendix C - City of Port Colborne Official Plan Schedules
Schedule A: City Wide General Land Use Plan

k

Port Colborne
Official Plan

Schedule A: City-Wide Land Use

0 1 2 3 40.5
Kilometres

µLake Erie

City of Niagara Falls

City of Welland

To
w

ns
hi

p 
of

 W
ai

nf
le

et

Tow
n of Fort E

rie

1:75,000
City of Port Colborne, Engineering and Operations Department.  
This map was compiled from various data sources and is current as of August 2012.

·

k
Former Waste Management 
Facility

Major Port

Secondary Plan Area

Special Study Area

Private Open Space

Parks and Open Space

Rural Employment

Gateway Economic Centre

Mineral Aggregate Operation

Industrial / Employment Area

Marine Commercial

Highway Commercial

Commercial Plaza

Downtown Commercial

Rural

Urban Residential

Hamlet

Agricultural 

ECA

EPA

Municipal Boundary

Urban Area Boundary

Subject Lands

k

Port Colborne
Official Plan

Schedule A: City-Wide Land Use

0 1 2 3 40.5
Kilometres

µLake Erie

City of Niagara Falls

City of Welland

To
w

ns
hi

p 
of

 W
ai

nf
le

et

Tow
n of Fort E

rie

1:75,000
City of Port Colborne, Engineering and Operations Department.  
This map was compiled from various data sources and is current as of August 2012.

·

k
Former Waste Management 
Facility

Major Port

Secondary Plan Area

Special Study Area

Private Open Space

Parks and Open Space

Rural Employment

Gateway Economic Centre

Mineral Aggregate Operation

Industrial / Employment Area

Marine Commercial

Highway Commercial

Commercial Plaza

Downtown Commercial

Rural

Urban Residential

Hamlet

Agricultural 

ECA

EPA

Municipal Boundary

Urban Area Boundary

NORTH

225225



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne
Planning Justification Report

28Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.
October 2020

Appendix D - City of Port Colborne Zoning By-law Map
Schedule A2

Subject Lands

NORTH

226226



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  29 
October 2020 

Appendix E – Status of Supporting Studies 
 

No. Supporting Study Consultant Status 

1 
Phase 2 
Archaeological 
Study 

Golder 
Associates 

The Ministry of Heritage, Sport, Tourism, 
and Culture Industries is satisfied that the 
Stage 2 Archaeological Assessment is not 
required with respect to the Subject Lands.  

2 
Geotechnical 
Study 

- 
No further geotechnical is required by the 
City of Port Colborne until the Site Plan 
stage. 

3 Noise Study GHD 

The noise report prepared by GHD, dated 
August 31, 2020 concludes the Petroleum 
Storage Facility is feasible with respect to 
the noise requirements of NPC-300. 

4 Air Quality Study GHD 

The Land-use compatibility air quality study 
report prepared by GHD, dated September 
3 concludes the proposed development is 
feasible if the impacts are mitigated with the 
required and recommended controls, the 
implementation of best practices, and the 
regulatory and design requirements are 
adhered to. 

5 
Site Access and 
Traffic Study 

Paradigm 
Traffic 
Solutions 

Submitted and subject to peer review by the 
City of Port Colborne. 

6 Vibration Study N/A 
Not required by the City of Port Colborne 
with respect to the Subject Lands. 

7 
Tree 
Preservation 
Plan 

N/A 
Not required by City of Port Colborne with 
respect to the Subject Lands. 

227227



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  30 
October 2020 

No. Supporting Study Consultant Status 

8 
Environmental 
Impact 
Statement 

WSP 

The Environmental Impact Study Update 
Memo prepared by WSP dated September 
3, 2020 stated an ESA registration is 
required for the proposed development as 
less than 30 hectares of protected SAR is 
impacted. The memo also provided 
recommendations for the proposed 
development going forward. 

9 
Risk 
Assessment 
Report 

- 
Submitted and subject to peer review by the 
City of Port Colborne 

 
  

228228



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  31 
October 2020 

Appendix F – Draft Zoning By-law 
 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF PORT COLBORNE 
 

BY-LAW NO. _____________________ 
           

BEING A BY-LAW TO AMEND ZONING BY-LAW 6575/30/18, AND AS AMENDED, 
RESPECTING PARTS OF LOT 16, LOT 17, LOT 18 AND LOT 19, CONCESSION 5 IN 

THE CITY OF PORT COLBORNE, LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF THE 
WELLAND CANAL, SOUTH OF THE RAILWAY LANDS  

AND WEST OF HIGHWAY 140 
 
 WHEREAS By-law 6575/30/18, as amended, is a by-law of the Corporation of the 
City of Port Colborne regulating the use of lands and the character, location and use of 
buildings and structures within the City of Port Colborne;  
 
 AND WHEREAS, the Council of the Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 
desires to amend the said by-law; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, and pursuant to the provisions of Section 34 of The Planning 
Act, R.S.0. 1990, the CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF PORT COLBORNE ENACTS 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. This amendment shall apply to those lands described on Schedule "A" attached to 

and forming part of this by-law. 
 
2.   That the Special Provision: HI-46-H of Section 37.2 entitled LIST OF SPECIAL 

PROVISIONS of Zoning By-law 6575/30/18, as amended, is hereby further 
amended by removing provision b) i)  and b) iii) which read: 

       
i)  The Owner enters into and registers on title a Site Plan Agreement with 

the City of Port Colborne which will include recommendations made in 
the supporting technical studies conducted in association with the 
development application; 

iii) Prior to the City entering to the Site Plan Agreement, approval shall be 
obtained from the applicable approval authority which identifies an 
appropriate location and design for a private sewage disposal system 
and private water supply system to adequately and appropriately 
service the proposed use; and, 

 

229229



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  32 
October 2020 

3. That this By-law shall come into force and take effect on the day that it is passed 
by Council, subject to the provisions of The Planning Act, R.S.O 1990. 

 
 4. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to proceed with the giving of 

notice of the passing of this by-law, in accordance with The Planning Act.  
 
READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME AND FINALLY PASSED THIS XXTH 
DAY OF XXX, 2020   
      
       
      ____________________________ 
      William C. Steele 

Mayor 
 
 
 
   
      ____________________________ 
      Peter M. Senese 
      Deputy Clerk 

  

230230



Nyon Lands, City of Port Colborne 
Planning Justification Report 

 

Niagara Planning Group (NPG) Inc.  33 
September 2020 

 
 

	

231231



Via Email Only 

November 2, 2020 

File No.: D.18.07.ZA-20-0068

David Schulz  
Planner  
City of Port Colborne 
66 Charlotte Street 
Port Colborne, ON L3K 3C8 

Dear Mr. Schultz: 

 Re: Provincial and Regional Comments 
Zoning By-law Amendment Application  
Owner: Nyon Oil Inc.  
Applicant/Agent: Niagara Planning Group 
Legal Description: Part of Lots 16, 17, 18 and 19, part of the road allowance 
between Lots 16 and 17, part of the road allowance between Lots 18 and 19 
Location: South of the CN Rail lane, West of Highway 140 and East of Canal 
Road, Port Colborne 
City File No.: D14-05-19 

Regional Development Planning staff has reviewed the information circulated with the 
application for Zoning By-law Amendment, which proposes to alter the HI-46-H zone to 
remove wording that requires the applicant to enter into a Site Plan Agreement, and 
obtain approval for private servicing prior to the removal of the Holding provision on the 
property. The Zoning By-law Amendment is being sought to allow the development to 
proceed with the Site Plan Agreement and private servicing being required later. 

A virtual pre-consultation meeting was held on September 10, 2020, with City and 
Regional staff, as well as the agent and owner in attendance.  Regional staff received 
the application by email on October 13, 2020, and fees were received October 15, 
2020.  Regional staff provides the following comments to assist the City in their 
consideration of the application from a Provincial and Regional perspective. 

History 

In 2013, the (then) Ontario Municipal Board (OMB), now known as the Local Planning 
Appeal Tribunal (LPAT), approved the development of a 56-tank petroleum facility 

Report 2020-166 
Appendix D

232232



together with dry industrial development on adjoining lands. The approval was subject 
to a site-specific zoning, which has been carried forward through the passing of the City 
of Port Colborne Zoning By-law 6575/30/18 on April 23, 2018.    
 
The current site-specific zoning includes a Holding provisions that requires, amongst 
other things: 

 The owner to enter into and register on title a Site Plan Agreement with the City 
of Port Colborne, which will include recommendations made in the supporting 
technical studies completed in association with the development application; and 

 Prior to the City entering into the Site Plan Agreement, approval being obtained 
from the Region (or Ministry) for the private sewage disposal system and private 
water supply. 

Proposal 
The proposed amendment is technical in nature and requested to allow the 
development approvals process to continue in a manner that will allow implementation 
of the recommendations of the required technical studies.  The technical studies will be 
reviewed and implemented through the site plan control process.  The entire City of Port 
Colborne is subject to site plan control pursuant to the City’s Official Plan and Site Plan 
Control By-law; therefore, the Holding provision duplicates this requirement.  Further, 
the site plan agreement cannot be registered until the zoning is in place, including 
removal of any Holding provisions.  Therefore, the Region supports the proposed 
technical amendment, and will address review of the required technical studies and 
private servicing through the site plan control process. 
 
Private Sewage System 
Private Sewage System staff has reviewed the Zoning Application for the noted 
properties.  No septic record was found for the listed vacant lots. Further review by our 
Department for the proposed septic will be conducted through the future site plan 
application. Private Sewage System (PSS) staff require that the applicant submit a 
detailed sewage system design by a qualified designer with the future site plan 
application. Note that if the proposed sewage flows exceeds 10,000 L/day, sewage 
system approval will be required from the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation 
and Parks (MOECP). Therefore, PSS staff have no objections to the application 
provided that the applicant submit a detailed sewage system design by a qualified 
designer, meeting Ontario Building Code requirements, with the future site plan 
application. 

Conclusion 
In conclusion, Regional staff has no objection to the proposed Zoning By-law 
Amendment from a Provincial and Regional prospective, subject to the requirements 
being addressed to the Region’s satisfaction through the future site plan application.  
The proposal is consistent with the PPS and conforms to Provincial Plans and the 
Regional Official Plan.  

233233



 
Should you have any questions related to the above comments, please feel free to 
contact me at 905-980-600 ext. 3432 or britney.fricke@niagararegion.ca. 

Please send a copy of the staff report from the City and notice of Council’s decision on 
this application when available. 
 
Kind regards,  

 
Britney Fricke, MCIP, RPP 
Senior Development Planner 

234234



 
Engineering and Operations Department 

Engineering Division 
 

 
Report Number: 2020-159 Date: November 9, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: By-Law Revision – Speed limit change on Killaly Street East 
 
1) PURPOSE: 
 
This report is prepared in response to the Council-approved 2020 budget request (OPS-
03) to procure flashing speed limit signs for the purpose of altering the speed limit on 
Killaly Street East. The proposed changes would revert the existing 40 km/h zone in the 
vicinity of St. Therese School back to a 50 km/h zone, with the speed limit being reduced 
to 40 km/h when the lights on the sign are flashing. The times will be coordinated with the 
school, typically flashing will occur during start, lunch, and end of the school day. 
 
2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, AND PRACTICES: 
 
Speed limits on Killaly Street East from Welland Street to Snider Road were previously 
reviewed in Council Report 2012-29. At that time, two recommendations were made to 
Council: 
 

1. Change the speed limit between Welland Street and James Street from 40 km/h 
to 50 km/h, while leaving the area in front of St. Therese School at 40 km/h. 

2. Change the speed limit between Welland Street and Snider Road from 40 km/h to 
50 km/h and install flashing 40 km/h signs 150 m east and west of St. Therese 
School. 

 
Ultimately, option 1 was approved. 
 
3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS: 
 
Engineering staff believe that altering Killaly Street East to have temporarily reduced 
speeds from 50 km/h to 40 km/h in the area 150 m both east and west of St. Therese 
School will be an effective way to encourage drivers to reduce their speed at the most 
critical times of day.  
 
Studies have indicated that the majority of drivers do not alter their speed to conform to 
speed limits that they perceive to be unreasonable for the prevailing conditions. Factors 
that affect the speed of vehicles are driveway density, presence of lane and edge marking, 
vertical and horizontal alignment, pedestrian and bicycle activity, on-street parking and 
road widths. Urban arterial roads such as Killaly Street East should be designed to move 
traffic unimpeded between areas at reasonable speeds. 
 
Due to the surrounding conditions of St. Therese School, the 40km/h  limit is often ignored 
and traffic will continue at the existing speed, whether it be 60 km/h when travelling from 
the east or 50 km/h when travelling from the west. Additionally, the longer a 40 km/h zone 
is, the less likely traffic will maintain the reduced speed, especially if drivers feel that the 
reduction is unwarranted, such as when school is not in session. 

235235



 
Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report No.: 2020-159 Page 2 of 3 
 
 

 
Similar to signage that displays a driver’s current speed, flashing speed signs have been 
proven to be effective at reducing traffic speed when activated. The goal of installing these 
signs is to have the speed of traffic reduced during the most critical times; when a high 
volume of pedestrian traffic, especially children, is present. Additionally, permitting 
speeds of 50 km/h in this area during off-peak times coincides with what drivers feel is an 
appropriate speed for the conditions of this area. 
 
Council had also suggested an option to revert the changes made in report 2012-29 and 
have Killaly Street East from Welland Street to Snider Road be 40 km/h the entire way 
through, however, as mentioned previously having a reduced speed zone for extended 
lengths often leads to drivers ignoring the reduction after a period of time and returning 
to the speed that they feel is appropriate. 
 
4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
a) Do nothing 

 
Council could decide not to alter the speed limit on Killaly Street East. The “Flashing 40” 
signs procured for this purpose would remain in stock and could be used at an alternate 
location. (Not recommended) 
 
b) Other Options 
 
Alter the speed limit on Killaly Street East by amending Traffic and Parking By-Law 89-
2000. (Recommended) 
  
Council could direct staff to amend Traffic and Parking By-Law 89-2000 Schedule “W” to 
revert the speed limit on Killaly Street East, between James Street and Snider Road, to 
50 km/h, with the speed limit being reduced to 40 km/h when the lights on the “Flashing 
40” signs are flashing. 
 
5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES: 
 
This section is not applicable. 
 
6) ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None. 
 
7) RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council direct staff to amend Traffic and Parking By-Law 89-2000 Schedule “W” to 
revert the speed limit on Killaly Street East, between James Street and Snider Road, to 
50 km/h, with the speed limit being reduced to 40 km/h when the lights on the “Flashing 
40” signs are flashing. 
 
 

236236



 
Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report No.: 2020-159 Page 3 of 3 
 
 

 
 
 
8) SIGNATURES: 
 
Prepared on October 30, 2020, by: Reviewed by: 

 
 

 
Mat Pilon Steve Shypowskyj 
Construction Inspector Manager of Projects & Design 

Acting Director of Engineering & 
Operations 

  

Reviewed by: Reviewed and Respectfully Submitted by: 
 
 
 

 

 Scott Luey 
 Chief Administrative Officer 

 

237237



Engineering & Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report No.: 2020-136  Page 1 of 3 
 

  Engineering & Operations Department 
     Engineering Division 

 
Report Number:  2020-136   Date: November 9, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Update and Recommendation to Complete Engineering and 

Construction Drawings for City Hall  
 
1) PURPOSE 
 
This report was prepared by Mason Thomas, Facilities Supervisor, Engineering and 
Operations under the direction of Steve Shypowskyj, Acting Director of Engineering & 
Operations and Manager of Projects and Design. The purpose of this report is to advise 
Council on the proposed continued utilization of design services from Lex Parker Design 
Consultants to complete the engineering and construction drawings for City Hall 
renovations. 

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES 
 
In January of 2020, the City solicited quotations for conceptual and floor planning design 
services relating to proposed renovations at City Hall, as part of the City’s Customer 
Relationship Management initiative.  The intent was to enlist the services of a suitable 
design consultant to work with City staff toward a conceptual rendering and floor plan, to 
update the lobby, front counter, as well as office space for customer service and 
administrative staff. 
 
After careful consideration, as per the City’s procurement policy for Requests for 
Quotation, Lex Parker Design Consultants (‘Lex Parker’) was selected for best value of 
services provided and was subsequently awarded the contract for the initial phase of the 
design project.  This was to provide direction regarding spatial floor planning, visual and 
conceptual plans and renderings for the redesign and to work with City staff to devise a 
plan to improve the overall aesthetics and customer service at City Hall. 
 
Since the award early in 2020, City staff has been working continuously with the 
consultants at Lex Parker to finalize the design, layout and material finishes for the 
proposed renovations on the first floor. As an extension of the original agreement, 
conceptual plans for the second and third floors of City Hall, washrooms and lunch room, 
as well as an alternative Covid-19 floor plan to accommodate the City’s new health and 
safety regulations, were added to the scope of the services provided. 

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS 

As the first phase of the City Hall renovation project, the conceptual design, nears 
completion staff are seeking approval to move forward with engineering and construction 
drawings including HVAC, plumbing, electrical, structural, fire, and other mechanical 
systems to ensure there is a complete and constructable plan should the coming 
application to the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP) be successful.  

238238



Engineering & Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report No.: 2020-136  Page 2 of 3 
 

In July 2020, staff presented “Report 2020-96 COVID-19: Infrastructure & Recovery 
Oppurtunity” to Council outlining a potential funding opportunity through the Investing in 
Canada Infrastructure Program.  The report recommended that if possible, the City should 
submit two applications, one surrounding the needs of City owned facilities and the 
second containing a full City waterfront plan. The City Hall Renovation project will be 
submitted within the City owned facilities application. Recent advancements in this 
program have indicated that applications could be open as early as November 16, 2020. 
With the announcement of the applications for the ICIP opening staff are recommending 
that the City move forward with retaining Lex Parker Consultants to complete the next 
phase of this project, being the engineering and construction drawings. During the 
conceptual design phase, City staff have collaborated well with Lex Parker and their 
consultants to establish the aesthetics, functionality and layout necessary to improve 
customer service and accessibility at City Hall. Staff are very pleased with the conceptual 
product and value they have provided and recognize the benefit of Lex Parker’s 
involvement throughout the remainder of the project.   
 
A quotation for all required engineering and construction drawings was requested of Lex 
Parker Consultants. This quotation includes the coordination and continued involvement 
of Lex Parker throughout the next phase (of creating engineering and construction 
drawings). The City’s Procurement policy states that at a tier of $20,000-$50,000, the City 
is to solicit competitive formal quotations or proposals, unless justification for sole 
sourcing can be made.  Compatibility with, and continuation of, the existing services and 
material already purchased and provided is of paramount consideration for this 
expenditure. Under the procurement directive, continued involvement from Lex Parker is 
beneficial to the City with respect to best value of past expenditures as well as providing 
the most efficient and timely manner to proceed with the overall project.   
 
Lex Parker has provided a quotation to have a group of engineering firms provide the City 
with all required drawings.  This quotation includes and assumes Lex Parker’s continued 
involvement, coordination and direction based on their conceptual plans, finishes and 
layout, as well as providing the drawings to the City over an approximate 20-week period.  
The amount quoted for this service including all drawings is $47,500 and therefore would 
require up to and including CAO approval.  However, due to the magnitude and visibility 
of the overall project, additionally, staff are also requesting Council approval to proceed 
as recommended.  
 
4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
This project is being undertaken within the Customer Relationship Management project 
and funded by the Provincal modernization grant. Staff intend to apply for additional 
funding to complete the expanded renovation work through the ICIP Grant application. 

a) Approval of Recommendation to Sole Source (Recommended) 
 
If approved, the City’s Engineering staff will enter into an agreement with Lex Parker to 
provide all engineering and construction drawings and related services necessary to 
continue and expedite the City Hall redesign and renovation project. 
 
b)  Other Options - Solicitation of competitive formal quotations 
 

239239



Engineering & Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report No.: 2020-136  Page 3 of 3 
 

Council could instruct staff to conduct a formal request for quotation with the 
understanding that the City would have to spend additional time (approximately 8-12 
weeks) soliciting and reviewing design proposals, working with new design firms to 
ensure they are fully aware of the City’s needs, and likely requiring additional 
expenditures such as significant fees for conceptual design services of their own, similar 
and comparable to what Lex Parker Design has already completed and provided to the 
City. An additional time of several weeks or months may be needed for a selected 
competitive firm to start from scratch, create and present their design, and then provide 
a competitive proposal for the construction drawings. The extended timelines required for 
this will also push back staff’s ability to construct should approval be received from the 
ICIP, now open for applications in November 2020. Staff feel this would be an ineffective 
and inefficient use of City resources at this time and likely negate much of the work 
already completed. 
 
5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES 
 
This initiative is in alignment with the City’s customer service modernization initiative. 
 
6)  ATTACHMENTS 
 
None. 
 
7) RECOMMENDATION 
 
That Engineering & Operations Department, Engineering Division Report 2020-136 be 
received; 
 
That Council approve the sole source of the complete engineering and construction 
drawings package for City Hall; and 
 
That staff be directed to retain Lex Parker Consultants to complete the engineering and 
construction drawings for the amount of $47,500 excluding applicable taxes. 

8)  SIGNATURES 
 
Prepared on October 28, 2020 by: Reviewed by: 

 

 

_____________________________ ____________________________ 
Mason Thomas Amber Lapointe 
Facilities Supervisor City Clerk 
  
Reviewed and Respectfully Submitted: Reviewed by: 
 

 
C. Scott Luey Steve Shypowskyj 
Chief Administrative Officer Acting Director of Engineer & Operations 

Manager of Projects and Design 
        

240240



I 

.Ii. 
PORT COLBORNE 
MAYOR'S OFFICE 

.J1 i~~L..t:'12tt Coibome ··.i 
HEG c lVE D .:1 

SEP 0 8 2020 

TO: Members of Port Colborne City Council 

MEMORANDUM 

905-835-2900 Ext. 301 

FROM: Nancy Giles, EA to CAO and Mayor and Staff Liaison to the Grant Policy Committee 

DATE: August 24, 2020 

RE: Recommendations of Grant Policy Committee 

The Grant Policy Committee met to review applications for the second intake of 2020. In accordance with 
Section 4.3(e) - "During a regular meeting of the Corporation, Council wil l approve all final 
recommendations," we bring forward the following recommendations for consideration by Council. 

Moved by B. Haymes 
Seconded by G. Bruno 

That donation/sponsorship requests be approved for a total of $6,750 for the second al location for the year 
2020 as follows: 

Port Col borne Lions Club - to assist with the installation of bathroom vents and kitchen 
renovations - $2,750 

Note: in the first intake the Port Colborne Lions Club was approved for $5,000 for the 
remediation of mould in their centre. They determined it was not mould and these funds were 
never released . This request replaces the request approved in the first intake. 

Port Cares - to assist in providing services at the Reach Out Centre - $4,000 

Additionally, the committee discussed the potential in the coming years for an increase in applications due 
to unforeseen circumstances. This year we received minimal applications in the second take and the total 
amount of grants approved for 2020 was $17,750. 

The committee would like to see the following recommendation considered by council: 

Moved by B. Steele 
Seconded by B. Haymes 

That council be requested to set up a reserve fund for grant monies and any unspent amount of 
the $30,000 annual allocation be placed in this fund for future use and that this process continue 
yearly hereafter. 
CARRIED. 

Respectfully submitted . 

Der:'~~i~ 

A~E!DBY 
COUNCIL 

SEP 1 4 2020 

CITY CLERK 
CITY OF PORT COLBORNE 

Page 1of1 

241241



October 141h, 2020 

Mayor Steele, 
City of Port Colborne, Office of the Mayor, 
66 Charlotte Street 
Port Colborne, Ontario, L3K 3C8 

Dear Mayor Steele, 

CRIMEl•I 
STOPPERS 

OF NIAGARA 

I am writing on behalf of the board of Crime Stoppers of Niagara to request the City of 
Port Colborne prepare a proclamation or letter of acknowledgement to recogn ize 
January 2021 as Crime Stoppers Month. This is in addition to our trad itional flag raising 
event and will be used to promote Crime Stoppers Month throughout the community. 

January has been endorsed around the world as Crime Stoppers Month since 1986 and 
provides the opportunity for all Crime Stoppers programs to highlight their success. 

Crime Stoppers of Niagara has been extremely effective since 1985 in helping the 
Niagara Regional Police Service solve crimes and working with various organizations to 
make communities safer for residents of the Niagara Region. 

Apart from taking tips on unsolved crimes, Crime Stoppers of Niagara has worked to 
increase the awareness of concerns in the region, including illegal dumping, elder 
abuse, improving the safety and security of students, guarding against human trafficking 
and combating illegal drugs. 

The concept of Crime Stoppers was originated by a detective in Albuquerque, New 
Mexico in 1976 and today there are more than 1,000 programs operating in countries 
worldwide. 

Of significance this year, Crime Stoppers of Niagara is working toward being a key 
organization for reporting elder abuse and delivering awareness and capacity building by 
establishing strong partnerships with agencies that work with older adults in the Niagara 
Region. We have also implemented an elder abuse program under provincial and 
federal grants to move forward in creating safer communities for our older adults. 

We would greatly appreciate if this recognition could be presented in your office or 
another convenient location sometime in December or January to give local media the 
opportunity to promote Crime Stoppers Month. Should you have any questions or 
require further information, please contact Crime Stoppers of Niagara at 905 938 5463. 

Sincerely, 

?JP 
Barry Diamond 
Chair, Crime Stoppers of Niagara 

CITY GF N)RT COLBORNE 

R CE,VED 
nr.r /. b ~020 

CHIEF ADMINtSTRATOR'S 
OFFIC~ 

242242



 
                

             

November 9, 2020 
 

Moved by Councillor  
Seconded by Councillor  

Whereas January has been endorsed around the world as Crime Stoppers 
Month since 1986 and provides the opportunity for all Crime Stoppers programs 
to highlight their success; and 

         Whereas Since 1985 Crime Stoppers of Niagara have been extremely 
effective in helping the Niagara Regional Police Service solve crimes and work 
with various organizations to make communities safer for residents of the 
Niagara Region; and 

Whereas Crime Stoppers of Niagara has worked to increase the awareness 
of concerns in the region, including illegal dumping, elder abuse, improving the 
safety and security for students, guarding against human trafficking and 
combating illegal drugs; and 

Whereas Crime Stoppers of Niagara is working toward being a key 
organization for reporting elder abuse, delivering awareness and forming strong 
partnerships with agencies working with older adults and have implemented an 
elder abuse program under provincial and federal grants to move forward  by 
creating safer communities for our older adults; 

NOW THEREFORE, I, Mayor  William C. Steele, proclaim the month of January 
2021 as “Crime Stoppers Awareness Month” in the City of Port Colborne. 

 

 

         
____________________________ 
William C. Steele 

        Mayor 
 

243243



Office of the Mayor 
Rodger Bonneau 

October 7, 2020 

Sent via E-mail 

Re: Cannabis Production 

Dear Ministers, Members of Parliament, and Members of Provincial Parliament, 

Please be advised that the Council for the Corporation of the Township of Asphodel-
Norwood passed the following resolution at its regular meeting of September 22, 2020: 

Motion No. 239/20 | Moved by: Councillor Walsh | Seconded by: Deputy Mayor Burtt 

WHEREAS the Ontario Federation of Agriculture has adopted the position that licenced 
cannabis production for medical and/or recreational-use purposes should be considered 
a farming activity; 

AND WHEREAS the Government of Canada introduced Bill C-45 (the Cannabis Act) to 
create the foundation for a comprehensive national framework to provide restricted 
access to regulated cannabis, and to control its production, distribution, sale, importation, 
exportation, and possession; 

AND WHEREAS Section 7 of the Cannabis Act requires that any person who intends to 
submit an application for a licence for cultivation, a licence for processing, or a licence for 
sale that authorizes the possession of cannabis must provide written notice to: a) The 
local government, b) The local fire authority, and c) The local police force or the Royal 
Canadian Mounted Police detachment responsible for providing policing services to the 
area in which the site is referred to in the application; 

AND WHEREAS Section 35(1) of the Act requires a holder of a licence for cultivation, a 
licence for processing, or a licence for sale that authorizes the possession of cannabis to 
provide a written notice to the local authorities within 30 days of issuance, amendment, 
suspension, reinstatement or revocation of a licence and provide a copy of said notice to 
the Minister; and 

244244



FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Township of Asphodel-Norwood requests a 
governing body in cannabis production that: 

1. Takes a unified approach to land use planning restrictions;

2. Enforces the regulations under the Cannabis Act on behalf of the licencing agency
and ensures local authorities are in fact provided with notification of any licence
issuance, amendment, suspension, reinstatement, or revocation within their
region;

3. Communicates more readily with local governments; and

4. Provides local governments with more support.

AND FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Township of Asphodel-Norwood will 
forward this motion to the following partners: All municipalities in Ontario, the MP and 
MPP of Northumberland-Peterborough South, the MP and MPP of Peterborough-
Kawartha, the Minister of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs, and the Minister of 
Agriculture and Agri-Food with the request that they enact legislation to support local 
governments with land use management and enforcement issues. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Rodger Bonneau, Mayor 
Township of Asphodel-Norwood 

c. E. Hardeman, Minister of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs
M. Bibeau, Minister of Agriculture and Agri-Food
D. Piccini, MPP Northumberland-Petrborough South
P. Lawrence, MP Northumberland-Petrborough South
D. Smith, MPP Peterborough –Kawartha
M. Monsef, MP Peterborough-Kawartha
All municipalities in Ontario

245245



 

 
Township of Blandford-Blenheim 
 
47 Wilmot Street South 
Drumbo, Ontario  N0J 1G0 
 
Phone:   519-463-5347 
Fax:       519-463-5881 
Web:      www.blandfordblenheim.ca 

 
 
 
October 13, 2020 
 
Emailed to the Federal Minister of Health, Federal Minister of Justice and Attorney General, Federal Minister of 
Public Safety and Emergency Preparedness, Oxford MP, Oxford MPP, the Association of Municipalities of 
Ontario and all municipalities in Ontario. 
 
Re: Unlicensed and unmonitored cannabis grow operations 
 
Please be advised that at the Regular Meeting of Council on October 7th, 2020, the Council of the Township of 
Blandford-Blenheim passed the following resolution: 
 
Resolution Number: 2020-14 
Moved by: Councillor Nancy Demarest 
Seconded by: Councill Bruce Banbury 
 
“That Whereas unlicensed and unmonitored cannabis grow operations have increasingly become a 
problem in communities in Ontario as well as across the Country; and, 
 
Whereas these operations are allowed to establish with little or no consultation with the local 
community and municipalities are often only made aware of their existence after conflicts arise with 
neighboring land owners; and,  
 
Whereas loopholes in existing Federal legislation allow these large scale grow op’s to establish and 
operate without any of the regulations or protocols that licensed and monitored operations need to 
adhere to, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the Township of Blandford-Blenheim urges the Federal 
Government to amend the legislation under which these facilities operate to ensure the safety and 
rights of the local communities in which they are situated are respected; and, 
 
That this resolution be forwarded to the Federal Minister of Health, Federal Minister of Justice and 
Attorney General, Federal Minister of Public Safety and Emergency Preparedness, Oxford MP, Oxford 
MPP, the Association of Municipalities of Ontario and all municipalities in Ontario.” 
 
Regards,  
 
Sarah Matheson 
Deputy Clerk 
Township of Blandford-Blenheim 
 

246246



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

October 27, 2020 
 
Municipality of Tweed 
(Sent via email) 
clerk@tweed.ca  
 
 
RE: SUPPORT RESOLUTION FROM THE MUNICIPALITY OF TWEED, CANNABIS 

PRODUCTION FACILITIES, THE CANNABIS ACT AND HEALTH CANADA 
GUIDELINES 

 
Please be advised that Council for the Corporation of the Town of Lincoln at Special 
Council Meeting held on October 26, 2020, endorsed and passed the following motion 
in support of the Municipality of Tweed’s motion (attached) regarding Cannabis 
Production Facilities, the Cannabis Act and Health Canada Guidelines that was passed 
on August 25, 2020.  
 
Moved by: Councillor J.D. Pachereva; Seconded by: Councillor Paul MacPherson 

 
 THAT Council support the correspondence item as attached from the 
Municipality of Tweed regarding Cannabis Production.  
  

CARRIED 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Julie Kirkelos 
Town Clerk 
jkirkelos@lincoln.ca  
 
cc: Prime Minister of Canada 

Health Canada 
Premier of the Province of Ontario 
Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing 
Ontario Provincial Police 
Association of Municipalities of Ontario 
All municipalities within the Province of Ontario 

247247

mailto:clerk@tweed.ca
mailto:jkirkelos@lincoln.ca


Resolution No. 

Title: 

Date: 

Moved by 

Seconded by 

Municipality of Tweed Council Meeting 

.1t(j. 
County of Hastings and County of Lennox & Addington 

Tuesday,August25,2020 

J. Flieler 

J. Palmateer 

WHEREAS the Government of Canada passed the Cannabis Act S.C. 2018, c. 16 legislation legalizing 
properties to grow a maximum of 4 plants without a licence; and 

WHEREAS Health Canada issues licences for medicinal cannabis production that are specific to set 
properties without municipal consultation and regardless of land use zoning by-laws; and 

WHEREAS pharmaceutical companies and industries are required to follow strict regulations and 
governing legislation to produce medicinal products including Narcotic Control Regulations C.R.C., c 
1041 and Controlled Drugs and Substances Act (Police Enforcement) Regulations SOR/9-234; and 

WHEREAS Municipalities are authorized under the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, C. P 13 to pass a 
comprehensive zoning by-law that is in compliance with the appropriate County Official Plan which 
must be in compliance with the Provincial Policy Statement, Under The Planning Act, 2020; and 

WHEREAS the Provincial Policy Statement, Official Plan and Zoning By-Law in effect for each area is 
designed to secure the long-term safety and best use of the land, water and other natural resources 
found in that area's natural landscape; and 

WHEREAS the Municipality of Tweed has passed Comprehensive Zoning By-Law 2012-30 and further 
amended it by the Cannabis Production By-Law 2018-42, limiting cannabis production facilities to rural 
industrial zoned lands with required setbacks from residential zoned properties; and 

WHEREAS the Municipality of Tweed has not been consulted by Health Canada prior to the issuance 
of licences for properties not in compliance with the Municipal zoning by-laws for a cannabis production 
facility; and 

WHEREAS the Province needs to amend legislation to establish a new Provincial Offence Act fine 
regime that creates an offence(s) when unlicenced cannabis operations break planning and 
environmental regulations, ignore Building Code requirements and build without a permit at a fine of at 
least $100,000 per offence; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Municipality of Tweed requests that immediate 
action be taken by all levels of government for medical cannabis licencing to follow similar regulations 
and guidelines as all other pharmaceutical industries; 

AND FURTHER, that the Association of Municipalities of Ontario advocate with the Federation of 
Canadian Municipalities for advocation to the Government of Canada for similar regulations and 
guidelines for medical cannabis licencing in alignment with other pharmaceutical industries; 

AND FURTHER, that the distribution of medical cannabis be controlled through pharmacies in 
consistency of all other medications; 

248248



AND FURTHER, that Health Canada withhold licencing until the potential licence holder can provide 
evidence of acceptable zoning of the intended property in question; 

AND FURTHER, that licenced locations be disclosed in advance to the municipalities hosting the 
licenced locations; and 

AND FURTHER, that this resolution be circulated to the Prime Minister of Canada, Health Canada, the 
Premier of the Province of Ontario, the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing, the Ontario Provincial 
Police, the Association of Municipalities of Ontario, and all upper, lower and single tier municipalities 
within the Province of Ontario. 

Carried Defeated by a Tie Defeated 

Mayor 

249249



 
 
October 26, 2020 
 
 

 
The Right Honourable Justin Trudeau    Health Canada 

Office of the Prime Minister    Address Locator 0900C2 
80 Wellington Street      Ottawa, Ontario 
Ottawa, ON K1A 0A2      K1A 0K9 
 
The Honourable Doug Ford      Ontario Provincial Police 
Premier of Ontario     General Headquarters 
Legislative Building     Lincoln M. Alexander Queen's Park Building 
Toronto ON M7A 1A1     777 Memorial Avenue 
       Orillia, ON 
       L3V 7V3 
 

 

 

Dear Right Honourable Prime Minister Trudeau and Premier Ford,   
 
Re: Illicit Cannabis Operations 
 

At their meeting of October 20, 2020 Norfolk County Council approved Resolution No. 6 of the Council-
In-Committee meeting of October 13, 2020 which reads as follows:  
 
Res. 6 
 

WHEREAS illicit cannabis grow operations are a significant issue in many municipalities in 
Ontario; 
 
AND WHEREAS there are often significant negative impacts from illicit cannabis operations upon 
surrounding communities and residents; 
 
AND WHEREAS the intent of legalizing cannabis was to eliminate the ‘black market’ not allow it 
to expand with relative impunity; 
 
AND WHEREAS Norfolk County estimates that there are approximately 70 cannabis operations 
in our municipality; 
 

250250



THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, 
 
THAT the Mayor issue a letter to the Prime Minister of Canada, Premier of Ontario, Health 
Canada and the Ontario Provincial Police; 
 
AND THAT Norfolk County Council request that solutions to the current crisis which may include 
but are not limited to; better regulation and tracking of the prescription of cannabis in Canada 
by doctors, increased regulatory and enforcement presence by Health Canada, increased OPP 
resources, increased funding to municipalities to deal with complaints and By-Law issues 
generated by illicit cannabis grow operations; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT a copy of the submission by Debbie France be attached to the Mayor’s 
letter. 
 
 

Your attention to this important issue is appreciated.  
 
 
Yours Truly,  
 

 
Mayor Kristal Chopp   
Norfolk County  
 

 
 
 
cc.  Toby Barrett- MPP Haldimand-Norfolk  

Diane Finley – MP Haldimand-Norfolk 
 All Ontario Municipalities   

 
 

251251



34252252



35253253



36254254



37255255



38256256



Resolution 

Moved By ___________ _ 

Last Name Printed _,_c_·-c:A£\~_..~....,_ ____ _ 

Seconded By _________ _ 

Last Name Printed ~ t-..~'C\ . 

"'-~ 
Northumberland 

county 

Agenda 
Item Sa 

Resolution No. 
2020-10-21-321 

Council Date: October 21, 2020 

"Now Therefore Be It Resolved That Northumberland County Council provide support for 
the resolution adopted by the Township of Asphodel Norwood regarding their request that: 

• a governing body be created to regulate cannabis production; and 
• the governing body take a unified approach be taken to land use planning 

restrictions; and 
• the governing body enforce the regulations under the Cannabis Act on behalf of the 

licencing agency and ensures local authorities are in fact provided with notification of 
any licence issuance, amendment, suspension, reinstatement, or revocation within 
their region; and 

• the governing body communicates more readily with local governments; and 
• the governing body provides local government with more support; and 

Further Be It Resolved That Northumberland Council forward this resolution to all 
municipalities in Ontario, MP Philip Lawrence and MPP David Piccini (Northumberland
Peterborough South), the Minister of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs, requesting that 
legislation be enacted to support local governments with cannabis land use management 
and enforcement issues. 11 

Recorded Vote 
Requested by ---------Councillor's Name 

Carried 

Deferred Defeated 
~---------

Warden's Signature Warden's Signature 
257257



 

 

October 22, 2020 

 
The Honourable Rod Phillips 
Ministry of Finance  
Frost Building South  
7th Floor 
7 Queen’s Park Cres. 
Toronto, Ontario M7A 1Y7 
rod.phillips@pc.ola.org 

The Honourable Doug Downey 
Ministry of the Attorney General 
11th Floor 
720 Bay St. 
Toronto, ON  M7A 2S9 
doug.downey@pc.ola.org 
 

 

Subject :  Cannabis retail stores 

Dear Ministers, 

On behalf of the City of Clarence-Rockland, I am hereby requesting that the regulations 
governing the establishment of cannabis retail stores be amended in order to instruct the 
Alcohol and Gaming Commission to consider over-concentration as an evaluation criterion, 
and provide added weight to the comments of a municipality concerning matters in the 
public interest when considering the application of new stores. 
 
Please find attached a certified true copy of Resolution #2020-191 adopted by the Council 
of the City of Clarence-Rockland on October 19, 2020, requesting a modification to the 
regulations governing the establishment of cannabis retail stores. 
 
We trust that this request will be given serious consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 

 

 

Guy Desjardins, Mayor 

 

CC: All Ontario Municipalities 
 

Encl. 

 

 
 

258258

mailto:rod.phillips@pc.ola.org
mailto:doug.downey@pc.ola.org


 

 

  
 

CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF
 CLARENCE-ROCKLAND

REGULAR MEETING
 
 

RESOLUTION
 
 
 

Resolution: 2020-191
Title: Member's resolution presented by Councillor Mario Zanth and seconded by

Councillor Samuel Cardarelli regarding cannabis stores
Date: October 19, 2020

Moved by Mario Zanth
Seconded by Samuel Cardarelli

WHEREAS as the regulator for private cannabis retail in Ontario, the Alcohol and Gaming Commission
of Ontario (AGCO) has the authority to license, regulate and enforce the sale of recreational cannabis
in privately run stores in Ontario; and

WHEREAS on December 17, 2018, Council agreed to ‘opt-in’ to the Provincial direction to allow
Cannabis Retail to occur in the City of Clarence-Rockland; and 

WHEREAS Council considers a matter of public interest to include a 150 metre distance separation
from other Licensed Cannabis Stores, as the Board of Health has noted concerns that excessive
clustering and geographic concentration of cannabis retail outlets may encourage undesirable health
outcomes, and Economic Development and Planning are concerned that over-concentration may
cause undesirable impacts on the economic diversity of a retail streetscape including the distortion of
lease rates, economic speculation, and the removal of opportunity for other commercial businesses;
and

WHEREAS cannabis retail is a new and unproven market, and no studies or precedent exists to
determine the number or distribution of stores that can reasonably be supported by the local economy,
and it is therefore prudent to establish the means by which the AGCO, with input from a municipality,
can regulate over-concentration as the cannabis retail market evolves; therefore

BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council directs the Mayor, on behalf of City Council, to write the Honourable
Rod Phillips, Minister of Finance of Ontario, and the Honourable Doug Downey, Attorney General of
Ontario, requesting the Ministry to modify the regulations governing the establishment of cannabis retail
stores to instruct the Alcohol and Gaming Commission to consider over-concentration as an evaluation
criteria, and provide added weight to the comments of a municipality concerning matters in the public

259259



 
 

interest when considering the application of new stores; and

BE IT RESOLVED THAT a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the other municipalities in Ontario.

CARRIED

______________________________________
Maryse St-Pierre
Deputy Clerk

260260



 

 

 
 

CORPORATION DE LA CITÉ DE
CLARENCE-ROCKLAND
RÉUNION RÉGULIÈRE

 
 
 

RÉSOLUTION
 
 
 

Résolution: 2020-191
Titre: Résolution de membre présentée par le conseiller Mario Zanth et

appuyée par le conseiller Samuel Cardarelli concernant les commerces
de vente de cannabis

Date: le 19 octobre 2020

Proposée par Mario Zanth
Appuyée par Samuel Cardarelli

ATTENDU QU'en tant qu'organisme de réglementation de vente privée de cannabis en Ontario, la
Commission des alcools et des jeux de l'Ontario (CAJO) a le pouvoir d'octroyer des licences, de
réglementer et de faire respecter la vente de cannabis à des fins récréatives dans les magasins privés
de l'Ontario

ATTENDU QUE le 17 décembre 2018, le Conseil a accepté de se conformer à la directive provinciale
afin de permettre la vente au détail de cannabis dans la Cité de Clarence-Rockland ; et 

ATTENDU QUE le Conseil considère qu'il est d'intérêt public d'inclure une distance de 150 mètres de
séparation par rapport aux autres magasins de cannabis agréés, étant donné que le Conseil de la
santé a pris note des préoccupations selon lesquelles le regroupement et la concentration
géographique excessifs des points de vente de cannabis au détail peuvent encourager des résultats
indésirables pour la santé, et que le ministère du développement économique et de la planification
craint qu'une concentration excessive ne provoque des effets indésirables sur la diversité économique
d'un paysage de rue de vente au détail, notamment la distorsion des taux de location, la spéculation
économique et la suppression de possibilités pour d'autres entreprises commerciales

ATTENDU QUE la vente au détail de cannabis est un marché nouveau et non éprouvé, et qu'il n'existe
aucune étude ni aucun précédent pour déterminer le nombre ou la répartition des magasins qui
peuvent raisonnablement être soutenus par l'économie locale, et qu'il est donc prudent d'établir les
moyens par lesquels l'AGCO, avec l'aide d'une municipalité, peut réguler la surconcentration au fur et
à mesure de l'évolution du marché de la vente au détail de cannabis; par conséquent

QU'IL SOIT RÉSOLU QUE le conseil municipal demande au maire, au nom du conseil municipal,

261261



 
 

d'écrire à l'honorable Rod Phillips, ministre des Finances de l'Ontario, et à l'honorable Doug Downey,
procureur général de l'Ontario, pour demander au ministère de modifier les règlements régissant
l'établissement de magasins de vente au détail de cannabis afin de donner instruction à la Commission
des alcools et des jeux de considérer la surconcentration comme un critère d'évaluation, et de donner
plus de poids aux commentaires d'une municipalité concernant les questions d'intérêt public lorsqu'elle
examine la demande de nouveaux magasins; et

QU'IL SOIT RÉSOLU QU'une copie de cette résolution soit acheminée aux autres municipalités de
l'Ontario. 

ADOPTÉE

______________________________________
Maryse St-Pierre
Greffière adjointe

262262



 

 
October 2, 2020                       

Sent via email to all Ontario Municipal Clerks  
 
 
Dear Municipal Clerks,  
 
At its meeting held September 24, 2020, Wellington County Council approved the following 
recommendation from the Administration, Finance and Human Resources Committee:  
 
WHEREAS previous assessment methodologies for aggregate resource properties valued 

areas that were used for aggregate resources or gravel pits at industrial land rates on a per 

acre basis of the total site and such properties were formally classified and taxed as industrial 

lands; and 

 

WHEREAS Wellington County Council supports a fair and equitable assessment system for all 

aggregate resource properties; and 

 

WHEREAS the Municipal Property Assessment Corporation determined, with the 

participation only of the Ontario Stone, Sand and Gravel Association, revised criteria for 

assessing aggregate resource properties; and 

 

WHEREAS Wellington County Council has concerns that the revised criteria does not fairly 

assess the current value of the aggregate resource properties. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

(a) That Wellington County Council does not consider the revised criteria for assessment of 

aggregate resource properties as a fair method of valuation for these properties; and 

 

(b) That Wellington County Council believes there is a need to review the current assessment 

scheme for aggregate resource properties to address the inequity of property values; and 

 

(c) That Wellington County Council hereby calls upon the Province to work with the Municipal 

Property Assessment Corporation to address the assessment issue so that aggregate resource 

properties are assessed for their industrial value; and 

 

263263



(d) That Wellington County Council direct the Clerk to provide a copy of this motion to the 

Ministers of Finance; Municipal Affairs and Housing; and Natural Resources and Forestry; and 

to AMO, ROMA, and all Ontario municipalities and local MPP(s). 

 
Please find the Aggregate Resource Property Valuation and Advocacy report and Municipal 
Resolution enclosed.   
 
Wellington County Council is requesting that all Ontario municipalities adopt the Municipal 
Resolution and forward to Donna Bryce, Wellington County Clerk at donnab@wellington.ca 
upon passing.  
 
Should you have any questions please contact Ken DeHart, County Treasurer, at 
kend@wellington.ca or call 519.837.2600 ext 2920. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Kim Courts 
Deputy Clerk 
 

264264

mailto:donnab@wellington.ca
mailto:kend@wellington.ca


 
        COMMITTEE REPORT  
  
  
To:  Chair and Members of the Administration, Finance and Human Resources Committee 
From:  Ken DeHart, County Treasurer 
Date:            Tuesday, September 15, 2020 
Subject:  Aggregate Resource Property Valuation and Advocacy Report 
 

Background: 
Through the County’s Assessment Base Management Policy and Programme approved in 2016; 
Wellington County has made significant efforts to maintain, protect and enhance the quality of the 
assessment roll.  This includes reviewing the accuracy of individual assessments and ensuring the 
equitable distribution of the tax burden.  The County remains a strong advocate for the accurate and 
equitable valuation and property tax treatment of all properties, including gravel pit and aggregate 
resource properties in the County and throughout Ontario. 
 
The County has been actively pursuing fair and accurate assessment valuations for gravel pits through 
two streams: 

1. Assessment appeals heard by the Assessment Review Board 
2. Advocacy through the province on a permanent policy solution 

 
Assessment Appeals 
The County has filed assessment appeals on all aggregate producing properties in its three southern-
most municipalities, being Puslinch, Erin and Guelph/Eramosa for the 2017 to 2020 taxation years.  The 
purpose of these appeals is to ensure that the current value assessment of these properties is captured 
through the existing legislation, and to deal with how those properties are classified for taxation 
purposes. 
 
The effect of the current property tax valuation structure by the Municipal Property Assessment 
Corporation (“MPAC”) unfairly sees active gravel pits incurring less property tax than many single-
family homes and small businesses as a result of unduly low and inaccurate current value assessments.  
It also leads to properties that are located in the same areas and are similar to gravel pits receiving 
vastly different property valuations, which contradicts the principle of fairness and transparency 
underpinning our taxation system that similar properties should be treated and taxed equally.  
Arbitrarily classifying gravel pits as among the lowest form of farmland (Class 5) sets an artificial cap on 
these producers’ property assessments and keeps their property taxes well below what they should be 
paying.  In turn, residents and businesses are subsidizing the break that gravel producers are receiving. 
 
In terms of next steps for these appeals, a settlement conference is scheduled to take place on 
September 16 and hearings are scheduled for the weeks of November 16 and 23. 
 
 
 
 

265265



Advocacy for a Permanent Policy Solution 
The County has been working with its colleagues through the Top Aggregate Producing Municipalities 
of Ontario (TAPMO) to raise awareness of the assessments and the inequitable treatment of these 
properties and ask the government to review how these properties are assessed and treated from a 
property tax policy perspective through the MPAC review that is currently taking place. 
 
Through this work, TAPMO endorsed the attached municipal resolution to be shared with TAPMO 
municipalities for consideration at local Councils.  The resolution formally asks the province to review 
how these properties are assessed in light of the inequitable treatment in comparison to other 
residential and business properties in the municipality.  Several municipalities across the province have 
approved and forwarded this resolution to the province and local MPPs. 
 
To be clear, the County believes MPAC’s property valuation is incorrect even within the current 
legislation, however, the County is looking for further direction and possible legislative or regulatory 
changes that will eliminate future disputes.  This kind of permanent policy change is in everyone’s best 
interest to resolve this issue once and for all. 
 
Staff recommend that the Administration, Finance and Human Resources Committee support the 
resolution and pass it along to County Council for approval.  This is also an opportunity for the County 
to remind its member municipalities to review and give consideration to this resolution as well. 
 
AMO Delegation Meeting 
On August 18, 2020, in collaboration with the Top Aggregate Producing Municipalities of Ontario 
(TAPMO), County representatives met with Stan Cho, Parliamentary Assistant to the Minister of 
Finance, to discuss the need to improve how aggregate properties are assessed across Ontario under 
an equitable valuation system.  The meeting was held during the Association of Municipalities of 
Ontario (AMO) conference.  This is where municipal and provincial policymakers come together to 
discuss pressing issues facing both levels of government. 
 
Wellington County and other TAPMO members presented several policy-driven solutions to Mr. Cho 
that would make MPAC’s property tax valuations accurate and equitable.  There are many possible 
legislative, regulatory or policy changes that can achieve a permanent solution.  These include: 

• Creating a separate class for aggregate producing properties (as was done for landfills in 2015); 
• Directive (or regulation) from the Minister to MPAC regarding how to assess these types of 

properties to reflect their true market or industrial value; 
• Remove the aggregate exemption from the Assessment Act (as was the situation prior to 2008). 

 
This would enable municipalities to maintain stability in local taxation levels and meet the needs of 
their communities.  Directing MPAC on how to assess these properties based on their true market 
value makes common sense and will result in stability and accuracy in the assessment process.  The 
solution to remove the exemption of aggregate in the Assessment Act would allow MPAC to assess the 
full value of the property. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

266266



Summary 
Aggregate sites are important job creators and an increasingly critical element of public works that 
help to fuel steady economic growth across Ontario, especially as part of municipalities’ post-pandemic 
recovery.  Yet, under the current MPAC valuation formula, their current value assessment is inaccurate 
such that these sites generate significantly less revenue for municipalities and the Province than other 
possible uses for the same land.  This costs Ontario municipalities millions of dollars in lost tax revenue 
every year and negatively impacts their abilities to deliver more fulsome services and programmes to 
residents.  The current system also generates less Education property taxes which shifts even more tax 
burden onto homeowners and small businesses.  Municipalities are therefore eager to find a solution 
that is fair for all involved: the municipality, taxpayers, and aggregate producers. 
 
COVID-19 has highlighted the urgency for a policy-driven, equitable approach.  Municipalities across 
Ontario are fighting to continue providing a high standard of services to our families and businesses 
who need them now more than ever.  The lost tax revenue undermines our ability to enhance those 
services and make key infrastructure investments at a time when our residents are suffering.  The 
County wants to be fair to aggregate producers while recognizing that they should be part of the 
solution in terms of helping families and businesses get back on their feet – the very people who are 
carrying the burden of the current MPAC system. 
 

Recommendation:  
That the Aggregate Resource Property Valuation and Advocacy Update Report be received for 
information; and 
 
That the attached resolution be supported by County Council and sent to the Ministry of Finance. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

  
Ken DeHart, CPA, CGA 
County Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

267267



SCHEDULE A – MUNICIPAL RESOLUTION 
 
 
WHEREAS previous assessment methodologies for aggregate resource properties valued areas that 
were used for aggregate resources or gravel pits at industrial land rates on a per acre basis of the total 
site and such properties were formally classified and taxed as industrial lands; and 
 
WHEREAS Wellington County Council supports a fair and equitable assessment system for all aggregate 
resource properties; and 
 
WHEREAS the Municipal Property Assessment Corporation determined, with the participation only of 
the Ontario Stone, Sand and Gravel Association, revised criteria for assessing aggregate resource 
properties; and 
 
WHEREAS Wellington County Council has concerns that the revised criteria does not fairly assess the 
current value of the aggregate resource properties; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
(a)  That Wellington County Council does not consider the revised criteria for assessment of aggregate 
resource properties as a fair method of valuation for these properties; and 
 
(b)  That Wellington County Council believes there is a need to review the current assessment scheme 
for aggregate resource properties to address the inequity of property values; and 
 
(c)  That Wellington County Council hereby calls upon the Province to work with the Municipal 
Property Assessment Corporation to address the assessment issue so that aggregate resource 
properties are assessed for their industrial value; and 
 
(d)  That Wellington County Council direct the Clerk to provide a copy of this motion to the Ministers of 
Finance; Municipal Affairs and Housing; and Natural Resources and Forestry; and to AMO, ROMA, and 
all Ontario municipalities and local MPP(s). 

268268



Resolution 

Moved By ___________ _ 

Last Name Printed \f\ru3",~a 
Seconded By __________ _ 

Last Name Printed 'U::->\<o.n.M£ 

"'-~ 
Northumberland 

county 

Agenda 
Item Sb 

Resolution No. 
2020-1 0-21-322 

Council Date: October 21, 2020 

11 Now Therefore Be It Resolved That Northumberland County Council provide support for 
the resolution adopted by Wellington County regarding Aggregate Resource Property 
Valuation including that; 

• Northumberland County does not consider the revised criteria for assessment of 
aggregate resource properties as a fair method of valuation for these properties; and 

• Northumberland County believes there is a need to review the current assessment 
process for aggregate resource properties to address the inequity of property values; 
and 

• Northumberland County calls upon the Province to work with the Municipal Property 
Assessment Corporation (MPAC) to address the assessment issue so that aggregate 
resource properties are assessed for their industrial value; and 

Further Be It Resolved That Council provides a copy of this resolution to the Minister of 
Finance, the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing; the Minster of Natural Resources 
and Forestry; MPP David Piccini (Northumberland Peterborough South), the Association of 
Municipalities of Ontario (AMO), and the Rural Ontario Municipal Association (ROMA), all 
Ontario municipalities." 

Recorded Vote 
Requested by ---------Councillor's Name 

Carried 

Deferred Defeated ----------Warden's Signature Warden's Signature 
269269



From: Karren Wallace <KWallace@wellington-north.com>  
Sent: October 15, 2020 2:31 PM 
To: donnab@wellington.ca 
Subject: FW: Ontario-Wide Request to Pass County of Wellington Aggregate Resolution 
  

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when 

opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders. 
 
Please be advised this was passed at our October 13, 2020 meeting of Council 
 
RESOLUTION: 2020-299 
Moved:          Councillor Burke 
Seconded:     Councillor McCabe 

WHEREAS previous assessment methodologies for aggregate resource properties valued 

areas that were used for aggregate resources or gravel pits at industrial land rates on a per acre 

basis of the total site and such properties were formally classified and taxed as industrial lands; 

and 

WHEREAS Council of the Corporation of the Township of Wellington North supports a fair and 

equitable assessment system for all aggregate resource properties; and 

WHEREAS the Municipal Property Assessment Corporation (MPAC) determined, with the 
participation only of the Ontario Stone, Sand and Gravel Association, revised criteria for assessing 
aggregate resource properties; and 
 
WHEREAS Council has concerns that the revised criteria does not fairly assess the current 

value of the aggregate resource properties; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
THAT Council of the Corporation of the Township of Wellington North does not consider the 

revised criteria for assessment of aggregate resource properties as a fair method of valuation 

for these properties; and 

AND FURTHER THAT Council believes there is a need to review the current assessment scheme 
for aggregate resource properties to address the inequity of property values; and 
 
AND FURTHER THAT Council hereby calls upon the Province to work with the Municipal Property 
Assessment Corporation to address the assessment issue so that aggregate resource properties 
are assessed for their industrial value; and 
 
AND FURTHER THAT Council direct the Clerk to provide a copy of this motion to the Ministers 

of Finance; Municipal Affairs and Housing; and Natural Resources and Forestry; and to AMO, 

ROMA, and all Ontario municipalities and local MPP(s). 

 

Karren Wallace, Director Legislative Services/Clerk 
Phone) 519-848-3620 ext 4227 
Email)    kwallace@wellington-north.com 

270270

mailto:kwallace@wellington-north.com


October 22nd, 2020 

The Right Honourable Rod Phillips 
Minister of Finance 
Frost Bldg S 7th Floor 

R. R. # 1, Mount Elgin, ON NOJ 1 NO 
312915 Dereham Line 

Phone: (519) 877-2702; (519) 485-0477; 
Fax: (519) 485-2932 

7 Queen's Park Cres, Toronto M7A 1Y7 

Dear Mr. Phillips: 

Re: Assessing Aggregate Resource Properties 

This letter will confirm support of the Council of the Township of South-West 
Oxford of County of Wellington Resolution dated September 241h, 2020 from the 
Administration, Finance and Human Resources Committee including that: 

That South-West Oxford Council does not consider the revised criteria for 
assessment of aggregate resource properties as a fair method of valuation 
for these properties; and 

That South-West Oxford Council believes there is a need to review the 
current assessment scheme for aggregate resource properties to address 
the inequity of property values; and 

That South-West Oxford Council hereby calls upon the Province to work 
with the Municipal Property Assessment Corporation to address the 
assessment issue so that aggregate resource properties are assessed for 
their industrial value; and 

That South-West Oxford Council direct the Clerk to provide a copy of this 
motion to the Ministers of Finance; Municipal Affairs and Housing; and 
Natural Resources and Forestry; and to AMO, ROMA, and all Ontario 
municipalities and local MPP(s). 

ie F , Clerk 
Township of South-West Oxford 

cc. Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing; 
Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry; 
Association of Municipalities of Ontario; 
Rural Ontario Municipal Association; 
all Ontario municipalities; 
MPP Ernie Hardeman 

271271



October 9, 2020 

Honourable Doug Ford 
Premier of Ontario 
Legislative Building 
Queen's Park 
Toronto, ON 1A1 

Dear Honourable Premier Doug Ford: 

RE: Reform to the Municipal Insurance Policy 

T 705·635 ·2272 

TF 1·877 ·566·0005 

F 705·635·2132 

TOWNSHIP OF LAKE OF BAYS 

1012 Dwight Beach Rd 

Dwight, ON POA lHO 

Via Email 

On behalf of the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Lake of Bays, please be 
advised that Council would like to express their concern and request a reform to the 
Municipal Insurance Policy. 

As outlined in the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) report entitled, "Towards 
a Reasonable Balance: Addressing Growing Municipal Liability and Insurance Costs", 
dated October 1, 2019, joint and several liability creates a higher insurance cost for 
municipalities. Local municipalities within Muskoka have experienced a 20% increase in 
municipal liability for 2019 and are expecting at least 20% increase for 2020. 

Throughout the Township of Lake of Bays, the area of concern is the Errors and 
Omissions for building code claims. There is a much higher value of newly built 
cottages/seasonal residences within Lake of Bays and it is populated by a commanding 
number of ratepayers who possess the financial means to sue and will endure the 
protracted legal process. The Township has a lower than average number of building 
claims, however a higher than average payout. 

Please consider an amendment to Bill 124 to make it a requirement that the building 
contractor name be disclosed and that the contractor must provide proof of insurance, 
thus providing greater accountability and responsibility and ensuring that municipalities 
will not bear the burden alone. 

. . . 2 

100 LAKES TO EXPLORE 

272272

https://www.amo.on.ca/AMO-PDFs/Reports/2019/Towards-a-Reasonable-Balance-Addressing-growing-mu.aspx


T 705·635 ·2272 

TF 1·877 ·566·0005 

F 705·635 ·2132 

Page2 

TOWNSHIP OF LAKE OF BAYS 

1012 Dwight Beach Rd 

Dwight, ON POA lHO 

Kindly review and consider the recommendations as outlined in the above-noted AMO 
report. Should you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact the 
Municipal Office at 705-635-2272. 

Sincerely, 

C~ebM.A., CMO, AOMC, 

Director of Corporate Services/Clerk. 

CS/cw 

Copy to: MP, Scott Aitchison 
MPP, Norm Miller 
Association of Municipalities of Ontario 
Municipalities in Ontario 

100 LAKES TO EXPLORE 

273273



From: "Campbell,Allison" <Allison.Campbell@niagarahealth.on.ca> 
To: "'charlottemadden@portcolborne.ca'" <charlottemadden@portcolborne.ca> 
Date: 2020-10-23 01:14 PM 
Subject: RE: Resolution Request for Rehabilitation of Helicopter Pad at Port Colborne Urgent Care Centre 

 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when 
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders. 

 
Good Afternoon Charlotte, 

 
To follow up to my email on Wednesday, Attached to this email you will find a two page Ornge overview, 
customized to Niagara. This provides a general overview of Ornge’s dispatch and asset selection 
methodology, with some other points specific to your region.  It also includes an email where you can 
get more information. 
 
I hope this meets your needs. 

 
Thank‐you, 
Allison 

 
Allison Campbell 
Executive Coordinator to the President’s Office 
Allison.Campbell@niagarahealth.on.ca 
905‐378‐4647 x43110 
1200 Fourth Ave, St. Catharines, ON L2S 0A9 
 
 

 

274274

mailto:Allison.Campbell@niagarahealth.on.ca
mailto:Allison.Campbell@niagarahealth.on.ca
mailto:charlottemadden@portcolborne.ca
mailto:Allison.Campbell@niagarahealth.on.ca


From: Campbell,Allison 
Sent: 21‐Oct‐2020 15:47 
To: 'charlottemadden@portcolborne.ca' <charlottemadden@portcolborne.ca> 
Subject: RE: Resolution ‐ Request for Rehabilitation of Helicopter Pad at Port Colborne Urgent Care 
Centre 

 
Good Afternoon Charlotte, 

 
I am sending this response on behalf Lynn Guerriro. 
In addition and I am also attaching a response we received today from NEMS Chief Kevin Smith. Once we 
receive an update from ORNGE I will also send that to you. 

 
Thank you for your letter sent on October 2nd, 2020, referencing a motion at Port Colborne City Council 
about the former helicopter pad located at the Port Colborne Site of Niagara Health. We appreciate the 
opportunity to provide a response in follow up to your discussion regarding emergency medical care in 
the city. 
The helipad in question was decommissioned in 2009 when the Emergency Department at the Port 
Colborne Site was converted into an Urgent Care Centre. The land was subsequently transferred to the 
Regional Municipality of Niagara. 
Niagara Health works with regional and provincial partners, guided by standardized procedures, to 
ensure safe and timely access to emergency care for patients in Niagara. Given the nature of your 
request, we have shared your inquiry with our partners Niagara Emergency Medical Services (NEMS) 
and Ornge, and they will be providing further information about the services they provide in our region. 
These services include the transport by land or air of patients who are critically ill or injured. 
We share your commitment to ensuring Niagara residents receive safe, quality care, and we will 
continue to work with our communities on behalf of our patients and families. Please do not hesitate to 
reach out if you would like further information about Niagara Health’s emergency medicine program 
and the services we provide 

 
 

Thank‐you 
 
Allison Campbell 
Executive Coordinator to the President’s Office 
Allison.Campbell@niagarahealth.on.ca 
905‐378‐4647 x43110 
1200 Fourth Ave, St. Catharines, ON L2S 0A9 

275275

mailto:charlottemadden@portcolborne.ca
mailto:Allison.Campbell@niagarahealth.on.ca


 

 

ORNGE INFORMATION SHEET - NIAGARA 

Ornge is Ontario’s provider of air ambulance and critical care medical transport services.  As requested, we are 

pleased to provide a brief overview of how we provide these services to the Niagara Region and across the 

province. 

Ornge performs more than 20,000 patient-related transports across Ontario each year.  More than 90 per cent of 

these are inter-facility – typically from one hospital to another in order to increase the level of care.  Approximately 

7 to 8 per cent are scene calls – where Ornge lands at the scene of a traumatic injury (available during daylight 

hours). 

 

Ornge Bases: 

Ornge has 12 bases across the province.  Depending on the location, these bases may be equipped with 

helicopters, airplanes, land ambulances or a combination of these.  The Niagara peninsula is most frequently 

served by: 

 Toronto base – 2 helicopters staffed 24/7 

 London base – 1 helicopter staffed 24/7 

 GTA base* – 2 Critical Care Land Ambulances (CCLA) staffed 12/7 

 

*As part of Ornge’s COVID response, one of the GTA crews is being forward-deployed to the 

Hamilton/Halton area on a daily basis for the duration of its 12/7 shift.  This provides enhanced coverage for 

the area south and west the GTA, and allows for COVID patients from that area to be transported by land 

rather than air (part of Ornge’s COVID mitigation strategy). 

The vehicle used to respond to a call will depend on a number of criteria.  See Asset Selection below. 

 

Dispatch Process: 

Ornge is not part of the 911 system.  Hospitals, paramedic services, Central Ambulance Communications Centres 

and CritiCall Ontario directly request Ornge service.   

 Dispatch decisions are made within Ornge’s Operations Control Centre.   

 Communications Officers gather medical information, assess the patient’s level of care requirements, 

dispatch the most appropriate asset, and coordinate logistics with the sending and receiving hospitals and, 

as needed, with the local paramedic service. 

 A Transport Medicine Physician triages, discusses the patient’s medical status with the sending hospital, 

provides advice on preparing the patient for transport, and gives medical orders to Ornge paramedics.  

276276



 

 

Asset Selection: 

Ornge strives to ensure the closest most appropriate asset (helicopter, airplane, land ambulance) is matched with the 

right patient.  The selection of asset is based on a number of considerations: 

1. Type of Request 

a. Highest priority is given to emergent requests (e.g. scene calls, inter-facility Life or Limb transfers) 

2. Medical needs of the patient 

a. Patient’s level of care required 

b. Time to definitive care 

3. Vehicle considerations 

a. Range, speed 

b. Crew’s level of care (advanced or critical) 

4. Unique local circumstances, e.g. 

a. Location of airport 

b. Hospital with/without helipad 

c. Local EMS deployment plan 

 

Landing Infrastructure 

Landing sites are the responsibility of local stakeholders.  The Niagara Region has a number of landing sites which are 

available to Ornge for air transports and selected depending on the criteria above.  These landing sites include: 

 Welland Central Airport 

 Niagara Health – Welland Site Helipad 

 Niagara Health – St. Catharines Site Helipad 

 Niagara Falls Fire Hall Helipad 

 Niagara Cenral Dorothy Rungeling Airport 

 Grimsby Airpark 

Ornge helicopters are also able to land on scene during daylight hours, so long as the pilot in command is able to locate 

a safe and suitable landing zone.  At night, Ornge helicopters will meet land Paramedics at an approved aerodrome (such 

as the landing sites listed above). 

Note:  For shorter distance transport from the scene to a trauma centre where land transport is faster than air response, 

and for inter-facility transports requiring a primary level of care, the local paramedic service would be the preferred 

option.  For inter-facility transports over a medium distance requiring a higher level of care, Ornge’s Critical Care Land 

Ambulance would be the preferred option.  The helicopter is generally used for calls in which it brings a clinical time 

benefit.  For example, a helicopter is appropriate for patient transport to a trauma centre when transport by helicopter 

is faster than land transport.   Similarly, a helicopter is appropriate for inter-facility transfer when the patient requires a 

higher level of care en route and definitive care (e.g. a time sensitive specialized treatment) at the receiving hospital. 

If you have any questions about Ornge service, feel free to contact us at info@ornge.ca. 

277277

mailto:info@ornge.ca


The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 

By-Law No. 6835/35/20 

Being a By-law to Amend By-law 6733/97/19, Being a By-law to Impose 
Development Charges for the City of Port Colborne 

Whereas the Council of the City of Port Colborne passed By-law 6733/97/19 
on November 12, 2019; and 

Whereas Council wishes to further amend By-law 6733/97/19; and 

Whereas the Development Charges Act, S.O. 1997, c.27, as amended, (the 
"Act") provides that the Council of a municipality may amend a by-law imposing 
development charges; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 
enacts as follows: 

1. That Section 3.1 1(b), is hereby amended by replacing the existing residential 
percentage charge periods for si ngle detached dwellings with the fol lowing: 

All Year1 Year2 Year3 Year4 
Residential October 7, January 1, January 1, January 1, 

Services 2019- 2021 - 2021 - 2022-
December 31, December December December 

2020 31,2021 31 , 2022 31, 2023 

20% 40% 60% 80% 

· nacted and passed this 9th day of November, 2020. 

Will iam C Steele 
Mayor 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

Year 5 
January 1, 

2023-

October 6, 

2024 

100% 

278278



The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 

By-law no. 6836/36/20 

Being a by-law to amend Zoning By-law 6575/30/18 respecting lands legally 
described as Part of Lots 16, 17, 18 and 19, part of the road allowance between 
Lots 16 and 17, part of the road allowance between Lots 18 and 19, in the City of 

Port Colborne, Regional Municipality of Niagara. The property is municipally 
known as the Nyon Oil lands generally south of the CN Rail lane, west of 

Highway 140 and east of Canal Road in the City of Port Colborne. 

Whereas By-law 6575/30/18 is a by-law of The Corporation of the City of 
Port Colborne restricting the use of land and the location and use of buildings and 
structures; and 

Whereas, the Counci l of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 
desires to amend the said by-law. 

Now therefore, and pursuant to the provisions of Section 34 of the Planning 
Act, R.S.O. 1990, The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne enacts as follows: 

1. This amendment shall apply to those lands described on Schedule "A" 
attached to and forming part of this by-law. 

2. The Special Provision: Hl-46-H of Section 37.2 entitled Special Provisions 
of Zoning By-law 6575/30/18, as amended , is hereby further amended by 
removing provision b) i) and b) iii) which read: 

i) The Owner enters into and registers on title a Site Plan Agreement 
with the City of Port Colborne which will include recommendations 
made in the supporting technical studies conducted in association 
with the development application; 

iii) Prior to the City entering to the Site Plan Agreement, approval shall 
be obtained from the applicable approval authority which identifies 
an appropriate location and design for a private sewage disposal 
system and private water supply system to adequately and 
appropriately service the proposed use; 

3. That this by-law shall come into force and take effect on the day that it is 
passed by Council, subject to the provisions of the Planning Act. 

4. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to proceed with the giving 
notice of the passing of this by-law, in accordance with the Planning Act. 

Enacted and passed this gth day of November, 2020. 

William C. Steele 
Mayor 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

279279



THIS ts SDIEDt.A.£ . ,..,. ro · eY_LA'J NO. 

PASSED tlQV[M.BER 97-202-0-:--

MAY~ 

Cl[RK 

Cl-ty of \Jelloncl 

r777l TI:CHNlC~b Rt:rlr.''CMl:tll TO Hl- -46"""' 
- -- rLLLl Re"o vlng provision b ) I> and b) !U 

This is Schedule "A" to By-law No. 6836/36/20 

Passed November 9th, 2020 

Mayor 

Clerk 

280280



The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 

By-Law No. 6837/37/20 

Being a By-Law to Amend By-Law No. 89-2000, 
Being a By-Law Regulating Traffic and Parking on 

Killaly Street East 

Whereas at its meeting of November 9, 2020 the Council of The Corporation of 
the City of Port Colborne ("Council") approved the recommendation of Engineering 
and Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report No. 2020-159, Subject: 
By-law Revision - Speed Limit change on Killaly Street East; and 

Whereas Council is desirous of amending the provisions of By-law 89-2000, 
Being a By-law Regulating Traffic and Parking on City Roads, as amended, in 
accordance with the recommendations outlined in the above referenced report; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 
enacts as follows: 

1. That Schedule 'W' Speed Limits to By-law 89-2000, as amended be 
further amended to delete the following therefrom: 

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 
Hiqhwav From To Max. Speed 

Killaly Street East James Street 350 m west of Snider 40 
Road 

2. That Schedule 'W' Speed Limits to By-law 89-2000, as amended be 
further amended by adding thereto the following: 

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 
Highway From To Max. Speed 

Killaly Street East James Street Snider Road 40 when f lashing 

3. That th is by-law shall come into fo rce and take effect on the passing, 
subject to the display of official signs. 

Enacted and passed this 9th day of November 2020. 

William C. Steele 
Mayor 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

281281



The Corporation of the City of Port Col borne 

By-Law No. 6838/38/20 

Being a by-law to adopt, ratify and confirm 
the proceedings of the Council of The 

Corporation of the City of Port Colborne at 
its Regular Meeting of November 9, 2020 

Whereas Section 5(1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, provides that the powers of 
a municipality shall be exercised by its council; and 

Whereas Section 5(3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, provides that a municipal 
power, including a municipality's capacity rights, powers and privileges under section 
9, shall be exercised by by-law unless the municipality is specifically authorized to do 
otherwise; and 

Whereas it is deemed expedient that the proceedings of the Council of The 
Corporation of the City of Port Colborne be confirmed and adopted by by-law; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 
enacts as follows: 

1 . Every action of the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 
taken at its Regular Meeting of November 9, 2020 upon which a vote was 
taken and passed whether a resolution, recommendations, adoption by 
reference, or other means, is hereby enacted as a by-law of the City to take 
effect upon the passing hereof; and further 

2. That the Mayor and Clerk are authorized to execute any documents required 
on behalf of the City and affix the corporate seal of the City and the Mayor and 
Clerk, and such other persons as the action directs, are authorized and 
directed to take the necessary steps to implement the action. 

Enacted and passed this 9th day of November, 2020. 

William C. Steele 
Mayor 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

282282



283283



City of Port Colborne 
Regular Council Meeting 28-20 

Minutes 

Date: October 26, 2020 

Time: 6:30 p.m. 

Place: Council Chambers, Municipal Offices, 66 Charlotte Street, Port Colborne 

Members Present: M. Bagu, Councillor 
E. Beauregard , Councillor (via Zoom) 
R. Bodner, Councillor (via Zoom) 
G. Bruno, Councillor 
F. Danch, Councillor (via Zoom) 
A. Desmarais, Councillor (via Zoom) 
D. Kalailieff, Councillor 
W. Steele, Mayor (presiding officer) 
H. Wells, Councillor 

Staff Present: D. Aquilina, Director of Planning and Development Department 
(via Zoom) 
B. Boles, Director of Corporate Services/Treasurer (via Zoom) 
A. Grigg, Director of Community and Economic Development (via 
Zoom) 
A. LaPointe, Manager of Legislative Services/City Clerk 
G. Long , Manager of Strategic Initiatives 
S. Luey, Chief Administrative Officer (via Zoom) 
C. Madden, Deputy Clerk (minutes) 
S. Shypowskyj, Acting Director of Engineering and Operations 
(via Zoom) 
A. Vander Veen, Drainage Superintendent (via Zoom) 

Also in attendance was one member of WeeStreem. 

1. Call to Order: 

Mayor Steele called the meeting to order. 

Mayor Steele delivered his Mayor's Report , a copy of which is attached . 

Regional Councillor Butters informed Council that the Niagara Region received a 
AA credit rating. She proceeded to report that the Niagara Region 's Mask By-law 
now extends to common areas in condominium/apartment buildings and reminded 
residents to be kind to those who cannot wear a mask fo r health reasons. Councillor 

284284



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 28-20 Page 2of15 

Butters concluded her report by encouraging residents to stay safe this Halloween 
and congratulated all the recent retirees at the City of Port Colborne. 

2. Introduction of Addendum Items: 

None. 

3. Confirmation of Agenda: 

No. 215 Moved by Councillor F. Danch 
Seconded by Councillor M. Bagu 

That the agenda dated October 26, 2020 be confi rmed , as 
circulated. 

CARRIED 

4. Disclosures of Interest: 

Councillor Bagu declared a pecuniary interest regarding item 2 (Planning and 
Development Department, By-law Enforcement Division, Report 2020-106, Subject: 
Fence Variance - 128 McCain Street) as the property owners immediately south of 
128 McCain Street share the same granddaughter as the Councillor. Councillor 
Bagu refrained from discussing and voting on item 2. 

Councillor Beauregard declared a pecuniary interest regarding item 6 
(Memorandum from Councillor Harry Wells Re: Designating the Vulnerable Aquifer 
Schedule B of Official Plan as a Source Water for Rural Residents of port Col borne), 
as he is employed by Sullivan Mahoney the solicitor for Rankin companies. 
Councillor Beauregard refrained from discussing and voting on item 6. 

5. Adoption of Minutes: 

No. 216 Moved by Councillor H. Wells 
Seconded by Councillor R. Bodner 

(a) That the minutes of the regular meeting of Council 27-20, 
held on October 13, 2020, be approved as presented. 

CARRIED 

6. Determination of Items Requiring Separate Discussion: 

The following items were identified for separate discussion: 

Items 1, 2, 3, 4, and 6. 

285285



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 28-20 Page 3 of 15 

7. Approval of Items Not Requiring Separate Discussion: 

No. 217 

Items: 

Moved by Councillor R. Bodner 
Seconded by Councillor E. Beauregard 

That Items 1 to 13 on the agenda be approved, with the 
exception of items that have been deferred, deleted or listed 
for separate discussion, and the recommendation contained 
therein adopted. 

5. Corporate Services Department, Financial Services Division, Report 
2020-156, Subject: Provincial COVID-19 Safe Restart Funding 

Council Resolved: 

That Council direct staff to apply for Phase 2 funding under the Safe 
Restart Agreement - Municipal Operating Fund. 

7. Niagara Region Re: Solid Waste Management By-law Update 

Council Resolved : 

That the correspondence received from Niagara Region Re: Solid 
Waste Management By-law Update, be received for information. 

8. Niagara Region Musicians Associations Re: The Establishment of a Sub 
Class of Property Taxes for Venues that Engage Live Entertainment -
Economic Challenges brought on by COVID 

Council Resolved: 

That the correspondence received from Steve Kostyk, President, 
NRMA, regarding the Establishment of a Sub Class of Property Taxes 
for Venues that Engage Live Entertainment - Economic Challenges 
brought on by COVID, be received for information. 

9. City of St. Catharines Re: Development Approval Requirements for 
Landfills - (Bill 197) 

Council Resolved : 

That the resolution received from the City of St. Catharines Re: 
Development Approval Requirements for Landfills, be received for 
information. 

286286



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 28-20 Page 4of15 

10. City of Thorold Re: Amendments to Bill 197 Being Amendments to the 
Environmental Assessment Act. relating to Landfill Sites 

Council Resolved: 

That the resolution received from the City of Thorold Re: Amendments 
to the Environmental Assessment Act, relating to Landfill Sites, be 
received for information. 

11. Township of Enniskillen Re: Funding and Inspections for Long Term 
Care Homes due to COVID 19 and Endorsement of Bill 164 

Council Resolved : 

That the resolution received from the Township of Enniskillen in 
support of the City of Port Colborne's resolution Re: Funding and 
Inspections for Long Term Care Homes due to COVID 19 and 
Endorsement of Bill 164, be received for information. 

12. City of Vaughan Re: Funding and Inspection for Long Term Care Homes 
due to COVID 19 Pandemic 

Council Resolved: 

That the correspondence received from the City of Vaughan Re: 
Funding and Inspection for Long Term Care Homes due to COVID 19 
Pandemic, be received for information. 

13. City of Port Colborne's Resolution Re: Request for Endorsement of Bill 
164 Protecting Vulnerable Persons in Supportive Living Accommodation 
Act 2019 

Council Resolved: 

That the resolutions received from the Municipality of Brooke
Alvinston, Coleman Township, Municipality of Dutton Dunwich, 
Municipality of Huron East, Township of O'Connor, Town of Rainy 
River, City of St. Catharines, City of Vaughan, Township of Warwick 
and City of Welland regarding City of Port Colborne's request for 
endorsement, be received for information. 

CARRIED 

287287



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 28-20 Page 5 of 15 

8. Delegations/Presentations 

(a) Carol Nagy, Executive Director, Hospice Niagara Re: Community Funding Grant 
Request for Expansion of Hospice Residential and Community Services Across the 
Region 

Carol Nagy, Executive Director, Hospice Niagara, provided a presentation with 
respect to a Community Funding Grant Request for the expansion of Hospice 
Residential and Community Services across the Region and responded to 
questions received from Council. A copy of her presentation is attached . 

(b) Scott Luey, Chief Administrative Officer and Gary Long, Manager of Strategic 
Initiatives Re: Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

Scott Luey, Chief Administrative Officer and Gary Long, Manager of Strategic 
Initiatives provided a presentation with respect to the 2020-2025 Strategic Plan 
and responded to questions received from Council. A copy of their presentation 
is attached. 

9. Councillors' Items: 

Staff Responses to Previous Councillors' Enquiries 

(a) Access Gates at the Lake Road Ends (Shypowskyj) 

The Acting Director of Engineering and Operations provided Council with an 
update on the issue of off-roading vehicles maneuvering around the access 
gates on lake road ends. The Acting Director of Engineering and Operations 
informed Council that staff have investigated the issue and confirmed that there 
are sections of these road ends that require blockage. He further reported that 
staff is currently conducting a review to improve all road ends with work to be 
implemented in the near future and that temporary solutions will be put in place 
for the interim. 

(b) Audible Pedestrian Signal Crossings (Shypowskyj) 

The Acting Director of Engineering and Operations provided an update to 
Council with respect to the audible pedestrian signal crossings in the City. He 
informed Council that there are 19 crossings in the City and out of those 
crossings, there are 7 using audible signals. He further reported that an audible 
signal installation is approximately $12,000 which is dependant upon existing 
infrastructure. He indicated that in order to achieve AODA compliance, a tactile 
pad installation would be required within 1.5 metres of the crossing , thereby 
adding an additional cost in the event that the poles needed to be relocated. 

288288



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 28-20 Page 6of15 

Councillors' Issues/Enquiries 

(a) Nyon Public Meeting (Wells) 

In response to Councillor Wells' inquiry regarding what the precise request is 
that is being brought forward during the upcoming Planning Public Hearing, the 
Director of Planning and Development informed Council that on November 2, 
Council and the public will hear the technical amendment being proposed by 
Nyon Oil Inc., which is to change the wording in the Zoning By-law to not require 
a site plan agreement or private servicing before the holding provision on that 
property be removed . 

(b) Public Hearing Signs Removed (Wells) 

Councillor Wells informed Council and staff that the Public Hearing Notice signs 
had gone missing from the Nyon Oil Inc. property and queried as to what could 
have possibly happened to them. The Director of Planning and Development 
suggested to Council that the signs could have inadvertently been destroyed 
by the MTO and confirmed that Nyon Oil Inc. re-posted the signs in a better 
area to avoid being destroyed in the future. 

(c) Local Development Charges (Bruno) 

In response to Councillor Bruno's inquiry regarding whether the City could 
amend the residential component of the Development Charges By-law for 
single detached dwellings to align with the Niagara Region's Development 
Charges By-law indexing date, the Director of Planning and Development 
confirmed that this could be accomplished by way of a By-law amendment 
which he would bring forward for Council 's consideration at the November 9, 
2020 Council meeting. 

(d) Barrick Road Truck Traffic (Bruno) 

In response to Councillor Bruno's inquiry regarding whether staff could reach 
out to companies in the area of Barrick Road and Elm Street to request that 
they notify their trucking companies to use Stone bridge Drive instead of Barrick 
Road, the Manager of By-law Services confirmed that she can arrange for staff 
to do this. Further, in response to Councillor Bruno's request that signage be 
put up on Highway 58 notifying truck drivers to use Stonebridge Drive, the 
Acting Director of Engineering and Operations informed Council that he will 
bring this request forward at the upcoming meeting with the MTO and update 
Council on this matter at the next meeting. 

289289



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 28-20 Page 7 of 15 

(e) Commercial Signs around the City (Bruno) 

Councillor Bruno expressed appreciation towards the Roads Supervisor for 
actively monitoring and removing commercial signs that continue to be 
installed without permission along the City's roads and hydro poles. The Chief 
Administrative Officer confirmed that he will communicate with all City staff to 
monitor commercial signs along the City roads, remove them if possible or 
report to dispatch so that a Roads employee can remove. Councillor Bruno 
encouraged residents to report to the City if they see a commercial sign located 
along a City road . 

(f) Community Centre Entranceway Signs (Bagu) 

Councillor Bagu reported to Council that he reached out to the Acting Director 
of Engineering and Operations concerning whether new community centre 
entranceway signs to the City could be installed. The Acting Director of 
Engineering and Operations confirmed to Councillor Bagu that he would 
investigate this matter and bring forward an update at the next Council 
meeting. 

(g) Status of Vale Centre Walking Track (Bagu) 

In response to Councillor Bagu's request for a status update on the walking 
track at the Vale Health and Wellness Centre and whether the operating hours 
could be expanded to the evening, the Director of Community and Economic 
Development informed Council that since reopening, there have been 225 
walkers who have used the walking track with an average of 15 walkers per 
day. She further reported that the up take at the beginning of reopening was 
slow but that it has steadily increased as the weather has gotten colder. The 
Director of Community and Economic Development indicated that staff are 
actively reviewing the ability to increase services and that as the weather 
continues to get cooler and the demand is increased, staff will look to 
implement evening hours. 

(h) Recycling Bins on West Street (Bagu) 

Councillor Bagu informed Council and staff that the City's recycling bins on 
West Street hadn't been emptied in the last two weeks. In response to 
Councillor Bagu's inquiry with respect to how often the City's recycl ing bins 
along West Street get emptied and whether it's the Region 's responsibility to 
do the collection in that area, the Director of Community and Economic 
Development informed Council that there is a decreased off season schedule 
whereby staff collect the recycling twice a week. The Director of Community 
and Economic Development further reported that she will follow-up with staff 
on this issue and provide an update at the next Council meeting. 

290290



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 28-20 Page 8of15 

(i) Homelessness in Downtown Port Colborne (Bagu) 

In response to Councillor Bagu's inquiries regarding the City's process when 
encountering or witnessing a person who may be homeless in City Hall 's 
atrium after hours and what the cleaning procedure is after these 
circumstances have occurred, the Chief Administrative Officer informed 
Council that City Hall has stepped up its cleaning schedule to twice per day 
including the atrium and further reported that if anyone witnesses this 
happening, to notify the City's Customer Service Representatives who will 
provide contact information of an employee at the Region's Homeless 
Outreach that can assist the individual with housing. The Manager of By-law 
Services reported that the Niagara Regional Police Services are aware of this 
matter and can also be contacted . 

(j) Parking Signage on West Street (Kalailieff) 

In response to Councillor Kalailieff's inquiry regarding when the signage will be 
installed with respect to the new hours of parking on West Street, the Manager 
of By-law Services informed Council that a high priority Service Request has 
been inputted, however, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, there is a delay from 
the contractors. The Acting Director of Engineering and Operations confirmed 
that he will investigate the delay and provide an update at the next Council 
meeting. 

(k) Coloured markings on the Street and Sidewalks (Kalailieff) 

In response to Councillor Kalailieff's inquiry regarding what the coloured 
markings on the streets and sidewalks are for, the Acting Director of 
Engineering and Operations informed Council that every year, staff complete 
a sidewalk review where they mark out all the tripping hazards in pink paint 
and those markings formulate the repair list for the following year. He further 
confirmed that he will coordinate with the Corporate Communications Officer 
in posting this information on the City's social media. 

(I) Portable Washroom (Kalailieff) 

Councillor Kalailieff expressed gratitude towards the Mayor and Chief 
Administrative Officer for arranging for the installment of the portable 
washroom by the canal. 

(m) Lights for the Downtown and Main Street BIAs (Danch) 

Councillor Danch informed Council that the Downtown and Main Street BIAs 
are looking to purchase new year-round decorative lights. He further reported 
that the BIAs are going to pay a portion, a grant could be applied for with the 

291291



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 28-20 Page 9of1 5 

assistance of City staff before December 1st and they are seeking support from 
Council for the remaining balance. 

No. 218 

No. 219 

Moved by Councillor F. Danch 
Seconded by Councillor G. Bruno 

That the rules respecting notice of motion, as outlined 
under Section 15 of the Procedural By-law, be waived in 
order to dispense with notice. 

CARRIED 

Moved by Councillor F. Danch 
Seconded by Councillor D. Kalailieff 

That Council approves up to $22,000-$25,000 to be 
spent on new decorative year-round lights for the 
Downtown and Main Street BIAs; and 

That the Manager of Strategic Initiatives coordinate with 
the Downtown and Main Street BIAs in order to apply for 
a grant to help purchase new decorative year-round 
lights. 

CARRIED 

(n) Niagara Leadership Summit for Women (Desmarais) 

Councillor Desmarais reported to Council that she recently attended the 
Niagara Leadership Summit for Women where there was a panel discussion 
on the rising challenge of the online world . 

(o) Trucks Driving on Mitchell Street (Desmarais) 

Councillor Desmarais reported to Council and staff that there has been an 
ongoing issue of trucks driving off the truck route and onto Mitchell Street. She 
further requested that the Manager of By-law Services contact the businesses 
in the area to request their trucking companies to stay on the truck route. 

(p) Construction on Lincoln Avenue and Christmas Street (Desmarais) 

Councillor Desmarais informed Council that due to a home construction in the 
area of Lincoln Avenue and Christmas Street, cuts were made in the road for 
servicing requirements and those cuts were improperly resurfaced which has 
caused big bumps in the road. The Acting Director of Engineering and 
Operations confirmed that asphalt patch repair is planned to be completed in 
that area in the near future. 

292292



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 28-20 Page 10of1 5 

(q) Speeding in School Zones (Desmarais) 

Councillor Desmarais reported to Council that there have been issues with 
speeding on Janet Street which is a School Zone. She informed Council that 
when the construction was happening on Janet Street, the School Zone signs 
were taken down and now that the construction is completed, those signs 
should be reinstalled so as to prevent people from speeding. The Mayor 
informed Council that he will notify the Niagara Regional Police Staff Sergeant 
of this issue. 

(r) Social Determinants of Health Committee Meetings (Desmarais) 

Councillor Desmarais requested that the Social Determinants of Health 
Committee resume their meeting schedule since the weather is changing and 
the City will see a lot of challenges with respect to homelessness. 

10. Consideration of Items Requiring Separate Discussion: 

1. Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report 
2020-146, Subject: Michener Municipal Drain Meeting to Consider 

Alana Vander Veen , Drainage Superintendent and Paul Marsh, P.Eng of EWA 
Engineering Inc., provided a presentation and responded to questions 
received from Council and the public. A copy of their presentation is attached. 

No.220 Moved by Councillor H. Wells 
Seconded by Councillor M. Bagu 

That the Mayor and Clerk be directed to execute a by-law 
to provisionally adopt the Michener Municipal Drain 
Engineer's Report, dated May 7, 2020, prepared by Paul 
Marsh, P. Eng. of EWA Engineering Inc. , under Section 
78, Chapter D .17 of the Drainage Act R. S. 0 . 1990; 

That staff be directed to advance the Michener Municipal 
Drain Engineer's Report to that of the Court of Revision, 
as per Section 46(1 ), Chapter D.17 of the Drainage Act 
R.S.O. 1990; and 

That Councillor Wells, Councillor Bagu and Councillor 
Bodner be appointed as members of the Michener 
Municipal Drain Court of Revision and Councillor Danch 
be appointed as an alternate to be tentatively scheduled 
for December 9, 2020. 

CARRIED 

293293



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 28-20 Page 11 of 15 

2. Planning and Development Department, By-law Enforcement Division, 
Report No. 2020-106, Subject: Fence Variance - 128 McCain Street 

No. 221 

No. 222 

Moved by Councillor H. Wells 
Seconded by Councillor G. Bruno 

LOST 

That Planning and Development Department, By-law 
Enforcement Division, Report 2020-106, Subject: Fence 
Variance - 128 McCain Street, be received for 
information; and 

That the fence variance request for 128 McCain Street not 
be approved, and that the property be brought into 
compliance with the Fence By-law. 

Moved by Councillor E. Beauregard 
Seconded by Councillor G. Bruno 

That Planning and Development Department, By-law 
Enforcement Division, Report 2020-106, Subject: Fence 
Variance - 128 McCain Street, be received for 
information; and 

That the applicant of the fence variance request for 128 
McCain Street be directed to remove all evergreen trees 
along the fence line parallel to Steele Street, and that a 2 
feet wide portion of the south fence that is abutting the 
neighbouring property on Steele Street and a 2 feet wide 
portion of the west fence that is adjacent to Steele Street 
be lowered to 3 feet in height. 

CARRIED 

3. Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report 
2020-160, Subject: Project No.: 2020-02, Elm Street Bulk Water Station 
Replacement 

No. 223 Moved by Councillor G. Bruno 
Seconded by Councillor F. Danch 

That the Council of the City of Port Col borne award Tender 
2020-02 Bulk Water Station Instal lation to V. Gibbons 
Contracting LTD., of Stevensville, Ontario, for the total 
tendered price of $117,990.00, plus applicable taxes; 

294294



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 28-20 Page 14 of15 

13. Consideration of By-laws: 

No. 226 Moved by Councillor E. Beauregard 
Seconded by Councillor A. Desmarais 

a e o owing 'Y- aws Th t th f II b I b e enac e an p t d d assed : 
6827/77/20 Being a By-law to Provide for a Section 4 and 

Section 78 Engineer's Report for a Drainage 
Works in the City of Port Colborne in the 
Regional Municipality of Niagara Knows as 
the Michener Municipal Drain 

6828/78/20 Being a By-law to Authorize Entering into a 
Contract Agreement with v. Gibbons 
Contracting Ltd. For Project 2020-02, Elm 
Street Bulk Water Station Replacement 

6829/79/20 Being a By-law to Adopt, Ratify and Confirm 
the Proceedings of the Council of The 
Corporation of the City of Port Col borne at its 
Regular Meeting of October 26, 2020 

CARRIED 

14. Council in Closed Session: 

Motion to go into Closed Session - 10:21 p.m.: 

No. 227 Moved by Councillor F. Danch 
Seconded by Councillor G. Bruno 

That Council do now proceed into closed session in order to 
address the following matter(s): 

(a) Minutes of the Closed Session portions of July 15, 2020, 
September 2, 2020 and September 17, 2020. 

(b) Department of the Chief Administrative Officer, Project 
Management Office, Presentation concerning the potential 
disposition of City owned land, pursuant to the Municipal 
Act, 2001 , Subsection 239(2)(c) a proposed or pending 
acquisition or disposition of land by the municipality or local 
board. 

CARRIED 

Motion to Rise With Report: 

No. 228 Moved by Councillor M. Bagu 

295295



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 28-20 Page 15of15 

Seconded by Councillor H. Wells 

That Council do now rise from closed session with report at 
approximately 11 .32 p.m. 

CARRIED 

15. Disclosures of Interest Arising From Closed Session: 

None. 

16. Report/Motions Arising From Closed Session: 

(a) Department of the Chief Administrative Officer, Project Management 
Office, Presentation concerning the potential disposition of City owned 
land, pursuant to the Municipal Act, 2001, Subsection 239(2)(c) a 
proposed or pending acquisition or disposition of land by the 
municipality or local board. 

The City Clerk reported that direction was provided to staff during closed 
session in accordance with the Municipal Act, 2001. 

17. Adjournment: 

Mayor Steele adjourned the meeting at approximately 11 :35 p.m. 

William C. Steele 
Mayor 

AL/cm 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

296296



COVID-19 UPDATE 

PORT COLBORNE 

MAYOR'S REPORT 

OCTOBER 26, 2020 COUNCIL MEETING 

Good evening and welcome to our virtual council meeting. 

Tonight we are welcoming Councillors Bagu, Bruno, Kalailieff and Wells into the council 
chambers. Also joining us are our CAO Scott Luey, Clerk Amber LaPointe, Deputy Clerk 
Charlotte Madden, and a member of Wee Stream who are live streaming this meeting for us. 

Our other four city councillors and various city directors are each attending from home. 

Niagara remains in Stage 3 of the COVID-19 recovery process. There have been staggering 
numbers of new cases across the province over the past several days. We have seen the 
province roll back several regions to a modified Stage 2. We need to continue to work hard 
so Niagara does not get rolled back as well. 

We emphasize the need for social distancing , hand washing and face coverings where social 
distancing can't be maintained or where required by the Region 's face covering by-law. 

We ask that you continue to support our local businesses, including restaurants as patio 
season has come to an end and these businesses still need our support. 

Lion's Club Food Drive 

This past weekend was the Lion's Club Food Drive supporting Port Cares. 

I would like to thank everyone who donated and participated as a volunteer. We had a great 
turn out. 

Page 1of4 

297297



Staff Retirements 

Over the past 6 months we have had several staff members decide to retire. 

Normally we would have them out to the council meeting to recognize their years of service, 
but these are not normal times. 

I would like to publicly recognize the following for their combined 227 years of service to the 
City of Port Col borne and congratulate them as they enter the next stage of their lives: 

• Heather Mahon 29 years 
• Joanne Benson 27 years 
• Terry Czerlau 17 years 
• Sylvie Beaudoin 31 years 
• Pete Leavere 34 years 
• Mark Stead 30 years 
• Jim Brown 34 years 
• Brent Eden 25 years 

Public Washrooms 

With the winter season approaching, our Parks Department has installed a portable 
washroom near the Harbour Master's Building on West Street at Charlotte Street for use by 
the public. 

This washroom will remain available to the public until further notice as our facilities at H.H. 
Knoll Lakeview Park and Lock 8 Park are closed for the season. 

Garbage Collection 

Our new garbage collection schedule has started and residents are reminded they can put out 
up to 2 bags of garbage this week along side their green, blue and grey bins. 

It was troubling today that I learned that our municipal roadside garbage containers, meant for 
small amounts of garbage when walking past, are being filling with household garbage. 

We need everyone to do their part to manage their own garbage by using your green bin for 
food and pet waste and putting this to the curb each week. If your household requires a 
second bin, they are available for $17 here at City Hall. Give our Customer Service 
Representatives a call and arrange a time to pick one up. 

I know this change is new for everyone, but let's each do our part to keep our city neat and 
tidy. 

Page 2 of 4 

298298



Museum Tours 

The Port Colborne Historical and Marine Museum is currently offering socially-distanced 
guided tours of this year's exhibits. 

And as a long time supporter of the Museum, I would like to thank Lower Lakes Towing Ltd. 
who have sponsored the cost of all guided tours for the season. 

Call the Museum at 905-834-7604 to book your private tour. 

Hallowe'en 

Hallowe'en is coming up this weekend and Public Health has released some guidelines if you 
are planning to take your children trick or treating: 

• Stay home if feeling ill or if you have mild symptoms. 
• Only go out with members of your direct household. 
• Only trick or treat outside. 
• Both trick or treaters and people handing out candy should wear a face covering: 

• A costume mask is not a substitute for a face covering and should not be worn 
over a face covering as it may make it difficult to breathe. 

• Consider building your face covering into your, or your child's, costume. 
• Do not congregate or linger at doorsteps. Line up two metres apart if waiting. Avoid 

high-touch surfaces and objects. 
• Whether collecting or handing out treats, wash your hands often and thoroughly or use 

hand sanitizer: 
• Do not leave treats in a bucket or bowl for children to grab. 
• Consider using tongs, or other similar tools to hand out treats. 

Parents will need to make a personal decision about participating this year. If you do 
PORTicipate, please do it safely. 

Remembrance Day and Poppy Week 

The Royal Canadian Legion will have poppies available for purchase starting on Friday. 

Legion volunteers will not be canvassing outside of stores this year, but rather poppy boxes 
will be placed in 65 locations such as stores and schools from Wainfleet to Gasline. 

Please support their efforts. 

The Remembrance Day Ceremony will also be different this year. The public ceremony at the 
Cenotaph at H.H. Knoll Lakeview Park has been replaced by a private ceremony for Legion 
members only to be held inside the branch. 

Page 3 of 4 

299299



The Legion is hoping to be able to live stream the event and details about this will be 
available on social media closer to November 11 th_ 

The Legion has asked members of the public to please observe 2 minutes of silence at 11 :00 
a.m. on November 11 th in lieu of attending a ceremony. 

Closing 

In closing, we ask for your patience whi le we all work together and remain vigilant in fighting 
this virus. 

Our number one priority is the health and safety of our staff and citizens. 

Please stay safe. 

Page 4 of 4 

300300



I 

---------~---------~ PORT COLBORNE 

City of Port Col borne - October 26, 2020 

To be heard under Section 8 "Delegations/Presentations": 

Delegation: 

1. Carol Nagy, Executive Director, Hospice Niagara Re: Community Funding Grant Request 
for Expansion of Hospice Residential and Community Services Across the Region 

~ Note: Ms. Nagy will be in attendance and speaking in our Zoom Virtual 
Council Meeting. 

Presentation: 

2. Scott Luey, Chief Administrative Officer and Gary Long, Manager of Strategic 
Initiatives Re: Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

To be heard under Section 10 - "Items Requiring Separate Discussion" (during 
consideration of the associated report/correspondence, as identified below): 

Item 1. 

Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report No. 2020-
146, Subject: Michener Municipal Drain Meeting to Consider 

1. Alana Vander Veen, Drainage Superintendent providing a verbal report and Paul 
Marsh, P. Eng., Water Resources Engineer, EWA Engineering Inc. 

~ Note: Mr. Marsh will be providing a presentation with regard to the above 
report in our Zoom Virtual Council Meeting. 

Written Submissions 

2. Peter Mason and Martha Mason, 902 Lakeshore Road, East 
3. Lou Nieuwland and Maribeth Nieuwland, Owners, Whisky Run Golf Club Ltd. 
4. Laurie Pye and Brian Pye, Owners, Maple Meadows Farms 

Page 1of2 

301301



Item 2. 

Planning and Development Department, By-law Enforcement Division, Report No. 
2020-106, Subject: Fence Variance - 128 McCain Street 

1 . Rachel MacPherson - owner of 128 McCain Street. 
• Written submission of August 24, 2020 
• Written submission of October 26, 2020 

~ Note: Ms. MacPherson will be speaking to the above report in our Zoom 
Virtual Council Meeting. 

Written Submission 

2. Rob and Tracie Maude, 601 Steele Street 

Page 2 of 2 

302302



HOSPICE NIAGARA 
helping you live well 

Briefing Note: Hospice Palliative Care Expansion in Niagara Region 

Hospice Niagara is currently in the planning phase with the Ministry of Health for expansion of 20 new 
hospice beds within Centers of Excellence in Hospice Palliative Care. These centres, located in Fort Erie 
and Welland, will provide exceptional end-of-life care for which Hospice Niagara has become known, 
along with expansion of in-home hospice care, education and volunteer support across the region. 

Why it's important for Municipalities to Invest Now in Hospice Palliative Care 

This expansion will provide residents of Port Colborne increased care within their home and choice of 
hospice care, closer to home (other hospice beds are currently located in St. Catharines). It is important 
to invest in this expansion now, given this region's aging demographic, and the uncertainty surrounding 
the existing palliative care services provided at Port Colborne, Fort Erie and Welland hospitals. We must 
work together to secure these resources that provide expert care exactly when they are needed. 

Currently, the hospice residence bed count in Niagara is 3 beds per 100,000 residents. The Auditor 
General has recommended 7-10 beds per 100,000. The Ministry of Health agrees that the first step to 
addressing the issue of hallway medicine is to build effective community solutions, rather than locate more 
beds within hospitals. As such, the ministry has approved operational funding for 20 additional Hospice 
residence beds; 1 O in Fort Erie and 10 in Welland. This will better address patient/family centered care 
and decisions, since 80% of people in Canada prefer to die at home or in a community hospice. 

Hospice Niagara has maximized its current hospice residence capacity. Each year, the 10-bed residence 
in St. Catharines accommodates only half of those who choose hospice care. And the requests continue 
to increase by at least 15% each year. 

Hospice care is delivered at a fraction of the cost of hospital care. The average cost of a hospice 
bed is $465 per day, while a hospital bed costs over $1, 100 per day, saving our health care system 
millions of dollars each year. While dying in hospital may be some people's preference, or due to 
necessity, hospices provide people and their families with individual care, input into all care 
decisions and maintains dignity at end-of-life. 

Economical Planning 

The typical cost of building a stand-alone hospice residence falls within the range of $10M - $14M. Building 
alongside the expansion of two larger not-for-profit long-term care homes decreases the build cost by half, 
as the hospice 10-bed portion advantages economies of scale. 

If approved, the Ministry of Health will provide Hospice Niagara with $2M capital grant for each site, to 
offset the total capital build cost. 

Once approved, opening for both sites will occur in 2023. 

The Stabler Centre Welland Office 
403 Ontario Street, Unit 2, St. Catharines, ON L2N 1 LS 555 Prince Charles Drive, 2n<1 Floor, Welland, ON L3C 685 

T: 905-984-8766 I F: 905-984-8242 T: 905-984-8766 IF: 905-735-1703 

info@hospiceniagara.ca I hospiceniagara.ca I Chari table Registration # 899716294RROOO 1 

We rely on your donations to provide our programs and services throughout Niagara. 
Official income tax receipts are provided for donations of $20 or more. 303303



Sustainable Growth 

Hospice Niagara plans to manage increased operating costs of these two new facilities by integrating 
and/or contracting most of its infrastructure and back-end operating costs through its long-term care 
partners. In this way, the organization is ensuring that the services it provides today will be available to 
future generations. 

Integration planning between Hospice Niagara and long-term care operators will provide: 
• Opportunity for shared use amenities and services (where possible); 
• Potential for shared services (laundry, housekeeping, grounds keeping, parking , utilities, building 

maintenance, etc.); 
• Opportunity for back-end integration of administrative functions, such as Information Technology 

(IT), maintenance, payroll, communications, etc. 

Capital Campaign Contributions 

Hospice Niagara's capital campaign has launched, with a target of raising $14M toward the build costs for 
the Fort Erie and Welland sites. Hospice Niagara is working to secure contributions from every 
municipality, along with the Region, riot only because this expansion benefits all of Niagara, but this 
broad-based commitment will send a very strong message to the Province, as it considers the allocation of 
the provincial grant funding ($4M in total). 

Improved Care for South Niagara 

Niagara's much needed Hospice expansion is important to every community. This expansion model 
creates a template for other communities in Niagara to plan alongside Hospice Niagara for future hospice 
resource expansions. 

Most importantly, for people living in Port Colborne, expansion means: 
• Increased local access to weekly hospice wellness programs, caregiver and bereavement 

support; 
• Influx of palliative care professionals working in south communities; 
• Two south-Niagara facilities that serve this geographic area, which has one of the highest 

proportions of aging population (in all age categories over 65 years old) , with complex health 
issues (i.e. underserved communities); 

• The expansion of francophone programs and services; 
• Onsite expert consultations to help people living in southern L TC homes avoid hospital 

admissions due to pain crisis and complex end-of-life care and; 
• Better planning , transitions and improved quality of life for patients and families , who will have 

local access to vital hospice and community palliative care services. 

These projects are community and provincial investments that will maintain Hospice Niagara's proven 
record in providing exceptional care according to best practice standards, while ensuring sustainable 
expansion through partnerships and integration. 

The Stabler Centre 
403 Ontario Street, Unit 2, St. Catharines, ON L2N 1 LS 

T: 905-984-8766 IF: 905-984-8242 

Welland Office 
555 Prince Charles Drive, 2"d Floor, Welland, ON L3C 6B5 

T: 905-984-8766 I F: 905-735-1703 

info@hospiceniagara.ca I hospiceniagara.ca I Chari tab le Registration# 899716294RR0001 

We rely on your donations to provide our programs and services throughout Niagara. 
Official income tax receipts are provided for donations of s20 or more. 304304



HOSPICE NIAGARA 
October 8, 2020 

Mayor William C. Steele 
Port Colborne City Hall 
66 Charlotte Street 
Port Colborne, ON 
L3K 3C8 

helping you live well 

Request: Community Funding Grant Request for expansion of Hospice Residential and Community 
Services Across the Region 

Dear Mayor Steele, 

Please accept this letter as a forma l request submitted by Hospice Niagara, a not-for profit organization 
that has served Niagara Region including Port Colborne for the past 27 years. The attached brief 
supplements this letter, requesting $90,000 to be paid over a 3-year period, beginning in 2021 as Port 
Colborne's contribution toward two new Hospice Palliative Care facilities in Fort Erie and Welland. 

All Municipalities in Niagara are being asked to support this capital project as one strong voice of support 
to the province, as we advocate for expansion of these critical hospice and in-home services in our region. 
The Towns of Fort Erie and Wainfleet, along with the cities of Welland, Pelham and Thorold are in the 
process of working with their respective Council to support the same per capita request, as part of the 
2021 budget process. 

I wou ld be available to present at the Port Colborne City Council Monday, October 26, 2020, to provide 
further information and answer any questions, if you determine this request is within the financial ability of 
Port Colborne's budget. 

Port Colborne's commitment will add strength to Niagara 's unified voice as we advocate for a provincial 
grant of $4 million to support this expansion and for compassionate care for everyone. 

In closing, on behalf of Hospice Niagara Board of Directors, Staff and Volunteers, thank you you're your 
time in championing this request. 

Sincerely, 

Carol Nagy, 
Executive Director 
Hospice Niagara 
CC Amber LaPointe, City Clerk 

The Stabler Centre Welland Office 
403 Ontario St reet, Unit 2, St. Catharines, ON L2N 1 LS 55S Prince Charles Drive, 2nc1 Floor, Welland, ON L3C 685 

T: 905-984-8766 I F: 905-984-8242 T: 905-984-8766 I F: 905-735-1703 

info@ho spiceniagara.ca I hospiceniagara.ca I Charitable Registration # 89971 6294RR0001 

We rely on your donations lo provide our programs and services throughout Niagara. 
Officia l income tax receipts are provided for donations of $20 or more. 

305305



Date: October 26, 2020 

Presented by: Carol Nagy 

Executive Director, Hospice Niagara 

HOSPICE NIAGARA 
h elp i ng you ll ve well 

306306



The Problem: 

Hospices and Community Palliative Care play an important role in ending hallway medicine. 

Right now, too many people are spending their last hours, days, and weeks, in hospital beds or hallways, simply 

because there is not enough hospice bed capacity and community palliative care to support them at home. 

Hospital end-of-life care is limited, with existing local services at risk of closing when hospital services transfer 

to Niagara Fall s. 

The need for hospice pal liative care services in underserved communities, particularly in South Niagara, are 

increasing due to an aging population and the high burden of life-limiting progressive disease experienced by 

people. 

Providing equitable, safe access to health services for everyone in Niagara is a compelling social obligation that 

includes developing accessible hospice palliative care programs across the Region. 

Dying is not just a medical event. It is a physical, social, spiritual, psychological life event affecting the patient 

and their family members. 

----

The number of people dying is about to spike 

Hospice Palliative care plays an important role in ending hallway medicine. 

In Niagara: 

• 4 th largest average of hallway bed conditions in Ontario 

• 4 th largest emergency department provider in Ontario with 

approximately 200,000 ED and UCC visits annually 

• 20% of ALC beds are, at any given time, occupied by patients 

waiting for transfer out of hospital 

• 2nd highest hospital cost in 1997: Acute Palliative Care at $118M 

• The hospice bed count in Niagara is 3 beds per 100,000 people, well 

below the Auditor General's recommended of 7-10 beds per 100,000 

• Niagara Health's only four designated end-of-life beds are closing in 

2026 

• Niagara has a high percentage of seniors living with chronic illness. 
Predicted 72% increase in chronic condition prevalence rates by 2036. 

These projections point to increased pressure on Niagara's healthcare 

system . 

307307



Hospice Palliative Care: 
Community-based hospice palliative care happens in 

people's homes and in hospice residences at a fraction 

of the cost of hospitals. 

Hospital end-of-life care= $1,100 per day 

Hospice at Home is coordinated care by a team of trained 

staff and vo lunteers who provide practical help and support the 

success of home care for people living and dying with chron ic 

illnesses. Bereavement support continues to help adults and 

children cope w ith their loss. Expand these services into the Fort 

Erie community wi ll reach more people living at home and ensure 

they have choices regarding their end-of-life care. 

Hospice at Home= $100/day 

Hospice Residences are for people who need more care 

than home can provide but do not require the high cost of hospital 

care, and for those who choose to die at hospice. 

Hospice Care= $465/day hospice care 

What people say: 

In Niagara: Hospice at Home 

(J) .... 
c .... 

U> 
Up to 1,800 people receive in home 
palliative care / yr 
73% of these people die at home 
$7.2M savings in hospital 
acute care / yr 

1,400 / yr palliative care specialist 
consultations to primary care 

In Niagara: Hospice at Home 

Up to 250 people die In hospice /yr 
$1 .3M savings on hospital acute care 

30% direct transfer from hospital 
to hospice $500,000 savings 

in hospital acute care /yr 

0 
c ... 
CD 
~ .... 
en .... 
c .... 
CD 

Clients and caregivers give very high ratings to the quality of care provided by Hospice Niagara 

98% ranked the care of their loved-one as excellent 
94% fe lt overa ll, all physical pain was addressed 

100% felt they received respect and dignity 
100% felt they were included in care planning and decisions 

100% feel volunteers and staff met their needs 

308308



In Niagara, the pressure to fund new hospice beds bui lds has never been more real - and provided such an 
opportunity. The redevelopment of two Long-term Care Homes (LTC) in Niagara presents a unique opportunity 
to co-locate and integrate the full spectrum of hospice-based programs within these Homes making this 

important care a more affordable option . 

./ By partnering with LTC, we will be able to provide more hospice care, for people living in 

South Niagara, in both English and French . 

./ Integration with LTC and w ith other health partner(s) provides a model for future builds in 

smaller communities . 

./ By building in South Niagara, we are maintaining existing end-of-life services at risk of closing . 

./ By co-designing our programs and services with Indigenous health and social care providers, 

we will better meet the wellness, cultural, spiritual needs and preferences and achieve better 

end-of-life outcomes for Indigenous people in Niagara. This will benefit everyone . 

./ The Ministry of Health has endorsed this plan moving forward with operational funding 

commitment. They have yet to endorse the $4M capital grant outlined in Ministry policy. 

Increasing capacity in hospice palliative care 

throughout our region moves Niagara toward a 

tru ly modern, connected health care system that 

nurtures close partnerships between Long-term 

Care, community, hospital s, home and hospice, 

and ensures that every person receives the high 

quality of care they expect and deserve. 

HOSPICE'S 
proven record in 

PARTNERSHIPS and 
exceptional care will 

provide vital health care 
COST SAVINGS 

309309



In Conclusion: 

This innovative solution will: 

t 
A 

REDUCE 
capital build 

costs of hospice 
organizations 

ADDRESS 
hospice and 
hospital bed 

shortages 
.~ •• 
,,~~ 

ADDRESS 
the needs of 

people, caregivers, 
and every 
community 

We all experience dying, death and bereavement. It touches each and every person multiple times. Support ing 
people to live well until last breath is a measure of our humanity and our society. 

Together, we are in a unique position to develop a new economical 
expansion model for Hospice Palliative Care in Ontario that better 
addresses the needs within our community. 

This forward-thinking solution that maintains globally recognized 
palliative standards of care, wh ile levera ging strategic growth 
opportunities to create positive social impacts, wi ll significantly reduce 
hospital costs and contribute to ending hallway medicine. 

Hospice Palliative Care is the most cost effective way to ease health care 
costs in our congested hospitals. Helping families stay well through 
bereavement is compass ionate and keeps our society functioning well. 

310310



City of Port Col borne 

Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

Framework for Discussion 

Presentation to Council 
October 26, 2020 

Scott Luey 
Chief Administrative Officer 

Gary Long 
Manager of Strategic Initiatives 

311311



Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

Process to Date: 

o Facilitated roundtable discussions with Council and 

staff were held in spring 2019 

o Further discussions were held with staff in 2019 and 

early 2020 

o Project/progress postponed due to COVID-19 

312312



Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

Goal: 

o finalize a strategic plan that will take effect December 

2020 

o have a guiding document to assist Counci l and staff in 

priority setting, resource allocation, and decision

making for the remainder of this Council term and into 

th e next term 

provide strategic focus and ensure organizational 

alignment to deliver on Council priorities 

313313



Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

Structure of the Strategic Plan 

e mission and vision statement 

Q guiding principles 

o strategic pillars 

ai action items to support each pil lar 

o implementation plan 

314314



Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

6 Strategic Pillars 

.. Qua lity and Innovative Delivery of Publ ic Services 
0 Strong Financial Management to Achieve Fina ncial 

Susta i na bi I ity 

° City Building Infrastructure Investments 
0 Attracting Business Investment and Tourists to Port 
0 Supporting and Investing in Human Capita l 

• Building Trust and Confidence Through Good Governance 

315315



Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

Key points/Comments 

• strategic planning vs. operational planning 

• a living document and an ongoing process 

• many projects and initiatives underway 

• line of sight 

• quarterly progress reports to Council 

0 leadership/management oversight of plan 

316316



Strategic Pian 2020-2025 

Next steps/timelines 

8 October 26th - review framework with Counci l 

o 1st and 2nd week of November - finalize draft plan, review 

with Directors and broader management team 

o Nov. 23rd or Dec. 14 - Council review/approval 

~ Late November or early December - implementation 

corporate wide, presentations by CAO and Manager of SI, 

corporate communications and news release to key 

contacts 

317317



Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

Questions/Comments? 

318318



1 

2 

Paul C. Marsh, P.Eng. 
Water Resources Engineer 
EWA Engineering Inc. 

EWAEDPaeerln81ne. 
MJA00.2824 www nacna mm 

Michener Drain 
1979 to 2020 

Why am I here? 

• Paul C. Marsh, P.Eng. EWA Engineering Inc. 
• Council Appointment, 2018 

•AMEC, 

Alana Vander Veen 
Drainage Superintendent 

City of Port Colborne 

• August 29, 2011, appointment of a Drainage Engineer, Paul Smeltzer 
AMEC Environment & Infrastructure under Sections 78(1) and 8(1), to prepare 
a Section 4 & 78 Engineer's Report for Wignell/ Michener and Beaver Dam 
Municipal Drains, including an assessment of water quality issues, in 
accordance with the Ontario Drainage Act, R.S.O. 1990. 

• Wiebe Engineering Group 
• Appointed in 2001 

319319



L.VL.V ..L.V L. " 

Agenda 

• Drainage Engineering Approach 

• Michener Drain 
• Baseline Report 

• Design Basis 

• Final Solution 

• Drain work costs 
• Construction Estimates 

• Allowances 

• Apportioning Drain costs 
• Michener Main Drain 

• Branch #1 

• Branch #2 

3 

Approach 
• Drainage Act= Agriculture 

• What do we want? 

4 

320320



5 

6 

Drainage obstructions and maintenance 

Michener Baseline map 

Miche n~rOrainProfile 

• Basic Principles of low cost 
Maintenance 

• Machine work not manual 

• Easy access, agreed documented 
rights of access. 

• Note Drainage Act<> easement 

• Trees are as important as drainage. 

• Good trees 
• Those shown in green circl e 

• Adjacent to the drain 

• Spread, accommodates machine 
workarounds 

321321



7 

8 

Michener Drain current conditions 
1+620 1+280 

Michener Drain Status 

• WIGNELL/ MICHENER AND BEAVER DAM 
MUNICIPAL DRAINS WATER QUALITY ASSESSMENT 

• February, 2014 (updated November, 2016) 

• The purpose of this Report is to determine possible 
ecological restoration works to improve water 
quality in these drains, in an attempt to address the 
near shore water quality issues in Lorraine Bay and 
to determine financing options/models, in order to 
assess the cost of these works to watershed 
property owners, in accordance with the Drainage 
Act, R.S.O. 1990. The investigation included a field 
review of the existing conditions and establishment 
of potential restoration works. 

• A summary of proposed works are as follows: 
Planting buffers along the channels. 
Creation of wetlands in fallow areas. 
Modification of drain channels. 
Use of existing wetlands during high water events. 

0+340 

322322



Michener Drain Elements 

9 

MICHENER DRAIN: STA 0+000 to 1+750 

As Land 

• .i.. ,.!,, •• !.. . .:.. 
209m@ 0.06% 185m@ 0.09% 300m@0.13% SBOm@0.08% 430m@0.17% 

10 

323323



11 

12 

Branch Drains 

• Branch #1 
• Petition 4 Road Authority for 

Outlet -Two Culverts 
• Lakeshore Rd. East 

• Lorraine Rd . 

Branch Drain #2 

• Existing grade line 
• Equals proposed grade 

line 

• Brushing to remove 
growth 

• Spot removal of fallen 
tree 

t 

• Branch #2 
• Petition 4 Road Authority for 

Outlet 
• Lorra ine Rd. 

. !!! ~! ' 

LVLU- .LU - L' 

324324



13 

119-

111-

115-

14 

Branch Drain #1 

• 5 Design options considered 

• 3 Options assessment tables 
prepared and design drawings 

• Option 1; channel +tile 

• Option 2; closed conduit 

• Option 3; channel+ tile extending 
to Lakeshore Rd. E and Lorraine 
Rd. intersection 

• Several meetings with residents 

• Optimal Design? 

"'' oP5D 4«llll0 
(sct U.C0-07) 

I 

MICH ENER BRANCH DRAIN #1 
SCAl[ H• t:500, V• l:25 

~ .. \1!.1.W 

\_C&-02 
OPSD 400h'20 
(SC.C W.CO-M) 

325325



15 

16 

Drainage Act Allowances 

• Section 29; Land and Rights of way 
• Existing ROW or new acquisitions 
• All land valued the same, Agricultural for Niagara, $10,000 per acre. 

• Section 30; Damages 
• Commercial crops, compensation for loss of revenue 
• Not used for Trees, Ornamental trees, grass and gardens (can be used) 
• Trees removed for the drain but not in the drain are eligible for 2 for 1 re-plant 

program. 

• Section 31; existing drain, (channel I conduit) converted to a municipal 
drain 

• Section 32; Insufficient outlet 
• Section 33; Loss of access 

Calculating Section 30 Damage Allowances 

• lOm Work Zone - East of 
Michener Drain Channel Top of 
Bank 

• Distance to edge of worked field 
• 5.88m 

• Section 30 allowance for 
damages 

• Based on $ 10,000/ Ha Agricultural 
land value. 

• Assigned a 10 year cycle for 
annualized Ag. Revenue 

LVLV- ..LV-L" 

326326



17 

18 

Michener Drain Assessments 

• See attached appendix C - page 1 • Estimated Costs of Works: 

Questions? 

$199,021 
• $93,860 construction 

• $87,990 Ad min 
• $17,169 Allowances 

Note: Special Benefit, Sect. 24 
• Michener-WRGC in recognition 

of original sediment trap 

• Intended to be a payment in kind. 

327327



October 24, 2020 

City of Port Col borne 

Engineering and Operations Municipal Office 

Re: Engineer's Report Under the Drainage Act R.S.O 1990-Michener Municipal Drain 

Thank you for considering our concerns and desired outcomes per the Engineers report of Michener 

Municipal Drain Report published May 7, 2020. 

Our land at 902 Lakeshore Rd. E., is central to this document, and as such we have the following 

comments and concerns. 

The Michener Drain including the proposed Michener Drain Branch 1 which bisects east to west, our 

property, were originally created by private landowners to facilitate the draining of land for purely 

agricultural purposes. As such, the owners of the then productive land, shared the cost of the 

maintenance of the drains. This was an important function of having productive farm fields. As the land 

is no longer being used for agricultural use, the question must be raised, why are the drains being 

restored? And why are the landowners on whose land the drains cross responsible for the cost of the 

restoration if the land is no longer being farmed? 

The area has been wetland, low land and flood plain for millennia. The intent of our parents, and now 

we as owners was and is to restore our piece of land to its natural state. Thousands of indigenous trees 

chosen for their suitability to the terrain were planted in the early 1970's by our parents aided by the 

Ministry of Natural Resources. When our parents built a structure on the land, the fact that the land was 

low and a flood plan was taken into account, thus there is no basement and it is built on pilings. Rather 

than fighting the lands natural tendencies, we have worked with the land. Our wish has been to provide 

a natural habitat for organisms that are affected by wetland being dra ined everywhere. 

We note that there are a lot of high run-off surfaces in the area i.e. Golf course w ith turf, large turf 

lawns, tennis courts. If the purpose of the drains is now to facilitate a for-profit enterprise or the success 

of inappropriate and cosmetic land use, then we must state that we do not wish to participate in any 

way in this project. We submit that if this is the case, landowners must invest in their own private 

infrastructure projects. 

We also note that, there is no environmental assessment. Wetlands are extremely sensitive 

environments, and to disturb the land by bringing in heavy equipment to excavate the drains is counter 

to our collective obligation to protect sensitive areas. There are many species at risk in the area 

including but not limited to the Fowler's Toad. We note that there has been a recent and critical 

leadership change at the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority and so we would ask that an 

updated opinion on whether or not an environmental assessment is required is necessary. 

In summary, here is our position: 

328328



1. We wil l abandon the proposed Michener Drain Branch 1 that bisects our land. Our intent has 

been and will be for the land to go back to its original state. To facilitate this, we will block both 

ends of this drain on our property. 

2. We request an environmental assessment to be conducted on this project which takes into 

consideration the loss of wetland in Niagara and the species that are at risk and/or endangered 

because of this . Note that wetland is provincially significant and that this area falls below the 

recommended percentage of wetland. 

3. If the Michener drain restoration is to go ahead, recognition that this is a municipal 

infrastructure project and not a private agricultural project and as such the cost of the project 

should be covered by the City of Port Col borne. At the very least, the cost should be borne by 

those landowners who wish to have the project done and who will benefit from it. In this case, 

we do not want to participate. Until this is agreed to we do not wish to allow clearance for the 

material from the drain to be moved onto our land. 

Thank you again for your considering our position. 

Yours sincerely, 

Peter Mason Martha Mason 

Pjmb.mason@gmail.com martha.mason@sympatico.ca 

289-219-0106 416-433-0396 

902 Lakeshore Rd. E. 

Port Colborne Ontario 

329329



From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 

"Lou Nieuwland" <lou@whiskyrun.com> 
ronbodner@portcolbome.ca, harrywells@portcolborne.ca, cityclerk@portcolbome.ca 
2020-10-24 01 :53 PM 
Mitchener Drain Report 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when 
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders. 

Hi Ron and Hany, 

As I stated at the public meetings, the Michener Drain is not a problem for us and Whisky Run 
Golf Club. 

Our problem is the Wignell Drain which overflows its banks and floods several holes at the back 
of our Serpent nine hole golf course. In the last several years we have had to close this nine hole 
course; west of Lonaine Road, for about 2 weeks each year during the golfing season because of 
this :flooding. 

Our share of the costs for the proposed work on the Michener is almost $42,000.00. The repair 
and improvement on the Michener does nothing to solve our issue. IT IS THE WIGNELL 
DRAIN THAT NEEDS REP AIR AND IMPROVEMENT. The Michener flows into the Wignell 
Drain, and unless the Wignell can handle the water from the Michener; which will flow into it 
even faster, it will likely make the flooding from the Wignell Drain even worse. 

If the Report is adopted by Council , we will be appealing the decision. 

Lou & Maribeth Nieuwland 
Owners, 570466 Ontario Ltd. 
Whisky Run Golf Club Ltd 
lou@w hiskyrun. com 
W: 905.835 .6864 
C: 905.714.6846 

330330



From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 

"Brian Pye" <brianpyemaplemeadows@gmail.com> 
cityclerk@portcolborne.ca 
2020-10-26 11 :16 AM 
Michener Municipal Drain 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when 
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders. 

I am wiiting this response to the engineer's report regarding the Michener drain, although the 
report is extensive and detailed, Brian and I have some concerns. 
1) the 12 hectare parcel of agricultural land shown on the repo1i and topographic maps assumes 
that the surface runoff flows toward south west and to the Michener drain. However the surface 
runoff and tile drains flow north to the friendship trail ditch and does not enter the Michener 
drain. The ditch along the friendship trail has not been maintained by the town and has filled in 
with trees and other types of vegetation. This drainage problem is not addressed in this report. 
The property has been in the family for 40 years and this issued has never been resolved and this 
report will not solve this problem. The report indicates that we are to pay $16,000 and we will 
see no benefit. 
The land south of Killay St. to the lake affected by this drain contains farmland that struggles to 
be more productive because of the geography of the land. The report makes it clear that the poor 
slope of the land makes farming a challenge to farmers despite all their efforts to improve 
drainage. Since the farmland and drain have very little slope this will continue in the future and 
will not be solved by work outlined in this report. We will continue to see water laying in the 
fields even after the work is done. 
Invasive species of of vegetation such as phragmites have made it impossible to keep the drains 
from functioning properly regardless of all efforts and spraying cancer causing chemicals to 
control the problem is not an option. The town cleaned a ditch north of Killaly St approximately 
six years ago and it has filled in with invasive vegetation and no longer functions properly and 
was a waste of money. 
The land south of Killaly affected by this drain is critical to the well being of our environment. 
This land is poorly drained, and is just above the lake level and as a result for thousands of years 
contained wetlands, carolinian forests and the cranbe1Ty marsh. This unique geographic area also 
contains many animal species that are endangered and are critical for a healthy ecosystem. It is 
ironic that the NPCA and all levels of government are spending money to restore wetlands, help 
endangered species, and educate us on how important this unique geographic area is to our well 
being. Many municipalities have recognized that just building a drain was an 19th century 
answer and not what is needed in the 21st century. I suggest council put the report on bold and 
take a look at what other municipalities(Huron) are doing with their watershed problems. 
These municipalities are leading in regards to watershed programs that educate and help all 
landowners and give tours to drainage superintendents and councillors. 
I understand the pressure that councillors are under when water affects a person's livelihood or 
personal property and are asked to solve the problem. However this repmi does not solve 
anybodys problems and should be rejected and will be appealed. 
On a personal note we have started working with the NPCA to establish a wetland on our 
prope1iy, our first pond has been dug and will hopefully dig our second pond next year. We truly 
believe that our environment is unique and that it needs to be protected. 
Laurie and Brian Pye 
Maple Meadows Farm 

331331



Submission for August 24, 2020 Council meeting 

Hello Charlotte, 

I would like this passed along to members of council please. 
My name is Raebel MacPherson and I am emailing with regards to the variance to 128 McCain 
street. I have had the chance to review the report Sherry Hanson composed and I have some 
further viewpoints to provide. As previously mentioned in my application for the variance the 
fence has been up for 20 years with no voiced concerns. I noticed Sherry added photos of the 
transition of the fence over the past 13 years. The fence that is separating my lot to the 
neighbours lot, changed in 2009. If I am not mistaken, the by law at that time allowed the 
change. The current by-law wasn't changed until 2010. I have attached the previous by-law. The 
fence should be grandfathered in. 
If the trees that are being considered a fence based on how they've been planted are an issue I am 
willing to replant them elsewhere. In the 2020 photo taken, it shows the visibility from the 
neighbours view. There is no obstruction to view, in fact ifl had been parked in my driveway the 
time of the photo, you would see that my truck sticks out further than the fence. I can provide 
photographic evidence of this. 
Currently the neighbour who is voicing concern regarding the fence has been harassing me, and 
vandalizing/defacing the fence in place. The fence is 4 inches onto my yard. I can provide 
photographic proof if need be. 

Thank you for your time, 

Rachel MacPherson 

332332



10:36 " 

Old Fence By-Law Port Co 1lbor ... 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF PORT COLBORNE 

BY-LAW NO. ~lli,La)j,..,,0=2 __ _ 

8EING A BY-LAW TO AMEND BY·LAW 11701117'181, AS AMENDED, 
BEING A BY -LAW TO PRESCRIBE THE. HEIGHT 

AND DESCRIPTION OF LAWFUL FENCES 
IN THE CITY OF PORT COLBORNE 

W~EREAS t.he Council of !he Corpotali0:11 of the City of Port Colborne et1a~ted By

law 11701117/81, being a by-law to prescribe lhe height and description oUawful fences ln 

the City of Port Colbome and lo repeal by-law 989100180, on the ia·· day of Novernbe, 

1981 . 

AND WHEREAS By-law 11701117161 hlls been amended from time to time; 

ANO WHEREAS the Council of Ille CorporaUon of the c;iy of Port Colb<lme

illl'IJ' OVed OPDS·Operational SefVices Division-Director's Report No. 2002-36, Fence By· 

!ew Review. a& amended. on the 27'1' day of May. 2002: 

NOW THERE,FORE THE MUNfCIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF 

THE CITY PORT COLBORNE ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

That By-law 1170/117/8t. ooirlg a by-law lo prescribe tne heiigtit and description of 

lawful fences and repeal by-law 989/6-0!80. as amended. be further amended by 

adding 10 Sec!ioo 1 "Definitions" lhe following: 

·'.Side Y<1rd - Interior" · means a stde yard olher lhan an exterior slele yard 

"Side Yard • Exterior" - n~eans a side yard Immediately adjoining .;i public 

streel 

2 That By· law 11701117181, being a by-Jaw lo prescribe the height and description of 

lawful fences and 'o repeal by-l;iw 9SQl(lQl60, as amended, be fur1her amended by 

adding 10 Seclioo 6 "Fences & Hedges at lntersecfions & Comer Lots" the 

following: 

S(dj "Notwithstanding subsection 6(c) no person sh.all cons1ruct or permit lo be 

erected or maintained any fence or hedge greater than 2m In any extcdor side yard 

except where the SoSid fence is !>et back a minimu111 of :im frqni lhe exterior side lol 

line or, where a sidewalk exisl& pa,rallel Lo me tence line, a mniirnt1m of Jm ftom the 

near slda of the i;idewalk". 

• • • 

333333



From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 

Submission for October 26, 2020 Council meeting 

"Rachel MacPherson" ••••••••••• 
charlottemadden@portcolborne.ca 
2020-10-26 09:06 AM 
128 McCain fence variance 

CAUTION : This email originated from outside your organization . Exercise 
caution when opening attachments or cl i cking links , especially from unknown 
senders. 

Good morning Charlotte , 

I would like for this to be shared with council for tonight ' s meeting . 

During this time I have been in contact with ward councilmen Frank Danch and 
Gary Bruno , and both have been by to see the fence and hedge l i ne in person . 
I have come up with a n ew purposed plan that both Gary and Frank are aware 
of . We would be willing to adjust the fence as follows: 
Corner o ff the fence closest t o the neighbour 2 feet in on both sides and 
remove three of the c i de r trees . The fence would be brought down to 3 feet in 
h eight from the 5 fee t it is currently . This would make a clear view in any 
vehicle. I know that this can be difficult to picture and explain so I have a 
rough diagram below . 

Thank you 
Rachel MacPherson 

imageO.jpeg 

334334



335335



336336



337337



338338



339339



340340



341341



342342



343343



344344



345345



346346



347347



348348



349349



350350



PORT COLBORNE 

Meeting 
Environmental Advisory Committee 

Aug 12, 2020, 6:00 p.m. 

The following were in attendance: 

Staff: Darlene Suddard 
Janice Peyton 

Council: Councillor Mark Bagu 
Councillor Harry Wells 

Public 
Members: 

George McKibbon 
Jack Hellinga 
Tim Hoyle 
Norbert Gieger 
Trent Doan 
Clayton Nadeau 
Kerry Royer 

As a COVID-19 precaution, city staff and the chair met in person at the 
Engineering and Operations Centre. The rest of the committee joined on 
Microsoft Teams. 

1. Call to Order 

George McKibbon was Acting Chair in Beth Palma's absence. 

George called the meeting to order at 6:10 p.m. 

2. Adoption of the Agenda 

Moved by Clayton Nadeau 
Seconded by Tim Hoyle 

That the agenda dated August 12, 2020 be accepted as circulated . 
CARRIED. 

3. Disclosures of Interest 

Nil. 

351351



4. Election of Committee Chair & Vice Chair 

A letter of appreciation will be sent to former Chair Beth Palma for her years 
of dedication to the committee. 

Moved by Jack Hellinga 
Seconded by Tim Hoyle 

That George McKibbon be appointed Chair of the Environmental Advisory 
Committee for the remaining term of Council. 
CARRIED. 

George accepted the appointment of Chair with thanks. 

Moved by Jack Hellinga 
Seconded by George McKibbon 

That Clayton Nadeau be appointed Vice-Chair of the Environmental 
Advisory Committee for the remaining term of Council. 
CARRIED. 

Clayton accepted the appointment of Vice-Chair with thanks. 

5. Approval I Review of Previous Meeting Minutes 

Moved by Norbert Gieger 
Seconded by Tim Hoyle 

That the minutes of March 11, 2020 be accepted as written. 
CARRIED. 

6. Items Arising from Previous Minutes 

a) Roadside Mowing 

Darlene advised that due to the pandemic the roadside mowing 
remained status quo for this year. 

b) Draft Report on Boulevard Trees 

Darlene advised that the draft report on boulevard trees is pending. 
Staff are working on a forestry survey for boulevard trees. Staff 
have generated a draft list of trees suitable for boulevards. It will 
likely be next year before considerations for amendments to the by
law are proposed. 

c) Site Alteration Permit Review and Costing 

This item is currently with the engineering department. Darlene will 
advise the committee when additional information is available. 

21 Page 
Environmental Advisory Committee August 12, 2020 

352352



d) Vale CBRA Community Status Report/Questions & Acquired 
Responses 

George advised that Vale has hired a consultant to handle their 
water sampling. George asked if staff have been approached by 
Vale regarding water sampling. Darlene will check with the 
Drainage Superintendent. George will have more information on 
this item at the next meeting. 

George advised that the application for design award for this report 
has been delayed due to the pandemic. George will make 
application when the time comes. 

e) GHG Emissions Reduction Plan 

Darlene spoke to the Fleet Manager regarding electric vehicles. 
There are not many options for electric vehicles currently as not 
much in the way of incentives are offered in Ontario. Our fleet is 
relatively new for those vehicles that could be retrofitted to electric. 

With regard to the initiative of renting city owned electric vehicles 
to residents, there is no additional information available at this 
time. 

f) New Provincial Policy Statement 

George advised he has been in contact with the Region and the 
NPCA. The Province has been making changes and more recently, 
they have passed Bill 167, the COVID-19 Economic Recovery 
Act. Together with the changes made in the Provincial Policy 
Statement 2020, municipal policy is changing very quickly and the 
comments that George drafted earlier need to be updated. Jack 
made some comments, and he and George will explore these 
further and incorporate into the earlier draft. 

g) Climate Warming Adaption 

Darlene and Clayton will work together on some climate warming 
adaption strategies. Darlene advised that direction for cl imate 
warming policies for sanitary and storm sewers is coming. George 
feels that the committee needs to work closely with the municipality, 
as the municipality reviews how climate warming affects municipal 
water and sewer services. The analysis prepared by staff can be 
used to draw some conclusions on how the built environments in 
the surrounding areas might change. 

7. New/Other Business 

a) Parks and Recreation Master Plan - EAG Involvement 
Memorandum from Director of Community and Economic 
Development 

Environmental Advisory Committee August 12, 2020 
31 Page 

353353



The EAC received a memo from the Director of Community and 
Economic Development regarding the Parks and Recreation 
Master Plan and the EAC's responsibility for some of the 
recommended actions. The committee has been working on the 
community garden initiative. 

Contact was made with the Greener Community Initiatives group 
and with Vale for possible partnerships. Vale has declined any 
involvement at this time. 

George and Clayton will reach out to Port Cares to find out the 
status of the East Village garden. The location is favorable and it 
is evident that, at some point, much time and money was spent 
on establishing this garden. 

b) Review of Committee Terms of Reference 

The committee terms of reference (attached to the minutes) was 
provided for review. Darlene advised that the committee can 
request changes through Council if they wish . Members feel that 
the EAC has been pro-active in commenting on issues to Council 
and feel that the committee mandate is being met. 

Clarification/direction was requested for item #10. Darlene will 
provide information at the next meeting. 

c) Activity-Friendly Neighbourhoods can Benefit Non-Communicable 
and Infectious Diseases 

George provided information (infographic attached to the minutes) 
regarding activity friendly neighbourhoods that shows there is no 
relation between population density and recorded COVID-19 cases 
or death rates. The infographic has been provided to the Active 
Transportation Committee for information. 

8. Next Meeting/Adjourn 

Moved by Norbert Gieger 
Seconded by Jack Hellinga 

That with no further business to discuss, the meeting be adjourned at 7:30 
p.m. 

The next EAC meeting will be on October 14 at 6:00 pm. 

41 Page 
Environmental Advisory Committee August 12, 2020 

354354



The Environmental Advisory Committee: 

1. The Environmental Advisory Committee is an Ad-Hoc Committee of 
Council whose purpose is to: 
•Advise Counci l on environmental , energy conservation and shorel ine 

protection issues that affect the City of Port Colborne and those matters 

referred to the committee by Council. 

•To promote the integration of environmental, energy conservation and 
shoreline protection considerations into the planning and development of City 

policies, programs and services. 

2. The Environmental Advisory Committee shall consist of the following 

voting and non-voting members: 
(a) Up to thirteen voting members who shall be eighteen years or older and 

residents in the City of Port Colborne, three members shall be from Council 
and up to ten members shall be appointed from the public at large by 

resolution of Council. 

(b) One non-voting member of staff who shall be appointed by resolution of 
Council and who shall act as a resource person, recording secretary and shall 
provide administrative support to the Committee. The Chief Administrative 
Officer may designate an alternate staff person who may act in the absence of 

the staff member so appointed. 

(c) In the case of a vacancy for any cause other than expiration of term, the 
member appointed to fill the vacancy shall hold office for the balance of the 

term of the member whose place is vacant. 

(d) One non-voting representative of the Niagara Peninsula Conservation 

Authority (NPCA), who shall be designated by the NPCA to serve as a 
resource person to the Committee. 

3. Unless otherwise provided for, the term of the Environmental Advisory 
Committee shall be the term of the Council. 

4. A voting member of the Environmental Advisory Committee shall cease to 

be a member of the Committee upon submission of a letter of resignation to 
the City Clerk or if he/she absents himself/herself from three successive 

scheduled meetings of the Committee without being authorized to do so by a 

resolution of the Environmental Advisory Committee entered in its minutes. 

/ J . 355355



5. All meetings of the Environmental Advisory Committee shall be open and 
no person shall be excluded therefrom except for improper conduct or except 
matters identified in Section 239(2) of the Municipal Act, 2001 , S.O. 2001, 
c.25. 
6. All members of the Committee shall serve without remuneration excepting 

that the remuneration of the non-voting staff member shall be governed by the 
Administrative Policies of the City of Port Colborne or the collective agreement 
whichever is applicable. 
7. The Chair, or in his/her absence the Vice-Chair, shall , upon a written 

request from Council or a majority of Committee memb_ers call a meeting for 
the consideration of any business within the Committee's mandate. 
8. A quorum of the Environmental Advisory Committee shall consist of a 

majority of sitting, voting members; vacant seats shall count as seats for the 
purpose of calculating a quorum. 

9. Subject to such limitations and restrictions as the Council may herein or 
hereafter either by resolution or by-law impose the Environmental Advisory 
Committee shall : 
(a) Appoint from the voting members a Chair and a Vice-Chair; 

(b) Make regulations governing its proceedings, the calling of meetings, and 
the conduct of its members; 

(c) Provide reports to Council as requested. 

10. The Committee shall hold public meetings when, in their opinion, the 
issues being discussed require community input. Notice of a public meeting 
shall be given in the local newspaper(s) no less than five days in advance of 
the meeting. 

11. The minutes of all Environmental Advisory Committee meetings shall be 
recorded and distributed to Committee Members and to the City Clerk for 
safekeeping and inclusion on the next regular Council Agenda. The minutes 
shall be open to inspection in accordance with Section 253(1) of the Municipal 
Act, 2001, S.O. 2001 , c.25., as amended and such minutes will be posted on 
the City's website. 

1+. 356356



Activity-friendly neighbourhoods 
can benefit non-communicable and infectious diseases 

Expected net effects of built environment attributes on 
non-communicable diseases and infectious diseases 

Source: Adlakha, D. & Sall ls, J.F. t2020}. ActiYity-frfe.ndty nel&hbourhoods an benefit non-communicable and infectious diseases. Cltfes and Health, In Press. 
httr><://doi.org/10.1080/23748834.2020.1783479 

Non·Communicable 
Diseases 

Environmental 
Attributes 

Residential density 

Mixed land use 

Automobile-optimized 
transportation system 
Public transportation 

Pedestrian & 
bicycling facilities 

Parks, trails, open spaces 

Open streets initiatives 

Infectious 
Diseases 

No effect 

Results from 36 cities showed no relation between population density 
and recorded COVID-19 cases or deaths rates 

Conclusions 
• Dense walkable cities with recreation facilities that are recommended for non-communicable 

diseases are generally better during infectious disease epidemics. 

•Walking and biking are the safest and healthiest forms of transport, if there are safe places to 
walk and bike. 

• Recommended mitigation measures on public transport include limiting riders, ensuring 
physical distancing, requiring masks, providing hand sanitizer, and cleaning vehicles often. 357357


	Regular Council Meeting Agenda
	Council Items
	By-law Listing
	Delegation - Christine Clark Lafleur, Port Cares
	Item 1
	Item 1 - Presentation by Bruce Peever, KPMG 
	Item 2
	Item 3
	Item 4
	Item 5
	Item 6
	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 9
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	By-laws
	Regular Council Meeting 28-20 Minutes
	Environmental Adv. Committee Meeting Minutes



